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1 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1 Preamble 

1.1.1 This section summarizes the petition for True Up for FY 2022-23, Annual 

Performance Review for FY 2023-24, and Aggregate Revenue Requirement for 

FY 2024-25 of Assam Electricity Grid Corporation Ltd. (AEGCL). 

1.2 True Up for FY 2022-23 

1.2.1 AEGCL has calculated its ARR for FY 2022-23 as part of True Up for FY 2022-23. 

AEGCL has presented the actual cost based on Audited Annual Accounts for FY 

2022-23 and applied norms wherever applicable as per Assam Electricity 

Regulatory Commission (Terms and Conditions for determination of Multi Year 

Tariff) Regulations, 2021. A detailed comparison of various cost components has 

been presented in Chapter of True Up for FY 2022-23. A summary of the 

proposed True Up for FY 2022-23 with the approved ARR for FY 2022-23 is 

presented below: 

Table 1: True Up for FY 2022-23 
   (Rs.   Crs.) 

S.N. Particulars 
Approved in T.O. 
dtd. 21.03.2022 

AEGCL  
Submission 

1 O&M Expenses                   223.11                      219.05  
a Employee Cost                   184.39                      185.39  
b R&M Expenses                     28.89                        22.99  
c A&G Expenses                       9.83                        10.67  
2 Depreciation                     35.96                      138.92  
3 Interest & Finance Charges                      24.32                        15.06  
4 Interest on Working Capital                     12.30                        16.58  
5 BST for Pension Trust Fund                   214.38                      219.71  
6 Return on Equity                     13.68                        75.70  
7 Contribution to Contingency Reserve                       2.71                          2.73  
8 Less: Non-Tariff Income/ Other Income                     54.01                        78.50  
9 Aggregate Revenue Requirement 472.45 609.24 

10 
Add: Incentive on higher transmission 
availability                            -                            3.38  

11 Add: Sharing of (Gains)/Loss                            -                         (3.78) 

12 
ARR after Sharing (Gains)/Losses and 
Incentive                   472.45                      608.84  

13 
Less: Revenue from STOA/MTOA 
Charges                     12.00                          4.25  

14 Net Aggregate Revenue Requirement                   460.45                      604.59  

15 
Revenue Gap /(Surplus) for FY 2022-
23                            -                        144.14  
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1.3 Annual Performance Review for FY 2023-24 

1.3.1 As per AERC (Terms and Conditions for determination of Multi Year Tariff) 

Regulations, 2021, APR for FY 2023-24 is based on the actuals of H1 and 

estimation of H2 which is presented below: 

Table 2: Annual Performance Review for FY 2023-24 

     (Rs. Crs.) 

S.N Particulars 
Approved 
in T.O. dt 

29.03.2023 

FY 2023-
24 H1 

FY 2023-
24 H2 

AEGCL 
Estimation 

1 O&M Expenses           239.07    119.98     119.98          239.97  

a Employee Cost          196.94       98.68       98.68          197.36  

b R&M Expenses             30.60        15.55       15.55             31.10  

c A&G Expenses             11.53           5.76          5.76              11.51  

2 Depreciation           117.69       47.79       47.79             95.58  

3 Interest & Finance Charges                  9.97  2.00  2.00       3.99  
4 Interest on Working Capital       17.73          9.64          9.64             19.29  
5 BST for Pension Trust Fund          230.34      125.77      125.77          251.55  
6 Return on Equity          111.65         60.66         60.66          121.32  

7 
Contribution towards 
Contingency Reserve  

                     
2.89  

                         
1.51  

                         
1.51  

                         
3.02  

8 
Less: Non-Tariff Income/ Other 
Income 

                   
58.45  

                       
47.10  

                       
20.13  

                       
67.23  

9 
Aggregate Revenue 
Requirement 670.89 320.26 347.23 667.49 

10 Less: Revenue from 
STOA/MTOA Charges 

                   
12.00  

                         
1.03  

                         
3.55  

                         
4.58  

11 Net Aggregate Revenue 
Requirement 

                 
658.89  

                     
319.23  

                     
343.68  

                     
662.91  

12 Revenue Gap for FY 2023-24                   4.03  
 

1.4 Aggregate Revenue Requirement for FY 2024-25 

As per AERC (Terms and Conditions for Determination of Multi Year Tariff) 

Regulations, 2021, AEGCL has presented ARR for FY 2024-25. The summary of 

Projected ARR for FY 2024-25 is shown in the table below:  

Table 3: Aggregate Revenue Requirement for FY 2024-25 

   (Rs.Crs.) 

S. N Particulars 
As per T.O. dated 

21.03.2022 
FY  2024-25 

1 O&M Expenses                      249.87  261.83 
a Employee Cost                      209.48  210.10 
b R&M Expenses                        29.73  39.31 
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   (Rs.Crs.) 

S. N Particulars 
As per T.O. dated 

21.03.2022 
FY  2024-25 

c A&G Expenses                        10.66  12.42 
2 Depreciation                        39.47  126.64 
3 Interest & Finance Charges                        21.79  0.34 
4 Interest on Working Capital                        14.83  20.96 
5 BST for Pension Trust Fund                      250.79  252.81 
6 Return on Equity                        14.27  124.28 
7 Contribution to Contingency Reserve                          3.16                    4.03  

8 Less: Non-Tariff Income/ Other Income                        54.01                 67.20 

9 Aggregate Revenue Requirement 540.17 723.69 

10 Less: Revenue from STOA/MTOA Charges                        12.00                  4.58  
11 Net Aggregate Revenue Requirement                      528.17              719.11  
12 Revenue Gap /(Surplus) for FY 2024-25 -              190.94  
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2 INTRODUCTION 

2.1 AEGCL 

2.1.1 Assam Electricity Grid Corporation Limited (hereinafter to be referred to as 

“AEGCL” or the “Petitioner”) owns and operates the transmission system 

previously owned by Assam State Electricity Board (ASEB). AEGCL started 

functioning as a separate entity from December 10, 2004.  

2.1.2 AEGCL has been developing, operating, and maintaining a transmission system 

consisting of total line length of 5968.48 Ckt. Km and seventy-six grid 

substations at different voltage levels along with associated equipment and 

terminal bays, etc.  

Table 4: Transmission Line Length of AEGCL 

Sr. No. Voltage Level 
Length in Ckt. Km 

FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22 FY 2020-21 
1.  400 kV 7.20 7.20 7.20 
2.  220 kV 2048.50 2048.05 2048.05 
3.  132 kV 3299.78 3140.95 3069.19 
4.  66 kV 613.00 613.00 613.00 

 Total 5968.48 5809.65 5737.45 
 

Table 5: No. of Grid Substation of AEGCL 

Sr. No Voltage Level 
Nos of GSS 

FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22 FY 2020-21 
1 400/220/132/33 kV 1 1 1 
2 220/132 kV 1 1 1 
3 220/132/66/33 kV 1 1 1 
4 220/132/33 kV 9 9 9 
5 220/33 kV 1 1 1 
6 132/66/33 kV 1 1 1 
7 132/33 kV 61 54 52 
8 132/11 kV 1 1 1 
 Total 76 69 67 

 

2.2 Approach for filing the petition 

a) The Hon’ble Commission notified the AERC (Terms and Conditions for 

determination of MYT) Regulations, 2021 (hereinafter to be referred as MYT 

Regulations 2021) which are applicable for determination of tariff from 1st 

April 2022 onwards and have defined control period from FY 2022-23 to FY 

2024-25. As per the provisions of these MYT Regulations, 2021, AEGCL is 

filing the true up petition for FY 2022-23 based on Audited Annual Accounts 
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for consideration of the Hon’ble Commission along with the specified formats 

providing information on various operational and performance parameters.  

b) Since FY 2022-23 is completed and Audited Annual Accounts for the said year 

are now available, hence AEGCL is filing the true up petition for FY 2022-23 

along with audited accounts as per the provisions of MYT Regulations, 2021.  

 

c) Thereafter, Hon’ble Commission vide Order dated 21st March 2022 approved 

the ARR for FY 2022-23.  

 

d) As per the provisions of the MYT Regulations, 2021, AEGCL is filing Annual 

Performance Review petition for FY 2023-24 based on 6 months actual (1st 

April 2023 to 30th September 2023) and 6 months estimation (1st Oct 2023 to 

31st Mar 2024) and Aggregate Revenue Requirement for 2024-25.  

 

2.3 Provision of Law 

a) The Hon’ble Commission has notified the MYT Regulations, 2021. The scope 

of this regulation included tariff determination for transmission licensee 

under Multi Year Tariff principle. From 1st April 2022, MYT Regulations, 

2021 are applicable till 31st March 2025, hence True Up for FY 2022-23, APR 

for FY 2023-24 and ARR for FY 2024-25 are prepared as per the provisions 

of MYT Regulations, 2021. The relevant extract of the applicability of MYT 

Regulations 2021 is provided below for reference.  

 

“3 Object, Scope of Regulations and Extent of Application 

 

3.1 The objective of these Regulations is to specify the terms and 

conditions for the determination of tariffs by the Assam Electricity 

Regulatory Commission for the supply of electricity by a generating 

company to a distribution licensee, for transmission of electricity, for 

wheeling of electricity and for retail sale of electricity, and SLDC. 

 

3.2 The Commission in specifying these Regulations is guided by the 

principles contained in Sections 61 and 62 of the Act, the National 

Electricity Policy, 2005 and the Tariff Policy, 2016 notified by the Central 

Government under Section 3 of the Act. 

3.3 The Commission shall determine tariff, including terms and conditions 

thereof, for all matters for which the Commission has jurisdiction under 

the Act, including in the following cases :- 
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(i) Supply of electricity by a Generating Company to a Distribution 
Licensee: 
(ii) Intra-State transmission of electricity; 
(iii) Wheeling Business for Distribution of electricity; 
(iv) Retail Supply Business of electricity; 
(v) State Load Dispatch Centre; 
 

Provided that the Commission shall determine such tariff, having regard to 

the terms and conditions contained in Chapter 6,7, 8, 9 & 10 of these 

Regulations for applications under this Regulation for determination of 

tariff, for generation, transmission, distribution Wheeling Business and 

retail supply business and SLDC: 

 

Provided further that the Commission, while determining tariff upon an 

application made to it under this Regulation, shall also have regard to the 

terms and conditions of tariff as may be specified by the State Commission 

of such other State and/or the terms and conditions of tariff as may be 

specified by the Central Commission where any of the Parties to such 

transaction come under the jurisdiction of such State Commission or of the 

Central Commission. 

 

3.4 Notwithstanding anything contained in these Regulations, the 

Commission shall adopt the tariff if such tariff has been determined 

through a transparent process of bidding in accordance with the 

guidelines issued by the Central Government. 

” 

a) Accordingly, as per the provisions of AERC (MYT) Regulations, 2021, AEGCL 

has prepared the True-up petition for FY 2022-23. Further, Annual 

Performance Review for FY 2023-24 and Aggregate Revenue Requirement 

for FY 2024-25 is proposed. AEGCL is submitting the above petition for 

approval of the Hon’ble Commission. 

 

2.4 Petition Structure 

The True Up, APR and ARR Petition included the following Chapters: 

 

Sr. 

No. 
Section Contents 

1 Section 1 Executive summary of Petition 

2 Section 2 Introduction and overall approach to filling the Petition 

3 Section 3 True Up for FY 2022-23 
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Sr. 

No. 
Section Contents 

4 Section 4 Annual Performance Review for FY 2023-24 

5 Section 5 Aggregate Revenue Requirement for FY 2024-25 

6 Section 6 Directives of Compliances 

7 Section 7 Prayers to the Hon’ble Commission 
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3 TRUE UP FOR FY 2022-23 

3.1 Preamble 

3.1.1 This section outlines the performance of AEGCL for FY 2022-23 and is based on 

the Audited Annual Accounts. In line with the provisions of MYT Regulations, 

2021, AEGCL hereby submits the True Up Petition comparing the actual 

performance during FY 2022-23 with the approved by the Hon’ble Commission 

for FY 2022-23 vide tariff order dated 21.03.2022. 

3.2 Principles of Truing Up for FY 2022-23 

3.2.1 AEGCL submits the actual performance based on the audited accounts for true up 

for FY 2022-23. This chapter summarizes each of the components of Annual 

Transmission Charges for FY 2022-23 and requests the Hon’ble Commission to 

approve the true up for FY 2022-23. The Audited Annual Accounts for FY 2022-

23 are attached as Annexure-I. 

3.2.2 The following sections outline the deviations in actual expenses and revenue for 

FY 2022-23 based on the Audited Accounts of AEGCL in comparison with the 

approved by the Hon’ble Commission for FY 2022-23 vide tariff order dated 

21.03.2022. 

3.3 Transmission Loss for FY 2022-23 

3.3.1 AEGCL has achieved a significant reduction in transmission losses in recent 

years. In FY 2022-23, the actual transmission loss was 3.31%, which was 

reduced as compared to the previous year. The table below highlights the actual 

transmission loss achieved by AEGCL. 

Table 6: Transmission Loss for FY 2022-23 

S.N. Particulars 
Approved 
in T.O. dtd 

21.03.2022 

AEGCL  
Submission 

1 Energy Injected (MU) 

 

11452.47 
2 Energy Sent Out to APDCL (MU) 10985.26 
3 Energy Sent Out to OA Consumers (MU) 88.37 
4 Total Energy Sent Out 11073.63 
5 Transmission Loss (MU) 378.84 

6 Transmission Loss (%) 3.27%  3.31% 
 

3.3.2 The energy balance certified by SLDC is attached as Annexure-II. Hence, AEGCL 

requests the Hon’ble Commission to approve the Transmission loss of 3.31% for 

FY 2022-23.  
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3.3.3 AEGCL submits that the Energy Audit Report for FY 2022-23 is attached 

herewith as Annexure-III. 

3.4 Fixed Cost for FY 2022-23 

3.4.1 Based on the Capital Cost and the consequent Capitalized Expenditure, Equity 

Component and Normative Debt, the fixed cost of AEGCL for FY 2022-23 have 

been determined in accordance with the MYT Regulations, 2021 outlined 

thereof. The fixed cost for AEGCL has been determined under the following 

major heads: 

▪ Operation and Maintenance Expenses 

▪ Depreciation 

▪ Interest and Finance Charges 

▪ Interest on Working Capital 

▪ Return on Equity 

▪ Bulk Supply Tariff (BST) 

▪ Contribution towards Contingency Reserve 

Less: 

▪ Non-Tariff Income 

 

3.4.2 For the purpose of truing up, all the heads mentioned above have been 

categorized into Controllable or Uncontrollable factors. A head wise comparison 

has been made between the values approved by the Hon’ble Commission vide 

Tariff Order dated 21.03.2022 and the actual expenditure incurred by the AEGCL 

in FY 2022-23 based on the audited accounts along with the same applied as per 

the requirement. 

3.5 Categorization of Heads of Expenses 

3.5.1 As per provisions of MYT Regulations, 2021, all the expenditure heads need to be 

categorized into Controllable (under control of the Petitioner) and 

Uncontrollable (not under control of the Petitioner). 

3.5.2 Regulations 11 of MYT Regulations, 2021, provide for categorization of expense 

heads. Based on the above classification, AEGCL has computed the Gains/ Losses 

attributed to such controllable & uncontrollable factors for FY 2022-23. 

3.6 Operation and Maintenance Expenses for FY 2022-23 

3.6.1 The Regulation 67.5 and 67.8 of the AERC (MYT) Regulations, 2021 specifies the 

normative Operation and Maintenance (O&M) expenses allowed for existing 

Transmission Licensee for the said control period. The relevant provision is as 

follows: 
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“67.6 Existing Transmission Licensee 

… 

67.6.3 The O&M expenses for the nth year and also for the year immediately 

preceding the Control Period shall be approved based on the formula given below: 

O&Mn = R&Mn + EMPn + A&Gn 

Where – 

O&Mn – Operation and Maintenance expense for the nth year; 

EMPn – Employee Costs for the nth year; 

R&Mn – Repair and Maintenance Costs for the nth year; 

A&Gn – Administrative and General Costs for the nth year; 

67.6.4 The above components shall be computed in the manner specified below: 

EMPn = (EMPn-1) x (1+Gn) x (CPI inflation) 

R&Mn = K x (GFA n-1) x (WPI inflation) and 

A&Gn = (A&Gn-1) x (WPI inflation) + Provision 

Where - 

▪ EMPn-1 – Employee Costs for the (n-1)th year; 

▪ A&G n-1 – Administrative and General Costs for the (n-1)th year; 

▪ Provision: Cost for initiatives or other one-time expenses as proposed by 

the Distribution Licensee and validated by the Commission. 

▪ ‘K’ is a constant specified by the Commission in %. Value of K for each year 

of the control period shall be determined by the Commission in the MYT 

Tariff order based on licensee’s filing, benchmarking of repair and 

maintenance expenses, approved repair and maintenance expenses vis-a-

vis GFA approved by the Commission in past and any other factor 

considered appropriate by the Commission; 

▪ CPI inflation – is the average increase in the Consumer Price Index (CPI) 

for immediately preceding three years; 

▪ WPI inflation – is the average increase in the Wholesale Price Index (CPI) 

for immediately preceding three years; 

▪ GFAn-1 --- Gross Fixed Asset of the transmission licensee for the n-1th year; 

▪ Gn is a growth factor for the nth year. Value of Gn shall be determined by 

the Commission in the MYT tariff order for meeting the additional 

manpower requirement based on licensee’s filings, benchmarking, and any 

other factor that the Commission feels appropriate. 

67.8 O&M Sharing between two Transmission Licensees 

67.8.1 For such Transmission Licensees whose bays are installed in the premises 

of and maintained by another Transmission Licensee, the O&M expense for such 
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assets shall be allowed in accordance with the norms applicable for the 

Transmission Licensee who performs the O&M of such assets: 

Provided that the Transmission Licensees shall mutually agree on sharing of such 

allowed O&M expenses: 

Provided further that Transmission Licensees shall project addition of such assets 

over the Control Period separately in their Capital Investment Plan to be submitted 

in accordance with Regulation 6.” 

3.6.2 During FY 2022-23, based on methodology specified by the MYT Regulations, 

2021, the Normative O&M expenses of AEGCL works out to be Rs. 219.87 crores 

which is inclusive of Employee cost, Repair & Maintenance charges, and 

Administration & General expenses. The following table provides the summary 

of Normative O&M Expenses for FY 2022-23. 

 Table 7: Operation and Maintenance Expenses for FY 2022-23 

   (Rs.Crs.) 

S.N. Particulars 
Approved in T.O. dtd 

21.03.2022 
AEGCL  

Submission 
 

O&M Expenses                   223.11             219.05  

1 Employee Cost                   184.39             185.39  

2 R&M Expenses                     28.89                22.99  

3 A&G Expenses                       9.83                10.67  

 

3.6.3 WPI Inflation computation for FY 2022-23 

3.6.3.1 The average increase in the Wholesale Price Index (WPI) for the preceding three 

years gives the WPI Inflation for FY 2022-23. Hence, the WPI Index from FY 

2019-20 to FY 2021-22 is considered and the computation is provided in the 

table as follows: 

Fiscal WPI Index YOY Change % 

FY 2021-22 139.41 13.00% 

FY 2020-21 123.37 1.29% 

FY 2019-20 121.8 1.67% 
Average WPI Inflation (Last 3 Years) 5.32% 

 

3.6.4 WPI inflation for FY 2022-23 has been computed as an average increase of WPI 

index for period from FY 2019-20 to FY 2021-22 which works out to 5.32%. 

3.6.5 CPI Inflation computation for FY 2022-23 
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3.6.6 The average increase in the Consumer Price Index (CPI) for the preceding three 

years gives the CPI Inflation for FY 2022-23. Hence the CPI Index from FY 2019-

20 to FY 2021-22 is considered and the computation is provided in the table as 

follows:  

Fiscal CPI Index YOY Change % 

FY 2021-22 356.06 5.13% 

FY 2020-21 338.69 5.02% 

FY 2019-20 322.5 7.53% 
Average CPI Inflation (Last 3 Years) 5.89% 

 

3.6.7 CPI inflation for FY 2022-23 has been computed as the average increase of CPI 

index for period from FY 2019-20 to FY 2021-22 which works out to 5.89%. 

3.6.8 Normative Calculation of R&M expense for FY 2022-23 

3.6.8.1 Regulation 67.6.4 provides the manner in which components of O&M expenses 

shall be computed. The methodology for R&M expense is as follows: 

R&Mn = K x (GFA n-1) x (WPIinflation) 

Table 8: Normative Repairs and Maintenance Expenses for FY 2022-23 

S. No Particulars 
Approved 
in T.O. dtd 

21.03.2022 

Amount 
(Rs. Cr.) 

1 Opening GFA for previous year 2,557.77       2,557.99  

2 Closing GFA for previous year 2,708.47       2,732.21  

3 Average GFA for previous year 2,633.12       2,645.10  

4 K Factor  0.75% 0.75% 

5 WPI Inflation 4.13% 5.32% 

6 Normative R&M Expense 20.66             20.89  
7 Expenditure for Colony Maintenance of AEGCL 5.93               2.10  

8 
Provision for Emergency Restoration System 

(ERS) Towers 
2.30 0.00 

9 Net Normative R&M Expense 28.89              22.99 

  

3.6.8.2 The “K” factor of AEGCL has been considered as 0.75% as approved by the 

Hon’ble Commission vide MYT Order dated 21.03.2022. The above normative 

R&M expenses are exclusive of SLDC expenses. 
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3.6.8.3 AEGCL has excluded the assets of SLDC from the opening and closing GFA of the 

previous year of AEGCL while computing normative R&M for FY 2022-23. R&M 

costs of SLDC have been individually accounted in the SLDC True up Petition for 

FY 2022-23. Also, the AMC cost of SCADA has been excluded from AEGCL and 

separately considered under SLDC petition. 

3.6.9 Provision for Colony Maintenance  

3.6.9.1 AEGCL had earlier prayed before the Hon’ble Commission to allot a separate 

coffer for improvement of its existing colonies associated with major Grid 

Substation. Needless to reiterate that the most of the residential buildings, 

interior roads, drains, security walls etc. needed major maintenance/ 

reconstruction. The Hon’ble commission vide tariff order dated 21.03.2023 

approved Rs. 17.79 Cr to utilize specifically for colony maintenance to be spent 

through a duration of three financial years i.e., FY2022-23, 2023-24 and 2024-

25. Accordingly, the yearly allowable amount of Rs. 5.93 Cr was meant to be 

utilized in FY 2022-23. AEGCL made all attempts to judiciously expend the 

amount by chalking out plans for works as here under 

i) Repair of residential quarters 
ii) Repair of colony roads 
iii) Repair of Community Halls 
iv) Beautification of colony landscape 

v) Improvement of children playground etc. 

3.6.9.2 The Hon’ble Commission will appreciate the fact that the preparation of detailed 

plan, estimate & scrutiny of the same entails a considerable period of time. 

Further no major civil works could be undertaken during the rainy season and 

majority of the work could be started after Oct/Nov. However, even after 

completion of the works a sizable amount could not be booked under 

expenditure account before 31st March’23, although booking of entire amount 

through administrative approval was almost completed under colony 

maintenance.  

3.6.9.3 The amount against the work carried out in FY 2022-23 had to be booked against 

the FY 2023-24. AEGCL wants to complete the majority of the colony 

maintenance work by the end of the FY 2024-25. It is worth mentioning that a 

many of the GSS colonies including Sarusajai, Kahilipara, Dhaligaon, Depota, 

Samaguri, Mariani, Tinsukia Dullavcherra, Pailapool etc., there remains a lot of 

maintenance works to be undertaken in the coming months to repair & give a 

face lift to the colonies. Most respectfully AEGCL also submits that there has been 

surge of applicants (from employees) requesting residential quarters in AEGCL 
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colonies. This is due to ongoing repair and renovation exercise being carried out 

in AEGCL colonies. Under this circumstance, it is extremely important that 

AEGCL be allowed the entire amount of Rs. 17.79 Cr for FY 2024-25. AEGCL 

commits to fully utilize the balance amount within this stipulated period of MYT. 

3.6.9.4 Further, detailed breakup against the work completed during the FY 2022-23 is 

herewith attached as Annexure – IV. 

3.6.10 Provision for Emergency Restoration System (ERS) 

3.6.10.1 AEGCL requested The Hon’ble Commission to allow Rs. 4.60 Cr for 4 (Four) nos. 

of ERS towers in the tariff petition for FY 2021-22. Earlier, AEGCL had procured 

ERS system from M/S Lindsey in the year 2007-2008. The system provided by 

Lindsey has been in the satisfactory use for the last several years. As such the 

estimate prepared was based on a quotation dated 10.02.2020. 

3.6.10.2 The Hon’ble Commission granted Rs. 2.30 Crore vide tariff order dated 

21.03.2022 for procurement of 2 (Two) nos. of ERS towers. Accordingly, AEGCL 

prepared an estimate for of 2 (Two) nos. of ERS towers based on the quotation 

received from M/s Lindsey dated 10.02.2020 with the price escalation @ 5% for 

2 years (w.e.f. 2020 to 2022) amounting to Rs. 3.44 Crore. Based on this estimate, 

tender was floated on 03.02.2023 and finally price bid of the tender was opened 

on 28.04.2023. However, quoted price of the L1 bidder was found to be Rs. 

6,04,16,000.00 (Six Crore Four Lakh Sixteen Thousand Only) including GST 

which is 75.58% higher than the estimated value.   

3.6.10.3 AEGCL requested the L1 bidder for justification on the matter and as per the 

justification received from the L1 bidder stating that, due to the following 

reasons, the cost of ERS tower became very high  

i) Due to the devaluation of INR against Dollar and  

ii) Increase in the price of Aluminium in last 3 years @67% (It may be stated 

that majority of physical structures of ERS contains Aluminium and hence the 

rise in the prices of Aluminium results in the rise of cost of ERS System) 

3.6.10.4 The matter was placed before Tender Purchasing Committee of AEGCL and as 

per TPC discussion, the tender was cancelled as the rate quoted by the L1 bidder 

exceeds the maximum allowable limit as per the AEGCL norms. However, due to 

fund constraint, AEGCL could not conduct further retendering process. 
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3.6.10.5 In view of the above, AEGCL requests the Hon’ble Commission to approve the 

normative R&M expenses as shown in above table amounting to Rs. 22.99 Crores 

for FY 2022-23. 

3.6.11 Normative Calculation of Employee Expense for FY 2022-23 

3.6.11.1 Regulation 67.6.4 provides the manner in which components of O&M expenses 

shall be computed. The methodology for Employee expense is as follows: 

EMPn = (EMPn-1) x (1+Gn) x (CPIinflation) 

Table 9: Normative Employee Expenses for FY 2022-23 

S. N Particulars 
Approved in T.O. 
dtd 21.03.2022 

Amount (Rs. 
Cr.) 

1 Base Employee Cost (n-1) 173.00          173.34  
2 Average CPI Rate for preceeding three years 5.53% 5.89% 
3 Gn(Growth Factor for nth Year) 1.00% 1.00% 
4 Normative Employee Cost for FY 2022-23  184.39 185.39 

3.6.11.2 The Gn (Growth Factor) of AEGCL has been considered as 1.00% as approved by 

the Commission in the Tariff Order dated 21.03.2022. Base employee cost has 

been considered as approved by the Hon’ble Commission during the True Up for 

FY 2021-22 vide Tariff Order dated 29.03.2023 for APR of FY 2022-23. The 

above normative Employee Expenses are exclusive of SLDC Employee Expenses. 

3.6.11.3 AEGCL requests the Hon’ble Commission to approve the normative Employee 

expenses as shown in above table amounting to Rs. 185.39 Cr for FY 2022-23. 

3.6.12 Normative calculation of Administrative & General Expenses for FY 2022-

23 

3.6.12.1 Regulation 67.6.4 provides the manner in which components of O&M expenses 

shall be computed. The methodology for Administrative and General Expenses is 

as follows: 

A&Gn = (A&Gn-1) x (WPIinflation) + Provision 

Table 10: Normative A&G Expenses for FY 2022-23 

S. No Particulars 
Approved in T.O. 
dtd 21.03.2022 

Amount (Rs. Cr.) 

1 A&G Expense for Previous year 9.44                10.13  
2 WPI Inflation 4.13% 5.32% 

3 Normative A&G Expense for the year 9.83 10.67 
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3.6.12.2 AEGCL requests the Hon’ble Commission to approve the normative A&G 

expenses as shown in above table amounting to Rs. 10.67 Crores for FY 2022-23. 

3.6.12.3 The following sections provide the details of O&M expenses as provided in the 

Audited Accounts for FY 2022-23. 

3.6.13 Repair and Maintenance Expenses for FY 2022-23 

3.6.13.1 Repairs and Maintenance expenses go towards the day-to-day upkeep of the 

transmission network of the company and form an integral part of the company’s 

efforts towards reliable and quality power transmission as also in reduction of 

losses in the system. 

3.6.13.2 To maintain the assets in a more efficient way, AEGCL has been carrying out the 

repair and maintenance activities. The actual R&M expense for FY 2022-23 is 

mentioned below. 

Table 11: Repair and Maintenance Expenses for FY 2022-23 
  Amount (Rs.Crs.) 

S.N. Particulars AEGCL Submission 
1 Plant & Machinery               7.97  
2 Buildings               5.04  
3 Civil works               0.99  
4 Hydraulic Works                   -    
5 Lines, Cable Networks etc.               4.16  
6 Vehicles               0.20  
7 Furniture & Fixtures               0.11  
8 Office Equipment               0.56  
9 Total             19.01  

 

3.6.14 Employee Expenses for FY 2022-23 

3.6.14.1 Employee expenses comprise of salaries, dearness allowance, bonus, terminal 

benefits in the form of pension & gratuity funding, leave encashment and staff 

welfare expenses. The actual employee expenses for FY 2022-23 are as follows: 

Table 12: Employee Expenses for FY 2022-23 
  (Rs.Crs.) 

S.N Particulars 
Actual Employee 

Expenses 
1 Salaries             96.03 

2 Dearness Allowance (DA)             31.72  
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  (Rs.Crs.) 

S.N Particulars 
Actual Employee 

Expenses 
3 Other Allowances & Relief             15.12  
4 Honorarium/Overtime               0.12  
5 Bonus/ Exgratia to Employees               0.36  
6 Medical Expenses Reimbursement               0.21  
7 Leave Travel Assistance               0.04  
8 Earned Leave Encashment               2.51  

9 
Payment Under Workman's Compensation and 

Gratuity 
              8.02  

10 Staff Welfare Expenses              0.20 

11 Contribution to Terminal Benefits             20.60 

12 Total Employee Costs         174.93 

 

3.6.14.2 The details of manpower for FY 2022-23 excluding SLDC is provided in the table 

below: 

Table 13: Manpower details for FY 2022-23 

S.N. Particulars FY 2022-23 
 

(A) Manpower as on 1st April (Opening Balance) 1548   

(B) Retirement during the Financial Year 54   

(C) Recruitment during the Financial Year 0  

(D) Manpower as on 31st March (Closing balance) 1494   

 

3.6.15 Administrative and General Expenses for FY 2022-23 

3.6.15.1 Administrative expenses mainly comprise of rents, telephone and other 

communication expenses, professional charges, conveyance and traveling 

allowances, other debits. The actual Administrative and General expenses for the 

year FY 2022-23 is as follows: 

Table 14: Administrative and General Expenses for FY 2022-23 
  (Rs.Crs.) 

S.N Particulars 
Actual A&G 

Expenses 

1 Lease/ Rent/Rates and taxes             0.50 

2 Insurance             0.08 

3 Telephone, Postage, Telegram & Telex Charges                0.14  

4 Incentive & Award to Employees/Outsiders                0.31  

5 Consultancy Charges                0.42  

6 Other Professional Charges                 0.77  

7 Conveyance and travelling                 1.40 
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  (Rs.Crs.) 

S.N Particulars 
Actual A&G 

Expenses 
8 License and Registration Fees               0.02  

9 Vehicle Expenses                 4.82 

10 Fee And Subscriptions Books and Periodicals                3.02  

11 Printing And Stationery                 0.47  

12 Advertisement Expenses                 0.46  

13 Electricity Charges to Offices                 0.53  

14 Water Charges                 0.00  

15 Entertainment Charges                 0.23  

16 Miscellaneous Expenses                 0.12  

17 Legal Charges                 0.15  

18 Auditor's Fee                 0.10  

19 Freight On Capital Equipment                 0.01  

20 Purchase Related Advertisement Expenses 0.00 
21 Vehicle Running Expenses Truck / Delivery Van             0.08 

22 Other Freight                0.01  

23 Fees including TA and DA for non-official member of Board - 

24 
Fees for conducting recruitment & Other Departmental 

Examinations 
                  

0.01  

25 Participation fees paid for Training/conference                 0.00  

26 Training of Staff and Officers                 0.12  

27 Total A&G Expenses             13.78 

3.6.15.2 AEGCL submits that the A&G Expenses reflected in the Audited Annual Accounts 

for FY 2022-23 includes Self-insurance of Fixed Assets amounting to Rs. 3.03 

crore under the head “Insurance” and donation to the Chief Minister’s Relief 

Fund and other Socio-Cultural ceremonies amounting to Rs. 2.11 crore under the 

head “Contribution to Charities, etc.”, which are not claimed under “A&G 

Expenses” in the True Up petition for FY 2022-23. 

3.7 Sharing of Gains & Losses for FY 2022-23 

3.7.1 Based on the methodology prescribed in the MYT Regulations 2021, AEGCL has 

classified various heads of expenses under Controllable & Uncontrollable factors. 

Regulation 10.2 of MYT Regulations, 2021 specifies O&M expenses (excluding 

terminal liabilities with regard to employees on account of changes in pay scales 

or dearness allowance due to inflation) as controllable factors. Also, the one-

third of the amount of such gain shall be passed on as a rebate in tariff.  The 

relevant extract from regulation 12 of MYT Regulations, 2021 is provided below 

for ready reference. 
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“12 Mechanism for pass through of gains or losses on account of Controllable 
items 
12.1 The approved aggregate gain to the Generating Company or Transmission 
Licensee or Distribution Licensee or SLDC on account of controllable items shall be 
dealt with in the following manner: 
a) One-third of the amount of such gain shall be passed on as a rebate in tariff over 
such period as may be stipulated in the Order of the Commission under Regulation 
9.5; 
b) The balance amount, which will amount to two-third of such gain, may be 
utilised at the discretion of the Generating Company or Transmission Licensee or 
Distribution Licensee or SLDC. 

13.2 The approved aggregate loss to the Generating Company or Transmission 
Licensee or Distribution Licensee or SLDC on account of controllable items shall be 
dealt with in the following manner: 
a) One-third of the amount of such loss may be passed on as an additional charge in 
tariff over such period as may be stipulated in the Order of the Commission; and 
b) The balance amount of loss shall be absorbed by the Generating Company or 
Transmission Licensee or Distribution Licensee or SLDC.” 

3.7.2 Based on the above regulations, the sharing of gains or (losses) on account of 

O&M expenses is shown in the following Table. 

Table 15: Sharing of Gains / (Losses) -O&M expenses for FY 2022-23 

     (Rs. Crores) 

S N Particulars Actual Normative Gain/(Loss) 
Gain/(Loss) 
to be shared 
with APDCL 

    A b c=b-a d=c x 1/3 
1 Employee Cost          174.93        185.39              10.46    

2 
Less: Terminal 
Liabilities             28.63           28.63                         -    

                                       
-    

3 
Employee Cost excl. 
Terminal Liabilities          146.30         156.76  

                
10.46  

                                  
3.49  

4 
Repair & 
Maintenance             19.01  22.99 

                   
3.99 

                                   
1.33   

5 
Administrative & 
General Expenses 13.78          10.67  -3.11   

                                  
-1.04 

  Total (A)  179.08   190.42   11.34   3.78  
 

3.7.3 In view of the above, AEGCL submits that normative O&M Expenses are higher 

than actual with respect to controllable factors, hence, the gain of Rs. 3.78 Crores 

shall be shared and passed on through ARR. Hence, AEGCL requests the Hon’ble 

Commission to approve the sharing of gain as shown in the above table. 
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3.8 Capital Expenditure and Capitalization for FY 2022-23 

3.8.1 AEGCL submits that the Capital Expenditure and Capitalisation for FY 2022-23 

has been computed based on Audit Annual Accounts. Funding has been 

considered based on the impact of conversion of Government Grants and Loans 

to Equity. The funding of Capitalisation excluding SLDC is shown in the following 

Table: 

Table 16: Funding for Capitalisation for FY 2022-23 

   (Rs.Crs.) 

S.N. Particulars 
Approved in T.O. dtd 

21.03.2022 
AEGCL  

Submission 
1 Grant                   168.12 
2 Equity                   113.23  
3 Debt                        8.51  
4 Total Capitalisation  200.00                   289.87 

3.8.2 Scheme wise Capital Expenditure and Capitalization for FY 2022-23 is mentioned 

below: 

S.N. Scheme Name 
FY 2022-23 

Actual Capital Expenditure 

1 AIIB  156.19 

2 ADB 4.68 

3 NERPSIP 0.00 

4 Annual Plan/SOPD 1.48 

5 PSDF 16.01 

6 TDF 1.86 

7 Deposit work 0.00 

8 NEC 0.00 

9 AIFA 9.31 

10 AIIMS 0.00 

11 Internal Accrual Equity 2.87 

 TOTAL 192.40  

 

S.N. Scheme Name 
FY 2022-23 

Actual Capitalisation 

1 AIIB  97.65 

2 ADB 53.24 

3 NERPSIP 0.00 

4 Annual Plan/SOPD 8.51 

5 PSDF 21.46 

6 TDF 34.14 
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7 Deposit work 38.72 

8 NEC 0.02 

9 AIFA 0.00 

10 AIIMS 22.52 

11 Internal Accrual Equity 13.61 

 TOTAL 289.87 

 

3.8.3 Further, scheme wise detail capital expenditure & capitalization is provided in 

the Revised Capital Investment Plan as Annexure-V.  

3.9 Gross Fixed Assets for FY 2022-23 

3.9.1 The opening GFA for FY 2022-23 (excluding SLDC) as submitted by AEGCL is 

shown in the below table: 

Table 17: Gross Fixed Assets for FY 2022-23 
  (Rs Crores) 

SN Particulars 

Balance at 
the 

beginning of 
the year 

Additions 
during 

the year 

Retirement 
of assets 

during the 
year 

Balance 
at the 
end of 

the year 

1 
Land owned under 
full ownership 

                     
44.98  

                                    
2.68  

 - 
                             

47.66  
2 Building                 61.67             3.53   -         65.20  

3 Hydraulic                   2.64                   -     -           2.64  

4 Other Civil Works               131.26           28.73   -      159.98  

5 Plant & Machinery          1,314.68       111.95   -   1,426.63  

6 
Lines & Cable 
Network 

                       
1,159.03  

                               
141.43  

 - 
                       

1,300.46  
7 Vehicles                   4.95                   -     -           4.95  

8 Furniture & Fixtures                   7.77            0.57   -           8.35  

9 Office Equipment                  5.23            0.97   -           6.21  
  Total        2,732.21       289.87   -  3,022.08 

 

3.9.2 AEGCL requests the Hon’ble Commission to approve the capitalization 

amounting to Rs. 289.87 Crores as shown in the above table for FY 2022-23.  

3.10 Depreciation for FY 2022-23 

3.10.1 AEGCL has converted Government Loan of Rs. 638.41 Crore and Govt. Grant of 

Rs. 1955.05 Crore as on 31.03.2021 into Equity in FY 2022-23, as approved by 

the Hon’ble Cabinet, GoA, notified vide letter No. PEL.58/2021/pt./105 dated 

03.02.2022. Letters in respect of conversion of Government Loans & Grants to 

equity are attached as Annexure-VI. 
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3.10.2 For FY 2022-23, the Government Grants is considered as Rs. 1951.14 crores and 

Loans of Rs. 638.41 crores converted to equity by GoA for AEGCL, as the 

Government Grant of Rs. 3.91 Crore which has been converted to equity is 

separately considered for SLDC (pertaining to SLDC), the depreciation for FY 

2022-23 is calculated in the table below: 

Table 18: Depreciation for FY 2022-23 
     (Rs.Crs.) 

S.N. Particulars 
Depreciation 

Rate 

Accumulated 
depreciation -
beginning of 

the year 

Additions 
during 

the year 

Accumulated 
depreciation -at 

the end of the 
year 

1 
Land owned under 
full ownership 

0.00%                                     
-    

                                        
-    

                                    
-    

2 Land under lease 3.34%                         0.06              0.01                          0.07  

3 Building 3.34%                     25.61              2.48                        28.09  

4 Hydraulic 5.28%                         2.51                    -                            2.51  

5 Other Civil Works 3.34%                     23.01              9.52                        32.53  

6 Plant & Machinery 5.28%                   623.71           81.24                     704.95  

7 
Lines & Cable 
Network 

5.28%                   824.40          67.54                    891.95  

8 Vehicles 9.50%                        4.45                    -                            4.45  

9 
Furniture & 
Fixtures 

6.33%                         4.39             0.46                          4.85  

10 Office Equipment 6.33%                        3.75             0.66                          4.41  

11 Total               1,511.90       161.92                 1,673.82  

(a) Gross Fixed Assets (a)  2,732.21  

(b) Gross Fixed Assets excluding Land (b)   2,684.55  

(c) Conversion of Grant to Equity   1,951.14  

(d) Opening CWIP (c)  904.13  

(e) Grant (CWIP + Assets) (d)  509.79  

(f) Grant towards GFA (e=d*b/(b+c))         381.36 

12 Total Depreciation  161.92  

13 Less: Dep towards assets through Grant/Consumer contribution  23.00  

14 
Depreciation for the year (excl assets funded through grant and 
consumer contribution) 

 138.92  

 

3.10.3 AEGCL requests the Hon’ble Commission to approve the proposed depreciation 

amounting to Rs. 138.92 Cr. for FY 2022-23 excluding the depreciation of assets 

through grant during the same financial year. 

3.11 Interest and Finance Charges for FY 2022-23 

3.11.1 The Hon’ble Commission vide Tariff Order dated 29.03.2023 has approved the 

net normative closing loan as Rs. 216.38 Crores for FY 2021-22 and the same has 
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been considered as net normative opening loan for FY 2022-23. Addition of 

normative loan and repayment during the year was computed as Rs. 8.51 Crores 

and Rs. 138.92 Crores respectively. Also, the finance charges of Rs. 0.01 crore has 

been considered as bank commission/charges. Accordingly, Interest & Finance 

Charges arrived at Rs. 15.06 Crores. 

Table 19: Normative Interest and Finance Charges for FY 2022-23 
  (Rs.Crs.) 

Particulars 
Approved in T.O. 
dtd 21.03.2022 

AEGCL Submission 

Net Normative Opening Loan         255.95   216.38  

Addition of normative loan during the year             6.49   8.51  

Normative Repayment during the year           35.96   138.92  

Net Normative Closing Loan         226.48   85.98  

Interest Rate 10.08% 9.96% 

Interest Expenses on Loan           24.31   15.05  

Finance Charges 0.01 0.01 

Total Interest and Finance Charges           24.32   15.06  

 
3.11.2 The actual Interest and Finance Charges based on the Audited Annual Accounts 

is mentioned below: 

Table 20: Interest and Finance Charges for FY 2022-23 
 

S. N Particulars AEGCL Submission 

 Loan Details  

A 
Interest charges on State Govt. Loans, Bonds and 
Advances,  

 

1  State Government Loans                            0.88 

2 ADB Loan - 

3 Central Government Loans - 

4 General Provident Fund                            1.60 

 Sub-total                            2.49  

B 
Interest on Long Term Loans/Credits from the 
FIs/banks/organisations approved by the State Govt. 
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 Secured Loans -  

 Unsecured Loans -  

C Other Interest & Finance Charges   

 Cost of raising Finance/Bank Charges                            0.01  

 Penal Interest Charges -  

 Sub-total                            0.01  

D Grand Total of Interest & Finance Charges (A+B+C)                            2.49  

E Les : Interest & Finance Charges Capitalised                            0.45  

 Net Total of Interest Finance Charges (D-E)                            2.04  

 

 

S.
N 

Particulars 

FY 22-23 Actual 

Rate of 
Interes

t 

Openin
g 

Balanc
e 

Amoun
t 

receive
d 

Principa
l 

repayme
nt/ 

Conversi
on to 

Equity 

Interes
t Due 

Closin
g 

Balanc
e 

 Loan Details             

A 

Interest charges 
on State Govt. 
Loans, Bonds and 
Advances,              

1 
 State Government 
Loans 10% 551.52 3.61 

          
542.73  0.88 12.40 

2 ADB Loan 10.50% 95.68 0.0 
            
95.68   - 0.00 

3 
Central Government 
Loans  -  - 

                   
-     -  - 0.00 

4 
General Provident 
Fund 7.10% 26.62 2.22 

              
9.64  1.60 20.81 

  Sub-total   673.82 5.83 648.04 2.49 33.21 

  

Interest on Long 
Term 
Loans/Credits 
from the 
FIs/banks/organis
ations approved 
by the State Govt.             
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A Secured Loans  -  -  -  - 0.00 0 
B Unsecured Loans  -  -  -  - 0.00 0 

C 
Other Interest & 
Finance Charges  -  -  -  -  - 0 

  

Cost of raising 
Finance/Bank 
Charges  -  -  -  - 0.01 0 

  
Penal Interest 
Charges  -    -  -   0 

  Sub-total   0.00 0.00 0.00 0.01 0.00 

D 

Grand Total of 
Interest & Finance 
Charges (A+B+C)  - 673.82 5.83 648.04 2.49 33.21 

E 

Less: Interest & 
Finance Charges 
Capitalised  -  -  -  -  - 0 

  

Net Total of 
Interest Finance 
Charges (D-E)  - 673.82 5.83 648.04 2.49 33.21 

 

3.11.3 AEGCL submits that based on the above computation, the interest rate arrived at 

9.96% for FY 2022-23. 

3.11.4 Therefore, AEGCL requests the Hon’ble Commission to approve the normative 

Interest & Finance Charges amounting to Rs. 15.06 Crore as mentioned for FY 

2022-23.  

3.12 Interest on Working Capital for FY 2022-23 

3.12.1 AERC (MYT Regulations), 2021 provides for the interest on working capital.  

AEGCL computed the working capital based on the normative formula 

prescribed in the MYT Regulations, 2021. 

3.12.2 The interest on working capital for FY 2022-23 computed by AEGCL against the 

approved interest on working capital by the Hon’ble Commission is shown 

below: 

Table 21: Interest on Working Capital for FY 2022-23 

S.N
. 

Particulars Unit 
Approved in T.O. 

dtd  
21.03.2022 

AEGCL  
Submission 

1 O&M expenses for 1 month Rs. Crs. 18.59             18.25  

2 
Maintenance spares @ 15% of 
O&M 

Rs. Crs. 
33.47             32.86  

3 Receivables for two months Rs. Crs. 70.94          101.54  
4 Total Working Capital Rs. Crs. 123.00          152.65  
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S.N
. 

Particulars Unit 
Approved in T.O. 

dtd  
21.03.2022 

AEGCL  
Submission 

5 Rate of Interest % 10.00% 10.86% 
6 Interest on Working Capital Rs. Crs.                12.30              16.58  

 

3.13 Computation of rate of Interest on Working Capital  

3.13.1 The interest rate of three hundred (300) basis points above the average State 

Bank of India MCLR (One Year Tenor) prevalent during the last one year arrived 

at 10.86%. 

Table 22: MCLR rate for FY 2022-23 (last 1 year) 

Effective Date Interest Rate (%) (1Yr) 
15-03-2023 8.50 
15-02-2023 8.50 
15-01-2023 8.40 
15-12-2022 8.30 
15-11-2022 8.05 
15-10-2022 7.95 
15-09-2022 7.70 
15-08-2022 7.70 
15-07-2022 7.50 
15-06-2022 7.40 
15-05-2022 7.20 
15-04-2022 7.10 
Average 7.86% 

 

3.13.2 AEGCL requests the Hon’ble Commission to approve the proposed interest on 

working capital amounting to Rs. 16.58 Crore for FY 2022-23. 

3.14 Return on Equity for FY 2022-23 

3.14.1 As informed in section 3.10, AEGCL has converted Rs. 2593.46 crore to equity 

(i.e., Grant Rs. 1955.05 crore and Loans of Rs. 638.41 crore) as on 31.03.2022. 

3.14.2 AEGCL submits that Rs. 2589.55 Crore has been converted to equity (i.e., Grant 

Rs. 1951.14 crore and Loans of Rs. 638.41 crore), since the Government Grant of 

Rs. 3.91 crores have been separately carried out for SLDC. Similarly, addition of 

equity during the year is considered at 30% of Rs. 2589.55 crore which arrived 

at Rs. 776.86 crore. 
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Table 23: Conversion of Govt. Grants & Loans to Equity 

Particula
rs  

As on 
31.03.20

21  

Conversi
on to 

Equity 
during  

FY 2022-
23  

Total 
Loan 

Total 
Equity 

AEGCL 
Loan 

AEGCL 
Equity 

SLDC 
Loan 

SLDC 
Equity 

70% 30% 70% 30% 70% 30% 

Grant 1955.05 1955.05 1368.54 586.52 1365.80 585.34 2.74 1.17 

Loan   638.41 446.89 191.52 446.89 191.52     
ADB Loan 95.68 95.68 66.98 28.70 66.98 28.70     
GoA Loan 542.73 542.73 379.91 162.82 379.91 162.82     
Total 2593.46 2593.46 1815.42 778.04 1812.69 776.87 2.74 1.17 

3.14.3 In accordance with Regulation 34 of AERC (terms & conditions for determination 

of Multi Year Tariff) Regulations, 2021, Return on Equity shall be calculated at 

13.50% and additional 1% for achieving 80% approved capitalization for 

previous year and 2% for achieving 100% approved capitalization for previous 

year. 

3.14.4 It is pertinent to mention that the capitalisation achieved in FY 2022-23 is more 

than 100% against the approved capitalization by the Hon’ble Commission (Rs. 

289.87 Crore capitalized against approved capitalisation of Rs 200 crore). 

3.14.5 Therefore, the Return on Equity has been computed at 15.5% on closing balance 

of equity based upon the opening balance of equity and normative additions 

during the years. Return on Equity is computed as shown in the table below: 

Table 24: Return on Equity for FY 2022-23 
    (Rs. Crore) 

S.N Particulars Units 
Approved in 

T.O. dtd  
21.03.2022 

AEGCL  
Submission 

1 Equity (Opening Balance) Rs. Crs. 99.93 99.93 
2 Net additions during the year Rs. Crs. 2.78  776.87  
3 Less: Reduction during the year Rs. Crs. 0  -    
4 Equity (Closing Balance) Rs. Crs.            102.71   876.80  
5 Average Equity Rs. Crs.            101.32   488.36  
6 Rate of Return on Equity % 13.50% 15.50% 
7 Return on Equity Rs. Crs.              13.68   75.70  

3.14.6 AEGCL requests the Hon’ble Commission to approve the return on equity 

amounting to Rs. 75.70 Crores for the FY 2022-23 as proposed by AEGCL. 
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3.15 Bulk Supply Tariff (BST) – Terminal Benefits for FY 2022-23 

3.15.1 AEGCL submits that the BST has been calculated as Rs. 0.20 per kwh of energy 

sent out to APDCL as certified by SLDC (Attached as Annexure II). The same is 

claimed for Pension Fund (special charges for Terminal Benefits.) 

Table 25: Bulk Supply Tariff (BST) – Terminal Benefits for FY 2022-23 

   (Rs.Crs.) 

S.N Particulars 
Approved in T.O. dtd 

21.03.2022 
AEGCL  

Submission 

1 Energy Sent out to APDCL (MU) 
 214.38  

11452.47 

2 BST Charge (Rs. /kWh) 0.20 

3 Total (3=1*2/10)  214.38  219.71  

 

3.15.2 AEGCL requests the Hon’ble Commission to approve the special charges on BST 

accounting to Rs. 219.71 Crores as shown in above table.  

3.16 Non-Tariff Income for FY 2022-23 

3.16.1 The amount of Non-Tariff Income mostly comprises of income from investments, 

supervision charges and misc. receipts. The actual amount received during FY 

2022-23 is considered under the truing up for FY 2022-23. 

Table 26: Non-Tariff Income for FY 2022-23 
   (Rs.Crs.) 

S.N. Particulars 
Approved in T.O. 

dtd  
21.03.2022 

AEGCL  
Submission 

A 

Income from Investment, Fixed & Call 
Deposits 

  

Income from Investments 

 54.01 

 0.51  

Interest on fixed deposits  50.84  

Income on other investments (Dividend)  

Interest from Banks  2.26  

Interest on GPF  -1.60  

Sub Total  52.00  

B 

Other Non-Tariff Income  
Rental from contractors/others  0.66  

Inspection Bunglow/Guest house charges  0.03  

Electricity charges from employees  0.00  

Sale of tender forms  0.07  

Penalties recovered from 
suppliers/contractors 

 1.71  

Income from Supervision/Service charges 
on deposit works 

 21.55  
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   (Rs.Crs.) 

S.N. Particulars 
Approved in T.O. 

dtd  
21.03.2022 

AEGCL  
Submission 

Stale Cheque entry taken as income since 
not reissued 

 0.24  

Testing bills raised against testing of 
transformer, circuit breaker, etc. 

 0.42  

Reimbursement arrear bill raised against 
POSOCO for security guards enchanced 
monthly remuneration 

 0.10  

Income received from APGCL for repairing 
of transformer, etc. 

 0.20  

Hire Charges from 
Contractors/Suppliers/Others 

 0.02  

Sale of scrap  1.34  

Rentals from staff quarters 0.13  

Deposit forfeited 0.02 

Sub-Total 26.55  
 Total 54.01   78.50 

 

3.16.2 AEGCL requests the Hon’ble Commission to approve the Non-Tariff income 

amounting to Rs. 78.50 Crore as shown in above table. 

3.16.3 In accordance with Regulation 68 of the MYT Regulations, 2021, AEGCL has not 

considered Dividend from NorthEast Transmission Company Limited (NETCL) 

for FY 2022-23.  

“Provided that the interest/dividend earned from investments made out of Return 

on Equity corresponding to the regulated business of the Transmission Licensee 

shall not be included in Non-Tariff Income.” 

3.17 Deduction of Interest on GPF from Non-Tariff Income 

3.17.1 AEGCL has been utilizing GPF subscription from its employees as internal 

resources and the fund has been parked at different banks from which AEGCL 

has been earning interest. It has been shown as the other income in the profit 

and loss account of AEGCL which has been adjusted with the ARR at the time of 

filing the Tariff Petition.  

 

3.17.2 Also, it is pertinent to mention that the Hon’ble Commission vide tariff order 

dated 21.03.2022 has approved deduction of interest on GPF from Non-Tariff 

Income.  
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3.17.3 Therefore, AEGCL prays to the Hon’ble Commission to allow the interest on GPF 

amounting to Rs. 1.60 Crores for FY 2022-23 by deducting the same from Non-

Tariff Income.   

3.18 Open Access Consumer’s Wheeling charges 

3.18.1 The Hon’ble Commission vide tariff order dated 21.03.2022 has approved the 

wheeling charges from Open Access Consumers separately considered as 

additional revenue of AEGCL for the computation of Revenue Gap/(Surplus) in 

True-up of AEGCL for FY 2022-23.  

3.18.2 Therefore, in view of the above, AEGCL has considered the wheeling charges 

from Open Access Consumers amounting to Rs. 4.20 Crores as additional 

revenue of AEGCL for computation of Revenue Gap/(Surplus) in True-up for FY 

2022-23 and request the Hon’ble Commission to approve the same.  

3.19 Incentive on higher Transmission Availability for FY 2022-23 

3.19.1 AEGCL submits that regulation 66 of MYT Regulations 2021 provides the 

incentive for transmission utility. Based on the said regulation, AEGCL has 

claimed an amount of Rs.  3.38 Crore during FY 2022-23 as incentive for higher 

Transmission Availability. This had been calculated based on the actual monthly 

transmission availability data in which the transmission availability was higher 

than 98.50% (Normal Availability). Month wise computation of the Transmission 

Incentive for the FY 2022-23 is shown in the following table. 

 

Table 27: Transmission Incentive for FY 2022-23 
   (Rs Crores) 

Sl.No. Month 

Actual 
transmission 

availability (in 
%) 

Incentive/(Disincentive) 
(in Rs. Crore) 

1 April’22 99.06% 0.22  

2 May’22                  99.37% 0.35 

3 June’22 99.43% 0.36  

4 July,22 99.27% 0.31  

5 August’22 98.84% 0.13  

6 September’22 99.05% 0.21  

7 October’22 99.33% 0.33  

8 November’22 99.23% 0.28  

9 December’22 99.32% 0.33  

10 January’23 99.22% 0.29  
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   (Rs Crores) 

Sl.No. Month 

Actual 
transmission 

availability (in 
%) 

Incentive/(Disincentive) 
(in Rs. Crore) 

11 February’23 99.31% 0.29  

12 March’23 99.15% 0.26  

  Average Total 99.21% 3.38  

 

3.19.2 AEGCL requests the Hon’ble Commission to approve the transmission incentive 

amounting to Rs. 3.38 crores for FY 2022-23 as shown in the above table. The 

details of the Transmission Availability Factor is attached as Annexure-VII. 

3.20 Contribution to Contingency Reserve for 2022-23 

3.20.1 In accordance with Regulation 67.9 of AERC (terms & conditions for 

determination of Multi Year Tariff) Regulations, 2021 stipulate the computation 

of contingency reserves is as follows: 

 

“67.9.1The Transmission Licensee may make an appropriation to the Contingency Reserve 

of a sum not exceeding 0.1 per cent of the gross fixed assets approved by the Commission at 

the beginning of the year, for each year, which shall be allowed in the calculation of 

aggregate revenue requirement: 

Provided that where the amount of such Contingency Reserve exceeds one (1) per cent of 

the gross fixed assets, no such appropriation shall be allowed, which would have the effect 

of increasing the reserve beyond the said maximum: 

Provided further that the amount so appropriated may be invested in securities and fixed 

deposit. Interest earned shall be added to the Contingency Reserve. 

Provided also that the Transmission Licensee shall maintain separate account for such 

reserve. 

67.9.2 The Contingency Reserve shall not be drawn upon during the term of the licence 

except to meet such charges as may be approved by the Commission as being the expenses 

arising out of accidents, natural calamities or circumstances beyond the control of the 

Licensee; 

Provided that such drawal from Contingency Reserve shall be computed after making due 

adjustments for any other compensation that may have been received by the Licensee as 

part of an insurance cover and Government Grant, if any.” 

3.20.2 Considering 0.10% of the gross fixed assets (GFA) approved by the Hon’ble 

Commission at the beginning of the year i.e., as on 01.04.2022 subject to the limit 

of 1% of GFA and as per Regulation No. 67.9 of AERC MYT Regulations, 2021, 
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such expenses has been incurred for incident arising out of accidents, natural 

calamities or circumstances beyond the control of the Licensee. 

3.20.3 The Hon’ble Commission vide its Tariff Order dated 21.03.2022 has approved Rs. 

2.71 crores for FY 2022-23. The fund created under contingency reserves for FY 

2022-23 was utilized for repairing of damaged and rusted tower legs, stubs, 

emergency replacement of damaged conductor, temporary protection of tower, 

replacement of insulator due to fault, re-tensioning of conductors, construction 

of new towers in place of river eroded towers etc., in several transmission lines 

due to recent floods in the State. However, the contingency reserve based on 

actual GFA for FY 2022-23 arrived at Rs. 2.73 crore. 

3.20.4 AEGCL humbly prays before the Hon’ble Commission to continue the 

“Contingency Reserves” as a number of towers either collapse or become 

vulnerable to collapse during the monsoon period particularly in the north bank 

due to storm or turbulent flow of flood water. 

Table 28: Contingency Reserve for FY 2022-23 

   (Rs. Crore) 

S. No. Particulars 
As per T.O dated 

21.03.2022 
AEGCL 

Submission 
1 Opening GFA for Previous year 2708        2,732.21  
2 % Factor  0.10% 0.10% 
3 Contingency Reserves (1*2) 2.71 2.73 

 

3.21 Truing Up for FY 2022-23 after Sharing of Gains & Losses for FY 2022-23 

3.21.1 AEGCL submits that based on the above sections, total ARR for FY 2022-23 is 

mentioned below: 

Table 29: Truing Up for FY 2022-23 
   (Rs.   Crs.) 

S.N. Particulars 
Approved in T.O. 
dtd. 21.03.2022 

AEGCL  
Submission 

1 O&M Expenses                   223.11                      219.05  
a Employee Cost                   184.39                      185.39  
b R&M Expenses                     28.89                        22.99  
c A&G Expenses                       9.83                        10.67  
2 Depreciation                     35.96                      138.92  
3 Interest & Finance Charges                      24.32                        15.06  
4 Interest on Working Capital                     12.30                        16.58  
5 BST for Pension Trust Fund                   214.38                      219.71  
6 Return on Equity                     13.68                        75.70  
7 Contribution to Contingency Reserve                       2.71                          2.73  
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   (Rs.   Crs.) 

S.N. Particulars 
Approved in T.O. 
dtd. 21.03.2022 

AEGCL  
Submission 

8 Less: Non-Tariff Income/ Other Income                     54.01                        78.50  
9 Aggregate Revenue Requirement 472.45 609.24 

10 
Add: Incentive on higher transmission 
availability                            -                            3.38  

11 Add: Sharing of (Gains)/Loss                            -                         (3.78) 
12 ARR after Sharing Gains and Incentive                   472.45                      608.84  

13 
Less: Revenue from STOA/MTOA 
Charges                     12.00                          4.25  

14 Net Aggregate Revenue Requirement                   460.45                      604.59  

15 Revenue Gap for FY 2022-23                            -                        144.14  

 

3.21.2 The Hon’ble Commission is requested to approve the above ARR of Rs. 604.59 

crore and allow AEGCL to pass on the revised revenue gap of Rs. 144.14 crores 

for FY 2022-23. 

 

  

Page 42 of 284



 

True Up for FY 2022-23, APR for FY 2023-24 and ARR for FY 2024-25 

 
Main Petition 

 

  

AEGCL 39 

  

4 ANNUAL PERFORMANCE REVIEW OF FY 2023-24 

4.1 Preamble 

4.1.1 This section outlines the Annual Performance Review for FY 2023-24 whereby it 

highlights the performance of AEGCL for FY 2023-24 based on actuals of H1 and 

estimated of H2 for FY 2023-24. 

4.1.2 As per the provisions of MYT Regulations, 2021, AEGCL hereby submits the 

Annual Performance Review for FY 2023-24 comparing actual performance 

during April’23 to September’23 (H1) and estimates for October’23 to March’24 

(H2) of FY 2023-24 with approved figures for FY 2023-24 by Hon’ble 

Commission vide Tariff Order dated 29.03.2023. In addition, AEGCL wants to 

highlight that the GFA of SLDC has been segregated from AEGCL’s GFA and is 

being filed separately under SLDC’s Tariff Petition for FY 2023-24. 

4.2 Transmission Loss for FY 2023-24 

4.2.1 As stated in regulation 71 of AERC (Terms and Conditions for determination of 

Multi Year Tariff) Regulations, 2021, "The energy losses in the transmission 

system of the Transmission Licensee, as determined by the State Load Dispatch 

Centre and approved by the Commission, shall be borne by the Transmission 

System Users pro-rata to their usage of the intra-State transmission system. 

“Provided that the Commission may stipulate a trajectory for reduction of 
transmission losses as a part of Multi Year Tariff framework applicable to the 
Transmission Licensee." 

4.2.2 AEGCL submits that the transmission loss percentage has substantially come 

down from 3.31% (FY 2022-23) to estimated 3.28% in FY 2023-24. This signifies 

a loss reduction of 0.03% against the Hon’ble Commission’s stipulation of 0.02% 

such an encouraging decrease in % Transformer loss become possible due to the 

following facts 

i) With the commissioning of 132kV Hatsingmari GSS on 27.05.2023 there has 
been substantial improvement in voltage at the downstream distribution 
substation 

ii) The commissioning of 132kV LILO from Pare-Nirjuli line at Nalkata GSS has 
increased the voltage profile at Nalkata 132kV Bus voltage profile at Nalkata 

132kV Dhemaji &132kV Silapathar Bus. As a result of this 33kV downstream 
Distribution voltage has improved substantially at all DISCOM substations. 
Consequently, the Transmission Loss has come down at these areas. 

iii) Many of the old 25MVA Transformers have been replaced at various 

Substations namely, Depota, Barnagar, Dibrugarh, Samaguri, Mirza, Moran 

Khaloigaon etc. Capacity Augmentation was carried out at 220kV Agia GSS by 
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addition of 160MVA Transformer. List of New Grid Element added to Assam 
Grid is enclosed herewith as Annexure- VIII. 

iv) Some of the old Transmission lines such as 132kV Gauripur-Gosaigaon line, 
132kV Salakati-Dhaligaon line and 220kV Sarusajai-Kukurmara line have 
been replaced with HTLS Conductors. 

v) In the coming months, AEGCL expect to commission and load at 220kV 
Amingaon GSS, 132kV Nathkuchi GSS, 132kV Hajo GSS, 132kV Paltanbazar 

GIS and GMC GIS. 

4.2.3 Hence, further improvement in Bus Voltage & accompanying reduction in 

Transmission Loss is expected. AEGCL expected to comply with the stipulated 

Transmission Loss trajectory in the coming years.  

4.2.4 However, loss reduction is a slow process and becomes increasingly difficult as 

losses approach the technical threshold. The estimated transmission loss for FY 

2023-24 based on actual half yearly results as shown below. 

Table 30: Transmission Loss for FY 2023-24 

S.N. Particulars 
Approved in T.O. 
dtd 21.03.2022 

AEGCL 
Estimation 

1 Energy Injected (MU) 

 

13043.92 
2 Energy Sent Out to APDCL (MU) 12577.42 

3 
Energy Sent Out to Inter State OA Consumers 
(MU) 

27.46 

4 
Energy Sent Out to Intra State OA Consumers 
(MU) 

10.87 

5 Total Energy Sent Out 12615.75 
6 Transmission Loss (MU) 428.17 
7 Transmission Loss (%) 3.25% 3.28% 

4.2.5 Further, the energy balance of 6 months actual and 6 months estimated of 

AEGCL, certified by SLDC is attached as Annexure-IX. As per table above, AEGCL 

requests the Hon’ble Commission to approve the Transmission loss of 3.28% for 

FY 2023-24.  

4.3 Estimation of Expenses for the FY 2023-24 

4.3.1 The components for the calculation of total expenses for FY2023-24 are as 

follow: 

▪ Operation and Maintenance Expenses 

▪ Depreciation 

▪ Interest and Finance Charges 

▪ Interest on Working Capital 

▪ Return on Equity 
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▪ Bulk Supply Tariff (BST) 

▪ Contribution towards Contingency Reserves 

Less: 

▪ Non-Tariff Income 

4.4 Operation and Maintenance Expenses for FY 2023-24 

4.4.1 The Regulation 67.5 and 67.8 of the AERC (MYT) Regulations, 2021 specifies the 

normative Operation and Maintenance (O&M) expenses allowed for existing 

Transmission Licensee for the said control period. The relevant provision is as 

follows: 

“67.6Existing Transmission Licensee 

… 

67.6.3 The O&M expenses for the nth year and also for the year immediately 

preceding the Control Period shall be approved based on the formula given below: 

O&Mn = R&Mn + EMPn + A&Gn 

Where – 

O&Mn – Operation and Maintenance expense for the nth year; 

EMPn – Employee Costs for the nth year; 

R&Mn – Repair and Maintenance Costs for the nth year; 

A&Gn – Administrative and General Costs for the nth year; 

67.6.4 The above components shall be computed in the manner specified below: 

EMPn = (EMPn-1) x (1+Gn) x (CPI inflation) 

R&Mn = K x (GFA n-1) x (WPI inflation) and 

A&Gn = (A&Gn-1) x (WPI inflation) + Provision 

Where - 

▪ EMPn-1 – Employee Costs for the (n-1)th year; 

▪ A&G n-1 – Administrative and General Costs for the (n-1)th year; 

▪ Provision: Cost for initiatives or other one-time expenses as proposed by 

the Distribution Licensee and validated by the Commission. 

▪ ‘K’ is a constant specified by the Commission in %. Value of K for each year 

of the control period shall be determined by the Commission in the MYT 

Tariff order based on licensee’s filing, benchmarking of repair and 

maintenance expenses, approved repair and maintenance expenses vis-a-

vis GFA approved by the Commission in past and any other factor 

considered appropriate by the Commission; 

▪ CPI inflation – is the average increase in the Consumer Price Index (CPI) 

for immediately preceding three years; 

Page 45 of 284



 

True Up for FY 2022-23, APR for FY 2023-24 and ARR for FY 2024-25 

 
Main Petition 

 

  

AEGCL 42 

  

▪ WPI inflation – is the average increase in the Wholesale Price Index (CPI) 

for immediately preceding three years; 

▪ GFAn-1 --- Gross Fixed Asset of the transmission licensee for the n-1th year; 

▪ Gn is a growth factor for the nth year. Value of Gn shall be determined by 

the Commission in the MYT tariff order for meeting the additional 

manpower requirement based on licensee’s filings, benchmarking, and any 

other factor that the Commission feels appropriate. 

67.8 O&M Sharing between two Transmission Licensees 

67.8.1 For such Transmission Licensees whose bays are installed in the premises 

of and maintained by another Transmission Licensee, the O&M expense for such 

assets shall be allowed in accordance with the norms applicable for the 

Transmission Licensee who performs the O&M of such assets: 

Provided that the Transmission Licensees shall mutually agree on sharing of 

such allowed O&M expenses: 

Provided further that Transmission Licensees shall project addition of such 

assets over the Control Period separately in their Capital Investment Plan to be 

submitted in accordance with Regulation 6.” 

4.4.2 During FY 2023-24, based on methodology specified by the MYT Regulations, 

2021, the Normative O&M expenses of AEGCL works out to be Rs. 239.05 Crores 

which is inclusive of Employee cost, Repair & Maintenance charges and 

Administration & General Expenses. The following table provides the summary 

of Normative O&M Expenses for FY 2023-24 excluding the O&M expenses of 

SLDC. 

Table 31: Operation and Maintenance Expenses for FY 2023-24 

   (Rs.Crs.) 

S.N. Particulars 
Approved in T.O. dtd 

29.03.2023 
AEGCL 

Submission 
1 O&M Expenses                  239.07                       239.97  
a Employee Cost                  196.94                       197.36  
b R&M Expenses                    30.60                         31.10  
c A&G Expenses                    11.53                         11.51  

 

4.4.3 WPI Inflation computation for FY 2023-24 

4.4.3.1 The average increase in the Wholesale Price Index (WPI) for immediately 

preceding three years gives the WPI Inflation for FY 2023-24. Hence the WPI 

Index from FY 2020-21 to FY 2022-23 is considered for computation purpose.  
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Table 32: WPI Inflation Computation for FY 2023-24 

Fiscal WPI Index YOY Change % 
FY 2022-23 152.53 9.41% 
FY 2021-22 139.41 13.00% 
FY 2020-21 123.37 1.29% 
Average WPI Inflation (Last 3 Years) 7.90%  

 

4.4.3.2 WPI inflation for FY 2023-24 has been computed as an average increase of WPI 

index for period from FY 2020-21 to FY 2022-23 which works out to 7.90%. 

4.4.4 CPI Inflation computation for FY 2023-24 

4.4.4.1 The average increase in the Consumer Price Index (CPI) for immediately 

preceding three years gives the CPI Inflation for FY 2023-24. Hence the CPI Index 

from FY 2020-21 to FY 2022-23 is considered for computation purpose.  

Table 33: CPI Inflation Computation for FY 2023-24 

Fiscal CPI Index YOY Change % 
FY 2022-23 377.62 6.06% 
FY 2021-22 356.06 5.13% 
FY 2020-21 338.69 5.02% 
Average CPI Inflation (Last 3 Years) 5.40% 

 

4.4.4.2 CPI inflation for FY 2023-24 has been computed as average increase of CPI index 

for period from FY 2020-21 to FY 2022-23 which works out to 5.40%. 

4.4.5 Normative Calculation of R&M expense for FY 2023-24 

4.4.5.1 Regulation 67.6.4 of AERC (MYT Regulations), 2021 provides the manner in 

which components of O&M expenses shall be computed. The methodology for 

R&M expense is as follows: 

R&Mn = K x (GFA n-1) x (WPI inflation) 

Table 34: Normative R&M expenses for FY 2023-24 

S.No Particulars 
As per T.O. 

dated 
29.03.2023 

AEGCL 
Submission 

1 Opening GFA for previous year  2731.97         2,732.21  
2 Closing GFA for previous year  2893.06         3,022.08  
3 Average GFA for previous year  2812.52        2,877.14  
4 K Factor 0.75% 0.75% 
5 WPI Inflation 8.02% 7.90% 
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6 Normative R&M Expense  22.79              23.28 

7 
Expenditure for Colony Maintenance 
of AEGCL 

5.93 
5.93 

8 Additional amount for Cyber Security 1.88 1.88 
9 Total R&M Expenses 30.60             31.10  

 

4.4.5.2 The closing GFA for FY 2022-23 has been considered as opening GFA for FY 

2023-24. The “K” factor of AEGCL has been considered as 0.75% as approved by 

the Hon’ble Commission in the Tariff Order dated 29.03.2023.  

 

4.4.5.3 AEGCL has excluded the assets of SLDC from the opening and closing GFA of the 

previous year while computing normative R&M for FY 2023-24. The SCADA AMC 

cost is accounted in the SLDC Petition, which is not included in AEGCL's GFA for 

2023-24. 

4.4.6 Provision for Colony Maintenance of AEGCL 

4.4.6.1 The Hon’ble Commission vide tariff order dated 21.03.2022 has approved 

amount of Rs. 5.93 Crores for FY 2023-24 for restoration of old colony buildings. 

AEGCL has already initiated the process and expenses of the same will be 

incurred during the current financial year.  

4.4.7 Provision for Cyber Security of AEGCL 

4.4.7.1 Cyber Security of Critical infrastructure in power sector organizations has 

become a matter of fundamental priority with respect to national defense 

strategy. Cyber Security is very important in increasing Cyber Security 

Awareness among the public and private sectors to enhance the overall cyber 

resilience of the nation. The Govt. Of India have also created NCIIPC (National 

Critical Information Infrastructure Protection Centre) under Sec 70A of the 

information Technology Act, 2000(amended 2008) as the Nodal Agency in 

respect of Critical information Infrastructure Protection. The NCIIPC has 

identified 6(six) sectors as Critical Information Infrastructure given below:  

1. Transport 

2. Power& Energy 

3. Telecom 

4. Government 

5. Banking, Financial Services and Insurance 

6. Strategic and Public Enterprises. 

 

4.4.7.2 AEGCL comes under Power & Energy sector and hence considered as Critical 

Information Infrastructure by NCIIPC. A Central Coordinating agency, 
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Information Sharing and Analysis Centre (ISAC- Power) was established by MoP, 

Govt. of India under Central Electricity Authority (CEA) to share and analyze 

various cyber-Security incidents in the power sector. ISAC-Power is the common 

platform for the six Sectoral CERTs under MoP. It is very necessary for any 

organization to be very vigilant and always remain up-to date in matter of Cyber 

Security as now-a-days Cyber Attack in Many PSU’s and Government 

organizations has been a very common phenomenon. As per directives of MoP, 

AEGCL have already designated a CISO to oversee the Cyber Security at the 

Organization. 

 

4.4.7.3 Therefore, to cope with the existing Cyber Threats and remain updated various 

steps need to be undertaken which require financial involvement. Also, Cyber 

Security related issues cannot be taken lightly, and any data breach or attack 

may have disastrous impact for the organization and also be a breach in National 

Security. Further, it has been clearly mentioned in CEA (Cyber Security in Power 

Sector) Guidelines, 2021 under Article 1(j) that the responsible Entity shall 

allocate sufficient Annual budget for enhancing Cyber Security posture, 

enhanced year over year. In this regard, AEGCL requests the Hon’ble Commission 

to approve the amount towards Cyber Security as requested over and above the 

R&M expenses for FY 2023-24. The details of the expenses to incur towards 

cyber security are provided in Annexure-X. 

4.4.7.4 The details of expenditure and amount booked for the 1st Half of the FY 2023-24 

of the Cyber Security Budget are given below: 

 a) Payment Released: 

i. Purchase of Webmail Licenses and Space 

b) Amount booked and payment to be made: 

i. Training And Development Cyber Hygiene training program at NPTI 
ii. Observation of NCSAM Mock Drill by M/s Prime Infoserv LLP 

iii. LAN (Local Area Network Connection) for AEGCL Offices 

iv. LAN Connectivity set up at Transit Camp 
v. End point Security Cloud Based (Antivirus) 

vi. Procurement of Managed switches over unmanaged switches 

4.4.7.5 The Details of expenditure to be done in the 2nd Half of the FY 2023-24 of the 

Cyber Security Budget are given below: 

a) Managed Switches at AEGCL sites and AEGCL HQ:  

i. This will act as a foundation to implement various govt. mandated 
advisories related to Cyber Security.  
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ii. Managed switches include remote management capabilities, allowing 
administrators to monitor and configure the switch from a central 
location. 

iii. Managed switches often come with advanced security features, such as 
port security, which allows administrators to control which devices can 
connect to specific switch ports. This helps prevent unauthorized access 

to the network. 

b) LAN (Local Area Network) Connections for AEGCL Offices: 

i. It will strengthen the network architecture of AEGCL Offices to access 
hassle free internet Connectivity. A proper LAN is a pre requisite for 
various Cyber Security related Solutions. 

ii. Facilitates communication and resource sharing within a confined AEGCL 

Offices. 

c) 2 Fire walls at High availability mode for the NMS (Network Management 

Systems) at LA Communication, AEGCL. 

i. This will strengthen the cyber security aspects in the NMS environment. 

ii. Firewalls play a crucial role within NMS environments by providing 
several advantages in terms of security, access control, and overall 
network protection. 

iii. Firewalls enable administrators to define and enforce access control 
policies. By regulating the flow of traffic between network segments, they 
ensure that only authorized users and devices can access specific 

resources within the NMS. 

d) Professional Windows licensed Desktops/ Systems. 

i. Many of the PC’s and Desktops in AEGCL offices are using obsolete 

software’s /hardware’s which make them prone cyber security threats. 

Therefore, replacement of obsolete and vulnerable desktops /systems are 
essential. 

ii. Using licensed software ensures that a business is compliant with legal 
requirements and software licensing agreements. Failure to comply with 
licensing terms can lead to legal consequences, including fines and 
penalties. 

iii. Licensed versions of Windows receive regular security updates and 
patches from Microsoft. This is crucial for protecting desktops and the 
overall network from vulnerabilities and emerging security threats. 

iv. Licensed versions of Windows come with technical support from 
Microsoft. This support can be valuable in troubleshooting issues, 
resolving technical challenges, and ensuring the smooth operation of 

desktop systems. 

e) 300 additional End Point security licenses are required. 
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i. As organizations grow and the number of devices increases, additional 
licenses are needed to scale up endpoint security coverage. This ensures 
that all devices, both existing and new, are protected against evolving 
cyber threats. 

ii. Compliance standards and regulations may require organizations to 
implement specific security measures on all devices to protect sensitive 
data. Additional licenses may be necessary to meet these compliance 
requirements and avoid potential penalties. 

iii. As the IT landscape evolves and the number of endpoints increases, 

having the appropriate number of licenses is crucial for maintaining a 

robust defense against cybersecurity threats. 

4.4.7.6 Therefore, in view of the above, AEGCL requests the Hon’ble Commission to 

approve an amount of Rs. 31.10 Crores for Repair and Maintenance expenses 

including provision for Colony Maintenance and additional amount for Cyber 

Security of AEGCL for FY 2023-24. 

 

4.4.8 Normative Calculation of Employee Expense for FY 2023-24 

4.4.8.1 In accordance with Regulation 67.6.4 of AERC (MYT Regulations), 2021 provides 

the manner in which components of O&M expenses shall be computed. The 

methodology for employee expense is as follows: 

EMPn = (EMPn-1) x (1+Gn) x (CPI inflation) 

Table 35: Normative Employee Expense for FY 2023-24 

S.No Particulars 
As per T.O. dated 

29.03.2023 
AEGCL 

Submission 
1 Base Employee Cost (n-1)           185.39           185.39 
2 CPI Inflation 5.18% 5.40% 
3 Gn (Growth Factor for nth Year) 1.00% 1.00% 
4 Normative Employee Cost  196.94 197.36 

 

4.4.8.2 The normative employee cost for FY 2022-23 of AEGCL has been considered as 

base employee cost for FY 2023-24 after deducting the approved base employee 

cost of SLDC for previous year.  

 

4.4.8.3 The Gn (Growth Factor) of AEGCL has been considered as 1.00% as approved by 

the Hon’ble Commission in the Tariff Order dated 29.03.2023. 

4.4.8.4 AEGCL requests the Hon’ble Commission to approve the normative Employee 

expenses amounting to Rs. 197.36 Crores for FY 2023-24 as shown in the above 

table. 
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4.4.9 Normative Calculation of Administrative & General Expenses for FY 2022-

23 

4.4.9.1 In accordance with Regulation 67.6.4 of AERC (MYT Regulations), 2021provides 

the manner in which components of O&M expenses shall be computed. The 

methodology for Administrative and General Expenses is as follows: 

 

A&Gn = (A&Gn-1) x (WPI inflation) + Provision 

Table 36: Normative A&G expenses for FY 2023-24 

S.No Particulars 
As per T.O. 

dated 
29.03.2023 

AEGCL Submission 

1 A&G Expense for Previous year  10.67                  10.67  
2 WPI Inflation 8.02% 7.90% 
3 Normative A&G Expense for the year 11.53 11.51 

 

4.4.9.2 The normative A&G expense for FY 2022-23 of AEGCL has been considered as 

base A&G expense for FY 2023-24 and requests the Hon’ble Commission to 

approve the normative A&G expenses amounting to Rs. 11.51 crores for FY 

2023-24 as shown in the above table.  

4.4.9.3 In view of the above, AEGCL requests the Hon’ble Commission to approve the 

normative O&M expenses amounting to Rs. 239.97 crores as shown in the above 

tables for FY 2023-24. 

4.4.9.4 Following Sections provide the details of O&M expenses as provided in the 

provisional half yearly statements and estimated for FY 2023-24. 

4.4.10 Repair and Maintenance Expenses for FY 2023-24 

4.4.10.1 While arriving R&M expenses for the FY 2022-23, actual R&M expenses incurred 

during first 6 months plus estimate for the next 6 months has been considered.  

It is pertinent to note that the R&M works of assets during the H1 is minimal on 

account of monsoon. Assam receives abundant rainfall in the monsoon. The 

rain season starts off with the month of June and lasts till October. Hence the 

R&M works are carried out post monsoon and hence H2 expenses are usually 

twice as the H1 expenses. 
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Table 37: Repair and Maintenance Expenses of FY 2023-24 

(Rs. Crores) 

S.N Particulars 

Approved 

in Order 

dtd 

29.03.23 

FY  2023-
24 H1 

FY  2023-
24 H2 

AEGCL 
Estimation 

1 Plant & Machinery 

30.60 

2.72 5.43 8.15 
2 Buildings 2.29 4.50 6.79 
3 Civil works 0.57 2.87 3.44 
4 Hydraulic Works 0.00 0.00 0.00 

5 
Lines, Cable Networks 
etc. 

2.03 4.06 6.09 

6 Vehicles 0.05 0.11 0.16 
7 Furniture & Fixtures 0.09 0.18 0.27 
8 Office Equipment 0.21 0.42 0.62 
9 Total 30.60 7.96 17.57 25.53 

 

4.4.11 Employee Expenses for FY 2023-24 

4.4.11.1 Employee expenses include salaries, bonus, other benefits like medical expense 

reimbursement, LTA, etc. and terminal benefits in the form of pension, gratuity, 

leave encashment, staff welfare etc.  

4.4.11.2 AEGCL submits that the employee costs for the FY 2023-24 have been estimated 

based on 6 months actual data and estimation for the next 6 months. Actual 

salary paid for the month of Oct 2023 has been considered as the salaries for the 

month of November 2023 to March, 2024. 

Table 38: Employee Expenses of FY 2023-24 

  
 

  (Rs. Crores) 

S.N Particulars 

Approved 

in Order 

dtd 

29.03.23 

FY  2023-
24 H1 

FY  2023-
24 H2 

AEGCL 
Estimation 

1 Salaries 

196.94 

51.71 51.25 102.96 
2 Dearness Allowance (DA) 18.81 19.32 38.13 
3 Other Allowances & Relief 8.24 7.96 16.20 
4 Honorarium/Overtime 0.02 0.02 0.03 

5 
Bonus/ Exgratia to 
Employees 0.00 0.36 0.37 

6 
Medical Expenses 
Reimbursement 0.17 0.11 0.28 

7 
Travelling Allowance 
(Conveyance Allowance) 

0.00 0.00 0.00 
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  (Rs. Crores) 

S.N Particulars 

Approved 

in Order 

dtd 

29.03.23 

FY  2023-
24 H1 

FY  2023-
24 H2 

AEGCL 
Estimation 

8 Leave Travel Assistance 0.02 0.02 0.04 
9 Earned Leave Encashment 1.51 1.26 2.76 

10 
Payment Under 
Workman's Compensation 
and Gratuity 

1.97 6.97 8.94 

11 Staff Welfare Expenses 0.04 0.15 0.18 

12 
Contribution To Terminal 
Benefits 10.29 9.63 19.92 

13 Total Employee Costs 196.94          92.78         97.05         189.83  
 

4.4.11.3 The detail of the manpower of AEGCL excluding SLDC for FY 2023-24 is provided 

in the table below: 

Table 39: Estimated Manpower details of AEGCL for FY 2023-24 

 S.N. Particulars 
Existing 

Manpower 
(H1) 

Projection 
Manpower 

(H2) 
(A) Manpower as on 1st April (Opening Balance) 1494 1454 
(B) Retirement during the Financial Year 40 41 
(C) Recruitment during the Financial Year 0 109 
(D) Manpower as on 31st March (Closing balance) 1454 1512 

 

4.4.12 Administrative and General Expenses for FY 2023-24 

4.4.12.1 Administrative expenses include rents, telephone and other communication 

expenses, professional charges, conveyance and traveling allowances, etc. While 

arriving A&G expenses for the FY 2023-24, actual A&G expenses incurred during 

first 6 months plus estimate for the next 6 months has been considered.  

Estimated A&G Expense for FY 2023-24 is as shown below. 

Table 40: Administrative and General Expenses for FY 2023-24  

  
 

  (Rs. Crores) 

S.N Particulars 

Approved 

in Order 

dtd 

29.03.23 

FY 2023-
24 H1 

FY 2023-
24 H2 

AEGCL 
Estimation 

1 
Lease/ Rent/Rates and 
taxes 

11.53 
0.32 0.19 0.51 
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  (Rs. Crores) 

S.N Particulars 

Approved 

in Order 

dtd 

29.03.23 

FY 2023-
24 H1 

FY 2023-
24 H2 

AEGCL 
Estimation 

2 Insurance 0.04 0.04 0.08 

3 
Telephone, Postage, 
Telegram & Telex 
Charges 0.07 0.08 0.15 

4 Consultancy Charges 0.19 0.23 0.42 

5 
Other Professional 
Charges 0.38 0.39 0.77 

6 
Conveyance and 
travelling 0.79 1.17 1.96 

7 
License and Registration 
Fees 0.00 0.03 0.03 

8 Vehicle Expenses 2.53 2.45 4.98 

9 
Fee And Subscriptions 
Books and Periodicals 1.25 2.00 3.25 

10 Printing And Stationery  0.17 0.33 0.50 
11 Advertisement Expenses 0.14 0.31 0.45 

12 
Contributions/Donations 
to Outside Institutes / 
Associations   

0.00 0.00 

13 
Electricity Charges to 
Offices 0.29 0.23 0.52 

14 Water Charges 0.01 0.00 0.01 
15 Entertainment Charges 0.08 0.17 0.25 
16 Miscellaneous Expenses 0.34 0.13 0.47 
17 Legal Charges 0.18 0.10 0.28 
18 Auditor's Fee 0.06 0.06 0.12 

19 
Freight On Capital 
Equipments 0.01 0.00 0.01 

20 
Vehicle Running 
Expenses Truck / 
Delivery Van 

0.04 0.04 0.08 

21 Other Freight 0.00 0.00 0.00 

22 
Fees including TA and DA 
for non-official member 
of the Board 

0.26 0.14 0.40 

23 

Fees for conducting 
recruitment & Other 
Departmental 
Examinations 

0.00 0.02 0.02 

24 
Participation fees paid 
for training/conference 0.00 0.00 0.00 

25 
Training of Staff and 
Officers 0.00 0.09 0.09 
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  (Rs. Crores) 

S.N Particulars 

Approved 

in Order 

dtd 

29.03.23 

FY 2023-
24 H1 

FY 2023-
24 H2 

AEGCL 
Estimation 

26 Total A&G Expenses 11.53            7.15           8.20              15.35  
 

4.5 Capital Expenditure and Capitalisation for FY 2023-24 

4.5.1 AEGCL submits that the Capitalisation for FY 2023-24 has been estimated based 

on 6 months actual addition of assets and estimation of asset addition for the 

next 6 months.  

4.5.2 The estimated scheme wise Capital Expenditure for FY 2023-24 is shown below: 

     Table 41: Scheme wise Capital Expenditure for FY 2023-24 

S N Name of the Scheme Total Capital Expenditure Grant Equity Loan 
1 AIIB 418.05 418.05   

2 ADB 2.00 2.00   

3 Annual Plan/SOPD 5.22   5.22 

4 PSDF 17.15 17.15   

5 TDF  16.83 16.83   

6 Deposit Works 0.00 0.00   

7 AIFA  19.58 19.58   

8 AIIMS 6.94 6.94   

9 NESIDS 5.00 5.00   

10 Internal Accrual Equity 5.13  5.13  

11 PM Gati Shakti 3.31 3.31   
 Total 499.21 488.9 5.13 5.22 

 

4.5.3 Further, the estimated scheme wise capitalization for FY 2023-24 is shown 

below: 

Table 42: Scheme wise Capitalisation for FY 2023-24 
(Rs. Crore) 

S N Name of the Scheme Total Capitalisation Grant Equity Loan 
1 AIIB 48.70 48.70   

2 ADB 33.53 33.53   

3 NERPSIP 689.76 689.76   

4 Annual Plan/SOPD 16.23   16.23 

5 PSDF 19.48 19.48   

6 TDF  103.70 103.70    
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S N Name of the Scheme Total Capitalisation Grant Equity Loan 
7 Deposit Works 38.78 38.78   

8 AIFA 46.43 46.43   

9 AIIMS 3.94 3.94   

10 Internal Accrual Equity 9.07  9.07   
 Total 1009.62 984.31 9.07 16.23 

   

4.5.4 AEGCL requests the Hon’ble Commission to approve the proposed Capitalisation 

of Rs.1,009.62 Cr.  for FY 2023-24. 

4.5.5 Also, the funding of Capital Expenditure for FY 2023-24 is envisaged through 

Grants, Equity and Debt considering the impact of conversion of Government 

Grants and Loans to Equity. 

4.5.6 The detailed breakup of funding of capitalization during FY 2023-24 are 

mentioned below: 

 Table 43: Capitalization for FY 2023-24 and its Funding 

   (Rs. Crores) 

S.N Particulars 
Approved in T.O. dtd 

29.03.2023 
AEGCL Estimation 

1 Grant                  224.66                   984.31  
2 Equity                         9.07  
3 Debt 0.34                     16.23  
4 Total Capitalisation                  225.00                1,009.62  

 

4.6 Gross Fixed Assets for FY 2023-24 

4.6.1 The opening GFA and addition of GFA for FY 2023-24 as submitted by AEGCL is 

shown in the below table.  

Table 44: Gross Fixed Assets for FY 2023-24 
    (Rs. Crores) 

S. 
N 

Particulars 

Balance at 
the 

beginning of 
the year 

Additions 
during the 

year 

Retirement 
of assets 

during the 
year 

Balance 
at the 
end of 

the year 

1 
Land owned under 
full ownership 

                             
47.66  

                              
-0.06  

 -                              
47.60  

2 Building                 65.20               6.31   -            71.50  

3 Hydraulic                   2.64                       -     -              2.64  

4 Other Civil Works              159.98              14.08   -         174.06  

5 Plant & Machinery          1,426.63          264.09   -       1,690.72  

6 
Lines & Cable 
Network 

          1,300.46          722.76   -    
                       

2,023.23  
7 Vehicles                   4.95                       -     -              4.95  
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    (Rs. Crores) 

S. 
N 

Particulars 

Balance at 
the 

beginning of 
the year 

Additions 
during the 

year 

Retirement 
of assets 

during the 
year 

Balance 
at the 
end of 

the year 
8 Furniture & Fixtures                   8.35               1.39   -              9.74  

9 Office Equipment                   6.21               1.05   -              7.26  
 Total         3,022.08     1,009.62  -     4,031.70 

 

4.7 Depreciation for FY 2023-24 

4.7.1 Depreciation has been calculated considering the opening balance of assets in 

the beginning of the year and the capitalization as shown in the below table. 

AEGCL submits that the Depreciation is computed for assets excluding those 

funded through grant mechanism. 

4.7.2 AEGCL has converted Government Loan of Rs. 11.52 Crore and Government 

Grant of Rs. 134.40 Crore as on 31.03.2023 into equity during FY 2023-24, as 

approved by the Hon’ble Cabinet, GoA, in its meeting held on 08.09.2023 notified 

vide letter No. E 377979/4 dated 15.09.2023. 

4.7.3 For FY 2023-24, after considering the Government Grants of Rs. 1951.14 crores 

and Loans of Rs. 638.41 crores converted to equity by GoA for AEGCL, along with 

the conversion of Government Grant of Rs. 134.40 Crores and loan of Rs. 11.52 

Crores into equity as mentioned in Annexure-XI, the depreciation for FY 2023-

24 is calculated in the table below: 

Table 45: Depreciation for FY 2023-24 
                                                       (Rs.Crs.) 

S.N. Particulars 
Depreciation 

Rate 

Accumulated 
depreciation 

-beginning 
of the year 

Additions 
during the 

year 

Accumulated 

depreciation 

at the end of 

the year 

1 
Land owned under 
full ownership 

0.00%                         -    -                          -    

2 Land under lease 3.34%                  0.07  -                   0.07  

3 Building 3.34%                28.09                   2.49                 30.58  

4 Hydraulic 5.28%                  2.51                    0.06                   2.57  

5 Other Civil Works 3.34%                 32.53                   4.93                 37.46  

6 Plant & Machinery 5.28%             704.95                  74.50              779.46  

7 
Lines & Cable 
Network 

5.28%             891.95                  73.99              965.94  

8 Vehicles 9.50%                  4.45                    0.21                   4.66  

9 Furniture & 6.33%                   4.85                   0.50                   5.35  
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                                                       (Rs.Crs.) 

S.N. Particulars 
Depreciation 

Rate 

Accumulated 
depreciation 

-beginning 
of the year 

Additions 
during the 

year 

Accumulated 

depreciation 

at the end of 

the year 

Fixtures 

10 Office Equipment 6.33%                  4.41                    0.62                    5.03  

11 Total 
 

        1,673.82              157.30           1,831.12  

(a) Gross Fixed Assets (a)      3,022.08  
(b) Gross Fixed Assets excluding Land (b)      2,974.48  
(c) Conversion of Grant to Equity      2,089.45  
(d) Opening CWIP (c)          833.60  
(e) Grant (CWIP + Assets) (d)      1,494.11  
(f) Grant towards GFA (e=d*b/(b+c))     1,167.04  

12 Total Depreciation          157.30  
13 Less: Dep towards assets through Grant/Consumer contribution             61.72  

14 
Depreciation for the year (excl assets funded through grant and 

consumer contribution)             95.58  
 

4.7.4 AEGCL requests the Hon’ble Commission to approve the proposed depreciation 

amounting to Rs. 95.58 Cr. for FY 2023-24 excluding the depreciation of assets 

through grant during the same financial year. 

4.8 Interest and Finance Charges for FY 2023-24 

4.8.1 The Interest & Finance charges for FY 2023-24 have been calculated based on 

the net normative closing loan for FY 2022-23 as net normative opening loan for 

FY 2023-24. The addition of loan based on the capitalization and computed 

depreciation excluding grant and conversion of Government Loans of Rs. 638.41 

crores to equity for AEGCL has been considered for calculation of interest and 

finance charge for FY 2023-24 is shown below: 

Table 46: Normative Interest and Finance Charges for FY 2023-24 

   (Rs. Crores) 

S.N Particulars 
Approved in 

T.O. dtd 
29.03.2023 

AEGCL  
Submission 

1 Net Normative Opening Loan             159.58                85.98  
2 Addition of normative loan during the year                 0.34                16.23  
3 Normative Repayment during the year             118.59                95.58  
4 Net Normative Closing Loan               41.33                  6.62  
5 Interest Rate 9.92% 8.60% 
6 Interest Expenses on Loan                 9.96                  3.98  
7 Finance Charges 0.01 0.01 
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   (Rs. Crores) 

S.N Particulars 
Approved in 

T.O. dtd 
29.03.2023 

AEGCL  
Submission 

8 Total Interest and Finance Charges                 9.97                  3.99  
 

4.8.2 The estimated Interest and Finance charges based on 6 months provisional 

accounts and 6 months projection is mentioned below: 

Table 47: Interest and Finance Charges for FY 2023-24 
 

S. 
N
o. 

Particulars 

FY 23-24 (H1) Actual 

Rate of 
Interes

t 

Openi
ng 

Balanc
e 

Amoun
t 

receive
d 

Principa
l 

repayme
nt 

Conver
ted to 
Equity 

Inte
rest 
Due 

Closing 
Balanc

e 

  Loan Details               

A 

Interest charges on 
State Govt. Loans, 
Bonds And Advances,                

1 
 State Government 
Loans 10% 12.40   0.88 11.52     

2 ADB Loan 10.50%             

3 
Central Government 
Loans               

4 General Provident Fund 8.00% 20.81 0.89 
              

3.14    1.43 19.99 

  Sub-total   33.21 0.89 4.02   1.43 19.99 

  

Interest on Long Term 
Loans/Credits from 
the 
FIs/banks/organisatio
ns approved by the 
State Govt.               

A Secured Loans             0 
B Unsecured Loans             0 

C 
Other Interest & Finance 
Charges             0 

  
Cost of raising 

Finance/Bank Charges             0 

  
Penal Interest 

Charges             0 
  Sub-total   0.00 0.00 0.00   0.00 0.00 

D 

Grand Total Of Interest 
& Finance Charges 
(A+B+C)   33.21 0.89 4.02   1.43 19.99 

E Less: Interest & Finance             0 
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Charges Capitalised 

  
Net Total of Interest 
Finance Charges (D-E)   33.21 0.89 4.02   1.43 19.99 

 

S. 
N
o. 

Particulars 

FY 23-24 (H2) Estimated 

Rate of 
Interes

t 

Openi
ng 

Balanc
e 

Amoun
t 

receive
d 

Principa
l 

repayme
nt 

Conver
ted to 
Equity 

Inte
rest 
Due 

Closing 
Balanc

e 

  Loan Details               

A 

Interest charges on 
State Govt. Loans, 
Bonds and Advances,                

1 
 State Government 
Loans 10%          4.71         

2 ADB Loan 10.50%             

3 
Central Government 
Loans               

4 General Provident Fund 8.00% 19.99 0.89 0.00     20.88 

  Sub-total   19.99 5.60 0.00   0.00 20.88 

  

Interest on Long Term 
Loans/Credits from 
the 
FIs/banks/organisatio
ns approved by the 
State Govt.               

A Secured Loans           0.00 0 
B Unsecured Loans           0.00 0 

C 
Other Interest & Finance 
Charges             0 

  
Cost of raising 

Finance/Bank Charges           0.01 0 

  
Penal Interest 

Charges             0 
  Sub-total   0.00 0.00 0.00     0.00 

D 

Grand Total of Interest 
& Finance Charges 
(A+B+C)   19.99 5.60 0.00   0.00 20.88 

E 
Less: Interest & Finance 
Charges Capitalised             0 

  
Net Total of Interest 
Finance Charges (D-E)   19.99 5.60 0.00   0.00 20.88 

 

S. 
N
o. 

Particulars 

FY 23-24 (Total) Estimated 
Rate of 
Interes

t 

Openi
ng 

Balanc

Amoun
t 

receive

Principa
l 

repayme

Conver
ted to 
Equity 

Inte
rest 
Due 

Closing 
Balanc

e 
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e d nt 

  Loan Details               

A 

Interest charges on 
State Govt. Loans, 
Bonds And Advances,                

1 
 State Government 
Loans 10% 12.40 4.71 1   0.00 16.23 

2 ADB Loan 10.50% 0.00 0.00 0   0.00 0.00 

3 
Central Government 
Loans   

                   
-    

                   
-    0   0.00 0.00 

4 General Provident Fund 8.0% 40.80   3.14   1.43 37.66 

  Sub-total   53.20 4.71 4.02   1.43 53.89 

  

Interest on Long Term 
Loans/Credits from 
the 
FIs/banks/organisatio
ns approved by the 
State Govt.               

A Secured Loans           0.00 0 
B Unsecured Loans           0.00 0 

C 
Other Interest & Finance 
Charges           0.00 0 

  
Cost of raising 

Finance/Bank Charges           0.01 0 

  
Penal Interest 

Charges           0.00 0 
  Sub-total   0.00 0.00 0.00   0.01 0.00 

D 

Grand Total of Interest 
& Finance Charges 
(A+B+C)   53.20 6.49 4.02   1.43 53.89 

E 
Less: Interest & Finance 
Charges Capitalised           0.00 0 

  
Net Total of Interest 
Finance Charges (D-E)   53.20 6.49 4.02   1.43 53.89 

 

4.8.3 AEGCL submits that the based on above computation, the estimated interest rate 

arrived at 8.60% for FY 2023-24 

4.8.4 Accordingly, AEGCL requests the Hon’ble Commission to approve the normative 

Interest & Finance Charge of Rs. 3.99 Crores shown in the above table.  

4.9 Interest on Working Capital for FY 2023-24 

4.9.1 The interest on working capital has been calculated based on the normative 

working formula in accordance with Regulation 37.2 of AERC, MYT Regulations, 

2021. 
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4.9.2 Rate of interest on working capital has been considered equal to the normative 

interest rate of three hundred (300) basis points above the average State Bank of 

India MCLR (One Year Tenor) prevalent during the last available six months for 

the determination of tariff. Interest on working capital for FY 2023-24 has been 

computed as shown below. 

 

Table 48: Interest on Working Capital for FY 2023-24 

S.N. Particulars Units 

Approved in 
T.O. dtd 

29.03.2023 

AEGCL 
Estimation 

1 O&M expenses for 1 month Rs. Crs. 19.92             20.00  

2 Maintenance spares @ 15% of O&M Rs. Crs. 35.86             36.00  
3 Receivables for two months Rs. Crs. 111.82          111.25  
4 Total Working Capital Rs. Crs. 167.60          167.24  
5 Rate of Interest % 10.58% 11.53% 
6 Interest on Working Capital Rs. Crs.             17.73              19.29  

 

4.10 Computation of rate of Interest on Working Capital 

4.10.1 The interest rate of three hundred (300) basis points above the average State 

Bank of India MCLR (One Year Tenor) prevalent during the last available six 

months arrived at 11.53%. 

Table 49: MCLR rate for FY 2023-24 (last 6 months) 

Effective Date Interest Rate (%) (1Yr) 
15-10-2023  8.55 

15-09-2023  8.55 

15-08-2023  8.55 

15-07-2023  8.55 

15-06-2023  8.50 

15-05-2023  8.50 
Average 8.53% 

 

4.10.2 AEGCL requests the Hon’ble Commission to approve the proposed interest on 

working capital amounting to Rs. 19.29 Crore for FY 2023-24. 

4.11 Return on Equity for FY 2023-24 

4.11.1 In accordance with Regulation 34 of AERC (terms & conditions for determination 

of Multi Year Tariff) Regulations, 2021, Return on Equity is calculated at 13.50%. 
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4.11.2 AEGCL submits that the Rs. 2589.55 Crores has been converted to equity (i.e., 

Grant Rs. 1951.14 crore and Loans of Rs. 638.41 crore), since the Government 

Grant of Rs. 3.91 crores have been separately carried out for SLDC. Similarly, 

addition of equity during the year is considered at 30% of Rs. 2589.55 crore 

which arrived at Rs. 776.86 crore. 

Table 50:  Conversion of Govt. Grants & Loans to Equity 
(Rs. Crore) 

Particula
rs  

As on 
31.03.20

21  

Conversi
on to 

Equity 
during  

FY 2022-
23  

Total 
Loan 

Total 
Equity 

AEGCL 
Loan 

AEGCL 
Equity 

SLDC 
Loan 

SLDC 
Equity 

70% 30% 70% 30% 70% 30% 

Grant 1955.05 1955.05 1368.54 586.52 1365.80 585.34 2.74 1.17 

Loan   638.41 446.89 191.52 446.89 191.52     
ADB Loan 95.68 95.68 66.98 28.70 66.98 28.70     
GoA Loan 542.73 542.73 379.91 162.82 379.91 162.82     
Total 2593.46 2593.46 1815.42 778.04 1812.69 776.87 2.74 1.17 

 

4.11.3 The Return on Equity has been computed at 13.5% on closing balance of equity 

based upon the opening balance of equity and normative additions during the 

years. Return on Equity is computed as shown in the table below: 

Table 51: Return on Equity for FY 2023-24 
                                                                                                                 (Rs. Crore) 

S.N Particulars Units 
Approved in T.O. 
dtd 29.03.2023 

AEGCL 
Estimation 

1 Equity (Opening Balance) Rs. Crs. 827.01            876.80  
2 Net additions during the year Rs. Crs.                43.77  
3 Less: Reduction during the year Rs. Crs. 0.00                     -    
4 Equity (Closing Balance) Rs. Crs. 827.01            920.57  
5 Average Equity Rs. Crs.             827.01             898.68  
6 Rate of Return on Equity % 13.50% 13.50% 
7 Return on Equity Rs. Crs.             111.65             121.32  

4.11.4 AEGCL submits that Computation of equity addition of Rs. 43.77 Crore during the 

year is mentioned below: 

Table 52: Conversion of Govt. Loans and Grants into equity during FY 2023-24 

Particulars 
Amount of Conversion 

into Equity 

Treatment as per Debt-Equity Ratio 
norms 

Loan (70%) Equity (30%) 
Govt. Loan 11.52 8.06 3.46 
Govt. Grant 134.40 94.08 40.32 
Total 145.92 102.14 43.77 
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4.11.5 AEGCL has converted Government Loan of Rs. 11.52 crore and Government 

Grant of Rs. 134.40 crore as on 31.03.2023 into equity during FY 2023-24, as 

approved by the Hon’ble Cabinet, GoA, in its meeting held on 08.09.2023 notified 

vide letter no. E 377979/4 dated 15.09.2023. 

4.11.6 AEGCL requests the Hon’ble Commission to approve the return on equity for the 

FY 2023-24 as proposed by AEGCL.   

4.12 Bulk Supply Tariff (BST) – Terminal Benefits for FY 2023-24 

4.12.1 AEGCL submits that the BST is calculated based on the BST rate of Rs. 0.20 per 

kWh as approved by the Hon’ble Commission vide order dated 21.03.2022 and 

the estimated energy sent out to APDCL for FY 2023-24.  

Table 53: Special Charges –Bulk Supply Tariff (BST)for FY2023-24 

   (Rs.Crs.) 

S.N. Particulars 
Approved in T.O. 
dtd 29.03.2023 

AEGCL 
Estimation 

1 Energy Sent out to APDCL (MUs) 11455.67 12577.42 
2 BST Charge (Rs./kWh) 0.20 0.20 
3 Total (3=1*2/10) 230.34 251.55 

4.12.2 AEGCL requests the Hon’ble Commission to approve the proposed special 

charges on BST amounting to Rs. 251.55 Cr. for FY 2023-24. 

4.13 Non-Tariff Income for FY 2023-24 

4.13.1 The amount of Non-Tariff Income mostly comprises of income from investments 

and other misc. receipts, etc., The estimation of NTI for FY 2023-24 is tabulated 

in the table below. 

Table 54:  Non-Tariff Income for FY 2023-24 
    (Rs. Crore.) 

S.N. Particulars 
Approved 
in T.O. dtd 

29.03.2023 

FY 2023-
24 H1 

FY 2023-
24 H2 

AEGCL 
Estimation 

A 

Income from Investment, 
Fixed & Call Deposits 

58.45 

   

Income from Investments               -             0.50               0.50  
Interest on fixed deposits       28.60       17.04            45.64  
Income on other 
investments (Dividend) 

-  -                      -    

Interest from Banks          1.52           0.30                1.82  
Interest on GPF         -1.43          -0.80                -2.23  
Sub Total        28.68         17.04              45.72  

B 
Other Non-Tariff Income    
Rental from          0.05           0.05                 0.10  
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    (Rs. Crore.) 

S.N. Particulars 
Approved 
in T.O. dtd 

29.03.2023 

FY 2023-
24 H1 

FY 2023-
24 H2 

AEGCL 
Estimation 

contractors/others 
Inspection Bunglow/Guest 
house charges 

         0.02           0.02                 0.04  

Electricity charges from 
employees 

         0.00           0.00                 0.00  

Sale of tender forms          0.02           0.02                 0.04  
Penalties recovered from 
suppliers/contractors 

         0.23  -                 0.23  

Other Miscellaneous Receipt          0.60  -                 0.60  

C 

Income from 
Supervision/Service charges 
on deposit works 

       17.42           3.00               20.42  

Hire Charges from 
Contractors/Suppliers/ 
Others 

         0.08  -  -  

 Sub Total        18.42           3.09              21.52 

 Total 58.45        47.10        20.13              67.23 

 

4.13.2 Income from other investment (Dividend)– As per clause 68.1 of MYT 

Regulation 2021, “Provided that the interest/dividend earned from investments 

made out of Return on Equity corresponding to the regulated business of the 

Transmission Licensee shall not be included in Non-Tariff Income”. Therefore, 

the interest/dividend earned from North East Transmission Company Limited 

(NETCL) by AEGCL has not been considered under NTI.  

4.13.3 Interest on GPF- The GPF liability is payable to an employee only after 

completion of 25 years of qualifying services. The accumulation of GPF is utilized 

as internal resources by AEGCL. As such GPF is shown as unsecured loan and the 

interest payable on GPF has been computed at 7.10% per annum for FY 2023-24 

amounting to Rs. 2.23 crore. Interest on GPF is deducted from NTI, Further 

AEGCL requests the Hon’ble Commission to approve the interest on GPF that has 

been deducted from NTI. 

4.13.4 As mentioned in the true up section, interest on GPF and income from open 

access consumer has been deducted from Non-Tariff Income. Hence, AEGCL 

requests the Hon’ble Commission to approve the Non-Tariff Income amounting 

to Rs. 67.23 crores for FY 2023-24. 
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4.14 Open Access Consumer’s wheeling charges 

4.14.1 AEGCL has considered the wheeling charges from Open Access Consumers 

amounting to Rs. 1.03 Crores in the H1 of FY 2023-24 as additional revenue of 

AEGCL for computation of Revenue Gap/(Surplus) and open access charges of Rs. 

3.55 crores have been considered for H2. AEGCL requests the Hon’ble 

Commission to approve Rs. 4.58 crore for FY 2023-24. 

4.15 Contribution to Contingency Reserves for FY 2023-24 

4.15.1 In accordance with Regulation 67.9 of AERC (terms & conditions for 

determination of Multi Year Tariff) Regulations, 2021 stipulate the computation 

of contingency reserves is as follows: 

 

“ 67.9.1The Transmission Licensee may make an appropriation to the Contingency Reserve 

of a sum not exceeding 0.1 per cent of the gross fixed assets approved by the Commission at 

the beginning of the year, for each year, which shall be allowed in the calculation of 

aggregate revenue requirement: 

Provided that where the amount of such Contingency Reserve exceeds one (1) per cent of 

the gross fixed assets, no such appropriation shall be allowed, which would have the effect 

of increasing the reserve beyond the said maximum: 

Provided further that the amount so appropriated may be invested in securities and fixed 

deposit. Interest earned shall be added to the Contingency Reserve. 

Provided also that the Transmission Licensee shall maintain separate account for such 

reserve. 

67.9.2 The Contingency Reserve shall not be drawn upon during the term of the licence 

except to meet such charges as may be approved by the Commission as being the expenses 

arising out of accidents, natural calamities or circumstances beyond the control of the 

Licensee; 

Provided that such drawal from Contingency Reserve shall be computed after making due 

adjustments for any other compensation that may have been received by the Licensee as 

part of an insurance cover and Government Grant, if any.” 

4.15.2 The Hon’ble Commission vide its Tariff Order dated 29.03.2023 has approved Rs. 

2.89 crores. The fund created under contingency reserves for FY 2023-24 shall 

be utilized for repairing of damaged and rusted tower legs, stubs, emergency 

replacement of damaged conductor, temporary protection of tower, replacement 

of insulator due to fault, re-tensioning of conductors, construction of new towers 

in place of river eroded towers etc., in several transmission lines due to recent 

floods in the State. However, the contingency reserve based on estimated GFA for 

FY 2023-24 arrived at Rs. 3.02 crore. 

Page 67 of 284



 

True Up for FY 2022-23, APR for FY 2023-24 and ARR for FY 2024-25 

 
Main Petition 

 

  

AEGCL 64 

  

Table 55: Contribution towards Contingency Reserves for FY 2023-24 
   (Rs. Crore) 

S. No. Particulars 
As per T.O dated 

29.03.2023 
AEGCL 

Submission 
1 Opening GFA for Previous year 2893.06    3,022.08 

2 % Factor  0.10% 0.10% 

3 Contingency Reserves (1*2) 2.89  3.02 

4.15.3 AEGCL hereby requests the Hon’ble Commission to approve the same as shown 

in the above table for FY 2023-24. 

4.16 Annual Performance Review for FY 2023-24 

4.16.1 Based on the Annual Performance Review, AEGCL prays before the Hon’ble 

Commission to allow ARR as proposed below.  

Table 56: Annual Performance Review for FY 2023-24 
     (Rs. Crs.) 

S.N Particulars 
Approved in 

T.O. dtd 
29.03.2023 

FY 2023-
24 H1 

FY 2023-
24 H2 

AEGCL 
Estimation 

1 O&M Expenses              239.07     119.98        119.98          239.97  

a Employee Cost             196.94         98.68           98.68          197.36  

b R&M Expenses                30.60        15.55            15.55             31.10  

c A&G Expenses                11.53            5.76              5.76              11.51  

2 Depreciation              117.69         47.79           47.79             95.58  

3 Interest & Finance Charges                9.97           2.00             2.00              3.99  
4 Interest on Working Capital                17.73           9.64             9.64             19.29  
5 BST for Pension Trust Fund              230.34      125.77         125.77          251.55  
6 Return on Equity              111.65         60.66          60.66          121.32  

7 
Contribution towards 
Contingency Reserve  

                     
2.89  

                         
1.51  

                         
1.51  

                         
3.02  

8 Less: Non-Tariff Income               58.45        47.10           20.13             67.23  

9 
Aggregate Revenue 
Requirement 670.89 320.26 347.23 667.49 

10 Less: Revenue from 
STOA/MTOA Charges 

                   
12.00  

                         
1.03  

                         
3.55  

                         
4.58  

11 Net Aggregate Revenue 
Requirement 

                 
658.89  

                     
319.23  

                     
343.68  

                     
662.91  

12 Revenue Gap for FY 2023-24                   4.03  
 

4.16.2 In view of the above, AEGCL requests the Hon’ble Commission to approve the 

above Net Aggregate Revenue Requirement amounting to Rs. 662.91 Crore for FY 

2023-24.  
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5 AGGREGATE REVENUE REQUIREMENT FOR FY 2024-25 

5.1 Preamble 

5.1.1 This section deals with the determination of Aggregate Revenue Requirement of 

AEGCL for FY 2024-25 based on the projections made for the current year and 

the actuals of previous years.  

5.1.2 This Chapter deals with the determination of ARR and transmission tariff for FY 

2024-25 in accordance with the provisions of MYT Regulations, 2021. 

5.2 Aggregate Revenue Requirement for FY 2024-25 

5.2.1 Aggregate Revenue Requirement shall comprise of following components:  

▪ Operation and Maintenance Expenses 

▪ Depreciation 

▪ Interest and Finance Charges 

▪ Interest on Working Capital 

▪ Return on Equity 

▪ Bulk Supply Tariff (BST) 

▪ Contribution towards Contingency Reserves 

Less 

▪ Non-Tariff Income 

5.3 Principles of ARR for FY 2024-25 

5.3.1 It is essential that all the costs are allowed so as to ensure the financial viability 

of AEGCL. It requires generating adequate amount of profit from its operations 

so that it can maintain the system properly and simultaneously it can take up 

R&M projects to upgrade its transmission system. Also needs to incur capital 

expenditure to cater to the future needs of the system.  

5.3.2 In the circumstances and conditions mentioned above, the Aggregate Revenue 

Requirement as proposed by AEGCL in this petition may be allowed. 

5.4 Transmission Losses for FY 2024-25 

5.4.1 As stated in regulation 72 of AERC (Terms and Conditions for determination of 

Multi Year Tariff) Regulations, 2021,  

“The energy losses in the transmission system of the Transmission Licensee, as 

determined by the State Load Despatch Centre and approved by the Commission, 
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shall be borne by the Transmission System Users pro-rata to their usage of the 

intra-State transmission system: 

Provided that the Commission may stipulate a trajectory for reduction of 

transmission losses in accordance with Regulation 7, as a part of Multi Year Tariff 

framework applicable to the Transmission Licensee.  

AEGCL submits that many new 220kV substations are coming up under AIIB 

scheme which are expected to be charged only after FY 2024-25. Secondly, at 

APDCL end also majority of these voltage improvements at downstream levels 

are expected to be implemented by the end of FY 2024-25.  

However, AEGCL will make all efforts towards improving the loss reduction 

process. In view of the above, the projected transmission losses for FY 2024-25 is 

as shown below: 

Table 57: Transmission Losses for the FY 2024-25 

S.No Particulars 
As per T.O. dated 

21.03.2022 
AEGCL 

Submission 
1 Energy Injected (MU) 

3.23% 

13109.14 
2 Energy Sent Out to APDCL (MU) 12640.31 
3 Energy Sent Out to OA Consumers (MU) 38.71 
4 Total Energy Sent Out    12679.02  
4 Transmission Loss (MU) 430.12 
5 Transmission Loss (%) 3.23% 3.28% 

 

5.5 Transmission Availability for FY 2024-25 

5.5.1 The projected Transmission availability factor is considered at 99.50% for the FY 

2024-25 

Table 58: Transmission Availability Factor for the FY 2024-25 

S.No Particulars AEGCL Submission 

1 Transmission Availability Factor 99.50% 

 

5.6 Fixed Cost for FY 2024-25 

5.6.1 Based on the Capital Cost and the consequent Capitalized Expenditure, Equity 

Component and Normative Debt, the fixed cost of AEGCL for FY 2024-25 have 

been determined in accordance with the MYT Regulations, 2021 outlined 

thereof. The fixed cost for AEGCL has been determined under the following 

major heads: 
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▪ Operation and Maintenance Expenses 

▪ Depreciation 

▪ Interest and Finance Charges 

▪ Interest on Working Capital 

▪ Return on Equity 

▪ Bulk Supply Tariff (BST) 

▪ Contribution towards Contingency Reserves 

Less 

▪ Non-Tariff Income 

5.7 Operation and Maintenance Expenses for 2024-25 

5.7.1 The Operation & Maintenance (O&M) expenses consists of Repair and 

Maintenance expenses, Employee expenses and Administration & General 

expenses. AEGCL highlights that the O&M charges of SLDC has been segregated 

and is filed separately under SLDC Tariff Petition for FY 2024-25. Regulation 67.5 

& 67.8 of AERC (Terms and Conditions for determination of Multi Year Tariff) 

Regulations, 2021 provides for computation of O&M norms. The relevant 

provisions are reproduced below: 

“67.6Existing Transmission Licensee 

… 

67.6.3 The O&M expenses for the nth year and also for the year immediately 

preceding the ControlPeriod shall be approved based on the formula given below:- 

O&Mn = R&Mn + EMPn + A&Gn 

Where – 

O&Mn – Operation and Maintenance expense for the nth year; 

EMPn – Employee Costs for the nth year; 

R&Mn – Repair and Maintenance Costs for the nth year; 

A&Gn – Administrative and General Costs for the nth year; 

67.6.4 The above components shall be computed in the manner specified below: 

EMPn = (EMPn-1) x (1+Gn) x (CPIinflation) 

R&Mn = K x (GFA n-1) x (WPIinflation) and 

A&Gn = (A&Gn-1) x (WPIinflation) + Provision 

Where – 

▪ EMPn-1 – Employee Costs for the (n-1)th year; 

▪ A&G n-1 – Administrative and General Costs for the (n-1)th year; 

▪ Provision: Cost for initiatives or other one-time expenses as proposed by 

the Distribution Licensee and validated by the Commission. 
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▪ ‘K’ is a constant specified by the Commission in %. Value of K for each year 

of the control period shall be determined by the Commission in the MYT 

Tariff order based on licensee’s filing, benchmarking of repair and 

maintenance expenses, approved repair and maintenance expenses vis-a-

vis GFA approved by the Commission in past and any other factor 

considered appropriate by the Commission; 

▪ CPIinflation – is the average increase in the Consumer Price Index (CPI) for 

immediately preceding three years; 

▪ WPIinflation – is the average increase in the Wholesale Price Index (CPI) 

for immediately preceding three years; 

▪ GFAn-1 --- Gross Fixed Asset of the transmission licensee for the n-1th year; 

▪ Gn is a growth factor for the nth year. Value of Gn shall be determined by 

the Commission in the MYT tariff order for meeting the additional 

manpower requirement based on licensee’s filings, benchmarking, and any 

other factor that the Commission feels appropriate. 

67.8 O&M Sharing between two Transmission Licensees 

67.8.1 For such Transmission Licensees whose bays are installed in the premises 

of and maintained by another Transmission Licensee, the O&M expense for such 

assets shall be allowed in accordance with the norms applicable for the 

Transmission Licensee who performs the O&M of such assets: 

Provided that the Transmission Licensees shall mutually agree on sharing of 

such allowed O&M expenses: 

Provided further that Transmission Licensees shall project addition of such 

assets over the Control Period separately in their Capital Investment Plan to be 

submitted in accordance with Regulation 6.” 

5.7.2 During FY 2024-25, based on methodology specified by the MYT Regulations, 

2021, the Normative O&M expenses of AEGCL works out to be Rs. 261.83 Crores 

which is inclusive of Employee cost, Repair & Maintenance charges and 

Administration & General Expenses. The following table provides the summary 

of Normative O&M Expenses for FY 2024-25 excluding the O&M expenses of 

SLDC. 

Table 59: Operation and Maintenance Expenses for FY 2024-25 

   (Rs.Crs.) 

S.N. Particulars 
Approved in T.O. dtd 

21.03.2022 
AEGCL 

Submission 
1 O&M Expenses                      249.87  261.83 
a Employee Cost                      209.48  210.10 
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b R&M Expenses                        29.73  39.31 
c A&G Expenses                        10.66  12.42 

 

5.7.3 WPI Inflation computation for FY 2024-25 

5.7.3.1 The average increase in the Wholesale Price Index (WPI) for the immediately 

preceding three years gives the WPI Inflation for the Base year. Since the WPI 

data is currently available till FY 2022-23, the Inflation factor could be computed 

till FY 2023-24. Hence the resulting WPI Inflation is considered for 

computational purpose of FY 2024-25 as follows: 

Table 60 : WPI Inflation for FY 2024-25 

Fiscal WPI Index YOY Change % 
FY 2022-23 152.53 9.41% 
FY 2021-22 139.41 13.00% 
FY 2020-21 123.37 1.29% 
Average WPI Inflation (Last 3 Years) 7.90% 

 

5.7.4 CPI Inflation computation for FY 2024-25 

5.7.4.1 The average increase in the Consumer Price Index (CPI) for the immediately 

preceding three years gives the CPI Inflation for base year. Since the CPI data is 

currently available till FY 2022-23, the Inflation factor could be computed till FY 

2023-24. Hence, the resulting CPI Inflation is considered for computational 

purpose of FY 2024-25 as follows:  

Table 61: CPI Inflation for FY 2024-25 

Fiscal CPI Index YOY Change % 
FY 2022-23 377.62 6.06% 
FY 2021-22 356.06 5.13% 
FY 2020-21 338.69 5.02% 
Average CPI Inflation (Last 3 Years) 5.40% 

 

5.7.5 Normative Calculation of R&M expense for FY 2024-25 

5.7.5.1 Repair & maintenance expenses are directly related to number of the substations 

and lines, age of the assets, its wear and tear during the period. R&M expenses 

are generally incurred in order to ensure the maintenance of the transmission 

lines/systems.   
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5.7.5.2 Regulation 67.6.4 of AERC (MYT Regulations), 2021 provides the manner in 

which components of O&M expenses shall be computed. The methodology for 

R&M expense is as follows: 

R&Mn = K x (GFA n-1) x (WPIinflation) 

 

Table 62: Repair and Maintenance Expenses for 2024-25 
                                                                                                                 (Rs. Crore) 

S.No Particulars 
As per T.O. 

dated 
21.03.2022 

AEGCL 
Submission 

1 Opening GFA for previous year 2908.47  3,022.08  
2 Closing GFA for previous year 3158.47  4,031.70  
3 Average GFA for previous year 3033.47  3,526.89  
4 K Factor 0.75% 0.75% 
5 WPI Inflation 4.13% 7.90% 

6 Normative R&M Expense 23.81        28.54 

7 
Provision for Colony Maintenance of 
AEGCL 

 5.93           9.76  

 
8 Provision for Cyber Security -          1.01 

9 Total R&M Expenses        29.73        39.31 

 

5.7.5.3 The closing GFA for FY 2023-24 has been considered as opening GFA for FY 

2024-25. The “K” factor of AEGCL has been considered as 0.75% as approved by 

the Hon’ble Commission in the Tariff Order dated 21.03.2022.  

 

5.7.6 Provision for Colony Maintenance of AEGCL 

5.7.6.1 AEGCL has prayed before the Hon’ble Commission to allot a separate coffer for 

improvement of its existing colonies associated with major Grid Substation. 

Needless to reiterate that the most of the residential buildings, interior roads, 

drains, security walls etc. needed major maintenance/ reconstruction. The 

Hon’ble commission vide tariff order dated 21.03.2023 approved Rs. 17.79 Cr to 

utilize specifically for colony maintenance through a duration of three financial 

years i.e., FY2022-23, 2023-24 and 2024-25. Accordingly, the yearly allowable 

amount of Rs.5.93 Cr was meant to be utilized in FY 2022-23. AEGCL made all 

attempts to judiciously expend the amount by choking out plans for works as 

here under 

i) Repair of resident quarters 
ii) Repair of colony roads 
iii) Repair of Community Halls 
iv) Beautification of colony landscape 

v) Improvement of children playground etc. 
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5.7.6.2 Hon’ble Commission will appreciate the fact that the preparation of detailed 

plan, estimate & scrutiny of the same entails a considerable period of time. 

Further no major civil works could be undertaken during the rainy season and 

majority of the work could be started after Oct/Nov. However, even after 

completion of the works a sizable amount could not be booked under 

expenditure account before 31st March’23, although booking of entire amount 

through administrative approval was almost completed under colony 

maintenance.  

5.7.6.3 The amount against the work carried out in FY 2022-23 had to be booked against 

the FY2023-24. AEGCL wants to complete the majority of the colony 

maintenance work by the end of the FY 2024-25. It is worth mentioning that a 

many of the GSS colonies including Sarusajai, Kahilipara, Dhaligaon, Depota, 

Samaguri, Mariani, Tinsukia Dullavcherra, Pailapool etc., there remains a lot of 

maintenance works coming months to repair & give a face lift to the colonies. 

Most respectfully AEGCL also submits that there has been surge of applicants 

(employees) requesting residential quarters in AEGCL colony. This is due to 

ongoing repair and renovation exercise being carried out in AEGCL colonies. 

Under this circumstance, it is extremely important that AEGCL shall be allowed 

the entire amount of Rs.17.79 Cr till FY2024-25. AEGCL hereby commits to fully 

utilize the balance amount with this stipulated period of MYT. 

 

5.7.7 Provision for Cyber Security  

5.7.7.1 End Point Security (EPS) 

i. EPS stands for Endpoint Protection Security which refers to the security 
measures implemented to protect individual devices (endpoints) such as 
computers, laptops, and smartphones from security threats.  

ii. EPS solutions help prevent a wide range of security threats, including 
malware, ransomware, and phishing attacks, from compromising 
individual devices. 

iii. EPS safeguards sensitive data on endpoints, preventing unauthorized 
access or data breaches. 

iv. Many EPS solutions offer centralized management, allowing 
administrators to monitor and control security settings on all endpoints 
from a central console. 

v. EPS provides visibility into endpoint security status and generates 
reports on security events, aiding in proactive threat management and 
compliance. 
 

5.7.7.2 Training and development regarding to Cyber Security 
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i. Training on cybersecurity awareness is critically important for 
individuals and organizations due to the increasing prevalence and 
sophistication of cyber threats. 

ii. A significant number of cybersecurity incidents result from human error, 
such as clicking on phishing links or downloading malicious attachments. 
Training helps individuals recognize potential threats and adopt secure 
practices, reducing the risk of falling victim to cyber-attacks. 

iii. Training instills a sense of responsibility for handling sensitive 
information securely. Employees learn the importance of safeguarding 
confidential data and understand the potential consequences of data 
breaches, identity theft, or corporate espionage. 

iv. Cybersecurity awareness training helps organizations and individuals 
stay compliant with these regulations, avoiding legal consequences and 
financial penalties. 

v. Establishing a culture of cybersecurity within an organization is essential. 
Training fosters a collective understanding of security best practices and 
creates an environment where everyone plays a role in protecting the 
organization's digital assets. 

vi. Cybersecurity awareness training is crucial for building a resilient and 
security-conscious workforce, reducing the risk of cyber threats, and 
fostering a culture of proactive cybersecurity within organizations. 
 

5.7.7.3 NCSAM (National Cyber Security Awareness Month) 

i. Every year the month of October is observed as National Cyber Security 
Awareness Month. 

ii. Cybersecurity awareness initiatives aim to educate individuals, 
businesses, and organizations about the importance of cybersecurity best 
practices, online safety, and the potential risks associated with cyber 
threats. 

iii. Various Campaigns are organized by AEGCL during this month. These 
campaigns often include activities such as workshops, webinars, training 
sessions, and dissemination of informational materials etc. 

5.7.7.4 AEGCL Webmail licenses 

i. AEGCL uses its own official webmail services under the domain aegcl.co.in 
which needs to be subscribed annually. 

ii. Using an official webmail service provided by a trusted and reputable 
organization offers several important benefits, particularly in terms of 
security, reliability, and professionalism. 

iii. Official webmail services often use encryption protocols to secure the 
transmission of emails. This helps protect sensitive information from 
being intercepted or accessed by unauthorized parties. 
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iv. Using an official webmail service with a company's domain name (e.g. 
123@aegcl.co.in) enhances professionalism and reinforces the 
organization's brand identity. 
 

5.7.7.5 Cyber Security Related Tools etc. 

i. Various Cyber Security related tools are required in-order to always 
remain ahead and updated in this cyber risk prone world. 

ii. Availability of such tools keeps AEGCL ahead on the game and also makes 
AEGCL cyber resilience and more immune to cyber threats. 

iii. Cybersecurity-related tools play a crucial role in safeguarding digital 
systems, networks, and data from a wide range of cyber threats. 

iv. Such tools are essential for identifying vulnerabilities, detecting malicious 
activities, and implementing protective measures in the Company. 
 

5.7.7.6 Software Procurement 

i. Software procurement is a critical aspect of IT management for 
organizations, and its importance stems from several key factors like: 
a) Meeting business needs of the organization. 
b) Proper software procurement ensures that the acquired software 

aligns with the Organization’s business objective and requirement. 
c) Right software streamlines business processes, enhances efficiency 

and boost productivity. 
d) Software procurement involves obtaining licenses for the software use 

thus ensuring compliance with the licensing agreements. 

5.7.7.7 AEGCL submits that the required expenditure is mentioned below. 

               Table 63 : Provision for Cyber Security for FY 2024-25 

Sl 
No 

Description Quantity Unit 
Rate in 

Rs.  
Amount in 
Rs. Lakhs 

1 End Point Security 1000 Nos 1,400 14,00,000 
2 Training And Development        20,00,000 
3 NCSAM (National Cyber Security 

Awareness Month) 
1   2,00,000 2,00,000 

4 AEGCL Webmail Licenses        15,00,000 

5 Cyber Security Related Tools etc.        40,00,000  
6 Software Procurement        10,00,000  

Total  1,01,00,000  

 

5.7.7.8 Therefore, in view of the above, AEGCL requests the Hon’ble Commission to 

approve an amount of Rs. 39.31 crores for Repair and Maintenance expenses 

including the provision for colony maintenance of AEGCL and Cyber Security for 

FY 2024-25 without any disallowance. 
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5.7.8 Normative Calculation of Employee expense for FY 2024-25 

5.7.8.1 Regulation 67.6.4 of AERC (MYT Regulations), 2021 provides the manner in 

which components of O&M expenses shall be computed. The methodology for 

Employee expense is as follows: 

EMPn = (EMPn-1) x (1+Gn) x (CPIinflation) 

Table 64 : Employee Expenses for FY 2024-25 
(Rs. Cr.) 

S.No Particulars 
As per T.O. 

dated 
21.03.2022 

AEGCL 
Submission 

1 Base Employee Cost (n-1) 196.54         197.36 
2 CPI Inflation 5.53% 5.40% 
3 Gn (Growth Factor for nth Year) 1.00% 1.00% 
4 Normative Employee Cost  209.48 210.10 

 

5.7.8.2 The base employee cost for FY 2024-25 has been computed considering the 

normative employee cost of FY 2023-24.  

5.7.8.3 The detail of the manpower of AEGCL excluding SLDC for FY 2024-25 is provided 

in the table below: 

Table 65: Projected Manpower details of FY 2024-25 

S.N. Particulars Projection 
(A) Projected Manpower as on 1st April (Opening Balance) 1512 
(B) Retirement during the Financial Year 54 
(C) Projected Recruitment during the Financial Year 398 
(D) Projected Manpower as on 31st March (Closing balance) 1856  

 

5.7.8.4 AEGCL humbly requests the Hon’ble Commission to approve the proposed 

employee expenses for FY 2024-25 without any disallowance. 

5.7.9 Normative Calculation of Administrative and General Expenses for FY 

2024-25 

5.7.9.1 Regulation 67.6.4 of AERC (MYT Regulations), 2021 provides the manner in 

which components of O&M expenses shall be computed. The methodology for 

Administrative and General Expenses is as follows: 

A&Gn = (A&Gn-1) x (WPIinflation) + Provision 
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Table 66 : Administrative & General Expenses for FY 2024-25 
  (Rs. Crore) 

S.No Particulars 
As per T.O. 

dated 
21.03.2022 

AEGCL Submission 

1 A&G Expense for Previous year 10.23             11.51 
2 WPI Inflation 4.13% 7.90% 
3 Normative A&G Expense for the year 10.66 12.42 

 

5.7.9.2 Therefore, AEGCL requests the Hon’ble Commission to approve the A&G 

expenses for the FY 2024-25 amounting to Rs. 12.42 crore without any 

disallowance. 

5.7.10 In view of the above, AEGCL requests the Hon’ble Commission to approve the 

normative O&M Expenses of Rs. 261.83 crore as shown in the above table. 

5.8 Capital Expenditure and Capitalization for FY 2024-25 

5.8.1 As per Regulation 6 of AERC (Terms and Conditions for determination of Multi 

Year Tariff) Regulations, 2021, AEGCL shall submit a Capital Investment Plan for 

FY 2024-25. 

5.8.2 The scheme-wise capital expenditure along with funding pattern of AEGCL for FY 

2024-25 and the details of capital expenditure and expenses capitalized are 

shown in Annexure-V titled “Revised Capital Investment Plan”. 

5.9 Funding of Capitalization for FY 2024-25 

5.9.1 The funding of the above-mentioned capitalization is envisaged through various   

sources categorized under Equity, Grant, and Loan. The expenditure projected 

for FY 2024-25 is proposed to be funded through loan and grant as per funding 

patterns of the schemes. The detailed breakup of funding of capitalization during 

FY 2024-25 is proposed for the approval of the Hon’ble Commission as 

mentioned in the below table. 

Table 67: Funding of Capitalisation for FY 2024-25 
   (Rs. Crore) 

S.No Particulars As per T.O. dated 21.03.2022 AEGCL Submission 
1 Grant 261.22               245.04  
2 Equity 1.35  0.00 
3 Debt 37.43  28.11 
4 Total Capitalisation 300.00               273.15  
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5.10 Gross Fixed Assets for FY 2024-25 

5.10.1 The opening GFA and addition of GFA for FY 2024-25 as submitted by AEGCL is 

shown in the below table  

Table 68: Gross Fixed Assets for FY 2024-25 
  (Rs Crores) 

SN Particulars 

Balance at 
the 

beginning 
of the year 

Additions 
during 

the year 

Retirement 
of assets 

during the 
year 

Balance 
at the 
end of 

the year 
1 Land owned under full 

ownership 
            47.60                   -              47.60  

2 Building             71.50                   -               71.50  

3 Hydraulic               2.64                   -                2.64  

4 Other Civil Works          174.06           20.71          194.77  

5 Plant & Machinery       1,690.72       107.06      1,797.78  

6 Lines & Cable Network       2,023.23       141.27      2,164.49  

7 Vehicles               4.95                   -                4.95  

8 Furniture & Fixtures               9.74           0.80            10.54  

9 Office Equipment              7.26            3.31            10.57  
  Total      4,031.70      273.15   -     4,304.85   

 
5.10.2 In view of the above, AEGCL requests the Hon’ble Commission to approve the 

capitalization as shown in the above table for FY 2024-25.  

5.11 Depreciation for FY 2024-25 

5.11.1 Depreciation has been computed as per AERC (terms & conditions for 

determination of Multi Year Tariff) Regulations, 2021 for FY 2024-25. 

Depreciation has been calculated taking into consideration the opening balance 

of assets in the beginning of the year and the provisional capitalization. The 

addition of assets for FY 2024-25 have been projected considering capital 

investment plan for FY 2024-25. The estimated closing Gross Block of Fixed 

Assets for the FY 2023-24 has been considered as the opening balance of assets 

in the beginning of the FY 2024-25.  

5.11.2 As mentioned in para 3.10.1, AEGCL has converted Govt. Loan amounting to Rs. 

638.41 Crore and Govt. Grant of Rs. 1955.05 Crore, as on 31.03.2021 into equity 

during FY 2022-23. Also, as mentioned in para 4.7.2, AEGCL has converted Govt. 

Loan amounting to Rs. 11.52 Crore and Govt. Grant of Rs. 134.40 Crore, as on 

31.03.2023 into equity during FY 2023-24. 

5.11.3 In accordance with Regulation 33 [(33.2) & (33.4)] of AERC (terms & conditions 

for determination of Multi Year Tariff) Regulations, 2021, depreciation is 
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calculated as per SLM considering depreciation on opening Fixed Asset to the 

extent of 90% of the Asset Value. Depreciation on the Assets added during the 

FYs has been calculated for 180 days assuming the date of commission of the 

Assets as the middle of the Financial Year. Depreciation has been provided at the 

rates specified in the AERC’s Depreciation Rate Schedule. The depreciation of 

assets created through Grant has been reduced before arriving at net 

depreciation. 

5.11.4 In addition, AEGCL highlights that the GFA of SLDC has been segregated from 

AEGCL’s GFA. For FY 2024-25, after considering the Government Grants of Rs. 

1951.14 crores and Loans of Rs. 638.41 crores converted to equity by GoA for 

AEGCL, along with the conversion of Government Grant of Rs. 134.40 Crores and 

loan of Rs. 11.52 Crores into equity as mentioned in Annexure-X, the 

depreciation for FY 2024-25 is calculated in the table below: 

Table 69: Depreciation for FY 2024-25 
     (Rs.Crs.) 

S.N. Particulars 
Depreciation 

Rate 

Accumulated 
depreciation -
beginning of 

the year 

Additions 
during 

the year 

Accumulated 

depreciation at 

the end of the 

year 

1 
Land owned under full 
ownership 

0.00%                         -                                     -    

2 Land under lease 3.34%                   0.07                  -                               0.07  
3 Building 3.34%                 30.58           2.39                           32.97  
4 Hydraulic 5.28%                 2.57                  -                               2.57  
5 Other Civil Works 3.34%                37.46           6.16                           43.62  
6 Plant & Machinery 5.28%              779.46        92.10                        871.55  
7 Lines & Cable Network 5.28%              965.94      110.56                     1,076.49  
8 Vehicles 9.50%                   4.66                 -                               4.66  
9 Furniture & Fixtures 6.33%                   5.35           0.64                             6.00  

10 
Office Equipment 6.33%                                

5.03  
                               

0.56  
                               

5.60  
11 Any other assets 5.28%  -     -    - 

 Total           1,831.12     212.41                   2,043.52  
(a) Gross Fixed Assets (a)       4,031.70  
(b) Gross Fixed Assets excluding Land (b)       3,984.10  
(c) Conversion of Grant to Equity       2,089.45  
(d)  Opening CWIP (c)          323.19  
(e) Grant (CWIP + Assets) (d)       1,739.15  
(f) Grant towards GFA (e=d*b/(b+c))   1,608.65  

12 Gross Depreciation during the year 212.41 
13 Less: Dep towards assets through Grant/Consumer contribution          85.76  

14 
Depreciation for the year (excluding assets funded through 
Grant)        126.64  
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5.11.5 AEGCL requests the Hon’ble Commission to approve the depreciation as 

requested in the table above for FY 2024-25. 

5.12 Normative Interest and Finance Charges for FY 2024-25 

5.12.1 The Interest & Finance charges for FY 2024-25 have been calculated based on 

the net normative closing loan for FY 2023-24 as net normative opening loan for 

FY 2024-25 is shown below: 

Table 70 : Normative Interest & Finance Charges for FY 2024-25 
   (Rs.Crs.) 

S.N Particulars 
As per T.O. dated 

21.03.2022 

AEGCL 
Submission 

1 Net Normative Opening Loan 217.22                 6.62  
2 Addition of normative loan during the year 37.43              28.11  
3 Normative Repayment during the year 39.47            126.64  
4 Net Normative Closing Loan 215.18                         -    
5 Interest Rate 10.08%  10.08% 
6 Interest Expenses on Loan 21.78                0.33  
7 Finance Charges 0.01  0.01 
8 Total Interest and Finance Charges 21.79                0.34  

 

5.12.2 AEGCL requests the Hon’ble Commission to approve the normative Interest and 

Finance Charges of Rs. 0.34 crore as shown in the above table.  

5.13 Interest on Working Capital for FY 2024-25 

The interest on working capital has been calculated based on the normative 

working formula in accordance with Regulation 37.2 of AERC, MYT Regulations, 

2021. The rate of interest provided on the working capital is the normative 

interest rate of three hundred (300) basis points above the average State Bank of 

India MCLR (one-year tenor) prevalent during last available six months for the 

determination of tariff. In line with norms, interest on working capital is 

calculated as shown below: 

Table 71: Interest on working capital for FY 2024-25 
  (Rs. Crore) 

S.N. Particulars Units 
As per T.O. dated 

21.03.2022 
AEGCL 

Submission 

1 O&M expenses for 1 month Rs. Crs. 20.82                    21.82  

2 Maintenance spares @ 15% of O&M Rs. Crs. 37.48                     39.27  

3 Receivables for two months Rs. Crs. 90.03                  120.61  

4 Total Working Capital Rs. Crs. 148.33  181.71 

5 Rate of Interest % 10.00%  11.53% 
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S.N. Particulars Units 
As per T.O. dated 

21.03.2022 
AEGCL 

Submission 

6 Interest on Working Capital Rs. Crs. 14.83                    20.96  

 

5.14 Computation of rate of Interest on Working Capital 

5.14.1 The interest rate of three hundred (300) basis points above the average State 

Bank of India MCLR (One Year Tenor) prevalent during the last available six 

months arrived at 11.53%. 

Table 72: MCLR rate for FY 2023-24 (last 6 months) 

Effective Date Interest Rate (%) (1Yr) 
15-10-2023  8.55 

15-09-2023  8.55 

15-08-2023  8.55 

15-07-2023  8.55 

15-06-2023  8.50 

15-05-2023  8.50 
Average 8.53% 

 

5.14.2 AEGCL requests the Hon’ble Commission to approve the Interest on working 

capital of Rs. 20.96 crore as shown in the above table.  

5.15 Return on Equity for FY 2024-25 

5.15.1 AEGCL submits the ROE has been computed based on the details mentioned in 

section 4.12. 

5.15.2 As specified in Regulation 34 of AERC (terms & conditions for determination of 

Multi Year Tariff) Regulations, 2021, Base Return on Equity is calculated at 

13.50%. 

Table 73: Return on Equity for FY 2024-25 

   (Rs. Crore) 

S.N. Particulars 
As per T.O. dated 

21.03.2022 
AEGCL 

Submission 
1 Equity (Opening Balance) 105.00            920.57 

2 Net additions during the year 1.35   -    
3 Equity (Closing Balance) 106.35             920.57  
4 Average Equity 105.67             920.57  
5 Rate of Return on Equity 13.50%  13.50% 
6 Return on Equity 14.27             124.28  
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5.15.3 In view of the above, AEGCL requests the Hon’ble Commission to approve the 

Return on Equity of Rs. 124.28 crore for FY 2024-25. 

5.16 Taxes for FY 2024-25 

5.16.1 As per AERC (terms & conditions for determination of Multi Year Tariff) 

Regulations, 2021, Income Tax shall be reimbursed to the transmission licenses 

as per actual income tax paid, based on the documentary evidence submitted at 

the time of truing up of each year.    

5.17 Bulk Supply Tariff (BST) – Terminal Benefits for FY 2024-25 

5.17.1 Government of Assam (GoA) vide its Notification dated 4th February 2005 had 

entrusted the existing Pension Trust to be common trust for all the new 

companies till further orders of ASEB/GoA. Terminal benefits are defined as 

follows in Clause 1.5 of the aforementioned notification: 

"ASEB's employee related liabilities, including payment of pension, gratuity, leave 

encashment and general provident fund and any other retirement benefits and 

other applicable benefits including the right to have the appropriate revisions in 

the above benefits consistent with the practice that were prevalent with the 

Board". 

5.17.2 In view of the above, AEGCL humbly submits the special charges on account of 

Bulk Supply tariff has been computed considering the Bulk Supply Tariff at 20 

paise per unit of energy sent out to APDCL as approved by the Hon’ble 

Commission vide order dated 21.03.2022. Accordingly, the Special Charges for 

FY 2024-25 are tabulated below:  

 

Table 74: BST for FY 2024-25 
  (Rs. Crore) 

S.N. Particulars 
As per T.O. dated 

21.03.2022 
FY  2024-25 

1 Energy Sent Out to APDCL (MUs) 
250.79  

12640.31 
2 BST Charge (Rs. /kWh) 0.20 
3 Total (3=1*2/10) 250.79             252.81 

 

5.17.3 AEGCL requests the Hon’ble Commission to consider the above charges 

amounting to Rs. 252.81 crore and approve it without any disallowance. 

5.18 Non-Tariff Income for FY 2024-25 

5.18.1 As per the AERC (terms & conditions for determination of Multi Year Tariff) 

Regulations, 2021, the amount of non-tariff income shall be deducted from the 
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aggregate revenue requirement in determining annual transmission charges of 

the Transmission Licensee. 

5.18.2 The projected income in this category comprises of income from investments 

with Banks, miscellaneous receipts, etc., Year-wise details of Non-tariff Income 

are shown in the table below: 

 

Table 75: Non-Tariff Income for 2024-25 
  (Rs. Crs.) 

S.N. Particulars 
As per T.O. dated 

21.03.2022 
FY 2024-25 

A 

Income from Investment, Fixed & Call 
Deposits 

 

 

Income from Investments                0.50  
Interest on fixed deposits              45.64  
Income on other investments (Dividend)  
Interest from Banks                1.82  
Interest on GPF               -2.23  
Sub Total            45.72  

B 

Other Non-Tariff Income  
Miscellaneous Receipts 

21.48 
Penalty for contractor/supplier for delay, 
etc. 
Rentals from staff quarters 
Sub-Total 

C Total 54.01 67.20 

 

5.18.3 Income from other investment (Dividend) - As per clause 68.1 of MYT 

Regulation 2021, “Provided that the interest/dividend earned from investments 

made out of Return on Equity corresponding to the regulated business of the 

Transmission Licensee shall not be included in Non-Tariff Income”. Therefore, 

the interest/dividend earned from NorthEast Transmission Company Limited 

(NETCL) by AEGCL has not been considered under NTI.  

5.18.4 Interest on GPF- The GPF liability is payable to an employee only after 

completion of 25 years of qualifying services. The accumulation of GPF is utilized 

as internal resources by AEGCL. As such GPF is shown as unsecured loan and the 

interest payable on GPF has been computed at 7.10% per annum for FY 2024-25 

amounting to Rs. 2.23 crore. Interest on GPF is deducted from NTI, Further 

AEGCL requests the Hon’ble Commission to approve the interest on GPF that has 

been deducted from NTI. 
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5.19 Income from Open Access Consumers for FY 2024-25 

5.19.1 The Income from open access consumers has been projected based on actual of 

FY 2022-23 and six months actual for FY 2023-24. AEGCL hereby submits the 

projected income from open access consumers is considered same as estimated 

in previous year. 

 

Table 76 : Income from Open Access for FY 2024-25 
  (Rs. Crore) 

S.N. Particulars 
As per T.O. dated 

21.03.2022 
FY  2024-25 

1 Income from OA Consumers 12.00 4.58 
2 Total 12.00 4.58 

 

5.20 Contribution to Contingency Reserves for FY 2024-25 

5.20.1 In accordance with Regulation 67.9 of AERC (terms & conditions for 

determination of Multi Year Tariff) Regulations, 2021 stipulate the computation 

of contingency reserves is as follows: 

“67.9.1The Transmission Licensee may make an appropriation to the Contingency Reserve 

of a sum not exceeding 0.1 per cent of the gross fixed assets approved by the Commission at 

the beginning of the year, for each year, which shall be allowed in the calculation of 

aggregate revenue requirement: 

Provided that where the amount of such Contingency Reserve exceeds one (1) per cent of 

the gross fixed assets, no such appropriation shall be allowed, which would have the effect 

of increasing the reserve beyond the said maximum: 

Provided further that the amount so appropriated may be invested in securities and fixed 

deposit. Interest earned shall be added to the Contingency Reserve. 

Provided also that the Transmission Licensee shall maintain separate account for such 

reserve. 

67.9.2 The Contingency Reserve shall not be drawn upon during the term of the licence 

except to meet such charges as may be approved by the Commission as being the expenses 

arising out of accidents, natural calamities or circumstances beyond the control of the 

Licensee; 

Provided that such drawal from Contingency Reserve shall be computed after making due 

adjustments for any other compensation that may have been received by the Licensee as 

part of an insurance cover and Government Grant, if any.” 

5.20.2 The Hon’ble Commission has approved Rs.  2.91 crore for FY 2024-25 through its 

order dated 21.03.2022. The creation of contingency reserves for FY 2024-25 to 

coffer for protection of flood demised assets/ construction of new towers in 
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place of collapsed towers. As it is well known that the river basins of Assam in 

general and north bank river basins in particular bear a pattern which is totally 

different from other basin rivers in the country. Hence, contribution towards 

contingency reserves for FY 2024-25 is determined and provided below: 

Table 77: Contribution towards Contingency Reserves for FY 2024-25 
   (Rs.Crs.) 

S. N. Particulars 
As per T.O. dated 

21.03.2022 
FY  2024-25 

1 Opening GFA for Previous year 2908.47  4,031.70  
2 % Factor  0.1% 0.10% 
3 Contingency Reserves (1*2) 2.91 4.03 

5.20.3 AEGCL hereby requests the Hon’ble Commission to approve the same as shown 

in the above table for FY 2024-25. 

5.21 Aggregate Revenue Requirement for FY 2024-25 

5.21.1 Based on the category-wise expense as described above, the net Aggregate 

Revenue Requirement for FY 2024-25 of AEGCL is shown in the table below. 

Table 78: Aggregate Revenue Requirement for FY 2024-25 
   (Rs.Crs.) 

S. 
No. 

Particulars 
As per T.O. dated 

21.03.2022 
FY  2024-25 

1 O&M Expenses                      249.87  261.83 
a Employee Cost                      209.48  210.10 
b R&M Expenses                        29.73  39.31 
c A&G Expenses                        10.66  12.42 
2 Depreciation                        39.47  126.64 
3 Interest & Finance Charges                        21.79  0.34 
4 Interest on Working Capital                        14.83  20.96 
5 BST for Pension Trust Fund                      250.79  252.81 
6 Return on Equity                        14.27  124.28 
7 Contribution to Contingency Reserve                          3.16                    4.03  

8 Less: Non-Tariff Income/ Other Income                        54.01                 67.20 

9 Aggregate Revenue Requirement 540.17 723.69 

10 
Less: Revenue from STOA/MTOA 
Charges                        12.00  

                         
4.58  

11 
Net Aggregate Revenue 
Requirement                      528.17  

                    
719.11  

12 Revenue Gap for FY 2024-25 -              190.94  

 

5.21.2 In view of the above, AEGCL requests the Hon’ble Commission to approve the Net 

Aggregate Revenue Requirement of Rs. 719.11 Cr. 
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5.22 Tariff Computation for FY 2024-25 

5.22.1 AEGCL summarizes the Truing up exercise for FY 2022-23, APR for FY 2023-24 

and the ARR for FY 2024-25 and submits the following Tariff computation. 

5.22.2 The Gap on account of True-up for FY 2022-23 along with the Carrying Cost has 

been computed below. The Interest rate has been considered equal to the 

average State Bank of India MCLR (1 Year tenure) prevalent last available six 

months plus 300 basis points as per AERC (MYT Regulations) 2021. 

Table 79 : Total Gap of FY 2022-23 along with Carrying Cost 

Particulars Rs. Crs. 
Revenue Gap for FY 2022-23                144.14 

Carrying cost on Revenue Gap for FY 2022-23                  32.76 

Total Gap / (Surplus)                176.90 

Table 80 : Carrying/ Holding Cost of FY 2022-23 

Particulars FY  2022-23 FY  2023-24 FY  2024-25 
Opening Balance 0               144.14                144.14  
Recovery/(Addition) during the 
year 

          (144.14)                        -                  144.14  

Closing Balance               144.14                144.14  -  
Rate of Interest (%) 10.86% 11.53% 11.53% 
Carrying Cost                    7.83                  16.62                     8.31  
Total Carrying Cost -  -                  32.76  

Table 81: Tariff Computation for FY 2024-25 

Particulars FY  2024-25 
Standalone Annual Revenue Requirement (Rs. Crs.)                719.11  
Previous Revenue Gap with carrying cost (Rs. Crs.)                176.90  
Net Annual Revenue Requirement (Rs. Crs.)                896.01  
Transmission Charge (Rs. / kWh)                    0.71 

Transmission Access Charge (Rs. /MW/Day)            9,247.42 

5.22.3 Considering 2654.60 MW based on 10% escalation over Peak load of 2413.27 

MW (16.09.2023) during FY 2023-24, transmission access charge has been 

computed. 

5.22.4 In view of the above, AEGCL requests the Hon’ble Commission to approve the 

Transmission Charge of Rs. 0.71/kWh and Transmission Access Charge of Rs. 

9247.42 per MW/day for FY 2024-25. 
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6 COMPLIANCE OF DIRECTIVES 

In reference to the directives issued by the Commission to AEGCL in the Tariff Order 

dated 29th March 2023, AEGCL submitted the replies to directives on quarterly basis to 

the Hon’ble Commission. AEGCL, hereby submit the replies to the Compliance of 

Directives to the Commission as under: 

Sl. 
No. 

Directives 
(As on 30th Nov’23) 

                      Reply of AEGCL 

1 

Directive 1: Funding 
from Government of 
Assam for employer’s 
contribution to 
Terminal Liabilities 
based on Actuarial 
valuation 

• AEGCL submits that the actuarial valuation conducted 
in FY 2019 was placed before the GoA to provide one-
time funding. As per the calculation, the past 
unfunded liability was Rs. 7086.24 Crs. (Excluding 
GPF) as on 31.01.2019. 

• However, GoA has not provided one-time funding and 
continued to provide budgetary support for yearly 
deficit. 

• The GoA has provided Budgetary Support of 
Rs.285.00 Cr. for the FY2022-23. The GoA has made 
Budgetary provision of Rs. 240.89 Cr. for the FY 2023-
24 in the General Budget-2023. 

 2 

Directive 2: Energy 
Audit and 
Implementation of 
SAMAST 

 • The revised Energy Audit report for FY 2022-23 
provided by SLDC is attached herewith as Annexure-
III 

• The status of the SAMAST is attached herewith as 
Annexure-XII 

• The status of the 33 kV metering project is attached as 
Annexure-XII 

3 
Directive 3: Capacity 
Building 

 •AEGCL has submitted the training calendar to the 
Hon’ble Commission for FY 2023-24 on 16.05.2023. 

4 
Directive 
4: Maintenance of 
Project-wise Database 

 •AEGCL submits that the AEGCL is maintaining the 
database on the individual projects under each 
scheme which is reviewed by the Hon’ble Commission 
on various meetings on regular basis. 

• Further, AEGCL has submitted the upgraded 
project/scheme wise database in the AEGCL true-up 
petition for FY 2022-23. 
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7 PRAYERS BEFORE THE HON’BLE COMMISSION 

 

1. The present petition provides, AEGCL’s approach for formulating the proposed tariff 

for ensuing year, the broad basis for projections used, summary of the proposals 

being made to the Hon’ble Commission.  

2. In order to align the thoughts and principles behind the Tariff Proposal and the ARR, 

AEGCL respectfully seeks an opportunity to present their case prior to the 

finalization of the Tariff Order. AEGCL believes that such an approach would go a 

long way towards providing a fair opportunity to all the stakeholders including 

AEGCL and may eliminate the need for a review or clarification.  

3. AEGCL may also be permitted to propose suitable changes to the ARR and the 

mechanism of meeting the revenue on further analysis, prior to the final approval by 

the Hon’ble Commission.  

4. In view of the above, the Petitioner respectfully prays that Hon’ble Commission may:  

• Accept the Annual Revenue Requirements and Tariff proposal for Transmission 

Business respectively in accordance with:  

• The guidelines outlined in previous AERC Orders passed in various matters 

relating to AEGCL; and  

• To admit the True-up for FY 2022-23, APR for FY 2023-24 and ARR for FY 2024-

25 as per the provisions of the AERC (MYT) Regulations 2021 and consider 

present Petition for further proceedings before Hon’ble Commission; 

• To approve the total recovery of Aggregate Revenue Requirement and revenue 

gap for FY 2024-25 along with other claims as proposed by AEGCL;  

• To grant any other relief as the Hon'ble Commission may consider appropriate;  

• To pass any other order as the Hon’ble Commission may deem fit and 

appropriate under the circumstances of the case and in the interest of justice;  

• To condone any error/omission and to give opportunity to rectify the same;  

• To permit AEGCL to make further submissions, addition and alteration to this 

Petition as may be necessary from time to time;  

 

Page 90 of 284



 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Regulatory Formats of AEGCL 

Page 91 of 284



S. No. Particulars Form No.

1 Aggregate Revenue Requirement Summary F1

2 Transmission Losses F2a

3 Transmission Availability F2b

4 Repair & Maintenance Expenses F18

5 Employee Expenses F19

7 Administration and General Expenses F20

8 Bulk Supply Tariff (BST) F29

9 Fixed Assets & Depreciation F21

10 Interest & Finance Charges F22

11 Working Capital Requirements F25

12 Statement of Equity F23

13 Details of Non-Tariff Income F26

14 Details of Expenses Capitalised F24

15 Consumer Contributions & Grants towards cost of capital Assets F21a

16 Statement of Work in progress F17

17 Calculation of normative loans F12b

18 Funding of Capitalisation F30

19 Sharing of Gain/(Losses) F31

20 Normative Loan Computation F32

21 Conversion of Grant & Loan into Equity F33

22 Contingency Reserve F34

23 SBI MCLR Rate F35
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Revenue gap with carrying cost of Truing up & APR

Particulars (A) True-up of FY 22-23 APR of FY 2023-24 ARR of FY 2024-25

Opening Balance 0 144.14                                        144.14 

Recovery/(Addition) during the year (144.14)                     -                                              144.14 

Closing Balance 144.14                      144.14                   

Rate of Interest (%) 10.86% 11.53% 11.53%

Carrying  Cost 7.83                           16.62                     8.31                         

Total Carrying  Cost 32.76                       
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Revenue surplus / gap with carrying cost of Truing up & APR

Particulars

 Rs. Crore 

(Previous TO) 

Revenue Gap for FY 2022-23 144.14                 

Carrying cost on Revenue Gap for FY 2022-23 32.76                   

Total Gap 176.90                 

Determination of Tariff for FY 2024-25

Particulars

 FY 2024-25 

(Previous TO) 

Stand-alone Annual Revenure Requirement 719.11                 

Previous Revenue Gap / (Surplus) with carrying cost 176.90                 

Net Annual Revenue Requirement 896.01                 

Transmission Charge (Rs./ kWh) 0.71                      

Peak Load (2413.27 MW)- 16.09.2023 2,654.60               

Transmission Access Charge (Rs/MW/Day) 9,247.42              
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Aggregate Revenue Requirement Summary
Form - F1

(Rs. Crore)

Approved in 

Order dtd 

21.03.22

AEGCL 

Submission

Approved in 

Order dtd 

29.03.23

FY 23-24

H1

FY 23-24

H2

Total AEGCL 

Submission

Approved in Order 

dtd 21.03.22
Projected

1 O&M Expenses                    223.11                      219.05                   239.07                       119.98                       119.98                       239.97                       249.87 261.83

a Employee Cost                    184.39                      185.39 196.94                  98.68                        98.68                        197.36                      209.48                      210.10

b R&M Expenses                      28.89                        22.99 30.60                    15.55                        15.55                        31.10                        29.73                        39.31

c A&G Expenses                        9.83                        10.67 11.53                    5.76                           5.76                           11.51                        10.66                        12.42

2 Depreciation                      35.96                      138.92 117.69                  47.79                        47.79                        95.58                        39.47                        126.64

3 Interest & Finance Charges                      24.32                        15.06 9.97                      2.00                           2.00                           3.99                           21.79                        0.34

4 Interest on Working Capital                      12.30                        16.58 17.73                    9.64                           9.64                           19.29                        14.83                        20.96

5 BST for Pension Trust Fund                    214.38                      219.71 230.34                  125.77                      125.77                      251.55                      250.79                      252.81

6 Return on Equity                      13.68                        75.70 111.65                  60.66                        60.66                        121.32                      14.27                        124.28

7 Income Tax                             -                                 -   -                        -                             -                             -                             -                            

8 Contribution to Contingency Reserve                        2.71                           2.73                       2.89                            1.51                            1.51                            3.02                            3.16                           4.03 

9 Less: Non-Tariff Income/ Other Income                      54.01                        78.50                     58.45                         47.10                         20.13                         67.23                         54.01                         67.20 

10 Aggregate Revenue Requirement 472.45 609.24 670.89 320.26 347.23 667.49 540.17 723.69

11 Net Aggregate Revenue Requirement                    472.45                      609.24                   670.89                       320.26                       347.23                       667.49                       540.17 723.69                      

12
Add: Incentive on Higher Transmission 

Availability                             -                             3.38 -                        -                             -                             

13 Add: Sharing of (Gains)/Loss                             -                           (3.78) -                             

15
ARR after Sharing (Gains)/Losses and Incentive                    472.45                      608.84                   670.89                       320.26                       347.23                       667.49                       540.17                       723.69 

16 Revenue with Approved Tariff for FY 2022-23                    472.45                      472.45 670.89                  -                             -                             670.89                      540.17                      

17 Less: Revenue from STOA/MTOA Charges                      12.00                           4.25 12.00                    1.03                           3.55                           4.58                           12.00                        4.58                          

18 Net Aggregate Revenue Requirement                    460.45                      604.59                   658.89                       319.23                       343.68                       662.91                       528.17                       719.11 

19 Revenue Gap /(Surplus) for FY 2022-23                             -                        144.14                            4.03                       190.94 

S. No. Particulars

FY 22-23 

True up

FY 24-25

ARR

FY 23-24

APR
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Transmission Loss

Form  - 2a

(Rs. Crore)

Approved in Order 

dtd 21.03.22

AEGCL 

Submission

Approved in Order 

dtd 21.03.22

AEGCL 

Estimation

Approved in Order 

dtd 21.03.22

AEGCL 

Projection

1 Energy Injected (MU) 11452.47 13043.92 13109.14

2 Energy Sent Out to APDCL (MU) 10985.26 12577.42 12640.31

3 Energy Sent Out to OA Consumers (MU) 88.37 38.33 38.71

4 Total Energy Sent Out 11073.63 12615.75 12,679.02    

4 Transmission Loss (MU) 378.84 428.17 430.12

5 Transmission Loss (%) 3.27% 3.31% 3.25% 3.28% 3.23% 3.28%

Transmission Availability

Form - 2b

(Rs. Crore)

Approved in Order 

dtd 21.03.22

AEGCL 

Submission (%)

Approved in Order 

dtd 21.03.22

AEGCL 

Submission (%)

Approved in Order 

dtd 21.03.22
ARR

1 April 99.06% 99.55 99.50%

2 May 99.37% 99.24 99.50%

3 June 99.43% 99.63 99.50%

4 July 99.27% 99.64 99.50%

5 August 98.84% 99.64 99.50%

6 September 99.05% 99.61 99.50%

7 October 99.33% 99.00 99.50%

8 November 99.23% 99.00 99.50%

9 December 99.32% 99.00 99.50%

10 January 99.22% 99.00 99.50%

11 February 99.31% 99.00 99.50%

12 March 99.15% 99.00 99.50%

FY 24-25 ARR

98.50%

FY 24-25

S.No. Particulars

FY 22-23 True Up FY 23-24 APR

98.50% 98.50%

S.No. Particulars

FY 22-23 True Up FY 23-24 APR
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Special Charges on Bulk Suppy Tariff

Form - 29

(Rs. Crore)

FY 24-25

ARR

Approved in Order 

dtd 21.03.22

AEGCL 

Submission

Approved in 

Order dtd 

29.03.23

AEGCL 

Submission

AEGCL 

Submission

1 Special Charges on Bulk Supply Tariff 214.38                     219.71          230.34          251.55 252.81

Total 214.38                     219.71          230.34          251.55           252.81           

S.No. Particulars

FY 22-23

True-Up

FY 23-24 

APR
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Working Capital Requirements

Form - F25

(Rs. Crore)

FY 24-25

ARR

Approved in 

Order dtd 

21.03.22

AEGCL 

Submission

Approved in 

Order dtd 

29.03.23

Total AEGCL 

Submission

AEGCL 

Submission

1 O&M expenses for 1 month Rs. Crore 18.59 18.25            19.92 20.00            21.82                       

2 Maintenance spares @ 15% of O&M Rs. Crore 33.47 32.86            35.86 36.00            39.27                       

3 Receivables for two months Rs. Crore 70.94 101.54          111.82 111.25          120.61                     

4 Total Working Capital Rs. Crore 123.00 152.65          167.60 167.24          181.71

5 Rate of Interest % 10.00% 10.86% 10.58% 11.53% 11.53%

6 Interest on Working Capital Rs. Crore 12.30               16.58            17.73            19.29            20.96                       

FY 23-24 

APR

UnitsS.No. Particulars

FY 22-23 

True up
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Actual Employee Expenses

Form - F19

(Rs. Crore)

Approved in 

Order dtd 

21.03.22

AEGCL 

Submission

Approved in 

Order dtd 

29.03.23

FY 23-24

H1

FY 23-24

H2

Total AEGCL 

Submission

1 Salaries 96.03            51.71 51.25 102.96

2 Additional Pay -                0.00 0.00 0.00

3 Dearness Allowance (DA) 31.72            18.81 19.32 38.13

4 Other Allowances & Relief 15.12            8.24 7.96 16.20

5 Addl. Pay & C.Off Encashment -                0.00 0.00 0.00

6 Interim Relief / Wage Revision -                0.00 0.00 0.00

7 Honorarium/Overtime 0.12              0.02 0.02 0.03

8 Bonus/ Exgratia To Employees 0.36              0.00 0.36 0.37

9 Medical Expenses Reimbursement 0.21              0.17 0.11 0.28

10 Travelling Allowance(Conveyance Allowance) -                0.00 0.00 0.00

11 Leave Travel Assistance 0.04              0.02 0.02 0.04

12 Earned Leave Encashment 2.51              1.51 1.26 2.76

13 Payment Under Workman's Compensation And Gratuity 8.02              1.97 6.97 8.94

14 Subsidised Electricity To Employees -                0.00 0.00 0.00

15 Any Other Item -                0.00 0.00 0.00

16 Staff Welfare Expenses 0.20              0.04 0.15 0.18

17 Apprentice And Other Training Expenses -                0.00 0.00 0.00

18 Contribution To Terminal Benefits 20.60            10.29 9.63 19.92

19 Provident Fund Contribution -                0.00 0.00 0.00

20 Provision for PF Fund -                0.00 0.00 0.00

21 Any Other Items -                0.00 0.00 0.00

22 Total Employee Costs 174.93          92.78           97.05       189.83          

23 Less: Employee expenses capitalised

24 Net Employee expenses 184.39 174.93          196.94 92.78           97.05       189.83          

184.39

S.No. Particulars

FY 22-23 True Up FY 23-24 APR

True up APR

196.94
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Normative Calculation of Employee expense

EMPn = (EMPn-1) x (1+Gn) x (CPI inflation) FY 22-23 FY 23-24 FY 24-25

1 Base Employee Cost (n-1) 173.34          185.39          197.36         

2 Avg CPI rate of precedeeing three years 5.89% 5.40% 5.40%

3 Gn (Growth Factor for nth Year) 1.00% 1.00% 1.00%

4 Normative Employee Cost (Excl. ROP) 185.39 197.36 210.10

5 Revision of Pay

Normative Employee Cost for the year (Incl. Revision of Pay) 185.39          197.36          210.10         

CPI

FY 2022-23 377.62 6.06% 5.40%

FY 2021-22 356.06 5.13% 5.89%

FY 2020-21 338.69 5.02% 6.00%
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Actual Repair & Maintenance Expenses

Form - F18

(Rs. Crore)

Approved in 

Order dtd 

21.03.22

AEGCL 

Submission

Approved in 

Order dtd 

29.03.23

FY 23-24

H1

FY 23-24

H2

Total AEGCL 

Submission

1 Plant & Machinery 7.97              2.72 5.43 8.15

2 Buildings 5.04              2.29 4.50 6.79

3 Civil works 0.99              0.57 2.87 3.44

4 Hydraulic Works -                0.00 0.00 0.00

5 Lines, Cable Networks etc. 4.16              2.03 4.06 6.09

6 Vehicles 0.20              0.05 0.11 0.16

7 Furniture & Fixtures 0.11              0.09 0.18 0.27

8 Office Equipment 0.56              0.21 0.42 0.62

9 Total 19.01            7.96 17.57 25.53

10 Any other items (Capitalisation) -                

Total 28.89 19.01 30.60            7.96 17.57 25.53

30.60            

S.No. Particulars

FY 23-24 

APR

FY 22-23 

True up

28.89               
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Normative Calculation of R&M expense

R&Mn = K x (GFAn-1) x (WPI inflation)

FY 22-23 FY 23-24 FY 24-25

Opening GFA for previous year 2,557.99      2,732.21       3,022.08  

Closing GFA for previous year 2,732.21      3,022.08       4,031.70  

Average GFA for previous year 2,645.10      2,877.14       3,526.89  

K Factor 0.75% 0.75% 0.75%

WPI Inflation 5.32% 7.90% 7.90%

Normative R&M Expense 20.89            23.28            28.54       

Expenditure for Colony Maintanance of AEGCL 2.10              5.93 9.76         

Additional amount for Cyber Security 1.88 1.01         

Net Normative R&M Expense 22.99            31.10            39.31       

WPI

FY 2022-23 152.53 9.41% 7.90%

FY 2021-22 139.41 13.00% 5.32%

FY 2020-21 123.37 1.29% 2.41%
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Funding of Capitalisation

Form - 30

(Rs.Crs.)

FY 24-25

Approved in 

Order dtd 

21.03.22

AEGCL 

Submission

Approved in 

Order dtd 

29.03.23

Total AEGCL 

Submission

AEGCL 

Submission

1 Grant 168.12                  224.66                  984.31                  245.04              

2 Equity 113.23                  9.07                      0.00

3 Debt 8.51                      0.34 16.23                    28.11

Total Capitalisation 200.00                  289.87                  225.00                  1,009.62              273.15              

ARR

FY 22-23 
S.No. Particulars

True up

FY 23-24 

APR
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Form - F20

Actual Administration and General Expenses (Rs. Crore)

Approved in 

Order dtd 

21.03.22

AEGCL 

Submission

Approved in 

Order dtd 

29.03.23

FY 23-24

H1

FY 23-24

H2

Total AEGCL 

Submission

1 Lease/ Rent/Rates and taxes 0.50                  0.32 0.19 0.51

2 Insurance 0.08                  0.04 0.04 0.08

3 Revenue Stamp Expenses Account -                    0.00 0.00 0.00

4 Telephone, Postage, Telegram & Telex Charges 0.14                  0.07 0.08 0.15

5 Incentive & Award To Employees/Outsiders 0.31                  0.00 0.00 0.00

6 Consultancy Charges 0.42                  0.19 0.23 0.42

7 Technical Fees -                    0.00 0.00 0.00

8 Other Professional Charges 0.77                  0.38 0.39 0.77

9 Conveyance And Travelling 1.40                  0.79 1.17 1.96

10 License and Registration Fees 0.02                  0.00 0.03 0.03

11 Vehicle Expenses 4.82                  2.53 2.45 4.98

12 Security / Service Charges Paid To Outside Agencies -                    0.00 0.00 0.00

13 Fee And Subscriptions Books And Periodicals 3.02                  1.25 2.00 3.25

14 Printing And Stationery 0.47                  0.17 0.33 0.50

15 Advertisement Expenses 0.46                  0.14 0.31 0.45

16 Contributions/Donations To Outside Institutes / Associations 0.00 0.00

17 Electricity Charges To Offices 0.53                  0.29 0.23 0.52

18 Water Charges 0.00                  0.01 0.00 0.01

19 Entertainment Charges 0.23                  0.08 0.17 0.25

20 Miscellaneous Expenses 0.12                  0.34 0.13 0.47

21 Legal Charges 0.15                  0.18 0.10 0.28

22 Auditor's Fee 0.10                  0.06 0.06 0.12

23 Freight On Capital Equipments 0.01                  0.01 0.00 0.01

24 Purchase Related Advertisement Expenses -                    0.00 0.00 0.00

25 Vehicle Running Expenses Truck / Delivery Van 0.08                  0.04 0.04 0.08

26 Vehicle Hiring Expenses Truck / Delivery Van -                    0.00 0.00 0.00

27 Other Freight 0.01                  0.00 0.00 0.00

28

Fees including TA and DA for non-official member of the 

Board 0.26 0.14 0.40

29

Fees for conducting  recruitment  & Other Departmental 

Examinations 0.01                  0.00 0.02 0.02

30 Participation fees paid for Training/conference 0.00                  0.00 0.00 0.00

31 Training of Staff and Officers 0.12                  0.00 0.09 0.09

32 Total A&G Expenses 9.83                 13.78                11.53            7.15           8.20         15.35            

9.83                 11.53            

S.No. Particulars

FY 22-23 FY 23-24 

True up APR
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Normative Calculation of A&G expense

A&Gn = (A&Gn-1) x (WPI inflation) + Provision

FY 22-23 FY 23-24 FY 24-25

A&G Expense for Previous year 10.13               10.67                11.51            

WPI Inflation 5.32% 7.90% 7.90%

Provision 0 0 0

Normative A&G Expense for the year 10.67 11.51 12.42

WPI

FY 2022-23 152.53 9.41% 7.90%

FY 2021-22 139.41 13.00% 5.32%

FY 2020-21 123.37 1.29% 2.41%
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(A) Gross Fixed Assets

(Rs. Crore)

Balance at the 

beginning of the year

Additions during the 

year

Retirement of assets 

during the year

Balance at the end of 

the year

Balance at the 

beginning of the year

Additions during the 

year

Retirement of assets 

during the year

Balance at the end of 

the year

Balance at the 

beginning of the year

Additions during the 

year

Retirement of assets 

during the year

Balance at the end of 

the year

1 Land owned under full ownership 44.98                            2.68                                                                    -                               47.66                             47.66 -0.06                                                               -                               47.60                             47.60                                   -                               47.60 

2 Land under lease                                   -                                     -                                     -                                     -                                     -                                     -                                     -   

3 Building 61.67                            3.53                                                                    -                               65.20                             65.20 6.31                                                                -                               71.50                             71.50                                   -                               71.50 

4 Hydraulic 2.64                              -                                                                      -                                 2.64                               2.64 -                                                                  -                                 2.64                               2.64                                   -                                 2.64 

5 Other Civil Works 131.26                          28.73                                                                  -                             159.98                           159.98 14.08                                                              -                             174.06                           174.06                             20.71                           194.77 

6 Plant & Machinery 1,314.68                      111.95                                                                -                         1,426.63                       1,426.63 264.09                                                            -                         1,690.72                       1,690.72                           107.06                       1,797.78 

7 Lines & Cable Network 1,159.03                      141.43                                                                -                         1,300.46                       1,300.46 722.76                                                            -                         2,023.23                       2,023.23                           141.27                       2,164.49 

8 Vehicles 4.95                              -                                                                      -                                 4.95                               4.95 -                                                                  -                                 4.95                               4.95                                   -                                 4.95 

9 Furniture & Fixtures 7.77                              0.57                                                                    -                                 8.35                               8.35 1.39                                                                -                                 9.74                               9.74                               0.80                             10.54 

10 Office Equipment 5.23                              0.97                                                                    -                                 6.21                               6.21 1.05                                                                -                                 7.26                               7.26                               3.31                             10.57 

11 Any other assets -                                -                                                                      -                                     -                                     -                                     -                                     -                                     -                                     -                                     -   

Total 2,732.21                      289.87                             -                                3,022.08                      3,022.08                      1,009.62                                                        -   4,031.70                      4,031.70                      273.15                          -                                4,304.85                      

Form 21: Assets & Depreciation

Sr. 

No.
Particulars

FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25

Actual Estimated Projected
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Form 21: Assets & Depreciation

(B) Depreciation

`

(Rs. Crore)

Depreciati

on Rate

Accumulated 

depreciation at the 

beginning of the year

Additions during the 

year

Accumulated 

depreciation at the 

end of the year

Accumulated 

depreciation at the 

beginning of the year

Additions during the 

year

Accumulated 

depreciation at the 

end of the year

Accumulated 

depreciation at the 

beginning of the year

Additions during the 

year

Accumulated 

depreciation at the 

end of the year

1 Land owned under full ownership 0.00% -                               -                                                                      -                                     -                                     -                                     -                                     -   

2 Land under lease 3.34% 0.06                              0.01                                                                0.07                               0.07                               0.07                               0.07 -                                                             0.07 

3 Building 3.34% 25.61                            2.48                                                              28.09                             28.09 2.49                                                         30.58                             30.58 2.39                                                         32.97 

4 Hydraulic 5.28% 2.51                              -                                                                  2.51                               2.51 0.06                                                           2.57                               2.57 -                                                             2.57 

5 Other Civil Works 3.34% 23.01                            9.52                                                              32.53                             32.53 4.93                                                         37.46                             37.46 6.16                                                         43.62 

6 Plant & Machinery 5.28% 623.71                          81.24                                                          704.95                           704.95 74.50                                                     779.46                           779.46 92.10                                                     871.55 

7 Lines & Cable Network 5.28% 824.40                          67.54                                                          891.95                           891.95 73.99                                                     965.94                           965.94 110.56                                               1,076.49 

8 Vehicles 9.50% 4.45                              -                                                                  4.45                               4.45 0.21                                                           4.66                               4.66 -                                                             4.66 

9 Furniture & Fixtures 6.33% 4.39                              0.46                                                                4.85                               4.85 0.50                                                           5.35                               5.35 0.64                                                           6.00 

10 Office Equipment 6.33% 3.75                              0.66                                                                4.41                               4.41 0.62                                                           5.03                               5.03 0.56                                                           5.60 

11 Any other assets 5.28% -                                                                  -                                     -   -                                                                 -                                     -   -                                                                 -   

Total 1,511.90                      161.92                             1,673.82                      1,673.82                      157.30                         1,831.12                      1,831.12                      212.41                         2,043.52                      

FY 2024-25

Projected
Sr. 

No.
Particulars

FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24

Actual Estimated
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Form 21: Assets & Depreciation

(C ) Net Fixed Assets

(Rs. Crore)

Fixed Asset - 

beginning of the year

Additions during the 

year

Withdrawals during 

the year

Fixed Asset - end of 

the year

Fixed Asset - 

beginning of the year

Additions during the 

year

Withdrawals during 

the year

Fixed Asset - end of 

the year

Fixed Asset - 

beginning of the year

Additions during the 

year

Withdrawals during 

the year

Fixed Asset - end of 

the year

1 Land owned under full ownership                             44.98                                   2.68                                   -                               47.66                             47.66                              -0.06                                   -                               47.60                             47.60                                   -                                     -                               47.60 

2 Land under lease                              -0.06                                  -0.01                                   -                                -0.07                              -0.07                                   -                                     -                                -0.07                              -0.07                                   -                                     -                                -0.07 

3 Building                             36.06                                   1.05                                   -                               37.11                             37.11                               3.82                                   -                               40.93                             40.89                              -2.39                                   -                               38.50 

4 Hydraulic                               0.13                                        -                                     -                                 0.13                               0.13                              -0.06                                   -                                 0.07                               0.07                                   -                                     -                                 0.07 

5 Other Civil Works                           108.25                                 19.21                                   -                             127.46                           127.46                               9.15                                   -                             136.61                           136.61                             14.55                                   -                             151.16 

6 Plant & Machinery                           690.97                                 30.71                                   -                             721.68                           721.68                           189.59                                   -                             911.26                           909.26                             14.96                                   -                             924.23 

7 Lines & Cable Network                           334.63                                 73.88                                   -                             408.51                           408.51                           648.78                                   -                         1,057.29                       1,057.29                             30.71                                   -                         1,088.00 

8 Vehicles                               0.49                                        -                                     -                                 0.49                               0.49                              -0.21                                   -                                 0.29                               0.29                                   -                                     -                                 0.29 

9 Furniture & Fixtures                               3.38                                   0.11                                   -                                 3.49                               3.49                               0.89                                   -                                 4.38                               4.37                               0.16                                   -                                 4.53 

10 Office Equipment                               1.48                                   0.31                                   -                                 1.79                               1.79                               0.43                                   -                                 2.22                               2.20                               2.75                                   -                                 4.95 

11 Any other assets                                   -                                          -                                     -                                     -                                     -                                     -                                     -                                     -                                     -                                     -                                     -                                     -   

Total 1,220.32                      127.95                                                                -   1,348.26                      1,348.26                      852.32                          -                                2,200.58                      2,198.52                      60.74                            -                                2,259.26                      

Sr. 

No.
Particulars

FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25

Actual Actual Projected
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Sharing of Gain/(Losses) -O&M expense FY 2022-23

Form - 31 

(Rs. Crore)

S. No Particulars Actual Normative Gain/(Losses)
Gains/(Losses) to be 

shared with APDCL

a b c=b-a d=c*1/3

1 Employee Cost 174.93          185.39       10.46                

1 (a) Less: Terminal Liabilities 28.63            28.63          -                     -                                    

1 (b) Less: ROP Arrears -              -                     -                                    

2 Employee Cost excl. Terminal Liabilities 146.30          156.76       10.46                3.49                                  

3 Repair & Maintenance 19.01            22.99          3.99                   1.33                                  

4 Administrative & General Expenses 13.78            10.67          -3.11                 -1.04                                 

5 Total (A) 179.08          190.42       11.34                3.78                                  
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Form - F22

Interest & Finance Charges Rs. Crore

AEGCL Submission

Loan Details

A Interest charges on State Govt. Loans, Bonds And Advances, 

1  State Government Loans 0.88                            

2 ADB Loan

3 Central Government Loans

4 General Provident Fund 1.60                            

Sub-total 2.49                            

B

Interest on Long Term Loans/Credits from the 

FIs/banks/organisations approved by the State Govt.

Secured Loans

Unsecured Loans

C Other Interest & Finance Charges

Cost of raising Finance/Bank Charges 0.01                            

Penal Interest Charges

Sub-total 0.01                            

D Grand Total Of Interest & Finance Charges (A+B+C) 2.49                            

E Less : Interest & Finance Charges Capitalised 0.45                            

Net Total Of Interest Finance Charges (D-E) 2.04                            

Opening 

Balance

Amount 

received

Principal repayment / 

Conversion to Equity

Interest 

Due

Closing 

Balance

Loan Details

A Interest charges on State Govt. Loans, Bonds And Advances, 

1  State Government Loans 551.52 3.61 542.73                             0.88 12.40

2 ADB Loan 95.68 0.0 95.68                               0.00

3 Central Government Loans -                 0.00

4 General Provident Fund 26.62 2.22 9.64                                 1.60 20.81

Sub-total 673.82 5.83 648.04 2.49 33.21

Interest on Long Term Loans/Credits from the 

FIs/banks/organisations approved by the State Govt.

A Secured Loans 0.00 0

B Unsecured Loans 0.00 0

C Other Interest & Finance Charges 0

Cost of raising Finance/Bank Charges 0.01 0

Penal Interest Charges 0

Sub-total 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.01 0.00

D Grand Total Of Interest & Finance Charges (A+B+C) 673.82 5.83 648.04 2.49 33.21

E Less : Interest & Finance Charges Capitalised 0

Net Total Of Interest Finance Charges (D-E) 673.82 5.83 648.04 2.49 33.21

FY 22-23 

S.No. Particulars

S.No. Particulars

FY 22-23 Actual

Rate of Interest

10%

10.50%

7.10%
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Opening 

Balance

Amount 

received
Principal repayment

Converted 

to Equity

Interest 

Due

Closing 

Balance

Loan Details

A Interest charges on State Govt. Loans, Bonds And Advances, 

1  State Government Loans 12.40 0.88 11.52

2 ADB Loan

3 Central Government Loans

4 General Provident Fund 20.81 0.89 3.14                                 1.43 19.99

Sub-total 33.21 0.89 4.02 1.43 19.99

Interest on Long Term Loans/Credits from the 

FIs/banks/organisations approved by the State Govt.

A Secured Loans 0

B Unsecured Loans 0

C Other Interest & Finance Charges 0

Cost of raising Finance/Bank Charges 0

Penal Interest Charges 0

Sub-total 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

D Grand Total Of Interest & Finance Charges (A+B+C) 33.21 0.89 4.02 1.43 19.99

E Less : Interest & Finance Charges Capitalised 0

Net Total Of Interest Finance Charges (D-E) 33.21 0.89 4.02 1.43 19.99

S.No. Particulars

FY 23-24 (H1) Actual

Rate of Interest

10%

10.50%

8.00%
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Opening 

Balance

Amount 

received
Principal repayment

Interest 

Due

Closing 

Balance

Loan Details

A Interest charges on State Govt. Loans, Bonds And Advances, 

1  State Government Loans 4.71

2 ADB Loan

3 Central Government Loans

4 General Provident Fund 19.99 0.89 0.00 20.88

Sub-total 19.99 5.60 0.00 0.00 20.88

Interest on Long Term Loans/Credits from the 

FIs/banks/organisations approved by the State Govt.

A Secured Loans 0.00 0

B Unsecured Loans 0.00 0

C Other Interest & Finance Charges 0

Cost of raising Finance/Bank Charges 0.01 0

Penal Interest Charges 0

Sub-total 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

D Grand Total Of Interest & Finance Charges (A+B+C) 19.99 5.60 0.00 0.00 20.88

E Less : Interest & Finance Charges Capitalised 0

Net Total Of Interest Finance Charges (D-E) 0.00 5.60 0.00 0.00 20.88

Opening 

Balance

Amount 

received
Principal repayment

Interest 

Due

Closing 

Balance

Loan Details

A Interest charges on State Govt. Loans, Bonds And Advances, 

1  State Government Loans 12.40 4.71 1 0.00 16.23

2 ADB Loan 0.00 0.00 0 0.00 0.00

3 Central Government Loans -                 -                 0 0.00 0.00

4 General Provident Fund 40.80 3.14 1.43 37.66

Sub-total 53.20 4.71 4.02 1.43 53.89

Interest on Long Term Loans/Credits from the 

FIs/banks/organisations approved by the State Govt.

A Secured Loans 0.00 0

B Unsecured Loans 0.00 0

C Other Interest & Finance Charges 0.00 0

Cost of raising Finance/Bank Charges 0.01 0

Penal Interest Charges 0.00 0

Sub-total 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.01 0.00

D Grand Total Of Interest & Finance Charges (A+B+C) 53.20 6.49 4.02 1.43 53.89

E Less : Interest & Finance Charges Capitalised 0.00 0

Net Total Of Interest Finance Charges (D-E) 53.20 6.49 4.02 1.43 53.89

S.No. Particulars

FY 23-24 (Total) Estimated

S.No. Particulars

FY 23-24 (H2) Estimated

Rate of Interest

10%

10.50%

8.00%

Rate of Interest

10%

10.50%

8.0%
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Normative Loan Computation

Form - 32

(Rs.Crs.)

FY 24-25

Revised ARR

Approved 

in Order 

dtd 

21.03.22 

AEGCL 

Submission

Approved in 

Order dtd 

29.03.23 

AEGCL 

Submission

AEGCL 

Submission

1 Net Normative Opening Loan 255.95        216.38             159.58            85.98              6.62                  

2 Addition of normative loan during the year 6.49            8.51                 0.34                16.23              28.11                

3 Normative Repayment during the year 35.96          138.92             118.59            95.58              126.64              

4 Net Normative Closing Loan 226.48        85.98               41.33              6.62                -                    

5 Interest Rate 10.08% 9.96% 9.92% 8.60% 10.08%

6 Interest Expenses on Loan 24.31          15.05               9.96                3.98                0.33                  

7 Finance Charges 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.01

8 Total Interest and Finance Charges 24.32          15.06               9.97                3.99                0.34                  

S.No. Particulars

FY 2022-23

True Up

FY 23-24

APR
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Depreciation Computation

Particulars

FY 22-23 FY 23-24 FY 24-25

Gross Fixed Assets (a) 2,732.21     3,022.08     4,031.70   

Gross Fixed Assets excluding Land (b) 2,684.55     2,974.48     3,984.10   

Conersion of Grant to Equity 1,951.14     2,089.45     2,089.45   

Opening CWIP (c) 904.13         833.60         323.19      

Grant (CWIP + Assets) (d) 509.79         1,494.11     1,739.15   

Grant towards GFA (e=d*b/(b+c)) 381.36         1,167.04     1,608.65   

Total Depreciation 161.92         157.30         212.41

Less : Dep twds assets through Grant/Consumer cont 23.00           61.72           85.76        

Depreciation for the year (excl assets through grant and 

consumer contribution (to be considerd in ARR) 138.92         95.58           126.64      
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Form - F17

Work In Progress Rs. Crore

FY 22-23 FY 24-25
True up ARR

AEGCL 

Submission

FY 23-24

H1

FY 23-24

H2
Total

AEGCL 

Submission

1 Opening balance 904.13            833.60     776.72     833.60     323.19         

Less: 

Excess CAPEX booked during prior period 70.06              17.51       

Add: 

2 i) Capital expenditure 261.82            78.48       420.73     499.21     901.45         

ii) Interest & Finance charges capitalised (78.900) 0.45                -           

iii) Other expenses capitalised -           -           -           

Less: 

Inter Unit Transfer of CAPEX

Total capital expenditure for the year (i+ii+iii) 262.27            78.48       420.73     499.21     901.45         

Less :Capitalisation 262.73            117.85     163.43     1,009.62  273.15         

Closing Balance 833.60            776.72     1,034.02  323.19     951.50         

S.No. Particulars

FY 23-24

APR
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Form - F21(a)

Consumer Contributions & Grants towards cost of capital Assets Rs. Crore

FY 24-25

Revised ARR

Balance at 

the 

beginning of 

the year

Addition 

during the 

year

Conversion to 

equity during 

the year

Adjustment to 

Income

Balance at 

the end of 

the year

Balance at 

the beginning 

of the year

Addition 

during 

the year

Conversio

n to 

equity 

during 

the year

Adjustme

nt to 

Income

Balance 

at the 

end of 

the year

Balance at 

the 

beginning of 

the year

Addition 

during the 

year

Balance at 

the end of 

the year

Balance at 

the 

beginning of 

the year

Addition 

during 

the year

Conversio

n to 

equity 

during 

the year

Adjustme

nt to 

Income

Balance 

at the 

end of 

the year

Addition 

during the 

year

1

Consumer Contribution Towards 

Cost Of Capital Assets 21.06              68.67                -                     6.41                   83.32 83.32               0.65          -            3.23          80.75       80.75              80.75             83.32              0.65 -            3.23          80.75       

2

Grant Towards Cost Of Capital 

Assets / Promoter's Contribution* 2,163.75        216.91              1,951.14          3.05                   426.47        426.47             -            134.40     -0.55         288.72     288.72           288.72          426.47            0 134.40     -0.55        288.72     245.04

(a) Grant From GOA 806.11            79.91                747.71              0.55                   137.76        137.76             -            134.40     -0.55         -0.00        -0.00               -0.00              137.76            0 134.40     -0.55        -0.00        144.38

(b) Grant From  ADB/AIIB 966.86            -                     966.86              -                     -               -                    -            -            -            -            -                  -                 -                   0 -            -            -            100.66

(c) Grant From Central Government 390.78            137.00              236.56              2.50                   288.72        288.72             -            -            -            288.72     288.72           288.72          288.72            0 -            -            288.72     0.00

2,184.81        285.58              1,951.14          9.46                   509.79        509.79             0.65          369.46     369.46           369.46          509.79           0.65          -            369.46     245.04            

H2 Projection Total Estimated

S.No. Particulars

FY 22-23 

True up
H1 Actual

FY 23-24
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Form - F26

Non-Tariff Income Rs. Crore

FY 24-25

Approved in 

Order dtd 

21.03.22

AEGCL 

Submission

Approved in 

Order dtd 

29.03.23

FY 23-24

H1

FY 23-24

H2

Total AEGCL 

Submission

AEGCL 

Submission

A

Income from Investment, Fixed & 

Call Deposits

Income from Investments 0.51                   -            0.50          0.50                0.50                 

Interest on fixed deposits 50.84                28.60        17.04        45.64              45.64               

Interest from Banks 2.26                   1.52          0.30          1.82                1.82                 

Interest on GPF -1.60                 -1.43         -0.80         -2.23               -2.23               

Sub Total 52.00                28.68        17.04        45.72              45.72               

B Other Non-Tariff Income -                  

Rental from contractors/others 0.66                   0.05          0.05          0.10                

Inspection Bunglow/Guest house 

charges 0.03                   0.02          
0.02          

0.04                

Electricity charges from 

employees 0.00                   0.00          
0.00          

0.00                

Sale of tender forms 0.07                   0.02          0.02          0.04                

Penalties recovered from 

suppliers/contractors 1.71                   0.23          0.23                

Other Miscellaneous Receipt 0.60          0.60                

Hire Charges from 

Contractors/Suppliers/Others 0.08          

Income from Supervision/Service 

charges on deposit works

21.55                17.42        

3.00          

20.42              

Stale Cheque entry taken as 

income since not reissued 0.24                   -                  

Testing bills raised against testing of  

transformer, circuit breaker, etc. 0.42                   -                  Reimbursement arrear bill raised 

against POSOCO  for security 

guards enchanced  monthly 

remuneration 0.10                   -                  
Income received from APGCL for 

repairing of transformer, etc. 0.20                   -                  

Hire Charges from 

Contractors/Suppliers/Others 0.02                   -                  

Sale of scrap 1.34                   -            -                  

Rentals from staff quarters 0.13                   -            -                  

Deposit forfeited 0.02                   -                  

Sub-Total 26.50                18.42        3.09          21.51              
Total 54.01              78.50                58.45               47.10        20.13        67.23              67.20               

58.45

S.No. Particulars

FY 22-23 True Up FY 23-24 APR

True up APR

54.01              

ARR

21.48               
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Form - F23

Return on Equity (Rs. Crore)

FY 24-25

Units

Approved in 

Order dtd 

21.03.22

AEGCL 

Submission

Approved in 

Order dtd 

29.03.23

Total AEGCL 

Submission

AEGCL 

Submission

1 Equity (Opening Balance) Rs. Crore 99.93 99.93 827.01 876.80           920.57              

2 Net additions during the year Rs. Crore 2.78 776.87             43.77             -                     

3 Less : Reduction during the year Rs. Crore 0 -                   0.00 -                 -                     

4 Equity (Closing Balance) Rs. Crore 102.71           876.80             827.01 920.57          920.57              

5 Average Equity Rs. Crore 101.32           488.36             827.01            898.68          920.57              

6 Rate of Return on Equity % 13.50% 15.50% 13.50% 13.50% 13.50%

7 Return on Equity Rs. Crore 13.68             75.70               111.65            121.32          124.28              

ARR

S.No. Particulars

FY 22-23 True Up

True up

FY 23-24 APR

APR
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SBI MCLR Rate FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 Form 35

Effective Date Interest Rate (%) (1Yr) Effective Date Interest Rate (%) (1Yr)

Effective Date 1 Year
Effective 

Date
1 Year

15-03-2023 8.50 15-10-2023 8.55

15-02-2023 8.50 15-09-2023 8.55

15-01-2023 8.40 15-08-2023 8.55

15-12-2022 8.30 15-07-2023 8.55

15-11-2022 8.05 15-06-2023 8.50

15-10-2022 7.95 15-05-2023 8.50

15-09-2022 7.70 15-04-2023 8.50

15-08-2022 7.70 Average 8.53

15-07-2022 7.50

15-06-2022 7.40

15-05-2022 7.20

15-04-2022 7.10

Average 7.86
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Conversion of Grant and Loan to Equity Form - 33

Grant & Loan as on 31.03.21

Rs. in Cr Conversion to Equity Loan Equity Loan Equity Loan Equity

70% 30% 70% 30% 70% 30%

Grant 1955.05 1955.05 1368.54 586.52 1365.80 585.34 2.74 1.17

Loan 638.41 446.89 191.52 446.89 191.52

ADB Loan 95.68 95.68 66.98 28.70 66.98 28.70

GoA Loan 542.73 542.73 379.91 162.82 379.91 162.82

Total 2593.46 2593.46 1815.42 778.04 1812.69 776.87 2.74 1.17

Total AEGCL SLDC
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Contingency Reserve
Form - 34

(Rs. Crore)

Sl. No Particulars
Approved in TO 

dated 21.03.22
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25

1 Opening GFA for the current year 2708 2,732.21       3,022.08   4,031.70            

2 % Factor 0.10% 0.10% 0.10% 0.10%

3 Contingency Reserves (1*2) 2.71 2.73 3.02 4.03
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Annexure – I 
Audited Annual Accounts 

FY 2022-23 
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IND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENT

2022-23

ASSAM ELECTRICITY GRID CORPORATION
LIMITED.

CIN: U4O 10 1AS2OO3GCOO7238
(A Public Sector Undertakingl

[Registered Office: Bijutee Bhawoilr Paltan Bazar,
Guwahati - 781OOU

$l

fit
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Particulars
Notes

As at March 31,2023
Restated

Non-cument assets
Property, plant and equiprnent
Right ofuse assets

Capital work in progress
Financial assets

(i) Investments
(ii) Other financial assets

Other non-current assets

Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents
(ur) tsank balances other than cash and cash
equivalents
(iv) Loans
(v) Other financial assets

Current tax assets (net)
Other current assets

Total non-current assets

e)

d)

Total current assets

(lI) Current assets

a) Inventories

(b)
(c)

3a

3b
4

5

6

7

8

9

l0

ll
t2
l3
t4
l5

60,244.34
I17.81

t0,527.37
2,583.72

31,474.74
1,37,992.90

3,289.68

1,34,970.27
23.49

75,949.31

5,348.20
48,083.88

7,507 .15

2,71,892.30

14,s23.s5
15,231.s9

2,337.64

1,36,901.74

24.39
62,864.56

5,348.20
8,875.33
7,272.94

2,21,297.16

14,698.18
13,140.84

89,41 8.55

99.69
10,528.17
2,649.74

29,983.28
1,62,955.09

87,274.89
97.14

10,s26.94
2,676.24

28,231.86
1,56,621.94

2,384.39

1,37,569.34

25.29
57 ,104.14

5,348.20
2,548.40

957.10

2,03,552.47

14,761.45
r0,669.03

t0 142.25 I

Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Grants

Financial liabilities
Borrowings

Provisions

Defened tax liabilities (net)

a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings
(ii) Trade payables
(a) Total outstanding dues ofmicro enterprises and
srnall enterprises
(b) Total outstanding dues ofcreditors other than
micro enterprises and small enterprises
(iii) Other current financial liabilities

liabilities

uity and liabilities

Other equity

otal equity

Total non-current liabilities

c)

I) Current liabilities

Other current liabilities
(c) Provisions
d) Cturent tax liability (net)

otal current liabilities

(l) Equity
(a) Equity share capital

(r)
(a)

23

24

25

26

l8

l6
l7

2t
22

t9
20

87.90

2,69,338.s6
(15,036.48)

2,54,302.09

50,588.43

3,232.86
1,803.05

55,624.34

16,896.60
49,9s4.09
29,051.45
3,958.64

99,948.68

1,55,573.02

90,707.52

22,648.62

9,993.19
1,7s.226.67
1,85,219.96

16,896.60
6 1,1 90.1 5

27 ,353.17
2,774.9s

1,08,214.97

1,98,922.39

67,380.04

678.86

38,86s.72

9,993.19
1,68,666.56
1,7E,659.75

221.00

28,492.41

303.45

29,016.96

16,896.92

7t,432.51
22,809.46
2,493.19

1,52,497.90

1,81,514.66

t0 142.25 174-41

Summary of significant accounting policies
accompanying notes are an integral part ofthe

t-2

344

As per our report ofeven date

For

ICAI Firm Registration No.
Chartered Accountants

CA
Partner
Membership No

-a}d>{ _[ /^l& ttm $^;

Rs. In

(N K Baishya)
Independent Director
DrN-09230144

(D.

Company Secretary
Membership No. :

FCS4O33

Assam Electricity Grid Corporation Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31,2023

For and on behalf of the Assam Electricity Grid Corporation Limited

q
(D.Das)
Managing Director
DrN-09702957

Barman)
cGM (F&A)
PAN
:AETPB67l2P

"N/etace: Qut{al6ti
Date:

UDIN, g3{ 
[ 356?"8 hJRB 3g 06

THFor R. M
c

ARr & CO.
Accountants

tnoA
(Pr*teok ttutharl)

PARTNER
M. No.413362

cg -o1-a923

ililOI

As at April lr202l
Restated

Total equity and liabilities
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For the year ended

March 31,2022
Restated

For the year ended

March 31,2023

Notes
Particulars

37,827.89
16,038.17

44,225.97

20,597.95
27

28
Revenue from operations

Other income

ncome:

53,866.0664,823.92Total in

16,914.83

12,744.09

209.57
18,726.33

18,101.36

13,093.25

204.26
29,311.67

29

3a

30

3l
costs

Other

benefits expense

and amortization exPense

48,594.8260,710.54Total
5,271.244,113.38Profit before nal items and tax

items
5,271.244,113.38Profit before tax

Tax expense
Current tax
Deferred tax

5,271.244,113.38for the iod

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Re-measurement gainsi(losses) on defined benefit plan

lncome tax effect
lncomeOther com

5,271.244,113.38otal compre,hensive income

52.75

52.75

1.53

1.53

Earnings per equity share of face value of Rs.100 each :

Basic (ln Rs.)

Diluted (ln Rs.)

t

Assam Electricity Grid Corporation Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31,2023

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date

For

Rs.In Lakh

For and on behalf of the Assam Electricity Grid corporation

Limited

ICAI Firm Registration No.:

Chartered Accountants

CA
Partner

Membership No.:

Place: Quwahati
Date:

NoJont,,n'(N K Baishya)

.&"hEo,.t

(D.Das)
Managing Director
DrN-09702957

(P.K. Barman)

cGM (F&A)
PAN
:AETPB6712P

Independent Director
DrN-09230144

\L/q\/,
(D. Bfrua)
Company Secretary

Membership No. :

FCS-4033
UDrN : c3i I 33tuB6: gn B3so6

For R. M.XOTHARI & CO.
dnuh"r"d Accountants

( fl^/otl^a,i
V (Frteek Kotharl)

PARTNER
M. No. 4L3362

g9-o\ -ae;-) t",|j02
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31 March 2022

For theFor the year

ended

31 March 2023
Particulars

13,71 1 .16

204.26

(5s.74)
(5,083.69)

(226.36)

4,113.38 5,2'7t.24

12,962.1

209

( l l 7.56)

(4,664.68)

(r2t.47)

Profit before tax

Adjustrnents for:

Depreciation and amortisation

Interest expenses

Interest from Banks

Dividend from Investment

from Investment

on Fixed Deposits with Banks

I 82rofit before wo ca

(e.2s

37 5.41

281

27

(2,1

63

(2,143

46.75

(10,242.36)

4,543.71

(3

(1,751

t74.63
29,174.21

(es2.04)
(t7.32)

(1,491.46)

(39,208.55)

(60.67)

1,124.19

1,183.69

(7,851.26)
6s.02

(l 1,236.05)

r,698.29

Movement in working capital
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables

(Increase)/decrease in bank balances other than cash and cash

(lncrease)/decrease in inventories

(lncrease/decrease in other non-current assets

Increase(decrease) in trade payables

Increase/(decrease) in other current financial liabilities

Increase/(decrease) in other current liabilities

Increase(decrease) in long term borrowings

Increase/(decrease) in short term bonowings

Increase(decrease) in long term provisions

Increase/(decrease) in short term provisions

Cash generated from(used in) operations

/decrease in financial assets non-current

ofDirect taxes

,)/decrease in loans and other financial assets

r)/decrease in other current assets

792.24Net cash tn activities

(24,3se.6s)

117.56

s34.82

786. l5

(2s,037.10)

10.05

55.74

909. I 9

of property, plant & equipment including cwip and capital

advances

Income lrom Investment

Dividend from Investment

Interest Income

flow from investing activities

Net cash activitiesfrom

1,288.87

20.91

22,427

64,968.84

(63,840.76)

(218.s2)

27,939.8r

Cash flow from financing activities

Changes in equity

Conversion of bonowing to equitY

Interest

receipts /repayment from borrowings

frorn Grant towards caPital assets

.8311
Net cash from activities

2,471.812,090.75
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash at the of the
I1.59at the end oftheCash and cash r

13s.32

13,005

140.841.59

136.26

15,095.33

Components ofcash and cash equivalents

Cash and cheques on hand

Balances with banks:

- On current accounts

deposit accounts (with original rnahrrity less than three months)

refer note I

Assam Electricity Grid Corporation Limited

Cash Flow Statement for the ybar ended March 3l'2023

Notes:

The cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in the Ind AS 7 "statement of Cash
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. " Assam Electricity Grid Corporation Limited
Notes formin part of Financial State

I
Note.1

A. Corporate and General lnformation

Assam Electricity Grid Corporation Limited ('the Company') is a State Public Sector Company domiciled and
incorporated in lndia under the provisions of The Companies Act, 1956. The registered office of the Company is
situated at Bijulee Bhawan (First Floor), Paltan Bazar, Guwahati 781001, lt was formed out of erstwhile Assam
State Electricity Board (ASEB) in 2003 and was notified as the State Transmission Utility (STU). lts core business
is to efficiently transport electrical power from eleclrical power bulk heads to the distributlon company networks in
the state of Assam. Assam Electricity Grid Corporation Limited inherited 3862 circuit kms of EHV lines above 66
kV voltage class and 38 numbers of EHV suFstations having a totial transformation capacity of 1636.50 MVA at
its birth in 2003.

B. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

Statement of com pliatlce

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with lndian Accounting Standards (lnd AS) notified under
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act), Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2O1s the
subsequent amendments thereto and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the provisions of
the Electricity Act, 2003 to the extent applicable and various regulations and policies framed there under by the
appropriate authorities.

The financial statements upto year ended 31 March 2022 were prepared in accordance with generally accepted
accounling principles in India, the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 including Accounting Standards
notified there under and the provisions of the Electricity Acl, 2003 to the extent applicable. These financial
statements are the first financial statements of the Company under lnd AS. The date of transition to lnd AS is
Apttl 01,2021. Refer Note No. 42 for an explanation of how the transitlon from previous GAAP to lnd AS has
affected the Company's financial position, financial performance and cash tlows.

Basis of preoaration and Dresentation

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial assets and
liabilities (refer accounting policy no 2.5) regarding financial instruments which have been measured at fair value.

Functional and presentatlon currencv

The Financial statements are presented in lndian Rupees (lNR), which is the Company's functional and
presentation cunency and all amounts are rounded to the nearest lakhs and two decimals thereof, except as
stated otheMise.

Siqnificant Accountinq Judqements, Estimates and AssumDtions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with lnd AS requires the Company's management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabllities recognised in the
financial statements that are not readily apparent from other sources. The judgements, estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors including estimation of effects of uncertain
future events that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The following are the criticaljudgements, estimations & assumptions that have been made by the management in

the process of applying the Company's accounting policies.

. Management uses judgement in deciding whether individual item or group of items are material in the
financial statements. Materlality is judged by reference to the size and nature of the item. The deciding factor

is whether omission or misstatement could individually or collectively influence the economic decision that
users make on the basis of the financial statements.

Tax expense is calculated using app licable tax rate and laws that have been enacted or substantially

enacted. ln arriving at taxable profit and all tax bases of assets and liabilities, the Company determines the

taxability based on tax enactments, relevant judicial pronouncements and tax expert opinions and makes

appropriate provisi ons which includes an estimation of the likely outcome of any open tax assessments /
on closure of assessment or in the period in which they are agreed
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Assam Electricity Grid corporation Limited
Si nifi Accountinq olici

o when the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in thesebe measured based on quoted price in active markets, their fair. value istechniques' The inputs to these valuation techniques are taken from observabtewhere this is not feasible, a degree. 9f 
judgemeni is required in esiaolishing fairconsideration of inputs such as liquiditi ris-t<, 

"r"oit 
risr ino voi"tiliiv 

"t..o

financial statements cannot
measured using valuation

markets where possible, but
values. Judgements include

The company makes atlowances for doubtful tradg receivables (Expected credit Loss Altowance) based ona provision matrix which takes into account historical credit'toss experience and adjusted for currentestimates.

The determination of depreciation and amortisation charge depends on the useful lives for which judgementsand estimations are required. The residual vatues, useful tives, and method of depreciation/amortisation ofproperty' plant and equipment and intangible assets are reviewed at each financial year end and adjustedprospectively, if appropriate.

lnventories are stated at the lower of cost and net reatisable value. tn estimating the net realisable value ofinventories the company makes an estimate of future selling prices and costs necessary to make the sale.
Management judge.'"nl is.required for estimating the possible outflow of resources, if any, in respect ofcontingencies / claims / litigations against the c-ompany ,iii is not possible to predict the outcome ofpending matters with accuracy.

The company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of lnd AS 116"Leases"' ldentification of a lease iequires significant iuogmint in assessing-the tease term (includinganticipated renewals) and the applicable discoun-t rate.

a

a

o

a

Cu rrent and n on-curre classifi tion
The company presents assets and liabilities in the balance Jheet on currenvnon-current classification which isbased on the principles and definitions set out in n" s"t'"arr" rir of the companies Act 2013 as amended. Anasset is curent when it is:

' Expected to be rearized or intended to be sord or consumed in normar operating cycre;
. Held primarily for the purpose of trading;
. Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporling period; or
' Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to setfle a liability for at teast twelvemonth after the reporting period.

All other assets are classifled as non-current.

A liability is current when:

. It is expected to be setfled in normal operafing cycle;

. lt is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

. lt ls due to be settled within twelve months afterthe reporting periodi

' There is no unconditional right to defer settlement of the liapility for at least twelve months after the reportingperiod.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assetyliabilities are classified as non-current.

The Company recognizes twelve months period as its operating cycle.

FRN
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Assam Electricity Grid Gorporation Limited
Siq nificant Accountinq licies
Note 2.

C. Summary of significant accounting policies
2.1Property, plant and equipment (ppE) and intangible assetB
The company has opted to conslder the carrying value of Property, plant and Equipment as per previous G4trpon the date of transition to lnd AS (1st April, iozl; to u" tne aiemed cost as perlnd AS 1ol iRrsi time eooptionof Indian Accounting Standards,.

lnitial Recoonition and Measurement

Property, Plant and Equipment is initially measured at cost of acquisilion/cons_kuction including any costs direcgyattributable to bringing the asset to the location ano conoition ndcessary for it to ue capaoie"oi o'i:erating in themanner.intended by management. After initiar recognition, eroperty, etait ano eqriprJnir:"-#n:lo 
"t 

cost ressaccumulated depreciation / amortisation and accumurateo impairmeit tosses, ir any. 
'''

Property, Plant and Equipment acqu_lJed. as replacement of the existing assets are capitalized and iBcorresponding replaced assets removed retired from active use are rlprecognized. rr ttre cost oiitre replaced partor earlier inspection component is not available, the estimated cost of simita-i new partJ il;;;ti;; 
""mponent 

isused as an indication of what the cost of the existing paru inspeciion component wis when tire item was acquiredor inspection was carried out.

ln the case of commissioned a$ets,.deposit workvcost- plus contracts where linal setlement of bills withcontractors is yet to be effected, capitalization is done on provisional u"sis suul.ct io neiiss'arf'a ;ustments inthe year of final settlement.

Assets and systems common to more than one transmission system are capitslized on the basis of technicalestimates/ assessments.

Transmission system assets are_considered as ready for intended use from the date of commercial operationdeclared in .terms of AERCTariff Regulations and capitalizeO accorOingty.

Subseouent costs

An.item of Property, Plant and Equipment is derecognized when no future economic benefits are expected fromtheir use or upon their disposal. Tte g.ajn or loss arising on the aisposat or retirem;;i;f ariitenr ;f iroperry, ptant
and equipment is determined as the difference between the net diiposal proceeds and the carryinglmount oftheasset and is recognised in the statement of profit and Loss on the date oi oisposat or reiiremeni. 

''

CaDital Work-ln-Prooress ICwlPI

9::l_1-ll1:rl"l: -electjon 
charges and other expenses incuned for the cdnstruction of property, prant and

Equlpment and incidental expenditure incurred during construction of projects are shown under capltal work inprogress and allocated on a systematic basis to the cost ofthe related aisets on comptetion oiine frdects.

2.2 lntanqible Assets

lntangible assets are recognized when the entily controls the asset, it is probable that future economic benefits
attributed to the asset will flow to the entity and th6 cost of the asset can bL reliably measured.

At initial recognition, the separately acquired intangible assets are recognised at cost. lntangible assets with finite
useful lives are carled at cost less accumulated amortisation and accuirulated impakment iossei, if any.

lntangible assets are amorlised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset are reviewed at least at the end of each linancial year. Changes in the expected useful llfe or the

embodied in the asset are considered to modifu the

0007

subsequent expenditure is recogrized as.an increas_e 
_in carrying amount of assetrs when it is probable that future'- economic.benefits deriving from the cost incurred will flow toihe company and cost of the iterir can be measur€dreliably. 

.The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipmunt * r""ogn:."J'i'n tn" st"t"r"nt ofProfit & Loss as incurred.
- 

Derecoonition

u FRN
000143C
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Assam Electricity Grid Gorporation Limited
Sio nificant countin Policies
amortisalion period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The
amortisation expense on intangible assets is recognised in the statemeni of profit and Lloss unless such
expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the Statement of prolit and
Loss when the asset is de-recognised.

2.3 Depreciation / Amortization

Dep-reciation is provided as per Schedule_ ll ofthe Companies Act 2013, part,B, of this schedule states that,'Theuseful life or residual value of any specific asset, as notified for accounting.purposes by aieguLtory euthorityconstituted under an Act of parliament or by the central .Governmeni dtratt ue apitiea ii Ltculating thedepreciation to be provided for. such asset krespective of the requirements of tiris ScneOute". As suchdepreciation has been provided at the rates-specifiei in Appendixl to Asam gpancity neguratorv commission(Terms and conditions for determination of Multi Year Tari*) negutations, 2ozi 
", 

Siiiigiti; ilethod subjectto a maximum of 907o of the original cost of the asset. Rates of de-preciation are shown inine iolrowins 13ore:

FR

HAJ
ar\
o
C)
'oNu

a c143
f/

0

0008

Assets Depreciatio,n Rate

nd Owned under full tifleLa 0.00%

Land held under lease 3.34o/o

APDRP Land 0.00%

Building contain ing transmission installations 3.34o/o

Office Building 3.34o/o

rary erections such as wooden structuresTempo 100.00%

APDRP building 3.34%

Other Buildings 3.34o/o

Cooling Water System s.28%

Tower & Circulating Water SystemCooling 5.28o/o

water arrangement including reservoirs, etc.Sweet 5.28o/o

ant and Pipeline for water supply in residentialPI

colony 5.28o/o

Drainage & sweage residential colony 5.28o/o

Other Roads 3.34o/o

APDRP Other Civil Works 3.34o/o

Miscellaneous Civil Works 3.34o/o

Transformers 5.28o/o

Other plant & equipment 5.28o/o

00
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Assam Electricity Grid Gorporation Limited
nifi nt Ac untin olici

Material handling equipment-earth movers,
bulldozers

5.28o/o

g equipment-cement mixersMaterial handlin 5.28%

andlin g eq uipment-cranesMaterial h 5.28o/o

g equipment-othersMaterial handlin 5.28o/o

Switch-gear including cable connections 5.28o/o

ng charging equipmentsBatteries includi 18.00o/o

op/work-shop Plant & EquipmentFabrication sh 5.28%

Lightning Arresto rs (Pole Type) 5.28o/o

Lightning Arrestors (Station Type) 5.28o/o

uipment-Radio & High
Frequency carrier system

Communication Eq

6.33%

Communication Equip ment-Teleph one Lines &
Telephones 6.33%

ine tools & equipmentsStatic mach 5.28o/o

Air Conditioning plant static 5.28o/o

itioning plant portableAir Cond 9.50%

Meter testing laborato ry tools & equipment 5.28o/o

ipment in hospital/clinicsEqu
5.28o/o

Tools & Tackles 5.28%

Show-room equipment 5,29o/o

miscellaneous equipmentOther 5.29o/,

supports operating at nominal voltages higher than
66KV

Ove towers les fixtunes( overheadpo res,
cond ucto &rS devices nes fabricatedon) steel

5.28o/o

nes(towers, poles, fixtures, overhead
conductors & devices) - lines on fabricated steel'
supports operating at nominal voltages from 13.2
l(/ to 66 1(\/

Over-head li

5.28o/o

towers, poles, fixtures, overhead
conductors & devices) - lines on reinforced concrete
supports/steel supports-11 l(/ and above

Over-head lines(

5.28o/o

FRN
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Assam Electricity Grid Gorporation Limited
nifica Acco n Pol ies

Over-head lines(towers, poles, fixtures, overhead
conductors & devices) - lines on treated wood
supports 5.28o/o

Up gradation transmissi on & distribution network(
33 to 66) 5.28o/o

s including joint boxes &
disconnecting boxes-1 1 KV

Underground cable

5.28o/o

cables-cable duct systemsUnderground
5.28o/o

Metering equipment 5.28o/o

iscellaneous EquipmentsM
5.28o/o

Trucks 9.50%

kkers & Motor CarsJeeps. Tre 9.50%

Other Vehicles 9.50%

Furniture & Fixtures 6.33%

wiring, Light & Fan lnstallationsElectrical 6.33%

Others 6.33%

Calculators 6.33%

Typewriters 6.33%

Registers in Cash OfficesCash 6.33%

Refrigerators & water coolers 6.33%

Telephone & EPABX 6.33%

Computers 15.00o/o

Other Office Equipment 6.33%

2.4 lnventories

lnventories of stores and spares as at the end of the year are valued at cost.

2.5 Financial I nstruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments.

FRN
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Assam Electricity Grid Gorporation Limited
Siqnificant Accounting Policies
Financial Assets

lnitial Recognition and Measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets. These
include kade receivables, cash & cash equivalents, bank balances other thin cash & cash equivalents and other
financial assets.

Classification and Subsequent Measurement

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income or fair value through pro_fit or loss depending on its business model for managi-ng those financial assets
and the asset contractual cash flow characteristics.

Financial Assets at Amortised Cost

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial
assel give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outslanding.

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Gomprehensive lncoms
A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it ls held withln a
business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual tash flows and selling financial assets
and the contractual terms of the flnancial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are-solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories is subsequently fair valued through profit
or loss.

Derecognitlon

The Company derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expires or it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and iewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity and does not retain control of the asset.

lmpairment of Financial Assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit or loss, are assessed for indicators of impairment at
the end of each reporting period. The Company recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses on
financial asset. ln case of trade receivables, the Company follows the simplified approach permitted by lnd AS
109 "Financial lnstruments" for recognition of impainnent loss allowance. The application of simplified approach
does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. The Company calculates the expected credit losses
on trade receivables using a provision matrix on the basis of its historical credit loss experience.

Financial Liabilities

lnitial Recognition and Measurement

Financial liabilities include borrowings, lease liability and trade payables etc.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and in the case of borrowings and trade payables, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

Classifi cation and Subsequent Measurement

The financial liabilities are classified as either 'financial liabilities at f;air value through profit or loss' or 'financial
liabilities at amortised cost.

Financial liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

Financial liabilities are classified at fair value through profit or loss when the flnancial liability is held for trading or
are designated upon initial recognition as fair value through profit or loss. lt includes derivative financial
instruments entered into by the Company that are not deslgnated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships.

nised in the statement of profit and loss.
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Assam Electricity Grid Corporation Limited
Si nifica Accounti Polici
Financial liabilities at Amortised Cost

other financhl liabllities (including borrowings and trade payables etc.) are subsequengy measured at amorgsedcost using effective interest method.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the.liability is discharged or cancelled or expired.Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is incl-uded in the statemenf of proriiiiJlos"-"t e-n the tiabitity isderecognised.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities arc offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, andonly when, the company currently..has. a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either tosetlle them on a net basis or to rearise the aJsei and setfle the liability simurtaneousry.

Derivative Financial lnstrumenta

Derivative financial instruments are.such a9 fonitrard contracts, cunency and interest rate swaps to hedge itsf6reign curency and interest rate risks. Such derivative financia'l instruments are initially i"*gnd"o at fair valueon the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequentty remeasu'reo 
"ii"ir}lr".Derivatives are caried as financial assets when the fair value'is positive and as financial liabilities when the fairvalue is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken to statement of profit and loss.

2.6 Revenue nition

Revenue from Contracts with Customel€

a) Revenue from contract with customers is recognized when control of the goods or services are transfened tothe customer at an amount that reflects the conslderation to which the dorp"nv .rpLG lo- be enti ea inexchange for those goods or services.

b) Recognition of revenue is postponed due to the effect of uncertainties of ultimate collec{ion, and revenue isrecognized in the period when such uncertainties cease to exist.

Revenue is measured at the fair value ofthe consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed as revenue
are net of relums, trade allowances, rebates and value added taxes.

Transmission lncome is accounted for based on tariff orderF notified by the AERC. In case of transmissionprojects where final tariff orders-are yet to be notified, transmission income is acmrnteo- roi as per tariff
regulations and orders of the AERC in similar cases. Difference, if any, is accounted on isjuance of final tariff
orders by the AERO. The company has recognised revenue in books oflccounts as stated bel;;:

Other Revenue Recognition

a) lnterest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the
interest rate applicable using Effective Interest rate Method.

b) Dividend will be recognzed when the entities right to receive payment is established, economic benefit will flow
to the entity and amount can be measured reliably.

c) Other income such as rent & hire charges, sale of scrap and Mlscelleneous lncome are accounted for on
accrual basis.
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2.7 Emplovee Benefits

Pursuant to the Transfer scheme, the Govemment of Assam (GoA) vide its Notification No.pEL.19012004/6g
9't"9 4* F-ebruary, 2005 notified a o.lan for ,""ting ;ui iit,; t"rminal benefit obligations of personnet sotransferred from ASEB to successor entities. As per Cla-use 1.S of the saiO notincaiion ;-ferminai 

Benefit,, means
!!e 49EB': emproyee rerated riabirities incruding payment of pension, gotrit l;;ru'"n;#;; and GenerarProvident.Fund and anv other retlfmglt oenetti ino other'appticabti benliits i;;i;;-rigi,i io appropriaterevlsions in the above benefits .consistent with the practice 'tirat were prevalent in n"SE6. 

'Rccounting 
torRetirement Beneflts in the Financial Statements of Emf loyers-provision for'pension, c;"ilit;"; Leave SataryEncashment have been provided as per actuarial valuition under lnd AS-19 but pioviief, 

-as 
per coR'snotification.

(a) Funding for pasfunfunded terminal liabilities shall be on the basis of actuarial valuation done as at gth
December 2004..and 4h.May 2019. ln respect ot 

""st, 
outflo*s towards past-unfuno"a iiauiritie" of existingemployees, existing pensioners and existing famiry pensioners, tunoing pattLm wiii ul, g,;i;;;;'the aforesaidGovernment notification.

(b) Funding for future services-Terminal Benefrts:

The Corporation makes a provision 
-for 

terminal lenefits liability for future service of its permanent employeesjoining in the service before 01.01.2004 @ 33.50o/o of Basic Pay ptus oearn"ii ntt"*"""!]" 'p"i 
eeRc and inthe line with the GoAs Notification mentioned above arid Board,s approval of ltem No. 9 daled 22.01.2021.

(c) Leave Encashment benefit (LEB) of employees:

Leave encashment benefits of the old employees are accounted for on cash basis and the claim for recovery ofthe appropriate share of such amount,j.e., share of past llability relating to period pri"; t" oi.o4.iijds is fonrvarded
to the pension trust authorities as per coA's Notificaiion mentioned here-in-above.'
(d) GPF deductions/payments of employees:

Payment on account of GPF (Final Withdrawal and Non-refundable advance) to the existing employees is beingmade from the GPF Account of the Corporation. Claim for recovery of approiriate in"r" ofluch fund, i.e., shareof past-unfunded liability is also fonruarded to the Pension Trust auihorities as per GoA Notification mentioned
here in above.

Provision for interest payable on GPF is made @7.10 % per a;num on thd opening balance and the average
subscription of the employees during the year.

(e) Terminal benefit for new emproyees (appointed on or after 1.1.2004):

New pension Scheme is being implemented for the new emptoyees of the Corporation as per Government of
lndia Notification No.5/7 /2003-ECB & pR dated 22.12.2003.

Assam Electricity Grid Corporation Limited
Sio nificant countin Policies

2.8 Accounting for Government Grants

Granls and_ subsidies from the government are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that the grant /
subsidy will be received and all attaching conditions will be complied with.Where the government grant / slbsidy
relates to revenue, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis in the statemenfof profit anj bss over thil
periods necessary to match them with the related costs, which lhey are intended to compensate. Government
grant and subsidy receivable against an expense are deducted from such expense. Wtreie tfre grant / subsidy
relates to an asset, government grant and. subsidy !'eceivable against an asset are deducted fro-m ttre carryini
value of such asset or adjusted with depreciation charged on assets.

Grants in aid of the nature of promoter' s contribution on the'date of transition are treated under other equity.
AEGCL has converted all the Govt. Gra nts as on 01 .04.2A21 into equity as per the order of GoA vide letter No
PEL.5812021 lPt.l 105 dated 03.02.2022. Accounting for Govt. grants received during current year and previous
year has been recognised under non current liability.The Government grants for specific fixed assets are treated
as a deferred income in the financial statements and this income is recognized gradually in the Profit and Loss
account over the useful life. Depreciation on such assets is reduced from non current

and Loss
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Assam Electricity Grid Gorporation Limited
Siqnificant Accountin q Policies
2.9 Seqment Repoilinq

The company is governed by the Electricity Act, 2003.The Company's primary activities entail transmission of
electricity to APDCL. This is the only activity performed and is thus also the main source of risks and returns. The
Company's segments as reviewed by the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) does not result into
identificafion of different ways/ sources into which they see the.performance of the Compairy.

Accordingly, the company has a single reportable and geographical segment i.e Transmission of electricity and
operating in lndia respectively. Hence, the relevant disclosures as per lnd AS 108, Operating Segments are not
applicable to the company.

2.10 Taxes on lncome

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax.

Current income tax

Currenl income tax is measured al the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the
lncome Tax Act, 1961.

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered ftom or paid to
the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted, at the reporting date.
Current income tax relating lo items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in
other comprehensive income or in equity).

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. Deferred tax liabilities
are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary dlfferences, the carry fonrvard of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the exent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which fte deductible temporary differences, and the carry foMard of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the exent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the defered tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity. Deferred tax assets and defened tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the defened taxes relate to
the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Tax credit is recognised in respect of Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in terms of sec{ion 115 JAA of the
lncome Tax Act, 1961 based on convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax within
statutory time frame and the same is reviewed at each reporting date.
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Assam Electricity Grid corporation Limited
nifi tAc untin olici

2.11 Cash Flow Statement

cash flows are reported using the in-direct method prescribed in the lnd AS 7 ,statement of cash Flows,, wherebyprofit before tax is adjusted for the effect of transaciions of a non-Lsh.nature, any deferral or accruals of past andfuture operating cash receipts or payments and items of income aisociatea wittr iirvesting oi f,;iijig ca"h no*s.
2.12 Cash and cash equivalents

cash and cash equivalents include cash on h_and and at bank, and fixed deposits with banks having a maturity ofthree months or less from the date of acquisition that are iiiiirv 
""rir"-rt,oiJi"''j 

ffiffififfii'licash and aresubject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

2.13 Earninqs per share

2.16 P ons. co nqent liabi lities and continqent

Provisions are recogdised when the company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result ofa pastevent, it is probable that an outflow of. resources embodying iconomic-benefits *u u" ilqrr"o to setfle theobltsation and a retiabte estimate can be made of ffre aho-unt of rhe obtig;rio;. iil ;;;;;;; retating to aprovision is charged/provided in the statement of profit and loss.

The company does not recognize i contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statementsContingent liability is disclosed in the case of:

' A Present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources will not
be requlred to settle the obligation

' A present obligation arising from past events, when no reriabre estimate is possibre

' A possible obligation arising from past events, unless the probability of outflow of resources is remote.
Contingent liabilities are reviewed at each reporting date

Basic earnings per share are c*Il3ted by divlding._the net profit or.loss.for the period atkibutabte to equityshareholders by the werghted average number of eq,iity snarislutstandrng during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period atkibutable to equityshareholders and the weighted average number of shares outitanding during the period are adjusted for the

2.14 Accountinq for Expenses.

All the expenses are accounted for on a@rual basis as and when it gets accrued.

2.15 Borrowino Costs

Borrowing cost includes interest .and ancillary costs incuned in connection with the arrangement ofborrowings and charged to srarement of profit andioss on tne uasis ot enectir" i"i"il"i iil iEinl]"
Borrowing cost includes exchange. differences arising from foreign currency bonowings to the extent they areregarded as an adjustment to the interest cost

Borowing cost that are attributable to the acquisition or construction.of.a qualifying asset are capitalised as partof the cost of such asset till such time th-e as#t is reaay tor itt inteno"o usi. n qu&iryin|;;"t i5 ;; asset thatnecessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use.
All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.

Contingent assets usually arise from unpla
inflow of economic benefits to the entity.
virtually certain, then the retated asset is
assets are reviewed at each reporting date- is probable.

nned or other unexpected events that give rise to the possibility of an
Contingent assets are recognized when the realization of income is
not a contingent asset and its recognition is appropriate. contingent
' A contingent asset is disclosed where an inftow of economic benlfits
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Assam Electricity Grid Gorporation Limited
Siqnificant Accountinq Policies
2.17 lmoairm of Non-Financi al Assets

The carrying amount of assets are reviewed at each reporting date if there'is any indication of impairment based
on internal and external factors.

An impairment loss is recognised wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. An
asset's recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. ln assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their preseit value using a pre.tax oiicount rate that
reflects current market assessments of thelime value oJ money ind the risks speciirc tothe asset. ln determinlng
fair value less cost of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. lf no such GnsaAion can bi
identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

A previously recognised impairment loss is further provided or reversed depending on changes in circumstances.
Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased iarrying amount does not ex@ed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairmerit loss been recognised for the asset in prio-r
periods. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

2.18 General Provident Fund:

glf liability is payable to an employee only after completion of 25 years of qualifying services. Accumulation of
GPF is utilized as internal resources by the Corporation. As such C-pf has been iho*n as unsecured loan.

2.19 FST, Charqe

BST charge payable to Pension Trust has been calcutated @20 paisa per unit on the actuat energy injected to
APDCL.

2.20 Leases

a) The Company recognizes a right-of- use asset and a lease liabillty at the transition date.i.e April 01, 2021. The
right of- use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of lease llability adjusted for
any lease payments made at or before the commencement date , plus'anlr inltial direct cost incuffed and an
estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on
which it is located, less any lease incenlives received.

b) The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencemenl
date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use-asset or the end of the lease term. The estimated
useful life of the right-of-use asset is determined on the same basis as those of property, ptant and equipment. ln
addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain
remeasurements of the lease liability. However the company is applying depreciation method as per AERC
regulations.

c) The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Company's incremental borrowing rate.

d) The lease liability is measured at amortized cost using the effective interesl method, it is remeasured when
there is a change in future lease payments from a change in an index or rate. When the lease liability is
remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right -of-use asset, or
is recorded in the profit and loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.
The company has made one lime payment for right of use assets and no lease payments are due in future.
Therefore no lease liability has been recognized in company financial statements.

e) The Company presents right-of-use asset that do not meet the definltion of lnvestment property in the "Right of
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Assam Electricity Grid Gorporation Limited

S qnificant Accountinq Policies

0 Short term Lease and Leases of low value assets:-The Company has elected not to recognize right-of-use
asset and lease liabilities for short term leases that have lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low value
assets, The Company recognizes the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a
straighuine basis over the lease term.

nts ardin chan ntin Stand effective at th
Sheet Date

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ('MCA') notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under
Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On March 31, 2023, MCA amended
the Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2015, by issuing the Companies (lndian
Accounting Standards) Amendmenl Rules, 2023, which are applicable for annual reporting periods beginning
from April 01,2023, as below:

lnd AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements

This amendment requires the entities to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant
accounting policies. Accounting policy information, together with other information, is material when it can
reasonably be expected to influence decisions of primary users of general purpose financial statements. The
Company has evaluated the amendment and the impact of the amendment is insignificant in the Company's
f inancial .statements.

lnd AS I - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

This amendment will help entities to distinguish between accounting policies and accounting estimates. The
definition of change in accounting estimates has been replaced with a definition of accounting estimates. Under
the new definition, accounting estimates are 'monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject to
measurement uncertainty.' The Company has evaluated the amendment and there is no significant impact on its
financial statemenls.

lnd AS 12 - lncome Taxes

This amendment has narrowed the scope of recognition exemption so that it no longer applies to transactions
that, on initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences. The Company does
not expect to have any significant impact on its financial statement.

Other amendments

Other amendments include amendments in lnd AS 102, Share- based Paymenls, lnd AS 103, Business
Combination, lnd AS 109, Financial lnstruments, lnd AS 115, Revenue from contract with customers are mainly
editorial in nature in order to provide better clarification of respective lnd AS. The Company does not expect to
have any significant impact on its financials statements.
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3b

tusam ElectrlciW Grid Corporation Limited

ljotes to the financial statements

3b.1

remaining depreciable value shall bc spread over the balance uscful life ofthe assets.

Rr. In Lakh

4

Rs. In

'- 5

e
f

E
a a

Ar at Mnrch 31,2023 As at March 31.2022 As at April 1.2()21

Land
Cost
Opening balance ar thc bcsinning ofthe year

AdditionVdisoosals durinc the vear

30.00 30.00 30.00

Balance the 30-00 30.00 30.00

Accrlmulated denrecinlion and Rmonllatlon
Opening balance at the beginning ofthe ycar

Depreciation/amortization during the year

5.61

0.90

4.71

0.90
3.81

0.90

of the 6.51 5.61 4.71

Net Cnrryinq f,mornt 21.49 2439 25.29

Capital work in progress As at March 31' 2023 As at March 3\2Az
Restated

As at April 1,2021

Restated

Opening balance at ofthe year

Additionddisposals during the year

62,864.56
(7,225.94)
20.310.69

57,104. l4
3,774.26
I,986.l6

85,9'17.42
(6,s76.43)

02.296.8s\

Total 75,949.31 62.864.s6 57.104.14

IWIP neeins schedute as nt March 31'2023 Amount in CWIP for:a neriod of
Particulan Less than I year 1-2 yeers 2*3 yean Morc thrn 3 yeerr As rt Merch 31,2023

Project in progress 26.052.80 29.5'13.@ E.907.12 l1.416.3t 75.949.31

Total 26,052.80 29.573.09 8.907.12 11.41631 75.949.31

CWIP at Mnrch 3 Amount in CWIP fsr t period of
Perticulars Lesr than I year l-2 ycan 2J years More than 3 years As at Marth 31,2022

Restrted

Project in progress 29.573.09 8.907,12 t6.683.96 7.700.40 62.864.56

Total 29-573.09 8.907.12 16,683.96 7.700.40 62-E64.56

Mnrch Amorrnl in C\ilIP for a ocriod of

Particulars Lcsr than I year 1-2 yers 23 years More than 3 years As et April l,2021

Pro.iect in progress 8.907.12 16.683.96 I 7.580.E7 t3.932.19 57. I 04. l4

Total 8,907.12 16.6E:r.96 17.s80.87 13.932.19 57.1M.14

Investments (Non current) Quantity Face Velue ({) As at March 31,2023 As at Marcb 31,2022 As at April l,2021

cnrried at cost less accumulated impeirment. if any

Investment in Equity shares fullv paid up (Unquoted)
l0 5,348.20 5,348.20 5.348.20

5J48.20 5J48.20 534E.20

FRN
000143c
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I ,ro.rr.o*Norrh East Transmission Comoanv Ltd
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Assam Electriclty Grid Corporation Umlted

Notes to the financial statcments

6

7

8.t After conducting a
8.54 crore as on 3 I ;?1;i:'ff,:i:::"'1ffi':'jJ:y:I":Tri.i',:::. orstocks and phvsical verification report orstocks dunnsF.t 2022-23, AEGCL has anived at a diffcrcncc amount or(

8.2

necessary to make the sale.

r l{Alt'/
(P

tr
a

(1
CJ
a

financinl assets (Non current)

more

As at March 3lr}Vls As at March 31,2022 As at April 1,2(Dl

48,083.88 8,875.33
48,083.E8 8,87533 2,548.40

Rs.

(Unsecured, considered good unless other.wise stated)
Expenses on Surveys or feasibility Studies

Advance to supplierVcontractors

Ar at March 31,2023 As at March 3l,2O2Z As at April I,202I

96.4E

7,4t0.67
35.8I

7,237 .13

26.56

7,507,15 7272.94 957.10

Inventories
As at March 31,2023 As at March 31,2(nz

Rcstrted
As at April 1,2021

RestatcdStock account
Materials Stock account
Material account 847. l0

331.97

2,496.51

750.s3
327.99

ll
E0/..2t
323.46

I

FRN
000143C
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tusam Electricity Grid Corporation Limlted

Notes to the financial stntements

9

9.1 Trade

Trade receivables

ss at

2022

Trade receivrbles As at March 3lr2023 As at March 31,2022
Restnted

As et April t,2021

Unsecured, Considered good

t4-523.5s 14,698. I 8 14.761.45
14,523.55 14,69E.18 74,761.45

Rs. In

Particrrlars Less than l-2 yeers 2-3 years Morc than
6 3 Total

(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables
- Considered good
- Significant incrcase in credit risk
- Credit impaired
(ii) Disputed Trade Receivables
- Considered good
- Significant increase in credit risk
- Credit impaired

14.523.55
14,523.55

Particulars
due Less than l-2 years years than

3
Total

(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables
- Considered sood
- Sig,nificant increase in credit risk
- Credit impaired
(ii) Disputed Trade Receivables
- Considered good
- Significant increase in credit risk
- Credil imoaired

14.698. 8 l,l.69E.lE

Particulers for followinq neriodr from drr e dste ofpeyment
Not due Less than

6 months
6 months -
I vear

1-2 years 2-j years More than
3 years Total

(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables
- Considcred good
- Significant increase in credit risk
- Credit impaired
(ii) Disputed Trade Receivables
- Considered good
- Significsnt increase in credit risk
- Credil imoaired

14.761.45 14,76t.45

FRN
000143C
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l0

Assam Electricity Grid Corporation Umited

Notcs to the linrncirl rtrtcnrcntt

Rt.
ll

I1.1 Details

l2

In

t3

t4

l5

ls'l As per GoA's notification No. PEL. lgol2ao4/6g dated 4m February, 2005, the unfunded pasr liability on aceount of GpF and LEB will be funded through the
cash streams as mentioned therein and the existing Pension Ttust of ASEB will be the common trust for all the new companies. In terms of the said notification
and Board's approval of Item No. 8 dated 22.01.2021,the unfunded past liability towards GpF and LEB
Trust out of which the amount relating to GPF has been transferred to Other Reserve.

Ar et Merch 31,2023 Ar at Mrrrh 3\2A2
Rcrtetcd

Ar rt April l,2021
Rcrtttcd

less than

current accounts

on hand
with bank

t36.26

15,@5.33

t35.32

13,005.52

t25.29

10,543.74

Bank bahnccs other thm cuh end cerh equivrlentr Ar rt MrrcL 31,2923 Ar rt Mercl 31,2lD2 Ar et April 1,2021
Other balances

-ln than three but 60.244.34 E9.41E.55 E7-274.89
60,.1431 89,418.55 E7271.89

STDRs managed by AEGCL(Principal accounts)

STDRs managcd by AEGCL-NERPSIp

STDRs managod by NPS ccll, AEGCL
managed by CPF-I, AECCL

50,Ert.00

3 t 5.45

6,327.70

1,000.@

E1,19,6.53

258.9t

1,6@.0o

6,363. I I

?9,O58.25

529.O3

1,600.00

6,0E7.61

Totrl
t.s5 E7,

Loen: Ar et Mrrth 31,2923 Ar rt Mrrch 31, Ae rt April 1,2021

Amount Reccivable from enrployees
Advances To APDCL

considcrcd othcrrviscunlcugood rtrtcd)
and[,oans toadvances staff 108.'7

4.2:2

o.y7

n.25
4.22
o.97

87.70
4.22
0.97

.81

Other Firrancial

Ar rt Merct 3\2A3 Ar rt Merch 31,2U22 Ar et April l,2O!l

From APDCL
10,525.01

2.36

I0,525.01

3.t6
10,525.01

1.94Y
t0s2737 10,52E.17 10,526.95

Current lnx issett (net)

Ar rt Mfrci 3l,ztil5 Ar rt Mrrri 31,21!22
Rcstracd

Ar rt Aprfl l,20!1
Rcrtrtcd

doducted at source
1,579. I E

l-004.s4
t,644.20
t,(n4.54

1,671.70

1,0o4.54

25E3.72 2,64E.71 2.576.24

Other crrrent essets

Ar at Merch 31,2023 Ar et March 3\2022
Restrtcd

Ar rt April 1,2021
Restatcd

red, conrldered good unless olhcrwlse stetcd)
Accrucd but not Due

for O&M supplieVworks

Unit A,/c - Materials

Unit A./c - Capital Expo,diture & PPE

Unit A./c - Other Transaction / Adjusnicnts
From Pension Trust

Reccivables

2,7E6.50

1,707.72

770.57

2.00

I t3.E3

24,671.59

t,42t.u
t.49

2,2E8.97

1,707.23

770.6
2.@

l t3.83

23,694.96

1,404.14

t.49

1,538.63

1,707.77

78E.e3 
l

3t.14 |

t t3.e3 
I

246s9.tE I

rJeo.oe I

l.4e I

31,47a.74 29,9E32E 2E:31.t6

FRN
000143C
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0022

paid during the year has been claimed from pension

Crh rnd cash cquivelcnts

15.231.59 13.1{O.8r lo-559.

60-21134

99.69 97-11

Totrl
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re ca As at March 3112023 As et March 3l,20lz As at April 1,2021

l99 9.

30,00,00,000 (previous year - 1,00,00,000) Equity
Shares of face value of Rs. I 00/- each

Js.s_ugd. Subscribed and Fullv paid up
269,338,558 (March 2022: 99,93,19 aj
Shares offace value ofRs. 100/- each

Total

Equity

19 l9

Assam Electricity Grld Corporaflon Limited

Notes to the financial statements

t6

l6.l

In

16,2 Tcrmr,rish6 .ttched to cquit !hrr..

hav! b€or i$ucd by &c conp€ny for comi&rarion othcr rlEr c€rlr' duurs rhe e;ril of;;-; ffimdiitlty prcccdiry rt c ,.p.rtirs ddc.

ffirlT:HY#'##" 
or.quitv sh'rct hrvins p'r laluo orINR l0o plr star. Esoh hold"" ofcqdtv sharcs tu arirlcd 0o orc votc p.r durc. Ttc compauy will doclan

dilrdldon will bc in FotDnion ro drc numbcr ofcquiry st&ccLfa ry m 
"r"r*o -".

16.3 D€trib ofrhrnhotden hotdirs morc rh S% rhrrc. in rtt Conprny

Number of sheres AmountEquity shares ofINR 100 each
As at April 1,2021

the yearIssued gg,g3,lg4 9,gg3.lg

t9
2,59,34s.37at3

26,93,39,559 2,69,338.56

atofthe shareholder
NumberEqui8 shares of INR 100 each

Govemment of Assam
26,93,39,559 100%

t March 3 2022Name the shareholder
Number 7" Holdins

Government of Assam
Equity shares of INR 100 each

99.93.t94 l00o/"

2021Name of the sha reholder
Equity shares of INR
Govemment of Assam

100 each

194 100%

FRN
000143c

tr,
aa

H

0ft?.3

a

3-00-000.00 10.000.00

3.00.000.00 10.000.00 10.000.00

2-69_338 s6

2,69.338.s6

As etAnr
Numtrer t"lHoldino

Page 148 of 284



Assam Electricity Grid Corporation Limited

Notes to the financial statements

(Rs. In Lakh)

16.4 Details of shareholding of Promoters

As at March 31,2022 As et A,pril l,2021

Name of the shareholder
Number 7c Holding Number 7" Holding 7n Change during the

Equity shares of INR 100 each
Govemment of Assam (GOA) 99,93,194 l00o/" 99,93,194 100% Nil

rcs lo-11ry1!* **d Loen Eom Gol/cmrl&nt oftu.638.41 crorE rnd Grant ofAEGcL oftu. 1955.0J crorc 
'3 

on 3t.03.2021 hro €{uity ofR!. 2593.46 .I0& in fimcidyc$ zo2z-2021 .! rpprov.d b, Hotr btc c!birx{, cOA.

t7 Lakh

Nature and purpose ofreserves:

1ry1004/69 datcd 04-02-2005

cFA fii3 lus bc.n donc as pcr Rcgula on No. 67.9 ofAERc MYT Rcgulations, 2021 b Ec.t cxp.nrcs sri3itrg our of..cid.ots, rlatursl cal*iti"u or oir"r*ruoo" [1*a rt. 
-_

conlrol ofthc Uc.rB...
c) Self-lruurancc Rasetw Includes 0.1% p.r rmurn ofgosr vslue offircd rsid! (GFA) rt thc cloa. ofthc yca! subjccr to lh.limit of l0% ofcFA i@ Fy 2Ol9-20 orl rrde to

with prior appoval ofrhc Board ofDircotoB ofAEGCL.

As at March 31,2023 As rt March 31,2022

Name of the shareholder
Number % Holding Number % Holding % Change during the

Year
Equity shares of INR 100 each
Government of Assam (GOA) 26,93,39,559 100% gg,g3,lg4 100% Nil

Other equity

Other
balanoe at the beginning ofthe year (refer note 42)

balance at the end of
Other Reserve

Opening balance at the bcginning ofthe year (refer note l7.l)
the

balance at of the

Statement of profit & loss

Opening balance at the beginning ofthe year
Changes due to prior period error
Add: Profit

balance at the the c

As at March 31,2023 As at March 31,2022
Restated

As at April L,2021
Restated

r,95,504.60
(r,95,504.60)

1,95,504.60 1,95,504.60

1,95,504.60 1,95.504.60

15,425.U
663.25

t4,4t0.54
1,015.10

14,410.54

16,08E.89 15,425.64 14,410.54

(36,473.01)

4.113.38

(41,744.25)

5.27t.24

(41,859.40)

ll5.l5

(32,359.63) (36,473.011 (4t,7U.zs
Contingency Reserve

Opening balance at the beginning ofthe year (refer note I 7. I )
AdditionlReduction the 2t

balance at the end ofthe 218.30
Insurance Reserve

Opening balance at the beginning ofthe year (refer note I 7. I )
Changes due to prior period error

the

769.44

246.52

495.67

273.77
495.67

balance at the end ofthe e 1,015.96 769.44 49s.67

0s.036.4{ 1,75,226.67 1.68.666.56

u
a

€
H

a
a^

G0?4

veer

t

*-

e

FRN
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Assam Electriclty Grid Corporation Limited

Notes to the financial statements

l8 In

18.1 Grant includes :-

lE 2 utilisation during the year includes depreciation on assets created out of grants and consumer contributions.

In

l9'l ffis company has converted Loans from Government of Rs. 638.4lcrore as on 3 l.o3.zozlinto equity in financial year 2022-2023 as approved by Hon,ble cabine! GOA.

r9'2 psfsil5 of terms of repayment and interest in respect of the unsecured long-term borrowings to be given here:a) State Govt. Loan :

Term loan of Rs' 8'79 crore at the rate of l}Yop.u, repayable in l0 yearly installments of INR g7.g0 lakh.Term loan of Rs' 3'606 crore at the rate of l}%p.a-, repayable in l0 yearly installments of INR 36.06 lakh.b) General Provident Fund :

At the rate of 7 )|yo p'a' (Previous year 7 -lo%p.a), repayable after completion of 25 years of quali$ing services of theemployee.

20 In La

H

I9

20'l Liability towards Pension Trust includes 33.50% of Pay plus DA of the permanent employees of AEGCL (excluding thosewho joined services on or after 01.01 .04) for the FY 2022-23 for terminal benefits liability for future service as per AERCand GoA's notification No'PEL.19012004169 dated 04.02.2005 and Board's approval of Item No. 9 dated 22.ol.2ozl.

20'2 Liability towards Pension Trust includes BST charge payable to pension Trust computed @ Rs. 0.20 per unit as approved bythe AERC vide Tarifforder dated 21.03.2022on th. actual energy injected to ApDCL during Fy 2022-23.

foo
'a
J3

u
a

t

Grants (Non current) As at 3l March 2023
As at 3l M*ch2O22

Restated
As atApril l,2O2l

Restatedcapital grant
Balance as at beginning of the year

Addition during the year

Utilisation the

Balance as at closi of the

22,649.62

28,557.72

617.91

221.00

22,646.66

2t9.04
330.08

109.08
50,598.43 22,648,62 221.00

(c) Grant From Central Govemment

(d) Customer's Contribution towards cost of capital assets

(a) Grant From GOA
(b) Grant From ADB

13,394.95

28,87t.54

8,331.94

5,446.93

15,41 1.39

1,790.40 22t.00

Borrowings (Non current) As at 3l March 2023 As at 3l Merch2022 As at April l,20Zl

State Govt. Loan
General Provident

Unsecured, at amortised cost

Fund

from ADB

1,151.70

l.l6

9,567.57
55,1 52.1 9

17.37

6,049.92
18,926.12

67 I

Provisions (Non current) As at 31 March 2023 As at April 1,2021

Liability towards pension trust
For Employee Benefits:

1,803.05 678.86 303.4s

Total I

FRN
000143c

s025

Ac

As at 3I March}L22
Rpsfsfed

303.4s
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Assam Electricity Grid Corporation Limited

Notes to the financial statements

2t
In La

Borrowings (Current) As at 31 March
2023

As at 3l March
2022

As atApril 1,2021

Repayment due on State govt loan

due on ADB loan

0

87.90
3,518.65

35,347.07
Total

87.90 72

'r)

22.1 Trade schedule as at March 3 2023

as 3

Outstanding for following periods from due date of the paymentParticulars

Not due Less than I
l-2 years 2-3 yeers More than 3 years

Total

(i) Undisputed frade eayables
. MSME

(ii) Disputed Trade Pavables
-MSME

I6,896.60
16,896.60

2022schedule as at March 3

Trade payables As at 31 March
2023

As at 3l March
2022

As at April 1,2021
Restated

a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
of

enterprises

Trade payable

Outstanding for following periods from due date of the paymentParticulars

Not due Lcss than I
l-2 years 2-3 yearc More than 3 years

Total

(i) Undisputed Trade Payables
.MSME

Disputed Trade Payables
.MSME

-Others

16,896.60
16,E96.60

at Marchbles sched 2023

In

In

Outstanding for following from due date ofthe paymentperiods

Particulars Not due Less than 1
l-2 years 2-3 yeers More than 3 years

Totel

.MSME
-Others
(ii) Disputed Trade Payables
.MSME

(i) Undisputed Trade Payables

t6,896.92
t6,896.92

schedule 2021at ril
I

Trade schedule as at A 2021

23

23.l llnterest accrued and due on borrowings
(a) Interest accrued & due on SG Loan (ADB)
(b) Interest accrued & due on State Govt Loan

5,466.45
33,t47.95

7,288.s9
44,079.51

9,tto.74
55,099.28

In
Other financial liabilities (current)

Interest accrued and due on borrowings
and from and contractors

As at 3l Merch
2023

As at 3l March
2022

As et April l, 2021

3E,614.39
I r,339.70

51,369.10
9,822.05

64,210.02
7,222.49

49,99.09 6I,190.15 71.432-5

FRN
000143c
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a
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vear

16.896.60
l6-896_
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Notes to the financiel statements

Assam Electricity Grid Corporation Limited

In La

.\
ira

.

24

In

25

25.r St!ffrelated provisior includes provision for bonus of Rs. 35, 00,000 
^ 

ard provision for gratuity ofemplo!,e€s who 8ra covercd uodar New pcllsioa
Scheme. Provision for bonus has be€n mad€ on the basis of expenditurc ofthe pevious year.

26

26.1

Other curreirt liabilities As at 31 March
2023

As at 31 March
2022

Restated

As at April 1,2021
Restated

Liabilities for capital supplies /works
Liabilities for O&M supplieJworks
Unpaid salaries, wages, bonus, etc.

Salaries, wages, bonus etc., Payable

Staffdeduction and recovery payable

Other Liabilities

Advance from APGCL

4,937.27
2,945.85

2.40
2,773.47

ss2.00

17,801.47

38.99

4,210.01
2,742.72

5.86
2,366.91

534.62

17,460.50

32.65

2,586.33
2,617.99

5.86
2,327.19

483.7t

14,755.73

32.65
Total 29,051.45 27,353.17 22,809.46

Provisions (current) As at 31 March
2023

As et 3l March
2022

Restated

AsetAprit 1,2021
Restated

for employee benefits
for

3,382.44
576.20

2,606.68
16E.27

2,01'1.16

4?6.03
3,958.64 2,774.95 2,493.19

Current tax liability (net) As at 3l March
2023

As at 3l March
2022

As at April 1,2021

Income tax

Particulars Amount in Rs.

Profit as per part II and III of Schedule VI

Less:

BROUGHT FORWARD LOSS OR UNABSORBED DEPRECIATION WHICHEVER IS LESS

Tax calculated @ 15.0o/o on Book Profit is Rs. 0

Tax Due @ 25o/o (Iumover for Fin. Year 2O2O-21 is tess than 400 Crore)

41,13,37,730

2,15,74,55A45
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Notes to the financial statements

27 Revenue from rations

28

Assam Electricity Grid Corporation Limited

In

27.1 A. Wheeling Charges of electric

Tariff Order, the above Wheeling Charge includes the foll

SLDC Charge of Rs. 6.50 Crore for Fy

energy is accounted on the basis of rates

2022-23
approved

vide Tariff Order dared Z7.O3.Z0ZZ. As per

by the Hon'ble AERC i.e., Annual Fixed

the said

Charge ofRs. 466.96 Crore including

owing.
aJ NetARR for Transmission for Fy ZOZZ-23 vide Tariff Order dated ZL.O3.ZOLZ_ Rs.4G 0.46 Crore.bJ SLDC Charges for FY 2022-ZZ vide Tariff Order dated 21.03.?,022- Rs.6.50 Crore.cJ AEGCL had made adjustment of cumulative Revenue Surplus along with the holding cost amounting to Rs. 31.S4 Croreapproved by the Hon,ble AERC after Truing up ofAEGCL for Fy Z0ZO-27,vide Order dated ZL.O3.ZOZZ, to the monthlybills raised to ApDCL during theFy Z0ZZ

Tariff
-23.

d) AEGCL had also made adjustment of cumulative Revenue Gap including carryi ng cost amounUng to Rs. 0.45 Crore approvedby the Hon'ble AERC after Truing up ofSLD C for FY 2020-Zl,vide Tariff 0rder dated 21.03.2022, to the monthly bills raised toAPDCL during the Fy Z0ZZ-Z\.

year were as

In Lakh

B' AEGCL had made a provision of Rs' L'20 crore for non realisation of revenue billed to ApDCL during Fy zozz-z3as per theiffifffj iffiiff:::''.|o|,'J;tJh: 
or 1 ckr or L32kV Biswanath chariari tpc) to rtanagar at corrpur ss, AEGSL, between

#tt 
considering the above adjustments Revenue from wheeling charges to ApDCL stood at Rs. 434.67crore for the Fy 2022-

,?., ;[Hltitative 
details of electrical energy transacted by the corporation during the Fy 2022-23along with previous

-_

Particulars For thc year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
3l Nlarch2022

Restatedue from services

(Transmission
Transmission

Wheeling charges (Transmission fromcharges) APDCL
Wheeling charges fromcharges accessopen consumers
Income from Incentive bitl

43,467.37

420.23
338.37

36,372.39

l,lgl.l5
264.36Total

44,225.97 37,927

Particulars
Unit

For the year
3l March 2023

f,'o r the year en
3lMarch2022

Total Energy Sent Out
Enerry Sent Out to ApDCL
Energy Sent Out to OA Consumers
Transmission Loss
Transmission Loss

Energy Injected
MU
MU
MU
MU
MU
o/,o

11073.63
10985.26

88.37
378.84

3.31i

11452.47 r0889.43
10524.64
10258.68

265.96
364.79

3.3s

Other income For the year ended
31 March 2023

f,'or the year ended
3lMarch2022

Restated

lOthers

Hire charges from others/suppliers
Sale ofscrap

Rentals from staff quarters

from customers

Interest

from Investment

Misc. receipts

Income from Investment

Interest on Fixed Deposits with Banks
Interest from Banks
Dividend

1.74

r33.89

12.90

14,174.43

s5.74

0.01

909. l9

5,093.69
226.36

t7.?8

88.28

13.97

10,479.61

tt7.56

s34.82

4,664.69
121.47

Total
.95 I6,039.17
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Assam Electricity Grid Corporation Limited

Notes to the financial statements

In Lakh

29 Bmployee benefit expenses For the year ended
3l March 2023

For the year ended
3l March 2022

Restated

Salaries, wages and bonus
Contribution to provident and other funds
Gratuity expenses

Payment of ex-gratia
Other Employee Costs
Staffwelfare

14,926.69
2,138.26

802.50

0.40
313.00

20.5t

t3,692.43
2,166.42

605.72

0,25
417.06

32.95
Total 18,10136 16,914.93

In

29.1 Contribution to Provident and other Funds includ€ 33.50olo ofBasic Pay and DA ofernployees whojoined in service prior !o 0l-01-
2004, which has b€cn paid to thc ASEB Employccs Pension Fund Inyesh€ot Trust and 14% ofBasic pay and DA of-einployecs who
arc cover€d und€r New PeNion Scheme. Payment of Gntuity includ€s Fovision for gratuity ofemployees x,ho arc coicrod under Nety
Ponsion Schemc.

30 Finance costs For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
3lMarch2022

Interest expense on:
- borrowings from govt and others

Less: Interest Capitalised

- other costs

248.79
45. l5

208.90

203.64
0.62

208.90
0.67

Total 204.26 209.57

30.1 Note: The weighted average capitalisation on the company's general bonowings is 3l.2lo/op.a. (3 I March 2022:Nil % p.a)

30.2 Borrowings from govt and,others include
Interest on State Govt. Loan
Interest on GPF

88.30
160.49

0.09
208.81

30.3 other Borrowing costs include Bank charges and Bank commissions.

H4
s
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Notes to the financial statements

31

Assam Electricity Grid Corporation Limited

In Lakh

In Lakh

Other expenses For the year ended
3l March 2023

For the year ended
3l March 2022

Restated

Repairs And Maintenance Expenses :
Repair and Maintenanoe of plant and Machinery
Repair and Maintenance of Building
Repair and Maintenance of Other Civil Works
Repair and Maintenance of Lines, Cable Net Works etc.
Printing & stationery

I Entertainments
Participation fees paid for Training/conference
Training of Staffand Officers
Fees for conducting recruitment & other Departmental Examinations
Misc. Expenses

Freight expenses

Other Purchase related expenses
Other Miscellaneous Expenses
Repair and Maintenance of Vehicles
Repair and Maintenance of Fumiture and Fixtures
Repair and Maintenance of Office Equipment

laneous losses written off

official

andfees other andfeesprofessional expenses
DA for non member of the Board

Prior period charges
Bulk S Tariff

I 
Travelling & conveyance
Insurance charges
Telephone Charges
Postage, Telegram & Tele Charges
Consultancy fees and expenses
Audit Fees

Rent Rates & ta,res
Legal charges

lAdvertisement and Contributions
Conhibution to charities, etc.
Hiring of Vehicles
Electricity Charges
Water charges

Fees including TA &
Fees & Subscription
Book and Periodicals

3.33
45.76

210.91
392.38
80.77
0.32

24.08

0.08
15.43

t.22
6.93

2.28
8.20
4.87

20.09
I1.83
60.82

3,443.52

2t 0.52

837.87
510.48

98.71

415.69
48.64

24s.60
310.87

14.01

2.82
41.60

9.E4

50.32
t4.87
77.39

3t.07
298.55

743.53
2t8.tt
47.79

352.31
27.79

176.37
28t.61

t2.51
2.40

40.45

7.t2
53.87
I1.48
42.39

12.t9
434.72

3.29
28.19

2.87
308.26
162.60

0.45
37.69

0.47
35.43

t.37
7.89
2.29

r8.41
0.72

26.86
8.55

47.89
t80.44

8.02Total
29, 11.67 19,726.33

Detail of Payment to Auditors For the year ended
3l March 2023

For the year ended
3lMarch2022

RestatedAs auditor:

Others
audit fee

fee
5.33
0.32
4.18

5.33

0.32

t.47Total
9.84 7.12
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Notes to the financial statements

32 Earnings per share (EPS)
The

Assam Electricity Grid Corporation Limited

reflects the and loss share data used for the basic and diluted EPS

ll
#

(1

u o
o

a

t

Particulars For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
3l March2022

Restated
Net profit(loss) for calculation of basic EPS

Weighted average number of equity shares for calculating basic EpS

Basic earningV(loss) per share

Net profit/(loss) for calculation of diluted EPS
Weighted average number of equity shares for calculating diluted EPS
Diluted earnings(loss) per share

(In Rs.)

(In Rs.)

(In Rs.)

(In Rs.)

41,13,37,730

26,93,38,559

1.53

41,13,37,730
26,93,39,559

1.53

52,71,23,939

99,93,194

52.75

52,71,23,939

99,93,194
s2.75

FRN
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Assam Electricity Grid Corporation Limited

Notes to the financial stetements

- 33 Financial instruments-fair valuer and accounting classification

s) The following table provides the fair value measuremcnt hierarchy to thc financial assets and financial liabilities of the Company :-

(Rs. In Lakh)
Particulars As at 3l March 2023 As at 31 Mrrch 2022 (Restated) As at April 1,2021 (Rertated)
Finenciel Assets

Amortiscd cost

Financial Assets- current
Tradc reccivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents
Loans

Other financial assets

Financial Assets- non ctrrrent
Investrnents

Othcr financial assets

Crrrvine Value Fair Vglue Crrryine Value Fair Velue Cerrying Velue Fair Velue

14,523.55

r5,23 1.59

60,244.34

I17.81

10,527.37

5,348.20

48,083.88

t4,523.55

15,231.59

60,2M.34
I17.81

t0,527.37

5,34E.20

48,083.E8

14,698. t8
13,140.84

89,418.55

99.69

10,528.17

5,348.20

8,875.33

14,698. l8
r3,140.84
89,418.55

99.69

10,528.t7

5,348.20

8,875.33

14,761.45

10,669.03

87,274.E9

97.t4
r0.526.94

5,348.20

2,548.40

t4,76t.45
10,669.03

E7,274.89

97.t4
10,526.94

5,348.20

2,548.40
Total 1,54,076.75 1,54,076.15 I.42.108.96 1,42,108.96 1.31.226.O5 1,31,226.05
Financial Liabilities

Amortised cost

Borrowings-non current
Loans from ADB
State Govt. Loan

General Provident Fund

Borrowlngr-current
Repayment due on ADB loan

Repayment due on State govt loan

Trade payables

Other financial liabilities- curcnt

I, l5 1.70

2,08 t.16

87.90

16,896.60

49,954.09

l, 15 1.70

2,08 l. l6

87.90

16,896.60

49,954.09

9,567.57

55,152. l9
2,660.28

16,896.60

61,190. 15

9,567.57

55,152. l9
2,660.28

16,896.60

61,190. t5

6,M8.92
r8,926.t2
3,5t7.37

3,51E.65

35,347.07

16,E96.92

7t,432.51

6,048.92

LE,926.12

3,517.37

3,518.65

35,347.07

t6,896.92
71,432.51

Total 70,171.45 70,171.45 1,45,466.79 1145,466,79 1,55,687.55 1,55,6E7.55

Iimocirl llrlruflcrt'-trrir v.lu. hi.'rnhy

dcqib.d a follo*:
i) trEl I ltrputi u. quoEd pricts (un 4iust d) i" ,ctirr Er*cts for ido ic.l .s.r. o. lhbilili!*
ii) lrvcl2 Lplts..! inpuE lh.t E ob!.w.blc,.fin r diEdy d irdirlody, ottrr lt ! qudd ric6 iictdd wittin t t/!l r fo. h.finrcid.&t d 6@i.l ti.biliri...

p.nicip.nb.

thet cgrying ffflount3 duc to tlEir shon-t.m nitnc.

33.3 TherearenotransferbetweenLevell,Level 2,andLevel 3duringtheyearended3lMarch2023,.plMuch2022and3lMarch202l.

34 Financial Risk Management objectives and policies

Financial risk factors

e iFludcd throuS}ort lhc& fiucirl BtltaBt!.

rcflcct chfigcs tu mfiIct conditiotn llld in fic oompmy! lcrivilica.

The company's exposure to the various types ofrisks associated to its activity and financial inskuments is detailed below:

Credit risk

cquivrLrs, b0nl d.posits ond olh.r ffnmci.l r.r*ts. Nonc of6c finrncid inltumlot of dl. CotnprEy r.sut in [l|Edrl con mErdolr of cxrdil ri*-
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Nolei to lte fmrd.l ta.tcE .it
I&uldlty rhr

coodiliorr! w hqn incudng unEc.p.rbb lo6s!! or ri* dmig. ro thcir rcputltion.

Tte bblc bclow lant isca lhc mtrity Fofi. of fi,:eid lirbililier of coorp.ry b$.d d.6oEi.rDl ordiscouor.dp6ymcn&:

As at 31 March 2023
(Rs. In Lakh)

Particulars On demand Within I year I to 5 years > 5 years Total

360.61

87.90

38,614.39

t6,E96.60

35 r.60
2,081.16

439.50 I,151.70
2,081.16

87.90

38,6r4.39

16,896.60

As at 3l March 2022 (Restated)
(Rs. In Lakh)

Particulars On demand Within I vear I to 5 years > 5 years Total

from ADB
State Govt. Loan

General Provident Fund
Borrowings Current
Repayment due on ADB loan

due on State govt loan
financiel liebilities
accrued and due on borrowings

payables

payables

9,567.57

54,273.19

5l,368. t 0

16,896.60

351.60

2,660.28
527.40

9,567.57

55,r52.19
2,660.28

5 I,368.10

16,896.60

As at April l,2021 (Restated)
(Rs. In

Particulars On demand Within I year I to 5 years > 5 years Total

3,5 t 8.65

35,347.07

il,2t0.02

16,896.92

6,048.92

18,926.t2
3,5t7.37

6,048.92

18,926.t2

3,517.37

3,5 r 8.65

35,347.07

il,210.02

16,896.92

35 M.rkrRtI

ihd. fo,ncirl inlrrt@nk. Fioarcirl iBtruMi! .tr cLd by m.rtd ri.t inclu& cccivrblcq perhhi, .trd toffi sDd ho.rowingr.

(t) ror.ls! .onercy dtL.!po.un:

cumncy cth flo"t Tt. obj.clirc ofth. hedg.! i! io Dirimis.0l. yolrrility of ib fNR c8h nows ofhighly Drcb.btc for..rst r!r!e.tio.t'.

(D) ro.el8! CrrrcDcy S.nrltlvlty Atr.lrd.

focigo ftMrd lxcn ng. contz.ts, for.ign .ich.n8. olioo conrrcb dRian r€d .! c$h flow h.dsca.
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from ADB
Govt. Loan

Provident Fund
Current

financial liabilities

peyables
accrued and due on borrowings

due on ADB loan

due on State govt loan

from ADB
Govt. Loan

Provident Fund
Current

financial llabilities
accrued and due on borrowings

peyables

due on ADB loan

due on State govt loan
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Particulars
As at f,l Marcn

2023
As &t f,l March

2022 As at April l,2021
Contingent Llabilities
Commitment
Estimated amount ofcontracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not
provided for

Notes to the Iinancial statenrents

36 Liabilities and Commitments the extent not In

37 Details of dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprlses as delined under the MSMED Act,2006

Information ali required to be fumished as per section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act) for the year ended March 3 l,
2023 is given below. This information has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company.

3E Related Party Disclosure
Related Parties names and

Related parties transaction and balance
(in Rs.)

Nrlure oftrrnsaction As rt 3l March
2023

As et 3l Merchl As rt April 1,2021
20221

Salary/ Remuneration 28,52,00 l r6,r4,6521 Nil

39 Segment Reporting
The company is govemed by the Electricity Act, 2003.11re Company's primary activities entail transmission of electricity to APDCL. This is the only activity performed and is
thus also the main source of risks and retums. The Company's segments as reviewed by the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) does not result into identification of
different ways/ sources into which they see the performance of the Company. Accordingly, the company has a single reportable and geographical segment i.e Transmission of
electricity and operating in India respectively. Hence, the relevant disclosrires as per Ind AS 108, Operating Segments are not applicable to the company.

40 Capital management
(a) Risk msnagement

The Company's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard their ability to continue as a goning concem, so that they can continue to provide return for shareholders
and benefits for other stakcholders and maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

Consistent with others in the industry, the company monitors capital on the basis of the followings gearing ratio:

Net debt (total borrowings net ofcash and cash equivalents)
divided by
Total'equity'(as shown in the balance sheet, including non-controlling interests)
The ratio was as follows:

In order to achieve this overall objective, the company's capital management amongst other things, aims to cnsure that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest
bearing loans and borrowing that define capital structure requirement. Breaches in meeting the fianancial covenants rvould permit the bank to immediately call loans and

Particulars
As et 3l March 2023

As et 3l Merch
2022 As at April 1,2021

a

b

d

e

the principal amount and the interest due thereon (to be shown separately) remaining
unpaid to any supplier at the end ofeach accounting year;

the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section l6 of the Micro, Small
and Medium Enterprises Development Act,2006 (27 of 20O6), along with the amount
ofthe payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting
year;

the amount ofinterest due and payable for the period ofdelay in making payment
(which has been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without
adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006;

the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; and

the amount offurther interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding
years, until such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small
enterprisc, for the purpose ofdisallowance ofa deductible expenditure under section
23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act 2006.

Name of Party Relation (Key lllanagement Personnel)

Debajyoti Du ( 01.04.2022 to 3 1.03.2023) As at 3l March
)o)1 Manaqing Dircctor

D.J. Hazarika (W.e.f. 01.04.2021 to 3 l. 10.202 l)
D. Deka (W.e.f. 0l.I 1.2021 to20.01.2022)
Dcbajyoti Das (W.e.f. 2 1.01.2022 to 3 1.03.2022)

D.J. Hazarika (W.e.f. 01.04.2020 to 3 1.03.202 I ) As at April I,
2021

Managing Director

Particulars
As at 3l March

2023

As at 3l March
2022

As at April l, 2021

Net debt (Rs. In lakhs) (l1,et0.83) 54,239.20 56,689. l0
Total equity (Rs. In lakhs) 2,54,302.08 1,85,219.86 1,78,659.75
Net debt to equity ratio (0.0s) 0.29 0.32
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Not€' io the liMtrcitl !t!t n. r
4l Ot[.r Sllnrlo]y Inforln.don

ptlra ofoo[ccti.8 rhe tide d€.ds h in proglsr:

Th. Conpey t s lotrcvrlu.d.ny of ii! Propcny, Plrt od Eqlliprucot duing rt. ctltut Eporting pcriod and for prcyiou3 yari rcportirS rriod.

p.rea ttlt d! (r) i.p6y.bh oo d.mnd tr (b) wilhout 3p6iryins dy tennr o. p.rid ofEp.ymr
Ttc @mpey hr! disolo[cd clpiLl y/o* in progftrs s on 31.031023
Thc Comprry doc. rc{ h.v. .ny iEr$aibl. rircl! udlr d.vclopmed during thc cllMt .rd Flvitur y.s r.lorting p.riod

(P.ohibitioB) A.i. l9EE rnd lt Rules mde thc! und6.

ur.tiutionr e h .glEtmr with th. boots of .ccornrs.

Tte codrpuy b mr .bcldEd willtul d.fruh.r by any b.r* o( fMi.l iliriqrtion or othc. lcnd.r dunE ih. yc.i
Thc comp.ry doc! noa nrrt lny l!trt&liG vitt Mp.tric..tu.t ofrudcr rcc.tim 24E oflb Comprdc. Ac120l3 o( r.crim 5@ ofcomp.nics Ac! 1956.

Tte Conpoly do.. no. hw. .!ry ct tgcs o. !.ti!&.rion wffcn ir F to bc il8isLrEd yith ROC bcydd rh. lrrtutory Friod.

Ed wilh Colnpotricl (Rlmidio @ rMbcr of Lycr!) Rrles, 2017.

(.) dirc.dy or hdir.c{y Lid o. iny.sr in otha Frtonr o'.'rriric! idcntifi.d in.ny m,,n!r wtGo.vcr by or oo behrlfofdr. conpooy (ultim'oc bco.6ci.ri.r) or

O) provid! ..y 8unsnt ., s.curity o( thc lit. io o( oo tdrlf ofrh. ultimrc b.n.Iicisia.

diEolly or iodit..dy l.od or inv$l in olh.r p6'@ or 6tin.! i& ificd h my mrnnerwhrt!..ylr hy d otr bchrlfofftc tunding p$tJ' (ulrimrc b.ncfciuies) or

prcvidc my glrnntec, !.curity or lbc likc on b.halfoftlE uhitric bocfici.ri6.

lb.It).m. Td Act, 196l sucb.!,8..l!h or 3urvey or sy oth6 rcl.mt proeilioor of chc lnconc Ts Act 1961.

'Ih. Comp.oy h.s not t!d.d or inycsld h Cr)"lo Cut ffy o Vttul Cr.r.ncy du.ing th. fmci.l y@.

Th. Comptuy ir mt rlquirEd to @mply with lh. provi.ionr of S.ctior l!5 oftE CoDparie Ac1 2011.

(iD
(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(a)

(b)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

-

Description of the Property

Cerrying Vrlue
(in Rs.)

lleld in name of Whether promotor,
director, or their

relative or employee

Period held indicate
range, where
appropriate

Reason for not held
in the name of

company

Land 1t,59,t5;t't1 AEGCL No ASEB/AEGCL Period
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Assam Electricty Grid Corporation Limited

Notes to the financial statements

42 First Time adoption to Ind AS

The company has adopted Ind AS lvith effect from April 1,2021with comparatives being rcstated. Accordingly the impact of
transition has been provided in the Opening Reserves as at April 1,2021. The figures for the previous period have been restated,
regrouped and reclassified wherever required to comply with the requirement of Ind AS and Division II to Schedule III. This note
explains the principle adjustments made by the company in restating its Indian GAAP financial statements, including the balance
sheet as at I st April, 2021, and financial statements as at and for the year ended 3 I st March , 2022.

(a) The company has opted to avail the deemed cost exemption of Ind AS l0l and accordingly carry with the gross book value and
accumulated depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment as per Previous GAAP as at March 3l,2O2l as deemed cost as at April
1,2021under Ind AS.

(b) In case estimates were required under previous GAAP as at Transition date and comparative date, the company has used same
estimates under Ind AS for the same items. If new estimates are required to made under Ind AS, which were not required to be made
under Indian GAAP, The company has made new estimates.

(c) The Classification and measurement of financial assets and liabilities are made on the basis of facts and circumstances i.e criteria
of Ind AS 109 met on the date of transition to Ind AS.

(d) Other Comprehensive Income
Under Indian GAAP, the company was not required to present other comprehensive income. Hence, it has reconciled Indian GAAP
profit or loss to Profit or loss as per Ind AS. Further, Indian GAAP profit or loss is reconciled to total comprehensive income as per
Ind AS.

Footnote to the reconciliation of equity as at April lr 202l and March 31,2022 and reconciliation of profit and loss for the
year ended March 31,2022

(i) Right to use assets and Lease liability
Previous GAAP is not required to recognise right to use assets and finance lease obligation by lessee. On the other hand, under Ind
AS, the company has recognised right to use assets at carrying value as if Ind AS I 16 had been applied since commence date of the
lease. Also the company has recognised lease liability as nil as there is no remaining lease payments at the date of transition to Ind
AS. The company has recognised depreciation on right to use assets over the period of lease deed.

(ii) Grants
In Previous GAAP, the company has recognised government grant as capital reseryes as promoter's contribution but under Ind AS,
the company has recognised grants in other equity till the date of transition to Ind AS i.e April l, 2021. Further the company has
recognised the amount of grants received during the year 2021-2022 amounting to Rs. 22,646.65 lakhs under non current liability.
Expenses related to projects grants are capitalised under capital work in progress/Fixed Assets. The company recognised amount of
such grant in the Statement of Profit and Loss to the extent of depreciation charged to statement of profit and loss.

(iii) Prior period errors

a) In previous GAAP, the company has recognised lvaiver of interest on borrowings under other income instead of deducting from
capital work in progress as interest was capitalised to capital work in progress in past years. Norv interest waiver on loan for the year
has been deducted from capital work in progress and retained earning adjusted accordingly.

b) In previous GAAP, the company had recognised prior period expenses and income in other expenses in statement of profit and
Loss. Now the company has adjusted the same in retained earnings and balances are restated at the date of transition to Ind AS.

c) In previous GAAP, the company had recognised addition of property, plant and equipment net of depreciation of hnancial year
2021-2022. Now the company has restated the balances of Property, plant and equipment, retained earnings at the date of transition to
Ind AS.

FRN
000143C

tr
a

.e

o

0036

1:

Page 161 of 284



-?r

r+

-

43.1 Reconc,iation orequity as at Apr, ,, ,olt[Ifffl::frid 
corporation Limited

In

The Audited numbers of Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss under IGAAP is reclassified and regrouped as per heading and titles of Ind AS
for showing reconciliations from Indian GAAP to Ind AS. Hence, Financial assets and liabilities which are-required ti be shown under Ind
AS is showrr under Indian GAAP heading in above reconciliations.

Particulars Notes IGAAP Ind AS

l(a) Prone0, plant and equipment
(b) Right of use assets
(c) Capitat work in progress
(d) Financial assets

(i) Investments
(ii) Other financial assets

(e) Other non-current assets

Total non-current assets

(II) Current assets
(a) Inventories
(b) Financial assets

(i) Trade receivables
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents
(iii) Bank balances other than cash and cash
equivalents
(iv) Loans
(v) Other financial assets

(c) Current tax assets (net)
(d) Other current assets

Non-current assets

I current assets

3a

3b
4

5

6

7

8

9

l0

1l
t2
t3
t4
l5

l, I 8,666

80,332

5,349

27

2,04,373

1,449

39,349
1,57,646

t4,76t
1,00,244

18,903.34
25.29

(23,22?.86)

935.39

0.45
(89,574

(1,024.06)

0.20
2,548.40

930.10

(820.s3)

87,274.89

Q,746.86)
10,526.94
2,676.24

(t0,1 16.14

87,274.99
97.14

10,526.94

2,676.24
29,231.96

1,56,621.94

2,384.39

1,37,569.34
25.29

57,104.14

5,349.20
2,549.40

957. I 0

2,03,552.47

14,761.45
10,669.03

9 74.41

(b) Provisions
( c) Deferred tax liabilities (net)
Total non-cu rrent liabilities

(II) Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities

(i) Bonowings
(ii) Trade payables
(a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and
small enterprises
(b) Total outstanding dues ofcreditors other than
micro enterprises and small enterprises
(iii) Other current financial liabilities

liabilities

Equity and liabilities
(I) Equity
(a) Equity share capital
(b) Other equity
Total equity

(2) Liabilities
(I) Non-current Iiabilities
(a) Grants
(b) Financial liabilities

Borrowings

(b) Other current liabilities
(c) Provisions
(d) Cunent tax liabiliry (net)
Total current liabilities

23
24
25

26

l8

l6
t7

2t
22

l9
20

2E,795

g,gg3

1,68,396
l17g,37g

l9,l4l

1,33,215

2,489

1154,945

1,83,640

28,492
303

(2,244.08)
71,432.51

(1,10,405.54)
4.19

38,865.72

0.19
280.56
280.7s

22t.OO

0.4r
0.45

221.87

(2,347.21)

(2,125.34)

38,965.72

1,52,497.79

1,E1,514.66

9,gg3.lg
1,68,666.56
1,78,659.75

22t.00

28,492.41
303.45

29,016.97

l6,gg6.g2
?1,432.51
22,809.46

2,493.19

9 tt4.4t

*"

\*
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Assam Electricity Grid Corporation Limited
43.2 Reconciliation of equity as at March 3l,Z0Z2

In

The Audited numbers of Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss under IGAAP is reclassified and regrouped as per heading and titles of Ind AS for
showing reconciliations from Indian GAAP to Ind AS. Hence, Financial assets and liabilities which are required to be shown under Ind AS is
shown under Indian GAAP heading in above reconciliations.

tr
o

t.

Fa

I

Prrticulars Notes Begrouped IGAAP Adjustments Ind AS

| 1I; Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment
(b) Right of use assets

(c) Capital work in progress
(d) Financial assets

(i) Investments
(ii) Other financial assets

(e) Other non-current assets

Total non-current assets

lflI) Current assets
(a) Inventories
(b) Financial assets

(i) Trade receivables
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents
(iii) Bank balances other than cash and cash
equivalents
(iv) Loans
(v) Other financial assets

(c) Cunent tax assets (net)
(d) Other current assets

Total current assets

3a
3b
4

5

6

7

8

9
l0

ll
t2
t3
t4
l5

1,22,216

90,413

5,348

36
2,18,013

1,654

14,797

1,11,395

2,81I

40,261
l,70r9lg

14,695.74

24.39
(27,s48.44)

0.20
8,875.33
7,236.94

3,274.15

683.64

(e8.82)
(98,254.16)

89,419.55

Q,7tt.3t)
10,529.17
2,649.74

(10,277.72)
(8,062.91)

1,36,901.74
24.39

62,864.56

5,349.20
8,975.33
7,272.94

2,21,297.15

2,337.64

l4,69g. t g

13,140.94

89,419.55

99.69
10,529.17
2,649.?4

29,983.28
1,62,955.09

3,88,930 (4,787.751

Equity and liabilities
(r) Equity
(a) Equity share capital
(b) Other equity
Total equity

(2) Liabilities
(I) Non-current Iiabilities
(a) Grants
(b) Financial liabilities

Borrowings
(b) Provisions
( c) Defered tax liabilities (net)
Total non-current Iiabilities

(II) Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings
(ii) Trade payables
(a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises
and small enterprises
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than
micro enterprises and small enterprises
(iii) Other current financial liabilities

(b) Other current liabilities
(c) Provisions
(d) Current tax liability (net)
Total current liabilities

Total liabilities

16

t7

l8

l9
20

2t
22

23

24
25
26

g,gg3

2,02,594
2,12,597

67,382
682

68,064

l6,gg7

88,607'
2,775

1,08,279

1,76343

0.19

Q7,367.33)
Q7367.r4)

22,649.62

(1.e6)
(3,r+)

22,643.53

(0.40)

61,190.15
(61,253.83)

(0.05)

(64.r3)

22,579.40

9,993.19
1,75,226.67
1,85,219.96

22,649.62

67,380.04
678.86

90,7.07.53

16,896.60
6t,lg0.l5
27,353.17

2,774.95

1,08,214.97

1,98,922.40

Total equity and liabilities 3,99,930 (4,787.751 3,84,142.25
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Assam Electricity Grid Corporation Limited

43.3 Reconciliation of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 3lr2ozz

In Lakh

The Audited numbers of Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss under IGAAP is reclassified and regrouped as per heading and titles of
Ind AS for showing reconciliations from Indian GAAP to Ind AS. Hence, Financial assets and liabilities which are re[uired to be
shown under Ind AS is shown under Indian GAAP heading in above reconciliations.

t

*

I

+

Particulars Notes
Regrouped

IGAAP Adjustments Ind AS

Income:

Revenue from operations
Other-income

27
28

37,929
lg,ggg

(r01. r r)
(2,860.83)

37,827.99
15,039.17

Total income 56,829 (2,961.94) 53,866.06
Expenses:
Employee benefits expense

Depreciation and amortization expenso
Finance costs
Other

,o
3a
30
3l

16,996

12,410
210

16,676

(7t.17)
334.09

(0.13)
2,050.33

16,914.93

t2,744.09
209.57

t8,726.33
Total enses 46,292 2,312.92 48,594.92
Profit before exceptional items and tax

items
10,546 (5,274.76) 5r271,24

Profit before tax 10,546 (5,274.76) 51271.24
Tax expense

Current tax
Deferred tax

Profit for the od 10,546 (5,274,76) 5r271,24
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plan
Income tax effect
Other com rehensive income
Total enslve rncome 10,546 (5,274.76) 5271.24
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As per the Directive 3 [segregation & Strengthening of SLDC) of the Tariff Order
dated 07 -03.2020 issued by the Assam Electricity Regulatory Commission (AERC),

the income/expense pertaining to SLDC included in the "STATEMENT oF pRoFIT &
LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3L.03.2023" is shown in the following table.

STATEMENT OF INCOME & EXPENSE ACCOUNT OF SIDC FOR THE YEAR ENDED

31sr MARCH,2,A23

1{ t at<tr)

-^
a

Particulars
Year ended

31st March, 2OZg

Year ended

31st March, 2AZZ

I.INCOME
(a) Revenue From Operations 695 736
(b) Other Income

16 L4

Total Revenue :: 711 750

II. EXPENDITURE

(a) Employee Benefits Expense 608 587

(b) Repair & Maintenance Expenses 55 103

(c) Administration & General Expenses 52 52

(d) Finance Costs

(e) Depreciation and Am ortization Expenses 33 31

(f) Net Prior Period Charges(Credits) Lt )

Total Expenses :: 748 772

Profit (Loss) Before Tax (I-U) (37)

SESIII. T

(a) Current Tax

(b) Deferred Tax

Profit (Loss) for the period (37) (22)
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1 INTRODUCTION 

 

Power Transmission in a vital link between power generation and power distribution. Till recently, India 

was struggling with the power deficit. With generation delicensed, India has sufficient generation 

capacity. However, lack of transmission capacity was a big challenge. For achieving the target of “Power 

for All”, a robust transmission network is must. Therefore, power sector has recognized the importance 

of integrated transmission planning and this sector has also garnered substantial private investment in 

last decade.  

 

India’s transmission sector is primarily controlled by Government owned Companies. At Central Level, 

PGCIL, the Central Transmission Utility is responsible for national and inter-regional transmission network 

planning and at State Level, respective State Transmission Utilities are responsible for State level 

Transmission Planning. Historically, the power transmission business had been a monopoly as almost all 

projects were awarded either to PGCIL or state utilities on a regulated basis. 

 

1.1 Background 

1.1.1 From Mid-90s, the focus has been shifted on to consumer and availability of economic power to 

all. Over the last few years, there has been significant interest in opening the Electricity sector to 

competition and, by extension, interest in designing electricity markets to push the sector toward 

more efficient outcomes. Accordingly, the Electricity Act, 2003 (“the Act” or “EA 2003”) was 

enacted with effect from June 10, 2003 which requires the State Governments to initiate major 

changes in the structure and operations of the State power sector.  

 

1.1.2 Objectives of the Electricity Act, 2003 includes Promote competition, Rationalization of tariff, 

Protect consumer’s interest. Promoting competition in electricity sector is one of the primary 

objectives of the Electricity Act, 2003. 

 

1.1.3 The Electricity Act 2003 required restructuring of the State owned vertically integrated electricity 

boards (SEBs). Sections 131 to 134 mandate reorganization of the SEBs into functional entities 

and corporatization of the same. 

 

1.1.4 The State of Assam has undertaken structural reforms in the state electricity sector in 2004 

pursuant to the provisions of the Electricity Act 2003. At present, the Assam Power Generation 

Company Limited (APGCL), Assam Electricity Grid Corporation Limited (AEGCL) and Assam Power 

Distribution Company Limited (APDCL) are functioning as the State-owned generation, 

transmission and distribution utilities respectively. AEGCL is notified as the State Transmission 

Utility (STU). Its core business is to efficiently transport electrical power from electrical power 

bulk heads to the distribution company networks in the state of Assam. 
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1.1.5 The State Load Dispatch Centre (SLDC) is the apex body constituted vide Section 31 of the Indian 

Electricity Act - 2003 (Central Act No. 36 of 2003) and complies with the directions stipulated in 

Section 33 to ensure integrated operation of the power system in the state of Assam. SLDC, 

ASSAM was established in the year 1983 is located at Kahilipara, Guwahati. SLDC, Assam is 

presently being operated by the state transmission utility of Assam i.e. Assam Electricity Grid 

Corporation Ltd. (AEGCL). 

 

1.2 Constitution of the Commission 

1.2.1 The Assam Electricity Regulatory Commission (hereinafter referred to as the AERC or the 

Commission) was established under the Electricity Regulatory Commissions Act, 1998 (14 of 1998) 

on February 28, 2001. The first proviso of Section 82(1) of the Electricity Act, 2003 (hereinafter 

referred as the Act or the EA, 2003) has ensured continuity of the Commission under the Electricity 

Act, 2003.  

 

1.2.2 The Commission is mandated to exercise the powers and functions conferred under Section 181 

of the Electricity Act, 2003 (36 of 2003) and to exercise the functions conferred on it under Section 

61, 62 and 86 of the Act from June 10, 2003.  

 

1.2.3 In accordance with the regulations ‘AERC (Terms and Conditions for determination of Multi Year 

Tariff) Regulations, 2021, (hereinafter to be referred as MYT Regulations 2021’ issued by the 

AERC, AEGCL has to file Tariff Petition every year with the Commission, which includes statements 

containing calculation of the expected aggregate revenue from charges under its currently 

approved tariff and the expected cost of providing services i.e. Aggregate Revenue Requirement 

(ARR) during the Previous Year, Current Year and Ensuing Year & tariff proposals so as to fully 

cover the gap between the expected aggregate revenue at the prevalent tariff and the expected 

cost of services including schemes for reduction in loss levels and other efficiency gains to be 

achieved. 

 

1.2.4 Accordingly, AEGCL had filed its petition for determination of Aggregate Revenue Requirement 

(ARR) for FY 2023-24 under section 61, 62 & 64 of the Electricity Act, 2003. before the Commission 

on November 2022, in accordance with MYT Regulations of AERC. After carrying out the due 

process of technical validation & arranging hearing the objections of various stake holders, AERC 

has issued an order on 29th March, 2023 wherein certain directives were issued to AEGCL in 

relation with carrying out energy audit which are reproduced as below: 

 

“Directive 2 – Energy Audit and Implementation of SAMAST 

The Commission directs AEGCL to carry out the Energy Audit every year and submit the report 

based on the metered energy at different interconnection points, including the status of metering, 
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functional meters, etc. This Report, with details of Transmission Losses, should be submitted along 

with the next Tariff Petition. AEGCL is directed to earnestly pursue the implementation of 

SAMAST.” 

 

1.2.5 In response to the directives of AERC, AEGCL has decided to get the preliminary energy audit done 

of the transmission network to quantify the losses & to identify the saving potential out of these 

losses. 

 

1.3 AEGCL Asset details 

1.3.1 As on FY 2022-23, AEGCL has 5968.48Ckt km line length & 76 nos. of Substations. AEGCL has 

commissioned 158.83 km in FY 2022-23 and many projects are in pipeline which will be 

commissioned during FY 2023-24 and FY 2024-25 to meet upcoming load development & give 

load relief to the network of AEGCL. 

 

1.3.2 The electric supply from AEGCL to APDCL is transferred through 400 kV, 220 kV, 132 kV and 66 kV 

transmission line network with transformation capacity of 7523.5MVA. Details of AEGCL 

transmission line length and nos. of substations for FY 2020-21, FY 2021-22 and FY 2022-23 are 

mentioned below: 

 

Table 1: Transmission Line Length (Ckt km) of AEGCL 
 

S. No Particulars Unit 2022-23 2021-22 2020-21 

1 Transmission Line Length Ckt. km 5968.48 5809.65 5737.45 

2 400 kV Ckt. km 7.20 7.20 7.20 

3 220 kV Ckt. km 2048.50 2048.50 2048.05 

4 132 kV Ckt. km 3299.78 3140.95 3069.19 

5 66 kV Ckt. km 613.00 613.00 613.00 

 

Table 2: No of Grid Substations of AEGCL 
 

S. No Particulars Unit 2022-23 2021-22 2020-21 

1 No. of Grid Substation  76 69 67 

2 400/220/132/33 kV No. 1 1 1 

3 220/132 kV No. 1 1 1 

4 220/132/66/33 kV No. 1 1 1 

5 220/132/33 kV No. 9 9 9 

6 220/33 kV No. 1 1 1 

7 132/66/33 kV No. 1 1 1 

8 132/33 kV No. 61 54 52 

9 132/11 kV No. 1 1 1 
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2 OBJECTIVE : ENERGY AUDIT 

 
2.1.1 Energy Audit is the key to systematic approach for decision making in energy management. It is 

an effective tool to balance the total energy inputs with its outflows in various energy streams. 

 

2.1.2 The energy audit exercise of transmission utility involves the energy accounting followed by the 

analysis of energy flow data for determination of losses at various steps in transmission. Since the 

ultimate burden of these losses has to be borne by the honest consumers in terms of higher tariff 

rates, the reduction in losses would also be beneficial in the interests of the consumers. Hence in 

the present era of competition the transmission utility having minimum losses has an edge over 

the competitors due to better profitability & economical rates. 

 

2.1.3 Energy Audit helps in establishing the energy input and quantum consumed by/billed to various 

categories of consumers, identifying high loss areas, and evolving strategies and action plans for 

reduction of losses. The technical losses are inherent features of the transmission business such 

as load losses in transformers, losses in conductors of overhead lines or underground cables, 

dielectric losses in capacitors, cables etc. These losses cannot be eliminated but can be reduced 

by devising proper technical specification while procuring transformers, overhead conductors, 

capacitors, meters etc., devising & adopting strict testing plans while accepting the material, 

correct installation & regular maintenance. 

 

2.1.4 The objective of the energy audit exercise is to identify the sources of technical losses, 

quantification of losses, suggest the corrective measures for minimizing technical losses, to work 

out the cost benefit analysis of corrective measures as suggested for computing the payback 

period of the investment involved. To achieve this component wise loss data needs to be 

calculated and subsequent energy analysis done to remedy the problem areas. Technical losses 

can be reduced through system improvement, e.g., by reducing overloading of lines and 

transformers, improvement of voltage profile, etc. But these measures require large capital 

investments. 

 

2.1.5 There are many other reasons why energy auditing activity should be undertaken. Energy auditing 

will make it possible to compare energy use and cost among the various components of the power 

supply system and to monitor how energy use changes over time. This information will help those 

responsible for managing energy costs − maintenance staff, site managers, and others − to get 

feedback on how well their utility is performing. Energy problems and billing errors could be 

identified and tackled. By consistently tracking energy use, one can identify problems in the 

system. A sudden unexplained increase in energy consumption, for instance, would require 

investigation of the cause. 
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3 METHODOLOGY 

3.1.1 The exercise of energy audit aims to balance the total energy inputs with its outflows in various 

energy streams. To achieve this, one must have energy meters at all incoming & outgoing energy 

streams viz. at all the generation injection points and at all the secondary of all the Grid 

substations.  

 

3.1.2 The basic principle is to identify the Net energy inflow and Net energy outflow at every metering 

point in the transmission system. Since there is a central transmission grid over which the central 

power flows the injection losses where not already accounted for need to be incorporated. 

Although there is a loss in each of the component of power, the major contributors for 

transmission losses are the I2R loss in the transmission lines along with the transformer losses at 

the grid substation.  

 

3.1.3 Power transmission system is a dynamic system wherein the energy parameters are changing at 

every moment. Hence, in addition to installation of meters at all input & output nodes, the other 

requirement of establishing energy balance is to get simultaneous readings of all these meters in 

particular period i.e., at beginning of the period & at the end of the period. This function is better 

served if the SCADA system is installed to acquire the meter reading data continuously at regular 

interval or historical data in memory of electronic meters is downloaded using meter reading 

instrument. 

 

3.1.4 Owing to dynamism of the transmission system, simultaneous meter readings of all meters on 

incoming and outgoing nodes is the primary requisite for energy audit exercise. At present, the 

meters of AEGCL are provided at:  

(i) Both ends of EHV lines 

(ii) Both at HV & LV side of the transformer  

(iii) At the point of outgoing lines.  
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3.1.5 However due to the lack of simultaneous meter readings and several inactive meters at some 

metering points, component wise accurate energy accounting within the transmission system is 

not possible. AEGCL is being included in the SAMAST scheme which will provide all interfacing 

meters as well as Intra-state meter. Implementation of the scheme is being monitored by NERPC. 

Once the metering facilities are in place, the actual energy drawn & sent out can be monitored & 

recorded. 

 

3.1.6 Hence presently, the energy lost is calculated by computing the net energy balance of the 

transmission system which is the energy input into the transmission system (at the state 

transmission periphery) minus the energy exported to APDCL and open access consumers. 

 

3.1.7 Monthly energy readings recorded are used to calculate the net energy flow through the 

transmission system 

 

Energy Reading of (X) = (FR – IR) x MC  

X = Energy reading for the month 

FR = Final meter reading of current month 

IR = Initial meter reading of current month 

MC = Meter constant 

X’mer HV meter 

X’mer LV meter 

X’mer HV meter 

X’mer LV meter 

EHV line loss 

Metering Point 1 Metering Point 3 

EHV line loss 

Metering Point 2 Metering Point 4 

Outgoing Feeder 

Meter 1 

Outgoing Feeder 

Meter 2 

Outgoing Feeder 

Meter 3 

Transformer 

Losses 
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3.1.8 A generic simplified SLD for AEGCL transmission system is given below to understand the energy 

flow from different voltage levels to export of energy to APDCL and Open Access consumers

Transmission Loss (in 

MU) 

Energy at AEGCL 

periphery 

Net Energy Export 

(including OA) 

Energy at AEGCL 

periphery 

Total Power Purchase Net IEX Sale 

Net Energy Export 

(including OA) 

Energy export to APDCL Energy Export to OA 

Consumers 
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Figure 1 Generic SLD for AEGCL 
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4 ENERGY AUDIT FOR FY 2022-23                                                                                                                                                                                                                 

4.1 Transmission loss for FY 2022-23 

Table 3: Transmission loss for FY 2022-23 

IMPORT DETAILS 
ENERGY IN MU 

APRIL MAY JUNE JULY AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR TOTAL 

FROM CSGS-NER 579.1800 638.0500 621.6261 659.2125 655.8236 656.4510 618.2476 480.8649 509.5794 547.9055 507.6702 490.7831 6965.394 

FROM CSGS-ER 126.1961 118.6812 160.9433 158.7639 163.8671 165.2308 126.2535 89.2301 78.1280 72.4249 61.9098 90.1656 1411.794 

FROM LTA 20.7993 38.5621 35.6883 34.1270 31.0400 26.1297 14.7481 9.4241 22.2981 27.3254 16.4254 19.1656 295.733 

FROM POWER 

EXCHANGE (IEX) 57.3389 129.5690 121.7556 220.1668 299.2430 209.4444 129.3951 73.5770 72.4505 50.6602 36.2978 95.0282 
1494.927 

FROM APGCL 141.1474 174.1701 199.1832 212.6240 206.9588 174.1263 200.0933 179.9477 180.7728 171.4089 144.8770 149.6864 2134.996 

FROM IPP 11.9590 17.1430 13.5530 19.7920 21.6560 21.2876 21.3429 25.8622 21.6382 22.7070 18.8189 24.4103 240.170 

THROUGH DSM -10.6702 -1.5704 -1.2727 -5.9901 -5.2940 1.8341 -2.1873 7.5981 -19.4606 4.3856 16.3176 11.4135 -4.896 

FROM 132 kV BCPL 

(AT BEHIATING GSS) 
0.0059 0.0775 0.0411 0.0470 0.0000 0.0005 0.0026 0.0031 0.0031 0.1379 0.0475 0.0035 0.370 

FROM 33 kV BCPL 

(AT BORDUBI GSS) 
0.0037 0.0077 0.0255 0.0183 0.0300 0.0283 0.0208 0.0206 0.0206 0.0164 0.0136 0.0319 0.237 

FROM 33 kV 

KAJOLGAON (AT 

DHALIGAON GSS) 

0.0110 0.0520 0.2590 0.1115 0.0580 0.0745 0.0825 0.0900 0.0900 0.0045 0.0105 0.0023 0.846 

TOTAL IMPORT  925.9712 1114.7422 1151.8025 1298.8729 1373.3826 1254.6072 1107.9991 866.6178 865.5201 896.9763 802.3883 880.6905 12539.571 

(-) SALE THROUGH 

IEX 
152.7655 165.3131 177.2830 58.5050 61.1150 52.0807 108.7728 52.2507 70.4425 83.3012 62.4038 42.8675 1087.101 

NET IMPORT  773.2056

87 
949.429127 

974.519525

9 
1240.36786 1312.26761 

1202.52654

9 

999.226265

9 

814.3670

791 

795.0776

145 

813.6751

08 

739.9845

188 

837.8229

655 
11452.470 

EXPORT DETAILS 
TO APDCL 742.763 904.499 928.950 1183.719 1253.910 1156.765 961.376 781.669 766.449 785.866 714.024 805.266 10985.257 
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TO INTER STATE 

OPEN ACCESS 

CONSUMERS 

6.468 14.206 13.622 13.071 12.953 4.378 5.256 4.782 4.241 0.459 0.951 1.966 82.356 

TO INTRA STATE 

OPEN ACCESS 

CONSUMERS 

0.000 0.000 0.019 0.502 0.581 0.599 0.464 0.714 0.681 0.915 0.714 0.825 6.013 

TOTAL EXPORT (B) 749.232 918.705 942.592 1197.292 1267.444 1161.742 967.096 787.165 771.371 787.240 715.689 808.058 11073.626 

TRANSMISSION AND TRANSFORMATION (T&T) LOSS 

TRANSMISSION 

AND 

TRANSFORMATION 

(T&T) LOSS IN MU =  

23.97 30.72 31.93 43.08 44.82 40.78 32.13 27.20 23.71 26.43 24.30 29.77 378.844 

TRANSMISSION 

AND 

TRANSFORMATION 

(T&T) LOSS IN % = 

3.10% 3.24% 3.28% 3.47% 3.42% 3.39% 3.22% 3.34% 2.98% 3.25% 3.28% 3.55% 3.31% 
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4.2 Energy Balance in FY 2022-23 

4.2.1 The total energy input at AEGCL periphery is 11073.626 MU out of that, the estimated total energy 

transmitted is 11452.470 MU (energy sent out to APDCL periphery is 10985.257 MU and energy 

sent out to Open Access consumers is 88.369 MU) leaving behind the transmission losses of 

361.55 MU with transmission loss of 3.31 %. 

Table 4: Transmission Loss of AEGCL in FY 2022-23 

                           Particulars MU 

Energy Injected 11452.470 

Energy Injected by APGCL 2134.996 

Energy Injected by CSGS (ER & NER) 8377.188 

Energy Injected by LTA  295.733 

Energy Injected by Power Exchange 1494.927 

Energy Injected by IPPs 240.170 

Energy Injected by CPPs 1.453 

Energy Injected through DSM -4.896 

Energy Sale through Power Exchanges (-) 1087.101 

Total Energy sent out 11073.626 

Energy sent out to APDCL  10985.257 

Energy sent out to Inter state OA customers 82.356 

Energy sent out to Intra state OA customers 6.013 

Transmission loss (MU) 378.884 

Transmission loss (%) 3.31 

 

4.3 Monthly Energy Balance of AEGCL in FY 2022-23 

4.3.1 The monthly energy balance in respect of energy received at state periphery is established in the 

chart below: 

Table 5: Monthly Energy Balance of AEGCL in FY 2022-23 
 

FY 2022-

2023 

Total Power Injection 

to AEGCL Grid (MU) 

Total Power Transmitted to 

Distribution Including Open 

Access (MU) 

Total 

Transmission Loss 

(MU) 

Total Transmission 

Loss in AEGCL Grid % 

Apr-22 773.205687 749.232 23.97 3.10% 

May-22 949.4291272 918.705 30.72 3.24% 

Jun-22 974.5195259 942.592 31.93 3.28% 

Jul-22  1240.367861 1197.292 43.08 3.47% 
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FY 2022-

2023 

Total Power Injection 

to AEGCL Grid (MU) 

Total Power Transmitted to 

Distribution Including Open 

Access (MU) 

Total 

Transmission Loss 

(MU) 

Total Transmission 

Loss in AEGCL Grid % 

Aug-22 1312.267613 1267.444 44.82 3.42% 

Sep-22 1202.526549 1161.742 40.78 3.39% 

Oct-22 999.2262659 967.096 32.13 3.22% 

Nov-22 814.3670791 787.165 27.20 3.34% 

Dec-22 795.0776145 771.371 23.71 2.98% 

Jan-23 813.675108 787.240 26.43 3.25% 

Feb-23 739.9845188 715.689 24.30 3.28% 

Mar-23 837.8229655 808.058 29.77 3.55% 

Total 11452.470 11073.626 378.884 3.31% 

 

 

Figure 2 Transmission Loss of AEGCL in FY 2022-23 

 

 
 

4.3.2 The transmission loss of AEGCL has substantially came down from 3.32% in FY 2021-22 to 3.31% 

in FY 2022-23. The improvement in Bus Voltage & reduction in Transmission Loss from the year 

FY 2021-22 to FY 2022-23 was observed due to the following facts. 
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i) The commissioning of Tangla GSS, Sarupathar GSS, Tezpur GSS under NERPSIP scheme, 

resulted in the improvement in 33kV downstream Distribution voltage substantially at all 

APDCL substations. Consequently, the Transmission Loss has reduced at such areas. 

 

ii) With the commissioning of Barpeta GSS there has been substantial improvement in voltage 

at the downstream distribution substation. Moreover, some load in the 132kV Barngar GSS 

has been released. Improvement in the voltage in the Barnagar area was also observed. 

Therefore, the Transmission Loss came down at these areas. 
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5 ENERGY AUDIT FOR FY 2023-24 

5.1 Transmission loss for FY 2023-24 

Table 6:  Transmission Loss for FY 2023-24 

IMPORT DETAILS 
ENERGY IN MU 

APRIL MAY JUNE JULY AUG SEPT TOTAL 

FROM CSGS-NER 556.24 556.99 575.69 666.26 720.62 663.33 3739.13 

FROM CSGS-ER 97.46 108.74 156.94 175.93 171.35 153.01 863.43 

FROM LTA 20.06 28.67 34.01 40.04 39.60 33.11 195.48 

FROM POWER EXCHANGE (IEX) 103.32 176.43 269.99 249.78 172.56 222.39 1194.47 

THROUGH DSM 1.89 7.84 11.13 13.90 37.11 60.30 132.16 

TOTAL 778.97 878.67 1047.75 1145.91 1141.24 1132.14 6124.67 

(-) SALE THROUGH IEX 70.68 44.41 106.07 40.76 55.70 7.29 324.92 

TOTAL INTER STATE IMPORT 708.29 834.26 941.67 1105.14 1085.54 1124.84 5799.75 

FROM APGCL 168.19 157.95 168.14 180.20 198.67 177.69 1050.85 

FROM IPP 27.19 29.99 22.99 26.00 24.16 28.65 158.98 

FROM DALMIA CEMENT- SOLAR & WHRS GENERATION 0.83 0.71 0.86 0.94 0.63 0.76 4.73 

FROM 132 kV BCPL (AT BEHIATING GSS) 0.00 0.03 0.05 0.01 0.01 0.00 0.11 

FROM 33 kV BCPL (AT BORDUBI GSS) 0.02 0.03 0.02 0.02 0.03 0.01 0.13 

FROM 33 kV KAJOLGAON (AT DHALIGAON GSS) 0.05 0.01 0.00 0.00 0.07 0.06 0.19 

TOTAL IMPORT  904.56 1022.98 1133.74 1312.31 1309.11 1332.03 7014.73 

EXPORT DETAILS 
TO APDCL 873.63 987.38 1093.45 1262.78 1263.92 1285.34 6766.50 

TO INTER STATE OPEN ACCESS CONSUMERS 1.21 1.72 1.88 4.42 1.64 2.40 13.26 

TO INTRA STATE OPEN ACCESS CONSUMERS 0.78 0.63 0.77 0.90 0.61 0.86 4.55 

TOTAL EXPORT (B) 875.62 989.73 1096.10 1268.09 1266.17 1288.60 6784.31 
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TRANSMISSION AND TRANSFORMATION (T&T) LOSS IN MU=  28.95 33.25 37.64 44.23 42.94 43.42 230.42 

TRANSMISSION AND TRANSFORMATION (T&T) LOSS IN % =  3.20% 3.25% 3.32% 3.37% 3.28% 3.26% 3.28% 
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5.2 Energy Balance in FY 2023-24 

5.2.1 The energy injected and transmitted at transmission at transmission grid in FY 2023-24 is based 

on 6 (six) months actual and 6 (six) months projection. Projection has been computed based on 

historical information. The total energy input at AEGCL periphery is 13043.92MU out of that, the 

estimated total energy transmitted is 12615.75MU (energy sent out to APDCL periphery is 

12577.42MU and energy sent out to Open Access consumers is 38.33MU) leaving behind the 

transmission losses of 428.17MU with transmission loss of 3.38% 

Table 7: Transmission Loss of AEGCL in FY 2022-23 

Sl. 
No. 

Particulars 

FY 2023-24 

H1                        H2                   Total 

(Actual) (Estimated) (Estimated) 

1 Energy Injected (MU) 7014.73 6029.19 13043.92 

2 Energy sent out to APDCL (MU) 6766.50 5810.92 12577.42 

3 Energy sent out to Inter State Open 
Access Consumers (in MU) 

13.26 14.20 27.46 

4 Energy sent out to Intra State Open 
Access Consumers (in MU) 

4.55 6.32 10.87 

5 Total Energy Sent out (MU) 6784.31 5831.44 12615.75 

6 Transmission Loss (MU) 230.42 197.75 428.17 

7 Transmission Loss (%) 3.28% 3.28% 3.28% 
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6 ANALYSIS AND CONCLUSION 

6.1 Analysis 

6.1.1 Since the component wise metering data is not available in real time, hence an effective energy 

auditing exercise cannot be conducted. In the absence of the same, the total energy inflow and 

outflow through the transmission network with transmission loss calculated on the same basis. 

6.1.2 The actual transmission loss for AEGCL for FY 2022-23 and provisional transmission loss for FY 

2023-24 comes out to be 3.28%. 

 

6.2 Transmission Loss Scenario 

6.2.1 The transmission loss percentage has substantially come down from 3.31% (FY 2022-23) to 

estimated 3.28% in FY 2023-24. This signifies a loss reduction of 0.03% against the Hon’ble 

Commission’s stipulation of 0.02% such an encouraging decrease in % Transformer loss become 

possible due to the following facts 

i) With the commissioning of 132kV Hatsingmari GSS on 27.05.2023 there has been substantial 

improvement in voltage at the downstream distribution substation 

ii) The commissioning of 132kV LILO from Pare-Nirjuli line at Nalkata GSS has increased the 

voltage profile at Nalkata 132kV Bus voltage profile at Nalkata 132kV Dhemaji &132kV 

Silapathar Bus. As a result of this 33kV downstream Distribution voltage has improved 

substantially at all DISCOM substations. Consequently, the Transmission Loss has come down 

at these areas. 

iii) Many of the old 25MVA Transformers have been replaced at various Substations namely, 

Depota, Barnagar, Dibrugarh, Samaguri, Mirza, Moran Khaloigaon etc. Capacity Augmentation 

was carried out at 220kV Agia GSS by addition of 160MVA Transformer. List of New Grid 

Element added to Assam Grid is enclosed herewith as Annexure- A. 

iv) Some of the old Transmission lines such as 132kV Gauripur-Gosaigaon line, 132kV Salakati-

Dhaligaon line and 220kV Sarusajai-Kukurmara line have been replaced with HTLS Conductors. 

v) In the coming months, AEGCL expected to commission and load at 220kV Amingaon GSS, 

132kV Nathkuchi GSS, 132kV Hajo GSS, 132kV Paltanbazar GIS and GMC GIS. 

6.2.2 Hence, further improvement in Bus Voltage & accompanying reduction in Transmission Loss is 

expected. AEGCL expected to comply with the stipulated Transmission Loss trajectory in the 

coming years. 

 

6.3 SAMAST 

6.3.1 SAMAST (Scheduling, Accounting, metering and Settlement of Transactions in Electricity) scheme 

is a GoI project which aims to implement a robust, scalable and transparent framework of 
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scheduling, metering, accounting and settlement of energy transactions at intra-state as well as 

interstate level in India. 

 

6.3.2 The project scope shall consist of the following: 

a) Supply and installation of the ABT Meters with TTB mounted in the meter box, Laying and 

termination of control cables at primary Equipment and Meter Box. 

b) Supply and installation of DCU (Data Concentrator Units) mounted in the suitable mounting panel 

completely wired. 

c) Supply and installation of Communication hardware such as modems, communication front end 

servers, routers etc. for implementation of Wireless and Leased Network access to service 

Provider Networks. 

d) Supply and installation of IT Infrastructure consisting of database Servers, Application Servers, 

Web servers, SAN Storage System, Workstations, printers, LAN with accessories, communication 

cables etc. 

e) Supply and installation of the system software i.e., operating systems and Application Software 

consisting of RDBMS, Web Service, Unified Threat Management System, and functional software 

for meeting the functional requirement of the specification. 

f) The entity creations in the application software module, migration of existing data required to 

fully operationalize the system. 

g) Communication system i.e., wireless and Leased Networks from the Service Providers. The 

connections shall be taken during project implementation, warranty/guarantee and maintenance 

period. 

h) Handholding and training of the personnel during the standard warranty/guarantee period of 1 

year after go-live of the project. 

i) The maintenance of the complete system after completion of standard warranty/guarantee 

period including periodic and breakdown maintenance, providing and configuration of software 

up-grade/patches for applications software, addition of new locations/meters during this period, 

manpower assistance for the co-ordination of maintenance work and generation of reports at 

Data/control centre at Guwahati. 

j) As the meters would be of 0.2 class accuracy, commensurate CT/PT would be desirable to have 

correct reading from the Meters. In some of the locations, CT/PT are of much inferior class and 

need to be replaced. Requirement of CT/PT has also been worked out accordingly. 

k) As per recommendation of FOR Technical Committee meeting held at Shillong on 16.4.2018, the 

ABT meter requirement was scrutinized by the SAMAST group and asked to reduce the meter 

requirement by excluding all 33 KV feeders & all ISTS lines in this project. 
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6.4 Progress Reports of SAMAST  

             

S.N. Item Responsibility Description of work Status Remarks 

1 
DATA CENTRE 

HARDWARE  

Infotek 

Services, 

Kolkata 

• Installation work of the Data Centre 

Hardware items. (i.e., Database 

server, Virtualization server, CDCS 

server, SAN, NAS, Firewall and UPS 

system & Battery bank has already 

been installed at SLDC Data Centre) 

has been completed on 21th 

February 22. 

100% 

Completed, 

Defect 

liabilities 

starts from 

1st July 

2023. 

2 
DATA CENTRE 

SOFTWARE 

Infotek 

Services, 

Kolkata 

• Activation of Replication software, 

back up & Recovery software, 

Virtualization Software (VM ware), 

Windows server Operating system, 

User Client access license (CAL), 

Manage Engine OP manager 

professional Edition, Manage Engine 

Patch Manager, Installation of 

Operating software and MDAS 

application at CDCS server is 

completed. 

100% - 

3 
Associated IT 

services 
SLDC 

• High Speed internet connection has 
been procured from M/s Power-tel 
Ltd. 

• Installation completed for MPLS 
connectivity in GPRS network for 
secured metered data collection 
from   Substations to Data center. 

•  LAN connectivity for workstation for 
SAMAST has been completed. 

• Procured Domain name, SSL 
certificate, SMS gateway, Mail 
service etc. for hosting SLDC website. 

• Firewall for Power-tel lease line has 

been procured & installed as per 

cyber security guidelines. 

100% - 
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4 

SOFTWARE 

MODULE 

DEVELOPMENT 

PwC, Kolkata 

• PwC, Kolkata has completed the 
Software development activities on 
Scheduling, Open Access, CMS 
website & MDM module and FAT is 
approved by AEGCL for these 
modules. Development activities for 
the E-Log-book module, Energy 
accounting and MIS module are going 
on. 

100% 

Completed, 

Defect 

liabilities 

starts from 

1st July 

2023. 

5 

Mass 

Installation of 

ABT energy 

meter with 

AMR at 220kV, 

132kV level  

Genus 

Infrastructure 

Pvt Ltd. 

• Completed in the AEGCL Grid 

Substations. 

 

99% 

8 Nos of 

IEM to be 

installed at 

NTPC & 

NRPP. 

6 Cyber security PwC & Genus 

• Installation of Firewall by M/s PwC 
for the IT part is completed. 

• Installation of firewall by M/s Genus 
for the communication server at data 
center is completed. 

• Installation & commissioning of 
Firewall with Unified Threat 
Protection (UTP), Advance Malware 
protection, Application control, Web 
& video filtering, Antispam service 
etc. for internet lease line (Power Tel) 
is completed on 02.09.2022 

100% 

Firewall and 

antivirus 

activated till 

date. 

 

VAPT done. 

7 Mass 

Installation of 

ABT energy 

meter with 

AMR at 33kV 

voltage level 

Secure Meter 

Ltd. 
• Mass installation of meters at 33kV 

voltage level is Completed in the 
AEGCL Grid Substations 

100% 

Completed, 

Defect 

liabilities 

starts from 

31st Aug 

2023. 

 

6.5 Analysis of Transmission Losses 

6.5.1 Like all other power systems, no matter how carefully the system is designed, losses are present 

and must be modeled before an accurate representation of the system response can be 

calculated. Although various types of losses are present in transmission line, the major losses can 
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be attributed to Transmission line losses and Transformer losses. 

6.6 Line losses 

6.6.1 The primary source of losses incurred in a transmission system is in the resistance of the 

conductors. For a certain section of a line, the power dissipated in the form of useless heat as the 

current attempts to overcome the ohmic resistance of the line and is directly proportional to the 

square of the rms current traveling through the line. 

6.6.2 The resistance in turn is proportional to length of conductor & resistivity & inversely proportional 

to cross section of conductor. Also, the current in transmission line is inversely proportional to 

transmission voltage. a small decrease in voltage can result in a significantly high increase in loss. 

6.7 Transformer Losses 

6.7.1 Transformer losses can be categorized as: 

• Copper losses: Copper loss or I2R loss occurs because of heat dissipation due to current passing 

through the windings of the transformer and the internal resistance offered by the windings. 

The copper loss is variable loss and depend upon the variation in the current due to change in 

load. 

• Iron Losses: Iron loss occurs in the core of the transformer and depends upon the magnetic 

properties of the core material. Iron loss is constant as it does not change with the load. The 

technical loss in transformers, both copper and iron loss, is calculated based on the number of 

hours the said transformer were in service, peak load, power factor, number, and capacity of 

the transformer. 

 

Total iron loss (kWh) =I x N x t/1000 

Total copper loss (kWh) = C x N x (DTL) 2 x LLF x t/1000 

 

Here, 

I = Rated Iron loss of the transformer 

C= Rated Copper loss of the transformer 

N = Number of transformers connected to the feeder 

DTL= Loading on the transformer calculated as: Peak load (MVA)/Total connected load (MVA) 

t= Number of hours the transformer was working in the year 

LLF = Loss load factor 

6.8 Potential Methods of reducing Transmission loss 

a) Reconductoring of Transmission line 
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The old conductors and jumpers of transmission lines in Assam needs to be replaced wherever 

necessary.  AAAC, HTLS conductor has better corrosion resistance & better strength to weight 

ratio and are being used at many of the transmission projects in AEGCL.  

 

b) Conversion of single circuit feeders to Double circuit feeders 

Existing single circuit needs to be converted into double circuit. The feasibility study shall be 

carried out considering the tower design, right of way, clearances, sag etc. Moreover, the 

suitability of tower height for requisite clearances, sag, arm length, wind pressure, span, right 

of way as well as capital expenditure & its viability needs to be checked in detail. 

 

c) Improvement of Power factor 

The transmission lines have to wheel active as well as reactive power. The reactive current 

causes additional losses in transmission lines & transformers. Due to drawl of reactive power 

causes decrease in the power factor. The power factor in case of all transformers in substations 

is found to be in range of 0.94 to 0.98.  

 

Due to low power factor the transmission system has to carry the load of reactive power. If the 

reactive power is compensated locally at sub stations by installing capacitors of requisite 

ratings, the upstream network will be relieved by reactive current. 

 

The improvement in power factor would also result in reduction in instantaneous demand 

relieving the load on upstream transmission grid as well as generating system causing surplus 

energy out of predefined allocation. The reduction in demand will result in reduction in demand 

charges. 

 

d) Replacing old equipment: One way to reduce losses is to replace older equipment.  In very high 

usage regions of the network, installing replacement cables with a higher power rating can 

greatly reduce losses.  When replacing power cables, a careful load analysis to anticipate load 

on the cable is necessary to determine which cable is most efficient.   

 

e) Right-sizing Transformers: Transformers operate most efficiently when they are at 80-100% of 

maximum capacity. Underloaded transformers are inefficient due to core losses. If some 

transformers are frequently underloaded, it may be possible to strategically shut down certain 

transformers or install smaller transformers appropriate for the load.  If transformers are 

frequently overloaded, it might be safer and more efficient to install larger transformers or 

rebalance the load such that the transformers are under capacity.  
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f) Using capacitor banks to decrease the reactive load drawl from GSS: The two components of 

apparent load on a system are real load, which performs work, and reactive load, which is 

needed to magnetize an object such as a transformer core.  By installing or adjusting capacitor 

banks, the percentage of reactive load on the system can be decreased, reducing losses of real 

power.  

 

g) Voltage optimization: By carefully re-adjusting voltage levels in a network, it may be possible 

to reduce the current flow in parts of the network, decreasing the total resistive loss in the 

system. 

 

6.8.1 Identifying the causes of loss on a network and determining the best method for reducing loss 

can be challenging, but recent advances in smart meter infrastructure and machine learning can 

help substantially.  The increased temporal and spatial data resolution provided by smart grid 

technology can be used to better understand loss, sources of loss, and the evolution of loss over 

time.  Once a detailed map of system losses is determined, a cost-effective method for reducing 

losses is much easier to develop. 
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Annexure – IV 
Fund Utilisation under Colony 
Maintenance for FY 2022-23 
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2022-23 2023-24 2024-25

1
Renovation of existing damaged quarter to convert into officers

hostel at 132kv Dullavcherra GSS (Unit-I)
₹ 7,77,026

Work 

Completed
₹ 7,75,453

Fund released on 

20.05.23

2
Renovation of existing damaged quarter to convert into officers

hostel at 132kv Dullavcherra GSS (Unit-II)
₹ 7,77,026

Work 

Completed ₹ 7,75,453

Fund released on 

20.05.23

3
Installation of deep tube well for officers hostel at Dullavcherra

GSS
₹ 1,76,174

5
Renovation and repairing of 3 nos of Type-VI quarter at

Samaguri GSS 
₹ 10,84,146

Work 

Completed ₹ 10,71,081

Fund released on 

29.12.22

6
Renovation and repairing of 1 nos of Type-IV quarter at

Samaguri GSS 
₹ 4,74,820

Work 

Completed ₹ 4,74,564

Fund released on 

09.01.23

7
Renovation and repairing of 4 nos of Type-v quarter at

Samaguri GSS
₹ 17,02,942

Work 

Completed ₹ 16,99,217

Fund released on 

23.02.23

8

Construction of 11kv spur line & installation of 11/0.43kv,

63kvadistribution transformer for providing power supply to

residential colony at 132/33kv Karimganj GSS

₹ 15,45,989
Work 

Completed
₹ 15,45,989

Fund released on 

27.10.22

10
Repairing cum modification of existing quarter to be converted

into Officer's Hostel at 220kv Samaguri GSS campus
₹ 6,53,682

Work 

Completed
₹ 6,53,538

Fund released on 

31.03.23

11
Repairing cum modification of existing quarter to be converted

into Staff's Hostel at 220kv Samaguri GSS campus
₹ 10,43,773

Work 

Completed
₹ 10,43,519

Fund released on 

31.03.23

14
Construction of one number of security booth near main gate at

132kv Dhekiajuli GSS
₹ 2,18,790

Work 

Completed ₹ 2,18,790
Fund released on 

12.07.23

15
Repairing of Bituminous Macadam Road from main gate to

switchyard at 220kv GSS,AEGCL,Samaguri
₹ 11,92,030

Work 

Completed
₹ 11,92,030

Fund released on 

31.03.23

16
Construction of new main entrance gate and renovation of

security booth at 220kv Samaguri GSS
₹ 5,62,129

Work 

Completed
₹ 5,62,129

Fund released on 

08.09.23

17 Repairing of Type-VI  Quarter no 12 at 132kv Haflong GSS ₹ 68,319
Work 

Completed
₹ 68,319

Fund released on 

17.10.23

18

Construction of a new main gate at the entrance of Officer's

colony, repairing of existing Bituminous Macadam Road from

main gate of officer's colony to IB gate and constructing a new

CC (Cement Concrete) approach road from IB gate to IB at

132kv Depota GSS,AEGCL

₹ 4,76,678
Work 

Completed

₹ 3,36,080

Fund released on 

25.09.23

19

Repairing of existing C/C pavement from control room building

along the switchyard fencing at 132kv Umrangshy

GSS,AEGCL

₹ 80,757
Work 

Completed
₹ 80,757

Fund released on 

09.05.23

20

Construction of 2 nos of Septic Tank for 4 units of quarter and

minor sanitary installation along with water supply connection

to the existing RCC tank adjacent to the quarter at 132/33kv

GSS, Panchgram

₹ 2,59,491

₹ 2,59,491 ₹ 1,08,34,281 ₹ 76,79,938 ₹ 28,16,981

Remarks

2022-23

AERC Colony Maintenance for the FY 2022-23 (CAR)

Sl. 

No.
Name of the work AA

FC

Amount
Status of work

Bill Amount & Fund release year
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Sl. No. Work Details AA amount FC amount Bill Amount Release Date Remarks

2
Repairing of Type -03(N) quarter no-02 at kahilipara 

AEGCL Colony
68,580.00 68,580.00                 68446 24-11-2022 Payment released

3
Repairing and renovation of RCC Type -V/01 at AEGCL 

Kahilipara Colony
1,63,427.00 1,63,427.00 162750 30-11-2022 Payment released

4
Repairing of Type-IV/GF-2 Unit of RCC Building at 

Sarusajai AEGCL, Colony
2,09,588.00 2,08,457.00              207730 30-11-2022 Payment released

5

Repairing and renovation of Type-III RCC (1) Building 

Quarter No- GF-01 including Head Room roof treatment 

at sarusajai AEGCL Colony

3,49,331.00 3,47,793.00              344694 30-11-2022 Payment released

6
Repairing and renovation of LP school to convert it to 

security Barrack at AEGCL Kahilipara colony
6,62,530.00 6,62,530.00 659482 06-12-2022 Payment released

7

Repairing and renovation of Type-III RCC (1) Building 

Quarter No- FF-2 including roof water proofing treatment 

at sarusajai AEGCL Colony

2,53,115.00 2,52,465.00              251867 06-12-2022 Payment released

8
Repairing and renovation of Type III RCC (1) Building 

Quarter No-GF-2 at sarusajai AEGCL Colony
3,32,278.00 3,29,805.00              329750 06-12-2022 Payment released

9
Water proofing of Type-III/08 at Kahilipara, AEGCL, 

Colony.
93,132.00 93,132.00 93132 16-12-2022 Payment released

12
Repairing of Type -03(N) quarter no-01 at kahilipara 

AEGCL Colony
1,16,694.00 1,16,694.00 116364 05-01-2023 Payment released

13
Repairing and renovation of Type-IV RCC (2) Building 

Quarter No-FF-3 at sarusajai AEGCL Colony
2,00,831.00 2,00,645.00              200330 05-01-2023 Payment released

14
Repairing of RCC Type-V quarter at 132/33 kV Baghjap 

GSS(including sanitary work)
3,26,512.00               3,26,349.00 326349 05-01-2023 Payment released

15
Repairing and renovation of Type -IV/12 at Kahilipara 

AEGCL Colony
2,95,313.00 2,95,313.00 276108 09-01-2023 Payment released

16
Repairing and renovation of RCC Type-V quarter no9 to 

convert it to staff guest house at Kahilipara colony
2,34,067.00 2,34,067.00 231949 09-01-2023 Payment released

17
Repairing and renovation of RCC Type -III/01 at AEGCL 

Kahilipara Colony
1,06,353.00 1,06,353.00 106342 09-01-2023 Payment released

18
Repairing and Renovation of Type –V quarter no-12 

quarter at Kahilipara AEGCL, Colony.
3,57,178.00 3,57,178.00 356077 09-01-2023 Payment released

19

Lifting of column pipe and replacement of 5HP 

submersible pump deep tube well no.2 & 4 at AEGCL, 

Kahilipara Colony

2,03,991.00 2,03,991.00 203991 09-01-2023 Payment released

21 Construction of new wall inside Dwaranda Store 4,06,373.00 4,03,082.00              291707 21-01-2023 Payment released

22
Repairing of Type -03(N) quarter no-04 at kahilipara 

AEGCL Colony
2,59,096.00 2,59,096.00 258767 04-03-2023 Payment released

23
Repairing and Renovation of Type –V unit-10 quarter at 

Kahilipara AEGCL, Colony.
58,050.00 58,050.00 58050 04-03-2023 Payment released

24
Repairing and renovation of Type-IV RCC (1) Building 

Quarter No-GF-1 at sarusajai AEGCL Colony
1,86,277.00 1,85,377.00              184988 04-03-2023 Payment released

25
Repairing and renovation of Type-IV RCC (2) Building 

Quarter No-FF-2 at sarusajai AEGCL Colony
2,11,121.00 2,09,312.00              209186 04-03-2023 Payment released

26

Additional works for RCC slow sand water filter for colony 

including repairing and renovation of existing pump house 

at 220 kV Sarusajai. 

1,81,414.00               1,79,039.00 178216 04-03-2023 Payment released

27
Repairing and renovation of security Booth including 

running water system at 220KV EHV Sarusajai GSS
2,28,170.00 2,25,448.00              224693 04-03-2023 Payment released

28
Repairing and renovation of Type -IV No-7 at Kahilipara 

AEGCL Colony
3,46,097.00 3,46,097.00 335360 30-03-2023 Payment released

29
Repairing of Assam type-II/01 (RE quarter) at Kahilipara 

AEGCL Colony
4,00,856.00        4,00,856.00              400856 30-03-2023 Payment released

30
Repairing and renovation of RCC type-IV/01 at Kahilipara 

AEGCL Colony
3,51,444.00        3,51,444.00              351444 30-03-2023 Payment released

31

Providing GI pipelines in the main PWD road, changing 

the filter media of filter complex and minor sanitary fittings 

at AEGCL, Kahilipara Colony.

3,31,447.00        3,31,447.00              331447 30-03-2023 Payment released

32
Repairing of Departmental quarter, No- NT-III/1, at 

AEGCL Campus of 132KV Dhaligaon GSS 
53,387.00 53301 53280 31-03-2023 Payment released

33
Proposal for Repairing and Renovation of Type-V/21 

quarters at Kahilipara, AEGCL, Colony
1,10,904.00        110314 110109 31-03-2023 Payment released

34

Extension and Renovation of the existing washroom of 

the control room building for provision of a separate 

ladies toilet at 132KV Dhaligaon GSS, AEGCL

2,97,715.00               3,27,218.00 326392 31-03-2023 Payment released

 ₹               72,49,856.00 

FUND RELEASED IN FY 2022-23
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Sl. No Work Description Amount(₹)
Bill Amount(₹)

Payment 

Release Date
Remarks

5
Repairing and renovation of Type III quarter 

(Room 1 & 4) at 220KV GSS, AEGCL, Tinsukia
4,13,316.00 4,07,705                   24-12-2022

6
Repairing of common toilet of office at the office 

of the AGM, Nazira Division, AEGCL, Gargaon
1,55,368.00 1,51,597                   06-01-2023

10
Repairing and renovation of Type D quarter(2 

Nos.) at 220 KV GSS Tinsukia
3,78,018.00 3,20,548                   06-02-2023

11
Repairing and renovation of RE quarter at 

220KV GSS, AEGCL, Tinsukia
4,20,278.00 4,06,343                   06-02-2023

12
Repairing of RE quarter at 132kV GSS, Betbari, 

AEGCL
1,41,924.00 1,37,998                   07-02-2023

13
Construction of security booth at 132kV GSS, 

AEGCL, Jorhat West
2,24,288.00 2,22,210                   07-02-2023

16
Repairing and renovation of Type IV quarter(1 

No.) at 220 KV GSS Tinsukia
3,12,403.00 3,05,376                   02-03-2023

17 Repairing of officers hostel at Moran GSS 11,90,880.00 11,90,880                 02-03-2023

19
Renovation of type-IV quarter at 220kV Colony, 

AEGCL, Mariani, Qtr-4
1,67,086.00 1,63,233                   14-03-2023

20
Renovation of type-III quarter at 220kV Colony, 

AEGCL, Mariani, Qtr-2
1,58,156.00 1,56,878                   14-03-2023

21
Repairing/renovation of staff Hostel at 132kv 

GSS,AEGCL,Bokakhat
3,04,269.00 3,04,269                   14-03-2023

22
Repairing/renovation of  Officer's Hostel at 132kv 

GSS,AEGCL, Bokakhat
3,80,395.00 3,80,395                   14-03-2023

25
Repairing and renovation of Type V quarter(2 

Nos.) at 220 KV GSS Tinsukia
3,83,193.00 3,69,982                   29-03-2023

26

Repairing and maintenance of departmental qtr 

Type C, Qtr no 1 of the residential colony of 

132kv Dibrugarh GSS,AEGCL

3,57,615.00 3,47,582                   29-03-2023

27

Repairing and maintenance of departmental qtr 

Type C, Qtr no 2 of the residential colony of 

132kv Dibrugarh GSS,AEGCL

1,81,947.00 1,81,947                   29-03-2023

28

Repairing and maintenance of departmental qtr 

Type D, Qtr no 12 of the residential colony of 

132kv Dibrugarh GSS,AEGCL

1,35,748.00 1,35,748                   29-03-2023

29
Repairing and renovation of Type-IV(a) 

quarters(2 nos) at 132kv GSS, AEGCL, Ledo
4,31,741.00 4,29,341                   29-03-2023

30
Repairing and renovation of Type-IV(b) 

quarters(2 nos) at 132kv GSS, AEGCL, Ledo
4,26,762.00 4,23,664                   29-03-2023

32

Repairing and maintenance of departmental qtr 

Type D, Qtr no 18 of the residential colony of 

132kv Dibrugarh GSS,AEGCL

1,30,354.00 1,30,354                   30-03-2023

6166049.73

Utilization of Colony Maintenance fund of AERC for the FY 2022-23 under O&M, UAR

Fund Release in FY 2022-23

Total Fund Release in FY 2022-23
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Colony Maintenance Fund released in FY 2022-23

Region Amount

Central Assam Region 76,79,938.00₹                                        

Lower Assam Region 72,49,856.00₹                                        

Upper Assam Region 61,66,049.73₹                                        

Total Amount 2,10,95,843.73₹                                    
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  ANNEXURE V – REVISED CAPITAL INVESTMENT PLAN OF AEGCL FOR  

FY 2022-23 TO FY 2024-25 

The scheme wise projects are detailed with capital expenditure, capitalisation, mode of 

funding and elaborating the requirement of project. The summary of scheme wise 
investments and its capitalisation is summarised below: 

Scheme Wise Capital Expenditure from FY 2022-23 TO FY 2024-25 

  (Rs. Crore)  

 Scheme Name 
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 

Actual Estimated Projected 

AIIB  156.19 418.05 855.11 

ADB 4.68 3.32 0.00 

NERPSIP 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Annual Plan/SOPD 1.48 5.22 9.35 

PSDF 16.01 17.15 - 

TDF 1.86 16.83 4.16 

Deposit work 0.00 0.00 0.00 

NEC 0.00 0.00 0.00 

NESIDS - 5.00  25.00  

AIFA 9.31 19.58 2.83 

AIIMS 0.00 6.94 5.00 

Internal Accrual Equity 2.87 5.13 0.00 

PM Gati Sakti  - 2.00 - 

TOTAL 192.40  499.21  901.45  

 
Scheme Wise Capitalisation from FY 2022-23 TO FY 2024-25 

(Rs. Crore)  

 Scheme Name 
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 

Actual Estimated Projected 
AIIB 97.65 48.70 122.75 

ADB 53.24 33.53 0.00 
NERPSIP 0.00 689.76 0.00 
Annual Plan/SOPD 8.51 16.23 28.11 

PSDF 21.46 19.48 - 
TDF  34.14 103.70 30.85 

Deposit Works 38.72 38.78 57.72 

NEC 0.02 0.00 0.00 

NESIDS - - 1.32 
AIIFA  0.00 46.43 22.41 
AIIMS 22.52 3.94 8.00 
Internal Accrual Equity 13.61 9.07 - 
PM Gati Sakti - - 2.00 
TOTAL  289.87 1009.62 273.15 
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1. Asian Infrastructure Investment Bank (AIIB) Scheme 

 

The Government of India has already planned to make power available for all for 24x7. 

To meet such demands, the following works are proposed by AEGCL to be executed 

under Assam Intra State Transmission System Enhancement Project with financial 

assistance from AIIB. 

  

The entire project was split in two phases and the First Phase of the Project has been 

finalized with the scope of work based on the present availability of land for execution of 

the Project as per discussion with AIIB.  

  

Present Status of Works: 

 

Sl 
No 

Description of 
work 

Name of 
the 

TKC/Supp
lier 

Date of 
Award 

Scheduled 
date of 

completion  

Status as on 
30.10.2023 

1 

Construction of 
220/33kV, 2X100 
MVA GIS at two 
locations 
(Bihpuria & 
Jakhalabandha) 
and associated 
Transmission 
Lines (Package A) 

M/s 
NECCON 
Power & 
Infra 
Limited 

26.07.2021 22.12.2024 
 

 
Jakhalabandha 
1. Civil and Electrical 
Design and Drawings 
review and approval 
process is going on.  
2. Check Survey of 
associated transmission 
line approved.  
3. Tower design 
submitted to IITG for 
vetting. 
4.Boundary wall: 91% 
overall completed. 
5. Earth filling: 44% 
overall completed. 
6. RE residence: 52% 
overall completed. 
7. Store Building: 55% 
overall completed. 
8. Transformer 1 and 2 
pad: 57% completed. 
9. 33/11 KV switchgear 
and CRB: 32% overall 
completed. 
10. Officers Hostel cum 
Transit camp: 30% 
overall completed. 
11. Open Store Shed: 
90% overall completed. 
12. 220 KV GIS Building 
along with GIS bay 
foundation: 7%       
 

Page 207 of 284



AEGCL –Revised Capital Investment Plan for FY 2022-23 to FY 2024-25 

 

4 
 

Sl 
No 

Description of 
work 

Name of 
the 

TKC/Supp
lier 

Date of 
Award 

Scheduled 
date of 

completion  

Status as on 
30.10.2023 

Bihpuria 

1. Civil and Electrical 

Design and Drawings 

review and approval 

process is going on.  

2. Check Survey of 

associated transmission 

line approved. 

3. Tower design 

submitted to IITG for 

vetting.    

4.Boundary wall: 25% 

overall completed. 

5. Earth filling: 33.8% 

overall completed. 

6. RE residence:20% 

overall completed. 

8. Transformer 1 pad: 

25% and Transformer 2 

pad: 25% overall 

completed. 

9. 220 KV GIS Building 

along with GIS bay 

foundation: 2% 

                                                         
 

2 

Construction of 
220/33kV, 2X100 
MVA GIS at two 
locations (Nagaon-
2 &Chaygaon) and 
Associated 
Transmission 
Lines (Package-B) 

Consortiu
m Of M/S 
R.S. Infra 
Projects 
Pvt. 
Limited & 
M/S 
Siemens 
Limited 

28.07.2021 02.02.2025 

 
Nagaon-2 
1. Civil and Electrical 
Design and Drawings 
review and approval 
process is going on. 
2. Check survey of LILO 
of Jawaharnagar-
Samaguri at Nagaon-2 is 
completed. 
3. Site office set up is 
completed. 
4. Boundary wall: 55% 
overall completed                
5. Pile foundation work 
of 220 KV GIS building 
has been initiated. 
6. Security barrack: 25% 
overall completed    
7. Lighting Mast: 80% 
overall completed   
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Sl 
No 

Description of 
work 

Name of 
the 

TKC/Supp
lier 

Date of 
Award 

Scheduled 
date of 

completion  

Status as on 
30.10.2023 

 
Chaygaon 

1. Civil and Electrical 

Design and Drawings 
review and approval 

process is going on. 

2. Boundary wall: 88% 

overall completed. 

3. Check survey of Boko-

Chaygaon transmission 

line is completed.                                                                            

4. GIS drawing is 

approved and 

Foundation work site is 

completed (overall 60% 

completed) 

5. Foundation of 

Lightning Mast is 

completed. 

6. Construction of 

CRB:20% completed. 

  

3 

Construction of 
132/33kV, 2X50 
MVA GIS at 
locations 
Burhigaon and 
associated 
Transmission 
Lines (Package C) 

M/s 
Siddhartha 
Engineerin
g Limited, 
JV with 
M/S New 
Modern 
Technome
ch Pvt. 
Limited (JV 
Partner) 

30.07.2021 06.12.2024 
 

 
1. Check survey works 
completed. 
2. Civil & Electrical 
Design and Drawings 
review and approval 
process is going on. 
Inspection and issuance 
of dispatch Instruction 
also is in process 
3. Items like Insulators, 
Conductors (Moose, 
Panther), CVT, wave 
Trap etc. supplied at site. 
4.Boundary wall 
construction is under 
process. Excavation 70%, 
PCC 59%, RRM 56% and 
Footing/casting 60% is 
completed 
5. Foundation of 
transformer pad for T1 
and T2 80% is completed                                                                                                  
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Sl 
No 

Description of 
work 

Name of 
the 

TKC/Supp
lier 

Date of 
Award 

Scheduled 
date of 

completion  

Status as on 
30.10.2023 

6. Security Barrack/ Staff 
Hostel: 45% overall 
completed. 
7. Officers Hostel/ RE 
residence: 45% overall 
completed. 
8. Store Building: 35% 
overall completed 
9. Security Booth: 45% 
overall completed. 
10. GIS building and CRB: 
39% overall completed.  

4 

Construction of 
220/132kV, 
2X160 MVA; 
132/33kV, 2X50 
MVA GIS at 
location (Khumtai) 
and its associated 
lines and bay 
extension 
(Package-D) 

M/s R. S. 
Infraprojec
ts Pvt. Ltd. 
JV with 
M/s Parth 
Electricals 
& 
Engineerin
g Pvt. Ltd. 

04.05.2022 01.07.2025 

 
1. Boundary wall: 20% 
overall completed 
2. Check Survey Work for 
132KV Khumtai-
Sarupathar D/C line is 
completed.                                                                 
3. Soil investigation work 
100% completed. 
4. Site preparation 
ongoing (95% 
completed). 
5. Tower foundation for 
bay extension ongoing 
6. Construction of 132 KV 
and 220 KV GIS building 
initiated. 
7. 132 KV Tower 
foundation design and 
drawing vetting 
completed by IITG.  

5 

Construction of 
220/132kV, 
2X160 MVA GIS at 
two location 
(Sankardevnagar 
& Agamoni) and its 
associated 
lines(Package-E) 

M/s Godrej 
and M/s 
Boyce Mfg. 
Co Ltd. 

14.10.2021 09.04.2025 

 
Sankardevnagar 
1. Site handover 
completed  
2.Civil & Electrical 
Design and Drawings 
review and approval 
process is going on 
3.Construction of GIS 
Building Raft & Column 
under progress and 46% 
completed. 
4.Construction of RE’ 
Residence under 
progress and 45% 
completed. 
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Sl 
No 

Description of 
work 

Name of 
the 

TKC/Supp
lier 

Date of 
Award 

Scheduled 
date of 

completion  

Status as on 
30.10.2023 

5.Construction of 
Security Barrack under 
progress and 45% 
completed. 
6.Construction of Store 
Building under progress 
and 25% completed. 
7.Construction of 
Transformer Pad 
(excavation & PCC) 
under progress and 50% 
completed. 
8. Construction of Gantry 
Towers under progress 
and 100% completed. 
9. Construction of Store 
Building under progress 
and 45% completed. 
10. Associated 
construction works 
under progress. 
 
Agomoni 
1. Site handover 
completed. 
2.Civil & Electrical 
Design and Drawings 
review and approval 
process is going on. 
3.Construction of GIS 
Building Raft & Column 
under progress and 30% 
completed. 
4.Construction of 145kV 
Control Room Building 
under progress and 40% 
completed.  
5.Foundation of Gantry 
Tower- 2T-1, 2T-2, 1T-3, 
1T-2A, 1T-2B, 1T-A1 and 
1T-1B Type under 
progress and 100% 
completed. 
6.Construction of 
Transformer Pad 
(excavation, PCC and raft 
casting is 100 % 
complete) under 
progress. 
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Sl 
No 

Description of 
work 

Name of 
the 

TKC/Supp
lier 

Date of 
Award 

Scheduled 
date of 

completion  

Status as on 
30.10.2023 

7.  Associated 
construction works 
under progress.  

6 

Construction of 
132/33kV GIS 
Scheme 
Conversion from 
AIS at location 
(Gohpur) 
(Package-F) 

M/s 

Sumaja 

Electro 

Infra Pvt. 

Ltd. 

07.11.2022 
08.04.2026 

 
1. Performance Bank 
Guarantee submitted.  
2. Soil investigation is 
completed. Site layout 
plan is submitted.                                                                        
3. Drawing and Design 
review is in process. 
4. ABG submitted.  
5. Excavation work and 
column foundation work 
initiated.  

7 

Construction of 
400/220kV, 
2X500 MVA; 
220/132kV 1X160 
MVA Rangia GIS 
and 132/33kV, 
2X50 MVA 
Kumarikata AIS 
(Package-G) 

_ 
Yet to be 
awarded 

- 

 
1. Master Plan 
preparation completed. 
2. Route Survey 
completed. 
3.  Tender Floated on 
10/07/2023. Pre-bid 
meeting concluded on 
25//07/2023. Bid 
Closing Date is 
29/08/2023. Queries 
under review.  

8 

Construction of 
400/220kV, 
2X500 MVA GIS at 
Sonapur GIS and 
its associated lines 
and bay extension 
(Package-H) 

_ 
Yet to be 
awarded 

- 

 
1. Master Plan approval 
in process. 
2. Route survey 
completed. 
3. Forest Clearance to be 
obtained for 
transmissionline(3.98k
m under Aprikola 
Reserve Forest under 
DFO Kamrup West. 
Documents have been 
submitted in online e-
parivesh portal on 
19.12.2022. Approval 
under process. Proposal 
now at IRO, MOEFCC 
(GoI) for issuance of in-
principal approval. 

9 
Construction of 
Approach Road for 

M/s High-
Tech Eco 
Green 

- - 
1. Tender evaluation 
completed and NOA 
issued to M/s High-Tech 
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Sl 
No 

Description of 
work 

Name of 
the 

TKC/Supp
lier 

Date of 
Award 

Scheduled 
date of 

completion  

Status as on 
30.10.2023 

400 KV Sonapur 
GIS 

Contractor
s LLP 

Eco Green Contractors 
LLP on 25/10/2023 

10 

Augmentation of 
Existing 
Transformer 
Capacity at 
Narengi, 
Kahilipara, Rangia, 
Kukurmara and 
Boko Substations 
of Assam (Package 
I) 

M/S Blue 
Star 
Limited 

06.09.2021 06.12.2023 

1. 05 nos. of 33 KV HGIS, 
09 nos. of 50 MVA power 
transformer (Kukurmara 
2 nos, Kahilipara 2 nos, 
Nalbari, Sishugram and 
Narengi 1 no. each and 
Rangia 2 nos.), BDV test 
kit supplied at site. 
2. Supply completed for 
LA, earthing material, 
post insulator and 
isolator. 
3. Erection work initiated 
in Narengi GSS. 
4. Contract Amended. 
Amended price is Rs. 
60.33 Crores 
5. 2 nos. of 50 MVA 
Power Trasformer 
charged at Kukurmara 
GSS   

11 

Augmentation of 
Transformer 
Capacity at 
Barnagar, 
Gauripur, 
Panchgram and 
Agia Sub-stations 
(Package-J) 

M/S Hi-
Tech 
Corporatio
n (Jv With 
M/S Tal) 

19.07.2021 06.12.2023 

 

1. 6 nos. 50MVA 

transformers (Barnagar 

2 Nos, Gauripur 2 nos, 

Panchgram 1 no and 

Hailakandi 1 no.) and 33 

kV, 132 kV & 220 kV CT, 

220 KV isolator and 

mounting structure for 

220 KV Isolator and Auto 

Tr. (160MVA) along with 

transformer oil and 

mandatory spares and 

NIFPS arrived at site.  

2.Mounting Structures, 

BDV Test Kit, LA, 132 KV 

and 33 KV Isolator and 

ACSR Moose Conductor, 

NIFPS, ODS, Transformer 

Oil (2nd lot), one no. of 

Bus coupler panel and 

mounting structure for 

132 KV and 33 KV  
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Sl 
No 

Description of 
work 

Name of 
the 

TKC/Supp
lier 

Date of 
Award 

Scheduled 
date of 

completion  

Status as on 
30.10.2023 

isolator, earth mat, 

electrode, power and 

control cable and  04 nos. 

of  Oil storage tank 

arrived at site.  

3. 05 nos. of  50 MVA 

Power transformer 

charged at Gauripur (2), 

Barnagar (2) and 

Panchgram GSS (1). 

Erection work of balance 
01 nos substation under 

process at Hailakandi. 

160 MVA transformer  at 

Agia GSS has been 

charged. 

4. Contract Amended. 

Amended price is 

Rs.42.82 Crores 

12 

Augmentation of 
Transformer 
Capacity at Moran, 
Dibrugarh, Depota, 
Golaghat & 
Sankardevnagar 
sub stations in 
Assam (Package K) 

M/S 
Siddhartha 
Engineerin
g Limited 

30.09.2021 06.12.2023 

 
1. All 10 nos. of 
transformers supplied at 
site namely (Rowta (1), 
Sishugram (1), Golaghat 
(2), Moran (1), Samaguri 
(1), Depota (1), 
Dibrugarh (1), 
Khaloigaon (1) and 
Sarusajai (1)) are 
successfully 
commissioned. 
2. Supply of 132 KV 
Isolator completed. 
3. Supply of Bus 
sectionalizer of 33KV 
HGIS completed. 
4.  Supply of 33 KV PI and 
132 KV CT completed. 
5.  All 10 nos. NIFPS 
supplied at site.  
6. Contract Amended. 
Amended price is Rs. 
43.16 Crores (1st 
Amendment) and 
Rs.41.01 Crores (2nd 
Amendment) 

Page 214 of 284



AEGCL –Revised Capital Investment Plan for FY 2022-23 to FY 2024-25 

 

11 
 

Sl 
No 

Description of 
work 

Name of 
the 

TKC/Supp
lier 

Date of 
Award 

Scheduled 
date of 

completion  

Status as on 
30.10.2023 

13 

Augmentation of 
Existing 
Transmission 
Lines Capacity 
(Three Lines) by 
High Temperature 
Low Sag (HTLS) 
Conductor 
(Package-L) 

M/S APAR 
Industries 
Limited  

23.07.2021 14.08.2023 

 
"1. All GTP/Drawings 
approved.           
2. All materials supplied. 
3. Restringing of 
Gossaigaon-Gauripur line 
completed and charged on 
04.03.2022 and associated 
works such as identification 
and replacement/repairing 
of damaged earthing, 
dismantling of existing 
clamps and connectors, 
accessories from gantry to 
bus and reconnection with 
HTLS compatible connector 
and clamps etc completed.  
4. Restringing of 132 KV 
D/C Salakati-Dhaligaon line 
is completed and associated 
works such as identification 
and replacement/repairing 
of damaged earthing, 
dismantling of existing 
clamps and connectors, 
accessories from gantry to 
bus and reconnection with 
HTLS compatible connector 
and clamps etc completed. 
5. Restringing of 220 KV 
Sarusajai-Mirza D/C line 
completed except the 
railway portion and 
associated works such as 
identification and 
replacement/repairing of 
damaged earthing, 
dismantling of existing 
clamps and connectors, 
accessories from gantry to 
bus and reconnection with 
HTLS compatible connector 
and clamps etc under 
process. 
6. BOQ Amended. Amended 
amount is Rs. 99.76 Crores. 
7. Ampacity Augmentation 
of 132 KV Sarusajai-
Kamakhya Line included 
and contract is amended. 
Amended amount of fresh 
project is Rs. 106.78 Crores 
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Sl 
No 

Description of 
work 

Name of 
the 

TKC/Supp
lier 

Date of 
Award 

Scheduled 
date of 

completion  

Status as on 
30.10.2023 

14 

Augmentation of 
the 
communication 
backbone - 
Replacement of 
existing ground 
wire by OPGW 
(636 KM) 
(Package M) 

M/s 
Sterlite 
Power 
Transmissi
on Ltd. 

30.10.2021 17.01.2025 

1. Design and Drawings 
review and approval 
process is going on. 
2. Line survey completed.  
3. Sag Tension, FAT, 
approach cable, FODP, 
HDE Duct, Joint Box, 
OPGW Hardware fittings 
approved.  
4. OPGW (Drum 
Length=637.34 Km) 
supplied at Mariani Store 
on 13/07/2022 and 
Gossaigaon Store on 
11/07/2022 
5. HDPE duct (2598 
Meters) supplied at site 
on 05/08/2022 
6. OPGW hardware 
fittings supplied at 
Mariani on10/08/2022 
and Gossaigaon on 
06/08/2022. 
7. DI of FODP issued on 
19/08/2022 and 
material reached site on 
11/01/2023. 
8. Joint box supplied at 
site on 14/09/2022. DI of 
spares issued on 
22.06.2022. 
9. FOAC reached site on 
28/11/2023 
10. OPGW Stringing work 
220kV Namrup-Mariani 
line: 141.205 of 141.205 
km completed. 
11. OPGW Stringing work 
for 132kV Gossaigaon - 
Gauripur line: 61.602 of 
61.602 km completed. 
12. OPGW Stringing work 
for 132kV Gossaigaon- 
Dhaligaon line: 48.932 of 
59.432 km completed. 
13. OPGW Stringing work 
for 132 KV Gauripur-
Bilasipara line: 28.626 
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Sl 
No 

Description of 
work 

Name of 
the 

TKC/Supp
lier 

Date of 
Award 

Scheduled 
date of 

completion  

Status as on 
30.10.2023 

km of 37.028 km 
completed. 
14. OPGW Stringing work 
for 220 KV Mariani-
Samaguri line-55 km out 
of 167.352 km 
completed. 
15. OPGW Stringing work 
for 132kV Bilasipara-
Kokrajhar line: 23.480 
km out of 23.480 km 
completed. 
16. OPGW Stringing work 
for 132kV Kokrajhar-
Salakati line:9.571 km 
out of 9.571 km 
completed. 
17. OPGW Stringing work 
for 132kV Dibrugarh-
Lakwa line: 63.934 km 
out of 63.934 km 
completed. 
18.OPGW Stringing work 
for 132kV Majuli-Nalkata 
line:36.213 km out of 
44.805 km completed. 
19. Total Stringing 473 
km Completed out of 636 
km. 
 

15 

Procurement of 
Enterprise 
Resource Planing 
(ERP) (Package N) 

M/s Yash 

Technologi

es Pvt. Ltd. 
28.07.2022 11.11.2026 

 
1. LOA issued on 

25/04/2022. 

2. Contract Agreement 

signed on 28/07/2022. 

3. Kick-off Meeting 

concluded on 

09/08/2022. 

4. Inception report along 

with project charter and 

project plan submitted 
by EPC on 26/08/2022. 

5. ERP license (Lot 1) 

delivered by EPC.                                                                                                    

16 
Selection of 
Project 
Management 

PT 
Feedback 
Infra Ltd, 

02.12.2020 02.12.2025 
 
1. E&S and Civil related 
Site visit. 
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Sl 
No 

Description of 
work 

Name of 
the 

TKC/Supp
lier 

Date of 
Award 

Scheduled 
date of 

completion  

Status as on 
30.10.2023 

Consultancy 
(PMC) (Package O) 

Indonesia 
JV with 
Jade 
Consult, 
Nepal and 
NIPSA, 
Spain 

2. Reviewing Design and 
Electrical Drawings 
submitted by EPC. 
3. Preparation of 
Monthly and Quarterly 
progress reports. 
4. Preparation of E&S 
related Documents are in 
process. 

 

Summary of Capital Expenditure and Capitalisation of AIIB Projects from FY 2022-

23 to FY 2024-25 is tabulated below: 

Capital Expenditure from FY 2022-23 to FY 2024-25: 

 

SN Particulars  

Capital Expenditure 
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 

Actual Estimated Projected 
(Rs. in Crs.) (Rs. in Crs.) (Rs. in Crs.) 

1 

Construction of 220/33kV, 2X100MVA 
GIS at two locations (Bihpuria & 
Jakhalabandha) and associated lines-Pkg 
A 

      

 Bihpuria 0.32 56.86 84.78 
 Jakhalabandha 0.40 14.15 23.85 

2 
Construction of 220/33kV, 2X100MVA 
GIS at two locations (Nagaon-2 & 
Chyagaon) and associated lines-Pkg-B 

      

 Nagaon 0.39 14.98 21.62 
 Chaygaon 0.40 15.64 17.33 

3 

Construction of 132/33kV, 2X50 MVA GIS at 

location (Burhigaon) and its associated 

lines-Pkg-C 

2.73 11.67 14.65 

4 

Construction of 220/132kV, 2X160 MVA; 
132/33kV, 2X50 MVA GIS at location 
(Khumtai) and its associated lines and bay 
extension-Pkg-D 

11.95 15.06 95.36 

5 
Construction of 220/132kV, 2X160 MVA 
GIS at two location Sankardevnagar & 
Agamoni) and its associated lines-Pkg-E 

      

 Sankardevnagar 2.33 8.32 52.75 
 Agamoni 0.13 15.34 45.81 

6 
Construction of 132/33kV GIS Scheme 
Conversion from AIS at location (Gohpur)-
Pkg-F 

0.00 4.08 11.65 

7 
Construction of 400/220kV, 2X500 MVA GIS; 
220/132kV 1X160 MVA GIS; 132/33kV, 
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SN Particulars  

Capital Expenditure 
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 

Actual Estimated Projected 
(Rs. in Crs.) (Rs. in Crs.) (Rs. in Crs.) 

2X50 MVA AIS (Kumarikata) at one location 
(Rangia) and its associated lines and bay 
extension, Pkg-G 

 Rangia 0.09 27.51 119.57 

8 
Construction of 400/220kV, 2X500 MVA GIS 
at location (Sonapur) and its associated lines 
and bay extension -Pkg-H 

0.02 22.30 55.78 

9 

Augmentation of Transformation 
Capacity at five substations (Narengi, 
Kahilipara, Rangia, Kukumara& Boko)-
Pkg-I 

      

 Nalbari 3.10 1.42 0.99 
 Narengi 3.10 1.83 0.99 
 Kahilipara 3.10 8.08 0.99 
 Kukurmara 3.10 8.89 0.94 
 Boko 3.10 9.29 0.94 
 Sishugram 0.70 4.20 2.01 
 Rangia 3.10 8.85 0.94 

10 
Augmentation of Transformation 
Capacity at four substations (Barnagar, 
Panchgram, Agia&Gauripur)-PkG-J 

      

 Barnagar 6.78 4.48 1.15 
 Panchgram 5.00  0.45  0.19 
 Gauripur 6.78 4.55 0.82 
 Agia 6.78 7.27 0.82 
 Hailakandi 4.23 0.95 0.46 

11 

Augmentation of Transformation 
Capacity at five substations (Dibrugarh, 
Depota, Golaghat, Sankardevnagar& 
Moran) Pkg-K 

      

 Dibrugarh 5.90 3.06 1.00 
 Depota 4.71 0.003 0.00 
 Golaghat 6.60 3.49 0.59 
 Sarusajai 4.71 0.002 0.00 
 Moran 3.61 0.85 0.59 
 Rowta 4.51 0.001 0.20 
 Sishugram 5.33 0.113 0.20 
 Samaguri 4.71 0.001 0.00 

12 
Augmentation of Transmission Line 
Capacity (Three Lines)  (HTLS) Pkg-L 

      

 
 132kV BTPS (Salakati)-Dhaligaon) D/C 
(Panther Equivalent) 

7.84 4.04 0.25 

 
132kV Gossaigaon-Gauripur S/C (Panther 
Equivalent) 

7.84 5.35 0.00 

 
220kV Kukurmara-Sarusajai D/C (Zebra 
Equivalent) 

7.83 27.10 11.70 
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Capitalisation from FY 2022-23 to FY 2024-25: 

 

SN Particulars  

Capital Expenditure 
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 

Actual Estimated Projected 
(Rs. in Crs.) (Rs. in Crs.) (Rs. in Crs.) 

13 
Augmentation of the communication 
backbone - Replacement of existing 
ground wire by OPGW (615 kM) 

11.70 32.59 6.07 

14 
Project Management Consultant (PMC) 
services 

6.32 20.55 7.93 

15 ERP 5.26 13.36 7.97 

16 
220/33kV, 2X100 MVA Boragaon GIS with 
Associated Line  

0.00  3.02   5.09  

17 
132/33kV, 2X50 MVA Lumding GIS with 
Associated Line  

0.00  3.72   4.24  

18 
132/33kV, 2X50 MVA Morigaon AIS with 
Associated Line  

0.00  1.88   3.20  

19 
132/33kV, 2X50 MVA Amayapur AIS with 
Associated Line  

0.00  2.66   3.37  

20 
132/33kV, 2X50 MVA Ghungur 
(Udarband) GIS with Associated Line  

1.68  0.42   2.68  

21 
132/33kV, 2X50 MVA Chabua GIS with 
Associated Line  

0.00  2.20   5.57  

22 
132/33kV, 2X50 MVA Dhing AIS with 
Associated Line  

0.00  2.52   9.60  

23 
132/33kV, 2X50 MVA Dhupdhara AIS with 
Associated Line 

0.00  2.66   10.11  

24 
132/33kV, 2X50 MVA Titabor GIS with 
Associated Line 

0.00  0.23   12.84  

25 
132/33kV, 2X50 MVA Serfanguri AIS with 
Associated Line  

0.00  2.47   9.39  

26 
220/132kV, 2X160 MVA Rowta GIS with 
Associated Line  

0.00  7.89   109.28  

27 
220/33kV, 2X100 MVA Panjabari GIS with 
Associated Line  

0.00  3.45   34.85  

28 
132/33kV, 2X50 MVA Agamoni AIS with 
Associated Line 

0.00  2.56   0.97  

29 
132/33kV, 2X50 MVA Zoo Road GIS with 
Associated Line 

0.00  5.69   53.04  

 Total 156.19 418.05 855.11 

SN Particulars  

Capitalisation 
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 

Actual Estimated Projected 
(Rs. in Crs.) (Rs. in Crs.) (Rs. in Crs.) 

1 

Construction of 220/33kV, 2X100MVA 
GIS at two locations (Bihpuria & 
Jakhalabandha) and associated lines-Pkg 
A 

   

 Bihpuria - 0.30 1.55 
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SN Particulars  

Capitalisation 
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 

Actual Estimated Projected 
(Rs. in Crs.) (Rs. in Crs.) (Rs. in Crs.) 

 Jakhalabandha - 0.29 1.45 

2 
Construction of 220/33kV, 2X100MVA 
GIS at two locations (Nagaon-2 & 
Chyagaon) and associated lines-Pkg-B 

   

 Nagaon - 0.35 1.17 
 Chaygaon - 0.42 1.18 

3 

Construction of 132/33kV, 2X50 MVA GIS at 

location (Burhigaon) and its associated 

lines-Pkg-C 

- 

3.31 8.71 

4 

Construction of 220/132kV, 2X160 MVA; 
132/33kV, 2X50 MVA GIS at location 
(Khumtai) and its associated lines and bay 
extension-Pkg-D 

- 

0.00 2.26 

5 
Construction of 220/132kV, 2X160 MVA 
GIS at two location Sankardevnagar & 
Agamoni) and its associated lines-Pkg-E 

   

 Sankardevnagar - 2.02 4.54 
 Agamoni - 0.08 1.76 

6 
Construction of 132/33kV GIS Scheme 
Conversion from AIS at location (Gohpur)-
Pkg-F 

- 0.04 6.00 

7 

Construction of 400/220kV, 2X500 MVA GIS; 
220/132kV 1X160 MVA GIS; 132/33kV, 
2X50 MVA AIS (Kumarikata) at one location 
(Rangia) and its associated lines and bay 
extension, Pkg-G 

- - - 

 Rangia 2.89 0.1 3.00 

8 
Construction of 400/220kV, 2X500 MVA GIS 
at location (Sonapur) and its associated lines 
and bay extension -Pkg-H 

0.00 0.01 0.1 

9 

Augmentation of Transformation 
Capacity at five substations (Narengi, 
Kahilipara, Rangia, Kukumara& Boko)-
Pkg-I 

   

 Nalbari 4.32 0.00 2.19 
 Narengi 0.00 4.32 2.60 
 Kahilipara 4.32 4.32 4.52 
 Kukurmara 8.64 0.00 5.23 
 Boko 0.00 0.00 14.27 
 Sishugram 0.00 0.00 6.92 
 Rangia 4.32 4.32 5.19 

10 
Augmentation of Transformation 
Capacity at four substations (Barnagar, 
Panchgram, Agia&Gauripur)-PkG-J 

   

 Barnagar 8.32 0.35 3.84 
 Panchgram 4.17 0.00 2.29 
 Gauripur 8.32 0.20 4.45 
 Agia 11.31 0.23 4.15 
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Funding of AIIB Projects 

 

Sr Capital Expenditure 
Funding 
Pattern 

FY  
2022-23 

FY  
2023-24 

FY  
2024-25 

Actual Estimated  Projected 
(Rs. in Crs.) (Rs. in Crs.) (Rs. in Crs.) 

A Counterpart Funding (GoA)-Grant  18% 28.11 75.25 153.92 

B Grant (AIIB) 82% 128.08 342.80 701.19 

 Total  156.19  418.05 855.11 

 

Sr Capitalisation 
Funding 
Pattern 

FY  
2022-23 

FY  
2023-24 

FY  
2024-25 

Actual Estimated Projected  
(Rs. in Crs.) (Rs. in Crs.) (Rs. in Crs.) 

A Counterpart Funding (GoA)-Grant 18% 17.58 8.77 22.10 
B Grant (AIIB) 82% 80.07 39.94 100.66 
 Total   97.65  48.70 122.75 

  

SN Particulars  

Capitalisation 
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 

Actual Estimated Projected 
(Rs. in Crs.) (Rs. in Crs.) (Rs. in Crs.) 

 Hailakandi 3.98 0.00 2.48 

11 

Augmentation of Transformation 
Capacity at five substations (Dibrugarh, 
Depota, Golaghat, Sankardevnagar& 
Moran) Pkg-K 

   

 Dibrugarh 7.33 0.00 3.26 
 Depota 3.45 0.00 1.85 
 Golaghat 6.92 1.00 3.35 
 Sarusajai 3.5 0.05 1.75 
 Moran 3.46 0.00 2.18 
 Rowta 3.45 0.05 1.80 
 Sishugram 3.5 0.05 2.09 
 Samaguri 3.45 0.00 1.85 

12 
Augmentation of Transmission Line 
Capacity (Three Lines) (HTLS) Pkg-L 

   

 
 132kV BTPS (Salakati)-Dhaligaon) D/C 
(Panther Equivalent) 

- 
3.47 0.38 

 
132kV Gossaigaon-Gauripur S/C (Panther 
Equivalent) 

- 
5.53 1.22 

 
220kV Kukumara-Sarusajai D/C (Zebra 
Equivalent) 

- 
0.89 5.46 

13 
Augmentation of the communication 
backbone - Replacement of existing 
ground wire by OPGW (615 kM) 

- 
13.00 1.73 

14 
Project Management Consultant (PMC) 
services 

2.00 4.00 6.00 

 Total 97.65 48.70 122.75 
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2. Asian Development Bank (ADB) 

 
1. Construction of 132KV DC Chandrapur - Sonapur and 132 KV DC Sonapur- Jagiroad 

(Baghjap) transmission line: 
 
The construction of transmission line was pending due to non-approval of Forest 
Clearance. However, forest issue is now resolved. Balance stringing is in progress. Colour 
SOI Toposheet map depicting 3 (three) alternate routes, duly signed and authenticated 
by Divisional Forest Officer, Kamrup East Division and justification report for 3 (three) 
alternate routes regarding diversion of 5.77 Hectare in Teteliguri Reserve Forest for the 
132 kV D/C Sonapur Baghjap line has been submitted to Inspector General of Forest (C), 
Integrated Regional Office, Govt. of India, Ministry of Environment, Forest and Climate 
Change (MOEFCC) from Govt. of Assam, Environment & Forest Department. 
 
Present Status of Works: 

Sl. 
No 

Project 
Name 

Status 
Start 

Date of 
Project 

Original 
Date of 

Completion 

Target Date 
of 

Completion 

Reasons for 
delay in 

start/compl
etion 

1 

132 kV DC 
Chandrapur-
Sonapur and 
132 Kv DC 
Sonapur-
Jagiroad 
(Baghjaap) 
Transmission 
Line 

1) Overall 
progress: 
98.00% 

Nov’11 Nov-13 Mar-24 

Forest issue 
is resolved. 
Balance 
stringing is 
in progress.  

2) All the 
foundation and 
erection works 
are completed 
except stringing 
of 3 kM which is 
under forest 
area. 

 
 
Summary of Capital Expenditure and Capitalisation for FY 2022-23 to FY 2023-24 
is tabulated below: 

SN  Capital Expenditure  
Actual Estimated 

FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 
(Rs. in Crs.) (Rs. in Crs.) 

1 
132 kV DC Chandrapur-Sonapur and 132 kV DC Sonapur-
Jagiroad (Baghjaap) Transmission Line 

3.16  3.32  

2 

Construction of various Transmission Line, hostels, water 
supply, culvert cum approach road, construction / 
repairing of Boundary walls, repairing of IB at different 
sub-stations, Construction of G+2 Administrative 
Buildings, Augmentation works, miscellaneous 
expenditure and associated activities like payment of 
imprest, repairing of quarters , construction of security 
barrack, land filling, anti-rust special paint on towers, land 
& zirat compensation, TA bill, purchase of cables, 
conductors, administrative expenses like purchase of 

1.52 - 
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computer, office stationery, furniture etc were carried out 
under ADB funded schemes and ADB related Counterpart 
fund as per statement/ annexures received from field 
officials under whom works were executed. 
Project was scattered under various substations around 
Assam, later had to take many relocations of the 
equipments which resulted into delay in reconciliation. 

  Total 4.68  3.32  

 

SN  Capitalisation 
Actual Estimated 

FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 
(Rs. in Crs.) (Rs. in Crs.) 

1 
132 kV DC Chandrapur-Sonapur and 132 kV 
DC Sonapur-Jagiroad (Baghjaap) 
Transmission Line 

 33.53 

2 

Construction of various Transmission Line, 
hostels, water supply, culvert cum approach 
road, construction / repairing of Boundary 
walls, repairing of IB at different sub-stations, 
Construction of G+2 Administrative Buildings, 
Augmentation works, miscellaneous 
expenditure and associated activities like 
payment of imprest, repairing of quarters , 
construction of security barrack, land filling, 
anti-rust special paint on towers, land & zirat 
compensation, TA bill, purchase of cables, 
conductors, administrative expenses like 
purchase of computer, office stationery, 
furniture etc were carried out under ADB 
funded schemes and ADB related Counterpart 
fund as per statement/ annexures received 
from field officials under whom works were 
executed. 
Project was scattered under various 
substations around Assam, later had to take 
many relocations of the equipment which 
resulted into delay in reconciliation. 

53.24 - 

  Total 53.24  33.53  

 

Capital Expenditure and Capitalisation Funding of ADB Projects 

 

Sr Capital Expenditure 
Funding 
Pattern 

FY  
2022-23 

FY  
2023-24 

Actual Estimated 
(Rs. in Crs.) (Rs. in Crs.) 

A Counterpart Funding (GoA) 20% 0.94 0.66 
B Remaining Part 80% 3.74 0.65 

B (i) Grant (ADB) 72% 3.37 2.39 
B (ii) Grant (GoA) 8% 0.37 0.27 

 Total   4.68   3.32  
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Sr Capitalisation 
Funding 
Pattern 

FY  
2022-23 

FY  
2023-24 

Actual Estimated 
(Rs. in Crs.) (Rs. in Crs.) 

A Counterpart Funding (GoA) 20% 10.65 6.71 
B Remaining Part 80% 42.59 26.82 

B (i) Grant (ADB) 72% 38.33 24.14 
B (ii) Grant (GoA) 8% 4.26 2.68 

 Total  53.24   33.53  
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3. Power System Development Fund (PSDF) 

 

The proposal for State support to execute the project “Power System Development Fund” 

of the Govt. of India has been incorporated in the priority list of transmission & 

transformation projects of 2019-20. The grid disturbance on 30th & 31st July 2012 in most 

areas of India forced the M/o Power Govt of India to address the main causes for the 

incident. During the grid disturbance on 31st July 2012, Assam has suffered a loss of 706 

MW of power.  

After analysis, the M/o Power Govt of India comes out with a proposal for “Renovation & 

Up-gradation of the Protection Systems” of the national grid. All the State utilities and the 

central utilities were asked to submit project proposal for Renovation & Up-gradation of 

the Protection systems of their grid. Accordingly, the Assam State Electricity Grid 

Corporation Ltd (AEGCL)proposed and submitted a DPR to the Govt of India (GoI). The 
GoI has accorded sanctioned as grant under PSDF. 

Status of ongoing Projects under PSDF 

The capital expenditure of PSDF projects is expected to be completed by FY 2023-24, and, 

the capitalisation of major portion is expected to be accomplished by end of FY 2023-24. 

SN Projects Status 
A R&U Physical -100% completed and Financial - 90% Completed 
B R&U-BCU Physical -100% completed and Financial - 85% Completed 

 

Summary of PSDF Projects Capital Expenditure and Capitalisation is tabulated 

below: 

SN Capital Expenditure 
FY 2022-23 FY  2023-24 

Actual Estimated 
(Rs. in Crs.) (Rs. in Crs.) 

A R&U 16.0 1 12.12  
B R&U-BCU 0.00  5.03  
 Total 16.01  17.15  

 

SN Capitalisation 
FY 2022-23 FY  2023-24 

Actual Estimated 
(Rs. in Crs.) (Rs. in Crs.) 

A R&U 21.46 10.54 
B R&U-BCU 0.00 8.94 
 Total 21.46 19.48 

Funding of PSDF Projects 

SN 
Capital 

Expenditure 
Funding 
Pattern 

FY  2022-23 FY  2023-24 FY  2024-25 
(Rs. in Crs.) (Rs. in Crs.) (Rs. in Crs.) 

A GoI – PSDF 100% Grant 16.01  17.15  0.00 
 Total  16.01  17.15  0.00 

 

SN Capitalisation FY  2022-23 FY  2023-24 FY  2024-25 
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Funding 
Pattern 

(Rs. in Crs.) (Rs. in Crs.) (Rs. in Crs.) 

A GoI – PSDF 100% Grant 21.46  19.48  0.00 
 Total  21.46  19.48  0.00 
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4. Trade Development Fund (TDF) 
 

1. Construction of 132/33 kV Barpeta substation with LILO from 132 kV Dhaligaon-

Nalbari line on D/C Tower 

The Project for “the construction of 132/33 kV Barpeta substation with 132 kV S/C line 

on D/C tower from LILO of 132kV Dhaligaon-Nalbari line” has been completed & charged 

on 27.02.2022. Because of which the voltage profile of downstream network power in 

and around Barpeta has been improved. As such, system stability has been increased and 

along with reduction in transmission loss. 

2. Construction of 132/33 kV Hatsingimari substation with 132 kV S/C Agia-

Hatsingimari line on D/C Tower 

The power feeding to the distribution network of South Salmara, Hatsingimari, 

Mankachar, etc areas has been done from AEGCL grid network through proposed the 

construction of the 132/33 kV Hatsingimari substation with 116 km of 132 kV S/C line 
on D/C tower from Agia. The project has been commissioned in FY 2023-24. 

This has helped improving voltage profile, system stability reducing load shedding in the 
concerned area. 

3. Construction of 132 KV S/C line on D/C tower from Salakati to APM 

 

To improve the system stability and to feed quality power to the distribution network via 

grid sub-stations at Dhaligaon, APM, and Nalbari, construction of 132 kV S/C BTPS-APM 

line on D/C tower is urgently required. This line is very much essential from the 

redundancy plan point of view, and it will give an alternative route of power feeding to 

the aforesaid sub-station. It will thus reduce probability of the systems instability of 

power feeding to the distribution network of concerned areas covering entire Chirang, 

Bongaigaon, Abhyapuri & Chapar area. 

Currently, Forest clearance is yet to be received at 2 locations under Aie Valley Forest 

Division and Stage I forest clearance received for 3 locations under Haltugaon Division. 

Due to fund constraint progress has slowed down. Fund issue has been taken up with GoA 

and likely to be resolved soon. 

Status of ongoing Projects: 

Sl. 
No 

Project 
Name 

Status 
Start 

Date of 
Project 

Original 
Date of 

Completion 

Target Date 
of 

Completion 

Reasons for 
delay in 

start/completion 

1 

Construction 
of 132/33 KV 
Hatsingimari 
GSS  

Completed 
and 
commissioned 
on 02.06.2023  

Oct, 
2016 

Mar, 2019 June, 2023 
1. ROW Issue  
2. Fund Constraint 

2 

 132 KV S/C 
line on D/C 
tower from 
Agia to 
Hatsingimari 

Completed 
and 
commissioned 
on 02.06.2023  

Oct, 
2014 

Apr, 2016 June, 2023  
1. ROW Issue  
2. Fund Constraint 
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Sl. 
No 

Project 
Name 

Status 
Start 

Date of 
Project 

Original 
Date of 

Completion 

Target Date 
of 

Completion 

Reasons for 
delay in 

start/completion 

3 

132 KV LILO 
to Barpeta 
from 
Dhaligaon-
Nalbari line 

Completed 
and charged 
on 27.02.2022 

April, 
2016 

Apr, 2018  Feb, 2022 
1. ROW Issue  
2. Fund Constraint 

4 
132 /33 KV 
Barpeta GSS 

Completed 
and charged 
on 27.02.2022 

Feb, 
2016 

Feb, 2018  Feb, 2022  

5 

132 KV S/C 
line on D/C 
tower from 
Salakati to 
APM 

Around 76% 
of Work 
completed  
Total (Nos): 
157 
Stub Cons 
(Nos): 142 
Erected (Nos): 
122 
Stringing: Nil 

Feb, 
2015 

Aug, 2016 Jan, 2025   

1. Forest clearance 
is yet to be 
received at 2 
locations under 
Aie Valley Forest 
Division and  
2. Stage I forest 
clearance received 
for 3 locations 
under Haltugaon 
Division.  

 

Summary of TDF Projects Capital Expenditure and Capitalisation is tabulated 

below: 

SN  Capital Expenditure 
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 

Actual Estimated Projected 
(Rs. in Crs.) (Rs. in Crs.) (Rs. in Crs.) 

1 Hatsingimari GSS - 2.89 - 

2 
Barpeta substation, 132/33kV, 
2x25MVA 

- 2.01 - 

 SS Total 0.00 4.89 0.00 

1 
Construction of 132 KV S/C line on 
D/C tower from Salakati to APM 

- 
6  4.16 

2 
Construction of 132 KV LILO from 
Dhaligaon – Nalbari line 

1.86  - - 

3 
Construction of 132 KV S/C line on 
D/C tower from Agia to 
Hatsingimari (Package_A&B ) 

- 5.94 - 

 Trans. Lines Total 1.86  11.94  4.16  
 Total (S/S and Trans. Line) 1.86  11.94  4.16  

 

SN  Capitalisation 
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 

Actual Estimated Projected 
(Rs. in Crs.) (Rs. in Crs.) (Rs. in Crs.) 

1 Hatsingimari GSS - 23.16 - 

2 
Barpeta substation, 132/33kV, 
2x25MVA 

11.03  12.85  
- 

 SS Total 11.03  36.01  0.00 
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SN  Capitalisation 
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 

Actual Estimated Projected 
(Rs. in Crs.) (Rs. in Crs.) (Rs. in Crs.) 

1 
Construction of 132 KV S/C line on 
D/C tower from Salakati to APM 

- - 30.85 

2 
Construction of 132 KV LILO from 
Dhaligaon-Nalbari line 

23.11  - - 

3 
Construction of 132 KV S/C line on 
D/C tower from Agia to 
Hatsingimari (Package_A&B) 

- 67.69  - 

 Trans. Lines Total 23.11  67.69  30.85  
 Total (S/S and Trans. Line) 34.14  103.695  30.85  

 

Funding of TDF Projects 

Sr Capital Expenditure 
Funding 
Pattern 

FY 
2022-23 

FY 
2023-24 

FY 
2024-25 

Actual Estimated Projected 
% (Rs. in Crs.) (Rs. in Crs.) (Rs. in Crs.) 

A GoA- Grant 100% 1.86  16.83  4.16  
 Total 100% 1.86  16.83  4.16  

 

Sr Capitalisation 
Funding 
Pattern 

FY 
2022-23 

FY 
2023-24 

FY 
2024-25 

Actual Estimated Projected 
% (Rs. in Crs.) (Rs. in Crs.) (Rs. in Crs.) 

A GoA- Grant 100% 34.14  103.70  30.85  
 Total 100% 34.14  103.70 30.85 
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5. NERPSIP 

 
GOI sanctioned “North Eastern Region Power System Improvement Project” (NERPSIP) 
on 01.12.2014 for six NER states (Assam, Meghalaya, Manipur, Tripura, Nagaland & 
Mizoram) for strengthening of Intra State Transmission and Distribution System. The 
Scheme is implemented as Central Sector Scheme through POWERGRID as per sanction 
of the President of India conveyed to the NERPSIP for six (6) states with completion 
schedule of 48 months from the date of release of 1st instalment of funds to PGCIL. The 
Implementation/Participation Agreement between Assam (AEGCL/APDCL) and PGCIL 
was signed on 29th May,2015.  

The project is funded 50% through World bank fund and 50% by GoI through MoP 
Budget. State Government shall reimburse all form of State level taxes, duties and levies. 
The Government of India (Ministry of Power) shall be the borrower of the Bank loan and 
the total loan (the Bank loan and GoI/MoP budgetary support) shall be made directly 
available by GoI to Implementing Agency, POWERGRID for phase wise implementation 
on behalf of AEGCL.  The ownership of the assets lies with AEGCL and upon progressive 
commissioning, the project elements shall be taken over by AEGCL for operation and 
maintenance on their own at their own cost. 

In the scope of NERPSIP-Assam, the following are being done by POWERGRID: 

(i) Eleven (11) nos. of new EHV Sub stations of which three (3) will be GIS and rest will 

be AIS. 

(ii) Augmentation of two (2) existing sub stations at Samaguri and Dhaligaon. 

(iii) The scheme also involves Turnkey Tower Package at various location. 

(iv) Procurement of 27 nos. of transformers. 

(v) Pile foundation work at 9 locations over River Brahmaputra 

(vi) Approximately 740 kms of OPGW including existing and new Transmission lines 

(216km).  

(vii) Capacity Building and Institutional Strengthening of Assam electricity transmission 

and distribution scenario has been taken up. 

 

The project status report of ongoing works carried out under NERPSIP provided by PGCIL 

is provided as Annexure-V(A) for your kind reference. 

 
Summary of NERPSIP Projects Capitalisation is tabulated below: 

SN  Package Name 
FY 2023-24 
Estimated 

(Rs. in Crs.) 
1 ASM-SS-01 66.25 

2 ASM-SS-02 86.17 

3 ASM-SS-03 46.12 

4 ASM-SS-04 217.57 

5 Tr-01  99.21 

6 ASM P01 28.50 

7 TW02 38.07 

8 TW04 20.69 

9 TW05 13.06 
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SN  Package Name 
FY 2023-24 
Estimated 

(Rs. in Crs.) 
10 TW-07 65.89 

11 ASM OPGW01 8.23 

 Total 689.76 

 

Funding of NERPSIP Projects 

Sr Capitalisation 
Funding Pattern 

(%) 

FY 
2023-24 

Estimated 
(Rs. in Crs.) 

A GoI- Grant 50% 344.88 
B World Bank- Grant 50% 344.88 
 Total 100% 689.76 

 

Kindly note that the ongoing projects were commenced in the previous/current years 

and thus the capital expenditure has been incurred directly by GOI. Hence, capital 

expenditure is not reflected in the account of AEGCL. However, the projects once 

capitalised, shall reflect capitalisation in account of AEGCL as the ownership of the assets 

lies with AEGCL and the project elements shall be taken over by AEGCL for operation and 
maintenance on their own at their own cost. 
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6. Assam Infrastructure Financing Authority (AIFA) 

The proposal for Construction of 132/33kV, 2x50 MVA Nathkuchi Substation and 

associated Transmission Lines has been approved by Govt. of Assam under the Assam 

Infrastructure Funding Authority "AIFA" vide Revised AA No. No. PEL.192/2017/103 
dtd11.10.2019. 

 

The 132/33 kV Nathkuchi substation will help to address the load demand at Pathsala 

Bhabanipur, Harupather, Nathkuchi, KhudraBhaluki, Boroma and Mushalpur as there is 

a trend of increase in domestic, commercial and industrial loads. The project will further 
lead to: 

a) Increase in power transformation capacity and improvement in voltage profile of the 

grid system as well as power distribution network in and around Pathsala. 

b) Minimization of overloading condition of Nalbari and Barnagar Grid sub-stations. 

About 14MWs of Nalbari substation & 15 MWs of Barnagar load can be diverted to 

Nathkuchi new substation which will ease the overloading conditions of these 

substations. 

c) This new substation will ease severe load shedding scenario around the area. 

d) Increase in revenue through additional installed capacity. 

e) Enhanced power reliability & better customer service. 

Turnkey Construction has been split into two parts, considering the nature of works, as 
follows: 
1) Turnkey Construction of 2x50 MVA, 132/33 kV Nathkuchi Substation with associated 

Transmission Line (LILO of 132kV Transmission Line from Rangia GSS to Barnagar 

GSS at Nathkuchi). The expected date of completion is Dec’2023.  

2) Supply and Erection of HTLS Conductors along with all accessories from132 

kV Rangia Substation to Nathkuchi Substation on turnkey basis. The work has 

completed in April’ 2022. 

Summary of AIFA Projects Capital Expenditure and Capitalisation is tabulated 

below: 

 

Sr  Capital Expenditure 
FY  2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY  2024-25 

Actual Estimated Projected 
(Rs. in Crs.) (Rs. in Crs.) (Rs. in Crs.) 

1 

Turnkey Construction of 2x50 MVA, 

132/33 kV Nathkuchi Substation with 

associated Transmission Line (LILO of 

132kV Transmission Line from Rangia 

GSS to Barnagar GSS at Nathkuchi)  

9.31  19.58  2.83  

 Total 9.31  19.58  2.83  
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Sr  Capitalisation 
FY  2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY  2024-25 

Actual Estimated Projected 
(Rs. in Crs.) (Rs. in Crs.) (Rs. in Crs.) 

1 

Turnkey Construction of 2x50 MVA, 

132/33 kV Nathkuchi Substation with 

associated Transmission Line (LILO of 

132kV Transmission Line from Rangia 

GSS to Barnagar GSS at Nathkuchi)  

-  46.43  22.41 

 Total 0.00  46.43  22.41 

 

Funding of AIFA Projects 

Sr 

Capital 
Expenditure 

Funding Pattern 
(%) 

FY  2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY  2024-25 
Actual Estimated Projected 

(Rs. in Crs.) (Rs. in Crs.) (Rs. in Crs.) 
A GoA- Grant 100% 9.31  19.58  2.83  
 Total 100% 9.31  19.58  2.83  

 

Sr Capitalisation 
Funding Pattern 

(%) 

FY  2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY  2024-25 
Actual Estimated Projected 

(Rs. in Crs.) (Rs. in Crs.) (Rs. in Crs.) 
A GoA- Grant 100% 0.00  46.43   22.41  
 Total 100% 0.00  46.43   22.41  
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7. AIIMS 

In order to supply power to the upcoming AIIMS at CHANGSARI, Guwahati, AEGCL has 

completed construction of 1X25 MVA, 132/33KV substation at AIIMS campus along with 

associated transmission line.  

The Health & Family Welfare Dept., Govt of Assam has approved the project and issued 

Administrative Approval vide letter no. AA/DME_2019-20(I)_309dtd. 19.07.2019 for Rs. 

4198.74 Lakhs. The substation along with associated transmission line was made 
operational on 30.12.2022. 

Summary of AIIMS Projects Capital Expenditure and Capitalisation is tabulated 
below: 

Sr Capital Expenditure 
FY 2022-23 FY  2023-24 FY  2024-25 

Actual Estimated Projected 
  Package Name (Rs. in Crs.) (Rs. in Crs.) (Rs. in Crs.) 

1 
1x25 MVA, 132/33 kV AIIMS GSS, 

Changsari along with associated 

Line 

0.00 6.94  5.00  

 Total 0.00  6.94  5.00  

 

Sr Capitalisation 
FY 2022-23 FY  2023-24 FY  2024-25 

Actual Estimated Projected 
  Package Name (Rs. in Crs.) (Rs. in Crs.) (Rs. in Crs.) 

1 

1x25 MVA, 132/33 kV AIIMS GSS, 

Changsari along with associated 

Line 

22.52   3.94  8.00  

 Total  22.52   3.94   8.00  

 

Funding of AIIMS Projects 

 

Sr 

Capital 
Expenditure 

Funding 
Pattern (%) 

FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 
(Rs. in Crs.) (Rs. in Crs.) (Rs. in Crs.) 

A GoA- Grant 100%  0.00  6.94  5.00  
 Total 100% 0.00 6.94  5.00  

 

Sr Capitalisation 
Funding 

Pattern (%) 
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 
(Rs. in Crs.) (Rs. in Crs.) (Rs. in Crs.) 

A GoA- Grant 100%  22.52   3.94   8.00  
 Total 100%  22.52   3.94   8.00  
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8. Annual Plan/SOPD-G 

1. Augmentation of transformer capacity of 132/33 kV Nalbari sub-station from 

1x40 MVA + 1x16 MVA to 1x50 MVA + 1x40 MVA  

Considering the sharply increasing load demand of 132/33 kV Nalbari sub-station, 

augmentation of transformer capacity of the sub-station was urgently required. Major 

part of the Nalbari district was already suffering from load shedding especially during 

peak load hours of summer season. Therefore, it was decided to augment existing 

transformer capacity of the 132/33 kV Nalbari sub-station in order to take care of 

present and future load growth. 

 

2. Augmentation of transformer capacity of 132/33 kV Khaloigaon sub-station 

from 2x25 MVA to 1x25 + 1x50 MVA  

Considering the sharply increasing load demand of 132/33 kV Khaloigaon sub-station, 

augmentation of transformer capacity of the sub-station was urgently required. Major 

part of the Nagaon district was already suffering from load shedding especially during 

peak Load hours of summer season. Therefore, it was decided to augment existing 

transformer capacity of the 132/33 kV Khaloigaon sub-station in order to take care of 

present and future Load growth. 

 

3. Construction of 220 kV D/C Sonabil- Biswanath Chariali line with 2 nos. of 220 

kV line bay for Sonabil Sub-station 

This proposal would contribute to enhance the current power situation on the north 

bank of the Brahmaputra River as the system will be directly connected to the 220 KV 

thereby enhance the power scenario. Also, in turn enhancing commercial and trade 

activities in Upper Assam Region, hence improving the socio-economic scenario and 

directly benefiting residents/workers of the connected region. 

 

4. 2nd Circuit Stringing of 132kv,41.923 KM Long Samaguri-Khaloigaon (Nagaon) 

line on D/C tower of AEGCL. (41.923km long) 

The 220KV GSS Type-I Samaguri was connected to the 132 kV GSS Type-II Khaloigaon 

through the 132 KV 41.923 KM Long Samaguri-Khaloigaon (Nagaon) line S/C line on 

D/C tower. As this line was the only circuit linking power to both the substations 

without any redundancy, it was proposed to string a second circuit on the existing D/C 

tower so that the power supply from the substations will be more reliable in addition 

to the fulfilment of (n-1) contingency of CEA guidelines. The substations supply power 

to the connected region in major part of the Nagaon & Morigaon district which was 

already suffering from severe load shedding especially during peak Load hours of 

summer season. Thus, for reliability of power, stringing of second circuit between 

Samaguri-Khaloigaon (Nagaon) was an essential requirement and have greatly 

impacted the beneficiaries. 
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5. Hotline stringing of 2nd circuit of 132kV Kukurmara (Mirza) – Azara 

transmission line 

132/33 KV Azara substation is radially connected to 400/220/132/33 KV Kukurmara 

(Mirza) substation through the 132 KV Azara-Kukurmara (Mirza) S/C line on D/C 

tower, which was completed in December, 2019. As this line is the only circuit that 

feeds power to Azara substation without any redundancy, it was proposed to string a 

second circuit on the existing D/C tower so that the power supply from the Azara 

substation will be more reliable in addition to the fulfilment of (n-1) contingency of 

CEA guidelines. The 132/33 KV Azara substation supplies power to Palashbari, Mirza 

and vital areas of Airport and nearby. Thus, for reliability of power, stringing of second 

circuit between Kukurmara (Mirza)- Azara was an essential requirement and will have 

a great impact on the beneficiaries. 

6. Construction of 01 no. of 132kV line bay at 132/33kV Azara substation along 

with associated PLCC work at 400/220/132/33 kV Kukurmara (Mirza) 

132/33 KV Azara substation is radially connected to 400/220/132/33 KV Kukurmara 

(Mirza) substation through the 132 KV Azara-Kukurmara (Mirza) S/C line on D/C 

tower, which was completed in December, 2019. As this line is the only circuit that 

feeds power to Azara substation without any redundancy, it was proposed to string a 

second circuit on the existing D/C tower so that the power supply from the Azara 

substation will be more reliable in addition to the fulfilment of (n-1) contingency of 

CEA guidelines. The 132/33 KV Azara substation supplies power to Palashbari, Mirza 

and vital areas of Airport and nearby. Thus, for reliability of power, stringing of second 

circuit between Kukurmara (Mirza)- Azara was an essential requirement. Also, the 

envisaged work for constructing the second circuit will also require construction of 

one no. of 132 kV bay at Azara GSS. The bay at Kukurmara end is ready with all 

equipment installed. However, the PLCC equipment for the link at both ends is 

required. 

7. Hotline OPGW Stringing in 132kV Kukurmara (Mirza)-Azara Line 

As per directives received from NERPC, line differential relay is required for short lines. 

As such fibre communication is required for establishing link between both end of the 

relays in addition to enhancing the reliability of data communication with SLDC. 

Therefore, the work was taken up by AEGCL under SOPD/Annual Scheme. The project 

was completed on 25.04.2023 

 

8. Turnkey Construction of 2 (two) nos. of 132kV Line Bays including Supply of Bay 

Equipment and line bay materials and associated works etc. at Gohpur GSS, 

AEGCL 

At present 132/33 kV Gohpur sub-station caters to 120-125 MW load to four nos. of 

districts viz. Lakhimpur, Dhemaji, part of Biswanath and Majuli. Gohpur substation is 

fed from two transmission lines one from Biswanath Chariali (AEGCL) sub-station and 
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another from Sonabil grid sub-station. Due to Increasing load demand at Gohpur sub-

station, Gohpur was facing overloading problem. To resolve this problem there was 

need of another power flow route to feed additional power to Gohpur substation from 

Biswanath Chariali (800 kV HVDC PGCIL) sub-station.   

Therefore, a transmission line from Biswanath Chariali (PGCIL) to Itanagar was being 

implemented as a part of NERSS-II by Power Grid Corporation of India Ltd. through 

TBCB. In the meeting of 6th standing committee on Power System Planning of North 

Eastern Region (6th SCPSPNER) held on 03.10.2019, it was proposed to construct a 

LILO of Biswanath Chariali (PGCIL) -- Itanagar line at Gohpur substation in order to 

solve the power constraint issue at Gohpur sub-station and to reduce the power flow 

on the Biswanath Chariali (PG) – Pavoi (AEGCL) 132kV D/c line by 30 MW. The part of 

the line from Biswanath Chariali (PGCIL) to Gohpur has already been constructed. To 

terminate the LILO of Biswanath Chariali (PGCIL) -- Itanagar line at Gohpur substation, 

2 nos. of bays were required to be constructed. However, during a meeting held on 

10.08.2020, CEA directed AEGCL to take up the construction works for the two bays 

on an urgent basis. CEA further stated that the delay in construction of the bays shall 

result in PoC Charges, which will adversely impact the transmission tariff payable by 

Assam. Given the above, the construction of 2 nos. of bays at Gohpur (AEGCL) end was 

of utmost importance. The project was completed & Test charged in Nov’2022. 

9. Revival of Srikona-Panchgram Line using Composite Insulated Cross-Arm 

Technology 

132KV Panchgram-Srikona line is a vital transmission link for stability & reliability at 

Panchgram, Srikona & Pailapool GSS’s, which cater to the major share of load demand of 

Barak Valley. Prolonged outage of this section of the line has resulted in loss of 

redundancy of transmission corridor linking these sub-stations as in the event of outage 

of 132KV S/C Badarpur (PGCIL) – Panchgram line & 132KV S/C Panchgram-Hailakandi 

line, there is every likelihood of power collapse at Panchgram (in the absence of 132KV 

Panchgram-Srikona link). Srikona GSS being situated near the Silchar (PGCIL) sub-

station, the voltage stability is higher and re-commissioning of 132KV Panchgram-

Srikona line will enable Panchgram GSS to get better voltage stability. Also, due to 

capacity constraint at 132KV Jiribam (PGCIL)-Pailapool S/C Line, security of Srikona GSS 

is at lower side, as in the event of outage of 132KV Silchar (PGCIL) – Srikona line, Srikona 

& Pailapool GSS either face bus collapse or severe load restriction. Prolonged outage of 

132KV Srikona-Panchgram line has resulted in the lowering of availability factor which 

has impacted AEGCL financially since the AERC’s tariff offers either entails penalty 

charge or slash of incentive. So, for stability & reliability of power system in the entire 

Barak Valley region, revival of collapsed section of 132KV Srikona-Panchgram Line is 

urgently needed. 

 

10. Augmentation of 2x100 MVA, 220/132 KV Rangia GSS By 2x200 MVA Auto-

Transformer (Phase-I) 
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220/132 KV Rangia GSS caters load demand of several 132/33 KV GSS viz. Nalbari, 

Sipajhar, Kamalpur and Barnagar including Rangia. 220/132 KV Rangia GSS presently 

have two nos. of 100 MVA auto-transformer installed. During the peak load, both the 

transformers get loaded almost up to full capacity. Due to these transformer constraints, 

the incoming power from Deothang Hydroelectric project is affected/interrupted in case 

of sudden tripping of 100 MVA transformers due to overload. Also, frequent blackout 

occurs due to the saturation of 2X100 MVA transformers at Rangia GSS. Hence, to 

improve the power scenario in Lower Assam region and to enhance grid stability, it is 

necessary to augment the transformation capacity of Rangia GSS from 2X100 MVA to 

2X200 MVA. This will not only improve the present power scenario but will also cope 

with the increased demand in the coming years. The project has been taken up in phase 

manner. In the phase-I, 1 no. of 200MVA transformer along with augmentation of 2 no. 

bays has been taken up and the work is in progress. 

 

11. Supply of 33 KV Equipment for Augmentation Works at 132 KV Srikona GSS 

As per letter received from the DGM, Silchar T&T Circle, AEGCL, it was informed that 

new CT of higher ratio was required in 33KV Malinibali, PGCIL, Srikona & Silchar-II 

Feeder Bay (as suggested by T&C Division, Silchar). This is due to increased demand and 

the existing CT’s are in service since commissioning of the GSS in 2009. Also, existing 

isolators which are in service need replacement as these are not motorized, not SCADA 

compatible & are in service since commissioning of the GSS. Further, the LA’s need 

replacement as the same are in service since commissioning of the GSS. Also, the CB of 

33 KV Silchar-II Feeder need replacement as CRM value was found to be beyond 

permissible limit and the breaker is in service since commissioning of the GSS. As such, 

provisional estimate was forwarded from field for procurement of 33 KV level 

equipment towards augmentation of 33 KV Malinibil, PGCIL, Srikona & Silchar-II Feeder 

at 132 KV Srikona GSS, considering actual site requirement. Accordingly, e-tendering 

was done for procurement of 33 KV Equipment (CT, CB, Isolator and LA). Work was 

awarded on 25.08.2023 and is currently under progress.  

 

Summary of Annual Plan/SOPD-G Projects Capital Expenditure and Capitalisation 

is tabulated below: 

Sr Capital Expenditure 
FY 2022-23 FY  2023-24 FY  2024-25 

Actual Estimated Projected 
  Package Name (Rs. in Crs.) (Rs. in Crs.) (Rs. in Crs.) 

1 

Augmentation of transformer 

capacity of 132/33 kV Nalbari sub-

station from 1x40 MVA + 1x16 

MVA to 1x50 MVA + 1x40 MVA 

 0.67  0.00  0.00  

2 

Augmentation of transformer 

capacity of 132/33 kV Khaloigaon 

sub-station from 2x25 MVA to 

1x25 + 1x50 MVA  

- 1.62  0.00  
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Sr Capital Expenditure 
FY 2022-23 FY  2023-24 FY  2024-25 

Actual Estimated Projected 
  Package Name (Rs. in Crs.) (Rs. in Crs.) (Rs. in Crs.) 

3 

Construction of 220 kV 

D/C Sonabil - Biswanath 

Charali line with 2 nos. 

220 KV line bay. (42.768 

km long as per tower 

schedule) 

0.00  0.00  0.00  

4 

2nd Circuit Stringing of 

132kv,41.923 KM Long Samaguri-

Khalaigaon (Nagaon) line on D/C 

tower of AEGCL. (41.923km long) 

0.05   0.83  0.00  

5 

Hotline stringing of 2nd circuit of 

132kV Kukurmara (Mirza)-Azara 

transmission line 

- 0.00 0.00 

6 

Construction of 01 no. of 132kV 

line bay at 132/33kV Azara 

substation along with associated 

PLCC work at 400/220/132/33 kV 

Kukurmara (Mirza) 

substation 

0.76  0.95  0.00  

7 
Hotline OPGW Stringing in 132 KV 

Kukurmara (Mirza)-Azara Line 
0.00  0.09  0.00 

8 

Turnkey Construction of 2 (two) 

nos. of 132kV Line Bays including 

Supply of Bay Equipment and line 

bay materials and associated 

works etc. at Gohpur GSS, AEGCL 

- 1.22  0.00  

9 

Revival of Srikona - Panchgram 

Line using Composite Insulated 

Cross-Arm Technology 

0.00 0.20 2.35 

10 

Augmentation of 2x100 MVA, 

220/132 KV Rangia GSS By 2x200 

MVA Auto-Transformer (Phase-I) 

0.00 0.00 7.00 

11 

Supply of 33 KV Equipment for 

Augmentation Works at 132 KV 

Srikona GSS 

0.00 0.30 0.00 

 Total 1.48  5.22  9.35  

 

Sr Capitalisation 
FY 2022-23 FY  2023-24 FY  2024-25 

Actual Estimated Projected 
  Package Name (Rs. in Crs.) (Rs. in Crs.) (Rs. in Crs.) 

1 

Augmentation of transformer 

capacity of 132/33 kV Nalbari sub-

station from 1x40 MVA + 1x16 

MVA to 1x50 MVA + 1x40 MVA 

 -    5.62  
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Sr Capitalisation 
FY 2022-23 FY  2023-24 FY  2024-25 

Actual Estimated Projected 
  Package Name (Rs. in Crs.) (Rs. in Crs.) (Rs. in Crs.) 

2 

Augmentation of transformer 

capacity of 132/33 kV Khaloigaon 

sub-station from 2x25 MVA to 

1x25 + 1x50 MVA  

 5.62  

3 

Construction of 220 kV D/C 

Sonabil – Biswanath Charali line 

with 2 nos. 220 KV line bay. 

(42.768 km long as per tower 

schedule) 

   25.56  

4 

2nd Circuit Stringing of 

132kv,41.923 KM Long Samaguri-

Khalaigaon (Nagaon) line on D/C 

tower of AEGCL. (41.923km long) 

5.36  1.60   

5 

Hotline stringing of 2nd circuit of 

132kV Kukurmara (Mirza)-Azara 

transmission line 

0.46   

6 

Construction of 01 no. of 132kV 

line bay at 132/33kV Azara 

substation along with associated 

PLCC work at 400/220/132/33 kV 

Kukurmara (Mirza) 

substation 

 1.71  

7 
Hotline OPGW Stringing in 132 KV 

Kukurmara (Mirza)-Azara Line 
 0.09  

8 

Turnkey Construction of 2 (two) 

nos. of 132kV Line Bays including 
Supply of Bay Equipment and line 

bay materials and associated 

works etc. at Gohpur GSS, AEGCL 

2.69 1.29  

9 Revival of Srikona-Panchgram Line 

using Composite Insulated Cross-

Arm Technology 

- - 2.55 

10 Augmentation of 2x100 MVA, 

220/132 KV Rangia GSS By 2x200 

MVA Auto-Transformer (Phase-I) 

-  - 

11 Supply of 33 KV Equipment for 

Augmentation Works at 132 KV 

Srikona GSS 

 0.3  

 Total 8.51 16.23 28.11 

 

Funding of SOPD-G Projects 
 

Sr 

Capital 
Expenditure 

Funding 
Pattern (%) 

FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 
(Rs. in Crs.) (Rs. in Crs.) (Rs. in Crs.) 

A GoA 100% 1.48  5.22  9.35  
 Total 100% 1.48  5.22  9.35  
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Sr Capitalisation 
Funding 

Pattern (%) 
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 
(Rs. in Crs.) (Rs. in Crs.) (Rs. in Crs.) 

A GoA 100% 8.51 16.23 28.11 
 Total 100% 8.51 16.23 28.11 
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9. Deposit Works 

1. Deposit Works Funded by NRL 

Rapid expansion of the production capacity of the petroleum sector in Assam is expected 

to increase the load demand significantly. As the refineries gear up to start production of 

BS-VI petroleum products, it will increase their power demand. To meet up with the 

increased load demand of the Refineries in Assam several projects are being executed 

under deposit scheme. 

1. Construction of 220kV LILO to NRL substation from Samaguri-Mariani-2 TL 

Summary of Capitalisation is tabulated below 

 

SN Capitalisation 
FY  2023-24 FY  2024-25 
Estimated Projected 

(Rs. In Crs.) (Rs. In Crs.) 

1 
Construction of 220kV LILO to NRL substation from 

Samaguri-Mariani-2  
11.32 - 

 Total 11.32  0.00 

 
2. Deposit Scheme funded by Railways 

Railway is executing electrification of railway network in Assam at a rapid pace through 

RVNL, RITES, IRCON, NF Constructions and CORE. These projects are being executed with 

a vision to reduce dependency on imported fossil fuel-based petroleum products. This 

will enable railway use greener power and reduce its carbon footprint. As a part of this 

ambitious project, AEGCL has been entrusted with construction of several 132kV 

transmission lines to the Railway Traction substation and terminal line bays at AEGCL 
end.   

Summary of Capitalisation is tabulated below: 
 

A) Deposit Scheme funded by NFCON 

 SN Capitalisation 
FY 2024-25 
Projected 
(Rs. in Crs.) 

1 132kV bay at Rowta GSS 2.41 

2 220 kV bay at Sonabil GSS 3.32 

3 132kV bay at Nalkata GSS  2.37 

4 132kV bay at Dhemaji GSS  2.53 

5 132kV bay at Gohpur GSS 2.24 

6 132kV bay at Silapathar GSS 2.17 

7 132kV bay at Jorhatwest GSS 1.31 

8 132kVbay at Khaloigaon GSS 2.34 

 Total 18.69 

 

B) Deposit Scheme funded by CORE 
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 SN Capitalisation 
FY  2023-24 FY 2024-25 
Estimated Projected 
(Rs. In Crs.) (Rs. in Crs.) 

1 Construction of 132 kV Bay at Agia GSS - 1.43 

2 Construction of 132 kV Bay at Boko GSS - 1.43 

3 Construction of 132 kV Bay at Baghjab GSS 1.42 - 

4 Construction of 132 kV Bay at Shankardev Nagar GSS - 1.43 

5 Construction 132kV TL from Agia GSS to Goalpara TSS - 10.48 

6 Construction 132kV TL from Boko GSS to Boko TSS - 3.58 

7 
Construction 132kV TL from Baghjap GSS to Dharamtul 

TSS 
- 11.27 

 Total 1.42 29.62  

 

C) Deposit Scheme funded by RVNL 

 SN Capitalisation 

FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 
 

Actual 
 

Estimated 
Projected 

(Rs. in Crs.) (Rs. in Crs.) (Rs. in Crs.) 

1 
Construction of 132kV TL from Dhaligaon GSS-

New Bongaigaon TSS 
12.97 - - 

2 
Construction of 132kV TL from Joyma GSS to 

Gossaigaon TSS 
7.22 - - 

3 
Construction of 132kV Barnagar - Sorbhog 

Traction Line  
4.44 - - 

4 
Construction of 132kV Barnagar - Sorbhog 

Traction Line (Cable portion)  
5.05 - - 

5 
Construction of 132kV feeder bay for Sorbhog 

Railway traction substation at barnagar GSS 
1.45 - - 

6 
Construction of 132kV feeder bay for Nalbari 

Traction line at Nalbari GSS 
- - - 

7 
Construction of 132kV feeder bay for Dhaligaon 

Traction line at Dhaligaon GSS 
1.27 - - 

8 
Construction of 132kV feeder bay for Joyma 

Traction line at Joyma GSS 
1.48 - - 

9 

Survey for feasbility study for route from 132KV 

Kamakhya GIS to down side of Kamakhya view 

point 

- - - 

 Total 20.19  0.00  0.00 

 

D) Deposit Scheme funded by IRCON 

 SN Capitalisation 

FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 

Estimated 
 

Projected 
(Rs. in Crs.) (Rs. in Crs.) 

1 Behiating   to Dibrugarh TL 

26.09 - 2 Nazira to Nazira TL 

3 Namrup to Naharkatiya TL 
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 SN Capitalisation 

FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 

Estimated 
 

Projected 
(Rs. in Crs.) (Rs. in Crs.) 

4 Golaghat to Furkating TL 

5 Diphu to Dhansiri TL 

6 Karimganj to Baraigram TL 

7 Pailapool to Sribar TL 

8 Panchgram to Badarpur TL 

9 Durlavchera to Ramnathpur TL 

10 Gauripur to Golakganj TL 

11 132kV bay at Panchgram GSS - 1.61 

12 132kV bay atGolaghat GSS - 
2.99 

13  132kV bay at Diphu GSS - 

14 220kV bay at Namrup GSS 2.77 - 

15 132kV bay at Karimganj GSS and Pailapool GSS 2.99 - 

16 132kV bay at Nazira GSS and behiating GSS 3.78 - 

17 132kV bay at Dullavcherra GSS - - 

18 

Construction of Quarter, Boundary Wall & Installation, 

testing and commissioning of ODEX (Deep Well) along 

with all other associated works at 132 kV GSS, Diphu 

- - 

19 

Construction of Boundary wall, Sub-station Main Gate, 

Security Booth, RCC Drain, Culvert, Security Fencing, 

Quarter (Type- B, C1 &; V) &; Construction of new 

Pavement Block Road along with all other associated 

works at 132kV GSS, AEGCL, Golaghat 

- - 

20 
Additional works for construction of one no. of 132 KV 

Railway traction bay at 132 KV GSS Behiating 
- - 

 Total 35.63 4.60 

 

3. Deposit Scheme funded by APDCL 

 

APDCL is requesting AEGCL for 33kV feeders in various locations. AEGCL under deposit 
scheme has taken up following projects. 

 SN Capitalisation 
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY  2024-25 

Actual Estimated Projected 
(Rs. in Crs.) (Rs. in Crs.) (Rs. in Crs.) 

1 

Construction of 33kV feeder bay for 

Bishnupur - Panchallibay at 
Hatigarh(Dhemaji) GSS  

0.51  -  - 

2 
Construction of 33kV Hojai bay feeder at 

Samaguri GSS 
0.49  - - 

3 

Construction of 33kV bay equipment for 

33/11 kV Karimganj (Subhash Nagar) 

feeder bay to be constructed at 

Panchgarm GSS  

0.46    - 
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 SN Capitalisation 
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY  2024-25 

Actual Estimated Projected 
(Rs. in Crs.) (Rs. in Crs.) (Rs. in Crs.) 

4 
Construction of 33 KV Dhubri Medical 

College Bay at 132 KV Gosaigaon GSS  
 0.72  

5 
Construction of 33 KV Gunjung feeder at 

Haflong GSS 
 0.28  

6 
Construction of 33 KV IT Park feeder at 

Kukurmara GSS 
 0.9  

7 

Construction of 33 KV Nalbari Medical 

Bay at 132 KV Nalbari GSS and 33 KV 

Kokrajhar Medical Bay at 132 KV 

Kokrajhar GSS 

  1.47 

8 
Construction of 33 KV Nagaon Medical 

College Bay at 132 KV Khaloigaon GSS 
  0.79 

9 
Construction of 33kV Kukurmara-Rani 

Feeder at 400kV Kukurmara GSS 
  0.87 

10 
Construction of 2 No of 33 KV Bays for 

APDCL at Namrup GSS 
- 1.07 - 

 Total 1.46  2.97  3.13  

 

4. Deposit Scheme funded by various entities 

 SN Capitalisation 
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY  2024-25 

Actual Estimated Projected 
(Rs. in Crs.) (Rs. in Crs.) (Rs. in Crs.) 

1 
Construction of 33kV bay at 400kV 

Kukurmara GSS 
0.45 0.12 - 

2 

Construction of North Lakhimpur 

Medical college Feeder bay at 132 kV 
Nalkata GSS 

0.62 - - 

3 

Turnkey Construction of 33 kV Feeder 

bay for Assam Hills Medical College and 

Research Institute at 132 kV Diphu GSS 

0.61 - - 

4 
Turnkey Construction of 33 kV Feeder 

bay for CIT at 132 kV Kokrajhar GSS 
0.49 - - 

5 

Turnkey Construction of 33 kV dedicated 

Feeder bay at 132 kV Umrangso GSS for 

2nd Lower Kopili HEP of APGCL 

- 0.49 - 

6 

Upgradation of existing 132 kV & 33 kV 

Main Bus Bar with ACCC Drake HTLS 

conductor at 220/132/22 kV Samaguri 

and 132/33 kV Dhaligaon GSS 

1.14 - - 

7 
Construction of 2 No of 33 KV Bays for 

APGCL at Namrup GSS 
- - 1.10 

8 
Construction of 2 No of 33 KV Bays for 

BVFCL at Namrup GSS 
- - 1.38 

Page 246 of 284



AEGCL –Revised Capital Investment Plan for FY 2022-23 to FY 2024-25 

 

43 
 

 SN Capitalisation 
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY  2024-25 

Actual Estimated Projected 
(Rs. in Crs.) (Rs. in Crs.) (Rs. in Crs.) 

9 

Shifting of the 132 KV D/C Jorhat - 

Mariani TL at Loc No 21B to 28A on 

turnkey basis 

- - 2.25 

 Total 3.31 0.61 4.73 

 

Funding of Deposit Work 

 

Sr Capitalisation 
Funding 

Pattern (%) 

FY  
2022-23 

FY  
2023-24 

FY  
2024-25 

(Rs. in Crs.) (Rs. in Crs.) (Rs. in Crs.) 
A GoA-Grant 100% 38.72 38.78 57.72 
 Total 100% 38.72 38.78 57.72 
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10. North Eastern Special Infrastructure Development Scheme (NESIDS)  
 

The proposal for “Construction of 2x50 MVA, 132/33 kV GIS Substation at the existing 

switchyard of 220/132 kV Amingaon GIS” was started by AEGCL under NESIDS scheme 

after getting sanction from GoA. The proposal was to construct the downstream network 

of 220/32kV Amingoan GIS (under NERPSIP). 

The construction of downstream network of Amingaon GIS will boost the power quality 

& reduce transmission loss. Moreover, this will also help in catering the rapid increase in 

industrial load in the nearby area. 

The project has already been awarded with completion period of 2 years. 

Present Status of Works: 
 

S
N 

Scheme 
Name 

Project 
Name 

Status 
Start Date 
of Project 

Original 
Date of 

Completion 

Board 
Approved 

Cost (in INR) 

1 

North Eastern 
Special 
Infrastructure 
Development 
Scheme 
(NESIDS) 

Turnkey 
Construction 
of 2x50 MVA, 
132/33kV GIS 
(Gas Insulated 
Substation) at 
Existing 
220/132kV 
Amingaon GIS 

Drawing 
and 
designing 
under 
progress 

23.08.2023 22.08.2025 

Board 
Approved 
Cost is Rs. 
37.68 Cr.  
NESIDS- Rs. 
30.00 Cr 
Internal 
Source of 
AEGCL- 7.68  

 

Summary of NESIDS Projects Capex & Capitalisation is tabulated below: 

SN Particulars  

Estimated Capital 
Expenditure 

Projected Capital 
Expenditure 

FY  2023-24 FY  2024-25 
(Rs. in Crs.) (Rs. in Crs.) 

1 
Turnkey Construction of 2x50 MVA, 
132/33kV GIS (Gas Insulated Substation) at 
Existing 220/132kV Amingaon GIS 

5.00 25.00 

 Total 5.00 25.00 
 

 

SN Particulars  

Estimated 
Capitalisation 

Projected 
Capitalisation 

FY  2023-24 FY  2024-25 
(Rs. in Crs.) (Rs. in Crs.) 

1 
Turnkey Construction of 2x50 MVA, 
132/33kV GIS (Gas Insulated Substation) at 
Existing 220/132kV Amingaon GIS 

- 1.32 

 Total 0.00 1.32 
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Funding of NESIDS Projects 

 

Sr Capital Expenditure Funding Pattern 
FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 
(Rs. in Crs.) (Rs. in Crs.) 

A GoI- Grant 100% 5.00 25.00 
 Total 100% 5.00 25.00 

 

Sr Capitalisation Funding Pattern 
FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 
(Rs. in Crs.) (Rs. in Crs.) 

A GoI- Grant 100% 0.00 1.32 
 Total 100% 0.00 1.32 
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11. North Eastern Council (NEC) 

 

With increasing load demand in the area covered by 33 kV substations, the existing 

system was considered inadequate. Therefore, to strengthen the entire transmission 

system, for augmentation of transformation capacity for meeting the increased load 

demand at 220kV Salakati GSS, 220/132kV, 160 MVA Transformer was purchased and 
commissioned on 10th July 2021. 

132/33kV Umrangshu GSS was constructed under NEC. Further the associated civil 

works such as RE Quarters, Officers Hostel, Staff Hostel were constructed and capitalised 
on FY 2022-23.  

Capitalisation of NEC Projects is tabulated below: 

Sr Particulars  
Actual Capitalisation 

FY  2022-23 
(Rs. in Crs.) 

1 Construction of 132/33 KV Umrangshu GSS 0.02 
 Total 0.02  

 

Funding of NEC Projects 

 

Sr Capitalisation Funding Pattern 
FY 2022-23 
(Rs. in Crs.) 

A GoA-Grant 100% 0.02  
 Total 100% 0.02  

  

Page 250 of 284

http://sr.no/
http://sr.no/


AEGCL –Revised Capital Investment Plan for FY 2022-23 to FY 2024-25 

 

47 
 

12. Internal Accrual Equity 

AEGCL has made this capital expenditure out of its internal resources. As such the funding 
has been shown as internal equity. 

1. 220kV Bay construction at Balipara end (PGCIL) 

The second circuit of the 220kV Sonabil-Balipara (PGCIL) transmission line has been 

operationalized by AEGCL with completion of construction of terminal bay at Balipara 

Substation (PGCIL) is completed. The power supply position at Sonabil substation and 

AEGCL's 220kV Samaguri GSS, as well as all related downstream networks, will be more 

reliable and secure with commissioning of the became said line. 

2. Supply, erection and commissioning of battery bank and battery charger for Lower, 

Central & Upper Assam Region in AEGCL 

After the analysis of the untoward incident of 220 kV Samaguri Substation that took place 

on 17th September, 2020, emphasis was put on regarding the presence of dual DC source 

in the substations. In this regard, letter was received on 08.04.2021 from the DGM, 

Bongaigaon T&T Circle, AEGCL, Dhaligaon requesting for arrangement of a redundant DC 

source at 132 kV Kokrajhar GSS and 132 Bilasipara GSS by commissioning 01 set of 110V 

Battery Bank & Battery Charger at both the substations on an urgency basis. This is due 

to the fact that 132 kV Kokrajhar GSS and 132 kV Bilasipara GSS was equipped with only 

01 set of 110V Battery Charger and Battery Bank. As stated, a single DC source for the 

grid substations is undesirable and availability of a redundant DC source is deemed 

necessary for smooth operation of the substation. Also, the substations were not 

considered for PSDF scheme (Phase-I).  

Requirement was received from the DGM, LA T &T Circle stating that the battery bank 

and battery charger present at Sishugram substation are very old and problematic 

(manufacturing year being 1992) and the same needs to be replaced at the earliest. Also, 

as stated, battery bank no 02 present at Jawaharnagar GIS was not working. Proposals for 

new 220/110 V battery bank and charger were received for many sites under GTD, 

Sarusajai Division, Rangia Division and Kahilipara Division. Additionally, requirement 

was received from the DGM, 400KV Kukurmara (Mirza) GSS, proposing for new 220/110 

V Battery bank and charger at 220KV Boko GSS, 132 kV Azara GSS, 132 kV Matia GSS, 132 

kV APM GSS and 220 kV Agia GSS. 

The following substations under jurisdiction of CAR had only one available healthy D.C. 

source: 

i) 132/33 kV Dhekiajuli GSS (110 DC) 

ii) 132/33 kV Ghoramari GSS (110V DC) 

iii) 132/33 kV Haflong GSS (110 V DC) 

iv) 132/33 kV Srikona GSS (110V DC) 

v) 132/33 kV Pailapool GSS (110V DC) 

vi) 220/132 kV Sonabil GSS (220V DC) 
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For smooth and safe operation of the Control System, dual DC source is most essential. 

Considering the above, an estimate was prepared for procurement and installation of 

battery bank & battery charger for six number of substation as per requirement. 

Requirement of 2nd source D.C System in many GSS of UAR under Dibrugarh T&T Circle, 

Lakhimpur T&T Circle and Jorhat T&T Circle was received from the GM, UA, T&T Zone 

vide letter dated 19.03.2021.  

 

As per the decision on Samaguri Day held on 17th March, 2021, viewing the urgency, an 

estimate was prepared for procurement and installation of battery bank, battery charger 

and DCDB at the sites as per requirement. The proposal for purchase was approved from 

AEGCL’s own source. Accordingly, tendering for “Supply, erection and commissioning of 

battery bank and battery charger for Lower, Central &Upper Assam Region in AEGCL” 

was done. Single stage two envelope bidding system was adopted for the procurement. 

Tender was invited through e-tendering portal assamtenders.gov.in. 

 

3. Supply of clamps, connectors, and hardware fittings for Central, Upper and Lower 

Assam Region in AEGCL 

Clamps, connectors, and hardware fittings are basic requirements for daily operation and 

maintenance in a substation. Considering the same, estimate was prepared for supply of 

clamps, connectors, and hardware fittings at LAR, CAR & UAR sites as per field 

requirement. The proposal for purchase was approved from AEGCL’s own source. 

Accordingly, tendering for “Supply of clamps, connectors and hardware fittings for Lower 

Assam Region in AEGCL” was done. Single stage two envelope bidding system was 

adopted for the procurement. Tender was invited through e-tendering portal 
assamtenders.gov.in. 

4. Provision for Furniture  

AEGCL's main office and field offices are in need of new office furniture. Improvements 

to the aesthetics of field offices, which now lack many of these basic features, would 

necessitate a large expenditure. 

5. Provision for Office & Communication Equipment 

There is a requirement for the acquisition of office equipment for essential requirements. 

These include printers, office supplies, and communication equipment that have been on 

hold for a long time. 

6. Provision for Civil & Other Miscellaneous Works 

There is a requirement for renovation of AEGCL buildings, other buildings (residential 

colonies, Schools, hospitals etc.,) and road works at several offices, AEGCL has carried out 

these works from its internal accrual equity. 

7. Supply of Power & Control Cables and Related Services 

To complete the work “Supply, Erection, Testing and Commissioning of Control and Relay Panel 

(CRP), Bay Control Unit (BCU) and Substation Automation System (SAS) for 08 (Eight) nos. of 
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Substations in AEGCL” under PSDF Scheme, procurement of Control and Power cables was 

necessary on emergency basis as per site requirement. Accordingly, after obtaining necessary 

board approval, two nos. of contracts were awarded to M/s KEI Industries Pvt. Ltd. for 

procurement of required power and control cables for 08 nos. of substations as mentioned below: 

S 
N 

Name of Work Name of S/s Contract Value 
(in Rs.) 

1 Supply of Power & Control Cables and 
Related Services of 1.1 kV Class for 
Various Substations in Assam (Package-
A) 

Agia, Boko, 
Sishugram and 
Rangia GSS 

1,33,32,331.00 

2 Supply of Power & Control Cables and 
Related Services of 1.1 kV Class for 
Various Substations in Assam (Package-
B) 

Nazira, Bokajan, 
Mariani and Jorhat 
GSS 

3,32,00,202.00 

 

Summary of Own Source Projects and Capitalisation is tabulated below: 

SN Capital Expenditure 
FY 2022-23 FY  2023-24 

Actual Estimated 
(Rs. in Crs.) (Rs. in Crs.) 

1 

Turnkey Construction of 220 kV Bay at 

Balipara Substation of Power Grid for 

termination of 2nd Circuit of 220 kV Balipara 

Sonabil -II 

0.61 0.08 

2 

Supply, erection and commissioning of battery 

bank and battery charger for Central Assam 

Region in AEGCL 

0.47 0.00 

3 

Supply, erection and commissioning of battery 

bank and battery charger for Upper Assam 

Region in AEGCL 

0.24 0.00 

4 

Supply, erection and commissioning of battery 

bank and battery charger for Lower Assam 

Region in AEGCL 

0.22 0.01 

5 
Supply of clamps, connectors and hardware 

fittings for Central Assam Region in AEGCL 
0.20 0.21 

6 
Supply of clamps, connectors and hardware 

fittings for Upper Assam Region in AEGCL 
0.59 0.00 

7 
Supply of clamps, connectors and hardware 

fittings for Lower Assam Region in AEGCL 
0.55 0.19 

8 

Supply of Power & Control Cables and Related 

Services of 1.1 kV Class for Various 

Substations in Assam (Package-A) 

0.00 1.33 

9 

Supply of Power & Control Cables and Related 

Services of 1.1 kV Class for Various 

Substations in Assam (Package-B) 

0.00 3.32 

 Total 2.88  5.14  
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Sr  Capitalisation 
FY 2022-23 FY  2023-24 

Actual Estimated 
(Rs. in Crs.) (Rs. in Crs.) 

1 

Turnkey Construction of 220 kV Bay at 

Balipara Substation of Power Grid for 

termination of 2nd Circuit of 220 kV Balipara 

Sonabil -II 

0.00 2.68 

2 

Supply, erection and commissioning of battery 

bank and battery charger for Central Assam 

Region in AEGCL 

0.47 0.00 

3 

Supply, erection and commissioning of battery 

bank and battery charger for Upper Assam 

Region in AEGCL 

1.00 0.24 

4 

Supply, erection and commissioning of battery 

bank and battery charger for Lower Assam 

Region in AEGCL 

1.16 0.23 

5 
Supply of clamps, connectors and hardware 

fittings for Central Assam Region in AEGCL 
0.00 0.40 

6 
Supply of clamps, connectors and hardware 

fittings for Upper Assam Region in AEGCL 
0.00 0.59 

7 
Supply of clamps, connectors and hardware 

fittings for Lower Assam Region in AEGCL 
0.45 0.28 

8 

Supply of Power & Control Cables and Related 

Services of 1.1 kV Class for Various 

Substations in Assam (Package-A) 

0.00 1.33 

9 

Supply of Power & Control Cables and Related 

Services of 1.1 kV Class for Various 

Substations in Assam (Package-B) 

0.00 3.32 

10 

Works relating to Building containing 

Transmission installations, Office buildings, 

Other buildings (Residential colony, School, 

Hospital, recreation club, etc.), Roads at UAR 

0.65 0.00 

11 

Works relating to Miscellaneous Civil Works 

(including Hydraulic Works like Plant & Pipe 

line for water supply in residential colony) at 

UAR 

0.46 0.00 

12 
Works relating to Transformers, LA, other 

misc. equipment at UAR 
0.39 0.00 

13 

Works relating to Other plant & equipment 

(transformer kiosks, sub-station equipment & 

other fixed apparatus) for transmission at 

UAR 

2.97 0.00 

14 

Works relating to Air-conditioning Plant 

static/Portable, Meter- testing laboratory 

tools & equipment, other tools and tackles at 

UAR 

0.26 0.00 

15 

Works relating to Over-head lines (towers, 

poles, fixtures, overhead conductors and 

devices)-lines on fabricated steel support 

0.14 0.00 

Page 254 of 284

http://sr.no/


AEGCL –Revised Capital Investment Plan for FY 2022-23 to FY 2024-25 

 

51 
 

Sr  Capitalisation 
FY 2022-23 FY  2023-24 

Actual Estimated 
(Rs. in Crs.) (Rs. in Crs.) 

operating at a nominal voltage higher than 

66Kv at UAR 

16 

Works relating to Furnitures and Fixtures, 

Electrical wiring, light and fan installations, 

S/S works, Computers and accessories at UAR 

0.33 0.00 

17 

Works relating to Telephone and EPABX, 

Refrigerators & Water Coolers, other office 

equipment at UAR 

0.06 0.00 

18 

Works relating to Other buildings (Residential 

colony, School, Hospital, recreation club, etc.), 

Miscellaneous Civil Works (including 

Hydraulic Works like Plant & Pipe line for 

water supply in residential colony) at CAR 

0.71 0.00 

19 

Works relating to Air-conditioning Plant 

static, Refrigerators & water coolers, Meter- 

testing laboratory tools & equipment, Other 

miscellaneous S/S equipment at CAR 

0.08 0.00 

20 

Works relating to Metering Equipment, Oher 

Vehicles, Furnitures, Computers and 
Accessories, Other office equipment at CAR 

0.40 0.00 

21 

Works relating to Building containing 

Transmission installations, Office buildings, 

Other buildings (Residential colony, School, 

Hospital, recreation club, etc.), Roads at LAR 

0.20 0.00 

22 

Works relating to Miscellaneous Civil Works 

(including Hydraulic Works like Plant & Pipe 

line for water supply in residential colony) at 

LAR 

1.06 0.00 

23 

Works relating to other misc. equipment, 

Other plant & equipment (transformer kiosks, 

sub-station equipment & other fixed 

apparatus) for transmission at LAR 

0.30 0.00 

24 

Works relating to Air-conditioning Plant 

static/Portable, Meter- testing laboratory 

tools & equipment, other tools and tackles at 

LAR 

0.31 0.00 

25 

Works relating to Over-head lines (towers, 

poles, fixtures, overhead conductors and 

devices)-lines on fabricated steel support 

operating at a nominal voltage higher than 

66Kv at LAR 

0.79 0.00 

26 

Works relating to Furnitures and Fixtures, 

Electrical wiring, light and fan installations, 

S/S works, Computers and accessories at LAR 

0.12 0.00 
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Sr  Capitalisation 
FY 2022-23 FY  2023-24 

Actual Estimated 
(Rs. in Crs.) (Rs. in Crs.) 

27 

Works relating to Telephone and EPABX, 

Refrigerators & Water Coolers, other office 

equipment at LAR 

0.15 0.00 

28 

Works relating to Office buildings, Air-

conditioning Plant static, misc. equipment, 

Computers and Accessories under DGM Civil 

0.51 0.00 

29 

Works relating to Air-conditioning Plant 

static, tools and tackles, furniture, Electrical 

wiring, light and fan installations, Computers 

and Accessories, other office equipment under 

SLDC Subsidiary 

0.17 0.00 

30 

Works relating to Air-conditioning Plant-

portable, Furniture and Fixtures, Electrical 

wiring, light and fan installations, Computers 

and Accessories, other office equipment under 

Corporate AEGCL 

0.46 0.00 

 Total 13.61  9.07  

 

Funding of Internal Accrual Equity 

Sr Capital Expenditure Funding Pattern (%) 
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 
(Rs. in Crs.) (Rs. in Crs.) 

A AEGCL- Internal Equity 100% 2.87  5.13  
 Total 100% 2.87 5.13  

 

Sr Capitalisation Funding Pattern (%) 
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 
(Rs. in Crs.) (Rs. in Crs.) 

A AEGCL- Internal Equity 100% 13.61  9.07  
 Total 100% 13.61  9.07  
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13. PM Gati Sakti Scheme 

Under PM Gati Shakti Scheme, Procurement of Simulation and Design Software including 

hardware approved for AEGCL with an amount of Rs. 2.00 crores. Out of this, an amount 

Rs. 1,30,84,281.00/- has already been utilized. The simulation & Design software and 

hardware which are procured under the scheme are given below 

i) PLS-CADD Standard+ FE(SAPS) software  

ii) PLS-Tower software  

iii) Autodesk Auto CAD Design, Architecture, Engineering and Construction software  

iv) Supply of Bently’s Staad Pro & Staad Foundation Advanced software  

v) Laptop and Desktop  

vi) Visual Projection System  

For the rest of amount, Tender related work is under process for procurement of PSS@E 

software. 

 

Present Status of Works: 

 

Scheme Name  
Sl. 
No.  

Project 
Name  

Start Date 
of Project  

Target 
Date of 

Completion  

Status as on 
30.10.2023 

Project under 
Part-II (PM Gati 
Shakti related 
Expenditure) of 
"Scheme for 
special 
assistance to 
states for capital 
investment for 
2022-23") 
 
 
 
 
  

1 

Supply of 
Laptop and 
Desktop at 
O/o the MD, 
AEGCL 

22.03.2023 31.10.2023 

Laptops and Desktops 
are procured and project 

is almost completed. 
Preparation of 

Utilization Certificate is 
under process. 

2 

Supply and 
Installation 
of Visual 
Projection 
System at 
O/o the MD, 
AEGCL 

22.03.2023 31.10.2023 

Project is almost 
completed. Preparation 
of Utilization Certificate 

is under process 

3 

Supply and 
Installation 
of Supply of 
Bentlev's 
Staad Pro & 
Staad 
Foundation 
Advanced 
software at 
Olo the MD, 
AEGCL 

22.03.2023 31.10.2023 

Project is almost 
completed. Preparation 
of Utilization Certificate 

is under process 

4 

Supply and 
Installation 
of Autodesk 
AutoCAD 
Design 
Architecture

22.03.2023 31.10.2023 

Project is almost 
completed. Preparation 
of Utilization Certificate 

is under process 
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Scheme Name  
Sl. 
No.  

Project 
Name  

Start Date 
of Project  

Target 
Date of 

Completion  

Status as on 
30.10.2023 

, 
Engineering 
& 
Constructio
n software 
at O/o the 
MD, AEGCL 

5 

Supply and 
Installation 
of PLS- 
Tower 
software at 
O/o the MD, 
AEGCL 

22.03.2023 31.10.2023 

Project is almost 
completed. Preparation 
of Utilization Certificate 

is under process 

6 

Supply and 
Installation 
of PLS- 
CADD 
Standard+ 
FE(SAPS)at 
O/o the MD, 
AEGCL 

30.03.2023 31.10.2023 

Project is almost 
completed. Preparation 
of Utilization Certificate 

is under process 

7 

Supply of 
PSS@E 
software 
along with 
Maintenanc
e and 
Support of 
the existing 
licenses 

05.10.2023 31.10.2023 Tender is under process 

 

Summary of PM GATI SAKTI Projects Capex is tabulated below: 

SN Particulars  

Estimated Capital 
Expenditure 
FY  2023-24 
(Rs. in Crs.) 

1 Supply of Laptop and Desktop at O/o the MD, AEGCL  0.13 

2 
Supply and Installation of Visual Projection System at O/o the 
MD, AEGCL  

0.15 

3 
Supply and Installation of Supply of Bentlev's Staad Pro & Staad 
Foundation Advanced software at Olo the MD, AEGCL 

0.18 

4 
Supply and Installation of Autodesk AutoCAD Design 
Architecture, Engineering & Construction software at O/o the 
MD, AEGCL  

0.17 

5 
Supply and Installation of PLS- Tower software at O/o the MD, 
AEGCL 

0.16 

6 
Supply and Installation of PLS- CADD Standard+ FE(SAPS)at 
O/o the MD, AEGCL  

0.52 

Page 258 of 284

http://sr.no/


AEGCL –Revised Capital Investment Plan for FY 2022-23 to FY 2024-25 

 

55 
 

7 
Supply of PSS@E software along with Maintenance and Support 
of the existing licenses 

0.69 

 Total 2.00 
 

Summary of PM GATI SAKTI Projects Capitalisation is tabulated below: 

SN Particulars  

Projected 
Capitalisation 

FY  2024-25 
(Rs. in Crs.) 

1 Supply of Laptop and Desktop at O/o the MD, AEGCL  0.13 

2 
Supply and Installation of Visual Projection System at O/o the 
MD, AEGCL  

0.15 

3 
Supply and Installation of Supply of Bentlev's Staad Pro & Staad 
Foundation Advanced software at Olo the MD, AEGCL 

0.18 

4 
Supply and Installation of Autodesk AutoCAD Design 
Architecture, Engineering & Construction software at O/o the 
MD, AEGCL  

0.17 

5 
Supply and Installation of PLS- Tower software at O/o the MD, 
AEGCL 

0.16 

6 
Supply and Installation of PLS- CADD Standard+ FE(SAPS)at 
O/o the MD, AEGCL  

0.52 

7 
Supply of PSS@E software along with Maintenance and Support 
of the existing licenses 

0.69 

 Total 2.00 

 

Funding of PM GATI SAKTI 

Sr Capital Expenditure Funding Pattern (%) 
FY 2023-24 
(Rs. in Crs.) 

A GOI- Grant 100% 2.00 
 Total 100% 2.00 

 

Sr Capitalisation Funding Pattern (%) 
FY 2024-25 
(Rs. in Crs.) 

A GOI- Grant 100% 2.00 
 Total 100% 2.00 
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SL Name of Substation Associated Transmission Line Expected Completion

220/132 kV Behaiating GSS

(NECCON power & Infra Ltd.)
Nov-23

Completed – 203 Nos Balance- Nil

Completed – 203 Nos Balance- Nil

Completed - 52.863 km Balance- Nil

2
132/33 kV Hajo GSS

(NECCON power & Infra Ltd.)
Nov-23

Completed – 32 Nos Balance - Nil 

Completed – 32 Nos Balance – Nil

Completed - 8.837 km Balance – Nil

220/132 kV Amingaon GIS

(JV of Techno & Seiyuan)
Nov-23

Completed –105 Nos Balance – Nil

Completed – 105 Nos Balance – Nil

Stringing

Completed –23.351 km Balance – 1.772 km

132/33KV GMCH GIS

(JV of Techno & Seiyuan)
Nov-23

132 kV GMCH-Kahilipara D/C UG 

cable

(JV of Techno & Seiyuan)

Nov-23

132/33KV Paltanbazar GIS

(JV of Techno & Seiyuan)
Nov-23

Total UG cable length: 4.5 km

Cable laying complete: 3.88 km

Balance 0.62 km 

Erection 

132 kV Paltanbazar-Kamakhya UG 

cable

(JV of Techno & Seiyuan)

220 kV D/C Rangia – Amingaon TL

(M/S KEC)

Foundation 

Erection 

Minor civil and electrical works pending.

Work in progress

Total UG cable length: 4.5 km

Out of 2 Nos Tower works, Erection works of 1 Nos Tower and 

stringing works in Lower portion near Kamakhya GSS in progress. 

Another 3 Nos JB works are in progress due to damage of cable 

(Caused by Guwahati Smart City Ltd.).

4

5

Work in progress

Total UG cable length: 6.6 km

Cable laid: 1.6 km(Lower Portion - Out of 1.6km) and 3.458 km 

(Upper portion - Out of 4 km)

Test Charged on 19.10.2023

Total Tower - 32, Stringing - 8.837 km

132 kV Amingaon - Hajo Line

M/S KEC

3

Work-in-progress(Foundation, erection)

Total Tower - 105,Stringing - 28.337 km

ROW issue: Nil

Work-in-progress.

Switchyard PCC, Approach road, Gravelling etc., works in progress.

Foundation 

Erection 

Stringing

220 kV D/C Tinsukia-Behiating TL

(Power Mech Projects Ltd.)

Status of the Projects yet to be handed over to AEGCL

Test Charged on 19.10.2023

PCC, gravelling, Cable laying and termination, Transit camp etc 

works in progress. 

1

Foundation 

Stringing 

Status of work under progress:-

Oct-23

Nov-23

Nov-23

Work in progress

Pending minor works against 2nd Transformer (under the scope of 

AEGCL) to be taken up after completion of associated TL.

Completed

 Test charged on 10.10.2023

Total Tower - 203, Stringing - 52.863 km, ROW issue : Nil

Back charged on 10.05.2023. Commmercially not loaded due to 

non completion of 220 kV Rangia-Amingaon TL

Status of Projects being executed by Power Grid under NERPSIP Scheme as on 27.10.2023

Nov-23
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SL Name of Substation Associated Transmission Line Expected CompletionStatus of the Projects yet to be handed over to AEGCL

132/33 kV Silapathar GSS

(NECCON power & Infra Ltd.)
-

132 kV Dhemaji-Silapathar TL

(Teems India Towerlines Private 

Ltd.)

-

132/33 kV Chapakhowa GSS

(NECCON power & Infra Ltd.)
-

132 kV Rupai-Chapkhowa TL

(Power Mech Projects Ltd.)
-

132/33 kV Teok GSS

(NECCON power & Infra Ltd.)
-

LILO of 132 kV Jorhat-Nazira at 

Teok

(Simplex was terminated & Power 

Mech Projects Ltd was engaged)

-

132/33 kV Sarupathar GSS

(NECCON power & Infra Ltd.)
-

LILO of 132 kV Golaghat-Bokajan at 

Sarupathar GSS

(Power Mech Projects Ltd)

-

132/33KV Tangla GSS

(NECCON power & Infra Ltd.)
-

LILO of Rangia-Rowta TL at Tangla

(M/S KEC)
-

132/33KV Tezpur GSS

(NECCON power & Infra Ltd.)
-

132kV D/C Sonabil-Tezpur TL

(M/S KEC)
-

Completed – 31 Nos Balance – Nil

Completed – 31 Nos Balance – Nil

Completed –9.528 km Balance – Nil

**** Work order awarded to M/s EPIL for construction of township under NERPSIP

Stringing 

Foundation 

12

9

LILO of 132 kV Kamalpur – 

Sishugram TL and Kamalpur – 

Kamakhya TL at Amingaon

(M/S KEC)

Test charged on 04.03.2023 and is in operation

Total Tower(MCkt:23,DC:8) - 31, Stringing - 9.528 km

ROW issue: Nil

Status of Commercially Loaded Grid Substations:-

Commissioned successfully on 07.06.2021.

****Civil works such as Sanitary, Kitchen works, Drain construction 

works etc are pending

Commissioned successfully on 25.03.2023

****Civil works such as Sanitary, Kitchen works, Drain construction 

works etc are pending

Line Complete and test charge completed 25.07.2022

Total Tower - 123, Stringing - 35.88 km

10

7

8

Commissioned successfully on 07.06.2021.

6

Commissioned successfully on 02.05.2022.

****Civil works such as Sanitary, Kitchen works, Drain construction 

works etc are pending

Commissioned successfully on 11.09.2021

Commissioned successfully on 04.10.2021.

****Civil works such as Sanitary, Kitchen works, Drain construction 

works etc are pending

Commissioned successfully on 11.06.2021.

-

Commissioned on 07.01.2023 

Minor civil and electrical works, 

Line test charge on 06.08.2022 and commissioned on 07.01.2023

Total Tower - 63 Nos, Stringing - 16.081 km

11

Commissioned on 08.06.2022. 

Transit camp, Control room building,  etc works are in progress.

Line Charged on 29.05.2022 and commercially loaded on 

19.06.2022

Total Tower - 40, Stringing - 10.658 km

Erection 
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Sl No Name of Line Line Length (in km) Status

1 132 KV Dhemaji- North Lakhimpur TL 60 Completed

2 132 KV North Lakhimpur-Gohpur existing TL 71 Completed

3 132 kV Rowta-Rangia line 108 Completed but not commissioned

4 132 kV Bokajan-Golaghat line 66 Completed

5 132 kV Golaghat-Mariani line 45 Completed

6 132 kV Mariani-Jorhat line 20 Completed

7 132 kV Jorhat-Nazira line 22 Completed

8 132 kV Sankardevnagar-Samaguri line 60 Completed

9 132 kV Rupai-Tinsukia line 31 Completed

10
132 kV LILO of Rangia-Kahilipara at 

Kamakhya line
5 Work in progress

11
132 kV LILO of Rangia-Kahilipara at 

Kamalpur line
5 Work in progress

12 220 kV Sonabil-Balipara line 28 Completed

TOTAL considering additional 7% length 548 km

OPGW Works under NERPSIP scheme
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1

220/132 /33 kV Samaguri 

augmentation SS

2X160 MVA

1x50 MVA

80%

Commissioned on 12.06.2020

Pending works

(1)Automatic false alarm and operation of HVW spray system

(2) Lighting and illumination works pending.

(3) Some civil and electrical works pending 

(4)SAS integration works pending

(5) Cable trench and slabs in the switchyard that were damaged were not repaired.

(6) FFPH and NIFPS works pending.

(7) DG set not alloted.

(8)Complete  mandatory spares as per BoQ  of NERPSIP not handed over till date.

2

132/33 kV Dhaligaon 

augmentation SS

2x50MVA

80%

Commissioned on 03.10.2020

Pending works

(1) ACDB and DCDB works pending

(2) PCC works of 33 kV side isolator surrounding area pending.

(3) Illumination works pending

(4) FFPH works pending.

(5) Complete  mandatory spares as per BoQ  of NERPSIP not handed over till date.

3
132/33 kV Dhemaji GSS 

Bay extension
85%

Line bay commissioned on 27.03.2019

Pending works

(1) Supply of some Mandatory spares

(2) Some Civil & Electrical works pending

(3) Illumination works pending.

(4)DG set commissioning pending.

4
220/132 kV Sonabil Bay 

Extension
97%

Both the bays commissioned on 29.03.2019

Pending works

(1) Supply of some Mandatory spares

5
132/33 kV Rupai GSS  

Bay Extension
80%

Commisssioned on 30.09.2020

Pending works

(1) DG set commissioning.

(2) Fencing works.

(3) Drain works.

(4) Gravelling works.

6
220 kV Tinsukia Bay 

extension
70%

Pending works

(1) Panel commissioning

(2) Cable laying

(3)Illumination

Testing & Commisionig

7
Bay Extension of 220 kV 

Rangia GSS
95%

Commissioned on 06.03.2019

Pending Works

Minor civil and electrical works in progress

8
Bay Extension of 132/33 

kV Kahilipara GSS
95%

Commissioned on 30.04.2019

Pending works

(1)SAS integration works pending. 

(2) Minor control and relay panel works pending. 

9
Extension of 132/33 kV 

Kamakhya  GIS
100%

Spare bay of AEGCL located at Kamakhya SS will be utilized. Only cable termination is the scope and has been 

completed.

Progress of Extension & Augmentation of Existing EHV substations under NERPSIP scheme

SL Substation
Percentage 

Completeion
Remarks
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Annexure – VI 
Conversion of Government Grants 
& Loans into Equity for FY 2022-23 
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Annexure – VII 
Transmission System Availability 

for FY 2022-23 
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Annexure-A 
Statement showing monthwise incentive based on actual transmission availabilty 

No. of Monthly Actual 
Transmission Incentive/ 

days Annual 
transmission transmissio *Normative charges inclusive U nrecovera hie SI. l\1onth transmission availability Formula applied charges n 

of incentive TC No ID 

month charge 
(in Rs) 

availability (in%) (in Rs) (in Rs) (in%) 

a b C d e=d X c/365 f h=eXf/g i =h-e 
As per Clause-71.2 of AERC g 

Regulation 
I April'22 30 4669600000 383802739.73 99.064 98.5 386000351.35 2197611.63 AFC x.(NDM/NDY) x (TAFM/98.5%) 

I ~vlay'22 31 4669600000 396596164.38 99.371 98.5 400103121.33 3506956.95 AFC x (NDM/NDY) x (T AFM/98.5%) 

1 June'22 30 4669600000 383802739.73 99.434 98.5 387442046.92 3639307.20 AFC x (ND~1/NDY) x (T AFMi98.5%) 
-

I July'22 31 4669600000 396596164.38 99.271 98.5 399700485.63 3104321.25 AFC x (NDM/NDY) x (TAFM/98.5%) 

1 August'22 31 4669600000 3965% 164.38 98.835 98.5 397944993.98 1348829.59 AFC x (NDM/NDY) x (TAFM/98.5%) 

1 September'22 30 4669600000 383802739.73 99.048 98.5 385938007. 76 2135268.03 AFC x (NDM/NDY) x (T AFM/98.5%) 

l October'22 31 4669600000 396596164.38 9q ., ., I .. .) ., 98.5 399942067 .05 3345902.67 AFC x (NDM/NDY) x (T AFM/98.5%) 

I November'22 30 4669600000 383802739.73 99.228 98.5 386639373.17 283-6633.45 AFC x (NDM/NDY) x (T AFM/98.5%) 

1 December'22 31 4669600000 396596164.38 99.315 98.5 399877645.34 3281480.95 AFC x (NDM/NDY) x (T AFM/98.5%) 
-

1 January'23 • 31 4669600000 396596164.38 99.215 98.5 399475009.64 28788~5.25 AFC x (NDM/NDY) x (T AFM/98.5%) • 

1 February'23 28 4669600000 358215890.41 99.313 98.5 361172535.27 2956644.86 AFC x (NDM/NDY) x (T AFM/98.5%) 

1 March'23 31 4669600000 396596164.38 99.147 98.5 399201217.36 2605052.98 AFC x (NDM/NDY) x (T AFM/98.5%) 
Total 4703436854.81 33836854.81,,,, -r " 

"-- __ _ _ __._! ~~~e-Bhawa~ ~-, L: I - ...., 
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Annexure – VIII 
New Grid Elements for FY 2023-24 
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SL NO ELEMENT LOCATION DATE OF CHARGING TIME OF CHARGING REMARKS

1 132 kV AGIA-HATSINGIMARI LINE ASSAM 26.4.2023 14.00 FIRST TIME IDLE CHARGED

2 132/33KV 25 MVA TR AT BARPETA GSS BARPETA 28.4.2023 14.07 FIRST TIME IDLE CHARGED

3 132/33KV , 50 MVA TRAFO-2 AT DEPOTA DEPOTA 3.5.2023 22.21 FIRST TIME IDLE CHARGED

4 160 MVA TRANSFORMER 1 220KV AMINGAON GIS 10.5.2023 16.51 FIRST TIME CHARGED

5 160 MVA TRANSFORMER 2 220KV AMINGAON GIS 10.5.2023 17.01 FIRST TIME CHARGED

6 132KV AMINGAON KAMALPUR 1 220KV AMINGAON GIS 10.5.2023 14.17 FIRST TIME CHARGED

7 132KV AMINGAON KAMALPUR 2 220KV AMINGAON GIS 10.5.2023 14.30 FIRST TIME CHARGED

8 132KV AMINGAON AIIMS 220KV AMINGAON GIS 10.5.2023 15.33 FIRST TIME CHARGED

9 132KV AMINGAON SISUGRAM 220KV AMINGAON GIS 10.5.2023 15.01 FIRST TIME CHARGED

10 132KV NALKATA PARE BAY NALKATA 10.5.2023 12.50 FIRST TIME CHARGED

11 132KV NALKATA NIRJULI BAY NALKATA 10.5.2023 13.00 FIRST TIME CHARGED

12 132/33kV 50MVA TRAFO AT BARNAGAR BARNAGAR 26.5.2023 14.27 FIRST TIME CHARGED

13 132/33kV 25MVA TRAFO AT HATSINGIMARI HATSINGIMARI 27.5.2023 21.20 FIRST TIME CHARGED

14 132/33 kV 25 MVA TRAFO AT GOSSAIGAON GOSSAIGAON 30.5.2023 23.08 FIRST TIME CHARGED

15 220kV BALIPARA BAY AT SONABIL SONABIL 7.6.2023 14.47 FIRST TIME CHARGED

16 220kV SONABIL -BALIPARA-I &II SONABIL 11.6.2023 &14.6.2023 22:00 & 19:07
CROSS JUMPERING AND REJUMPERING DONE AND 

BOTH LINES CHARGED

17 220kV MIRZA-SARUSAJAI-I SARUSAJAI 15.6.2023 13.35 FIRST TIME CHARGED AFTER HTLS

18 220KV TINSUKIA-BIHIATING BAY-I TINSUKIA 18.6.2023 15.52 FIRST TIME CHARGED

19 220KV TINSUKIA-BIHIATING BAY-II TINSUKIA 18.6.2023 16.17 FIRST TIME CHARGED

20 220kV SARUSAJAI-MIRZA-II SARUSAJAI 18.6.2023 19.11 FIRST TIME CHARGED AFTER HTLS

21 132/33kV 50MVA TRAFO AT DIBRUGARH DIBRUGARH 27.6.2023 21.58 IDLE CHARGED

22 132/33kV 16MVA TRAFO AT HATSINGIMARI HATSINGIMARI 11.7.2023 13.07 FIRST TIME CHARGED

23 12.5MVA BUS REACTOR AT MARIANI MARIANI 14.7.2023 16.34
FTC (AFTER OUTAGE OF REACTOR EXCEEDING 6 

MONTHS)

24 132/33 KV 50 MVA TX-2 SAMAGURI 20-07-2023 12.11 FIRST TIME  CHARGED

25 132/33 KV 50 MVA TX-2 MIRZA 21.7.2023 11.47 FIRST TIME  CHARGED ( REPLACED 25MVA TX)

26 132 KV NALKATA NIRJULI NALKATA 31.7.2023 23.20 FIRST TIME  CHARGED

27 132KV NALKATA PARE NALKATA 1.8.2023 20.43 FIRST TIME IDLE  CHARGED

28 220kV AIS SUBSTATION AT STAR CEMENT LIMITED SONAPUR 8.8.2023 0.00 FIRST TIME IDLE  CHARGED

29 132/33kV 31.5MVA TX-I AT MORAN MORAN 09.8.2023 23.55 FIRST TIME  CHARGED

30 132KV GOHPUR BNC (PGCIL) GOHPUR 11.8.2023 23.27 FIRST TIME IDLE  CHARGED  LOADED

31 132KV GOHPUR ITANAGAR GOHPUR 12.8.2023 0.12 FIRST TIME IDLE  CHARGED  LOADED

32 220KV BUS COUPLER AT AGIA AGIA 18.8.2023 9.19 FIRST TIME IDLE  CHARGED

33 220/132kV 160MVA TR AT AGIA AGIA 22.9.2023 14.39 FIRST TIME IDLE  CHARGED

34 132/33kV 50MVA TR AT MIRZA MIRZA 22.9.2023 22.07 FIRST TIME IDLE  CHARGED

35 220/132kV 50MVA TR AT KHALOIGAON KHALOIGAON 3.10.2023 0.21 FIRST TIME IDLE  CHARGED

36 132kV PANCHGRAM-BADARPURGHAT (RLWY) PANCHGRAM 5.10.2023 16.03 FIRST TIME CHARGED

37 219 kV TINSUKIA-BEHIATING-I ASSAM 10.10.2023 15.16 FIRST TIME IDLE  CHARGED

38 220 kV TINSUKIA-BEHIATING-II ASSAM 10.10.2023 15.38 FIRST TIME IDLE  CHARGED

39 132kV AMINGAON-HAJO-II ASSAM 19.10.2023 21.06 FIRST TIME CHARGED

40 132kV AMINGAON-HAJO-I ASSAM 19.10.2023 21.30 FIRST TIME CHARGED

41 132/33kV 31.5MVA TX-II AT HAJO HAJO 19.10.2023 22.08 FIRST TIME CHARGED

42 132/33kV 31.5MVA TX-I AT HAJO HAJO 19.10.2023 22.15 FIRST TIME CHARGED

43 132kV SONABIL-TEZPUR-I ASSAM 21.10.2023 12.41
FIRST TIME CHARGED AFTER OUTAGE OF MORE THAN 

SIX MONTHS

44 132/33kV 40 MVA TX AT SIPAJHAR SIPAJHAR 27.10.2023 16.33 FIRST TIME CHARGED

NEW GRID ELEMENTS                                                 YEAR: 2023-2024

Page 273 of 284



 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Annexure – IX 
Energy Balance for FY 2023-24 

Certified by SLDC 
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Annexure – X 
Estimated Expenditure for Cyber 

Security for FY 2023-24 
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Sl No. Particulars Amount in Rs. Sl No. Particulars Amount in Rs.

Managed Switches at AEGCL Sites 1600000

1 Purchase of Webmail Licenses and Space 593835 Managed Switches at AEGCL HQ 600000

b

LAN (Local Area Network 

Connection) for AEGCL Offices 700000

1

Training And Development  Cyber Hygiene training 

program at NPTI 2500000 c

2 Firewalls at high availability 

mode for NMS at LA 

Communication AEGCL 2200000

2

Observation of NCSAM Mock Drill by M/s Prime 

Infoserv LLP 112100 d

70 Windows professional licenses 

Desktops 7000000

3

LAN (Local Area Network Connection) for AEGCL 

Offices 1778512 e 300 End Point Security Licenses 499500

4 LAN  Connectivity set up at Transit Camp 148086

5 End point Security Cloud Based (Antivirus) 962499.45

6

Procurement of Managed switches over 

unmanaged switches 149860

6244892.45 12599500

CYBER SECURITY BUDGET 2023-24

Total Total 

H1 H2

a

PAYMENT RELEASED

ACCOUNT BOOKED PAYMENT TO BE MADE

Page 277 of 284



 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Annexure – XI 
Conversion of Government Grants 
& Loans into Equity for FY 2023-24 
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GOVERNMENT OF ASSAM
POWER (ELECTRICITY) DEPARTMENT

DISPUR, GUWAHATI- 6
No. E 377979/4                              Dated Dispur, the 15-09-2023

 
From:   Shri Dulal Debnath, ACS
            Joint Secretary to the Govt. of Assam
To:       The MD, APGCL/ AEGCL
           Bijuleebhawan, Paltanbazar, Guwahati- 01

 
Sub.:  Decision of Hon'ble Cabinet in its meeting held on 08/09/2023- regarding.

 
Sir,
With reference to the subject cited above, I am directed to communicate the decision of
Hon'ble Cabinet in its meeting held on 08/09/2023 on the matter of Conversion of Government
of Assam Loans and Grants to APGCL and AEGCL into Equity as on 31.03.23, as
communicated by Political (Cabinet Cell) Department. 

 
The relevant extract of the minutes of the aforesaid  Cabinet Meeting is reproduced below:
"Sub :   1) Conversion of Government of Assam Loans and Grants to APGCL into Equity as on
31.03.2023.
            2) Conversion of Government of Assam Loans and Grants to AEGCL into Equity as on
31.03.2023 and waiver of interest accrued on such loans.
Approved.

Sd./-
Joint Secretary to the Government of Assam

Political (Cabinet Cell) Department
Dispur, Guwahati"

This is for favour of information and necessary action.
Yours faithfully,

 
 

Joint Secretary to the Govt. of Assam
Power (Electricity) Department

Memo No. E 377979/4-A                      Dated Dispur, the 15-09-2023
Copy to:
1. The Joint Secretary to the Government of Assam, Political (Cabinet Cell) Department,
Dispur, Guwahati- 6.
2. PS to Secretary, Power (Electricity) Department, Dispur, Guwahati- 6

 
By order etc.,

e-signed
Joint Secretary to the Govt. of Assam

Power (Electricity) Department

PEL-14/26/2023-POWER(E)-Power Department

I/279779/2023
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This is a computer generated document and doesn't require any Signature/Seal

Financial Sanction
 

 
To,

Accountant General (A&E) Assam, Maidamgaon, Beltola, Guwahati-29 

# Name Account Number
Amount

 (In Lakhs)
Remarks

1
ASSAM ELECTRICITY GRID

CORPORATION LIMITED
10566984188 1151.70000 Book Adjustment only

FINANCIAL
SANCTION Government Of Assam

Power (Electricity)
Department

Sanction No: FS/pe_2023-24(I)_30 Sanction Date: 12-10-2023

PURPOSE/SCHEME Conversion of Government of Assam Loans to AEGCL into Equity, as on 31.03.2023

Proposal No. : FS-pe-2023-24-00038 Finance Concurrence No : -N/A-

Administrative Approval : Not Applicable Sanctioned to : DIS/SAD/001 , General Administration (Secretariat
Accounts) Deptt.

Dept. File No : 388656 Sanctioned by: Mr. Sanjib Sarma AFS,Senior Financial Advisor,
Power (Electricity) Department

Financial Year : 2023-24 HOA : 4801-80-190-2063-501-20-99-SOPD-ODS-V-GA

Grant No : 62 DFP Rules: Cabinet approval dated 08/09/2023

Finance Concurrence Remarks: N/A Whether this work/scheme/program etc. has Forest Royalty due to the
Government? : N/A

Financial Sanction of the competent authority is hereby accorded for an amount not exceeding Rs.1151.70000 Lakhs (Rupees Eleven Crore
Fifty One Lakh Seventy Thousand only) towards the payment subject to the following terms and conditions:

TERMS & CONDITIONS

1. All norms in Assam Financial Rules, AFRBM Act 2005, CVC Guidelines, Assam Public Procurement Act 2017, Assam
Public Procurement Rules 2021 and similar directives from Finance Department issued from time to time is to be strictly
followed invariably.

2. The admissible deductions can be deducted and deposited into the Govt. Account by the Concerned Authority as per rule/
Govt. Instructions.

3. Work to be completed within the estimated cost in all respect without involving cost and time over run.

BENEFICIARY DETAILS

COPY FORWARDED TO

1. The Accountant General (A&E) Assam, Maidamgaon, Beltola, Guwahati-29.

2. The Accountant General (Audit), Assam, Maidamgaon, Guwahati-29

3. The Chief Inspectorate of Electricity, Assam.

4. Finance (EC-I/II/III) Dept.

5. Finance (Budget) Dept.

6. General Administration (Secretariat Accounts) Deptt.

7. Treasury Officer, Dispur
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This is a computer generated document and doesn't require any Signature/Seal

Financial Sanction
 

 
To,

Accountant General (A&E) Assam, Maidamgaon, Beltola, Guwahati-29 

# Name Account Number
Amount

 (In Lakhs)
Remarks

1
ASSAM ELECTRICITY GRID

CORPORATION LIMITED
10566984188 13439.81000 Book Adjustment only

FINANCIAL
SANCTION Government Of Assam

Power (Electricity)
Department

Sanction No: FS/pe_2023-24(I)_34 Sanction Date: 12-10-2023

PURPOSE/SCHEME Conversion of Government of Assam Grants to AEGCL into Equity, as on 31.03.2023

Proposal No. : FS-pe-2023-24-00042 Finance Concurrence No : -N/A-

Administrative Approval : Not Applicable Sanctioned to : DIS/SAD/001 , General Administration (Secretariat
Accounts) Deptt.

Dept. File No : 388656 Sanctioned by: Mr. Sanjib Sarma AFS,Senior Financial Advisor,
Power (Electricity) Department

Financial Year : 2023-24 HOA : 4801-80-190-2063-501-20-99-SOPD-ODS-V-GA

Grant No : 62 DFP Rules: Cabinet approval dated 08/09/2023

Finance Concurrence Remarks: N/A Whether this work/scheme/program etc. has Forest Royalty due to the
Government? : N/A

Financial Sanction of the competent authority is hereby accorded for an amount not exceeding Rs.13439.81000 Lakhs (Rupees One Hundred
and Thirty Four Crore Thirty Nine Lakh Eighty One Thousand only) towards the payment subject to the following terms and conditions:

TERMS & CONDITIONS

1. All norms in Assam Financial Rules, AFRBM Act 2005, CVC Guidelines, Assam Public Procurement Act 2017, Assam
Public Procurement Rules 2021 and similar directives from Finance Department issued from time to time is to be strictly
followed invariably.

2. The admissible deductions can be deducted and deposited into the Govt. Account by the Concerned Authority as per rule/
Govt. Instructions.

3. Work to be completed within the estimated cost in all respect without involving cost and time over run.

BENEFICIARY DETAILS

COPY FORWARDED TO

1. The Accountant General (A&E) Assam, Maidamgaon, Beltola, Guwahati-29.

2. The Accountant General (Audit), Assam, Maidamgaon, Guwahati-29

3. The Chief Inspectorate of Electricity, Assam.

4. Finance (EC-I/II/III) Dept.

5. Finance (Budget) Dept.

6. General Administration (Secretariat Accounts) Deptt.

7. Treasury Officer, Dispur
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                                              Progress Reports on SAMAST Project as on November’ 23 

 

S.N Item Responsibility Description of work Status Remarks 
1 DATA CENTRE HARDWARE  Infotek Services, 

Kolkata 
 Installation work of the Data Centre Hardware items. (i.e. 
Database server, Virtualization server, CDCS server, SAN, 
NAS, Firewall and UPS system & Battery bank has already 
been installed and commissioned at SLDC Data Centre. 

100% Completed, Defect 
liabilities started from 
1st July 2023. 

2 DATA CENTRE SOFTWARE Infotek Services, 
Kolkata 

Activation of Replication software, back up & Recovery 
software, Virtualization Software (VM ware), Windows 
server Operating system, User Client access license (CAL), 
Manage Engine OP manager professional Edition, Manage 
Engine Patch Manager, Installation of Operating software 
and MDAS application at CDCS server is completed 

100%  

3 Associated IT services SLDC • High Speed internet connection has been procured 
from M/s Power-tel Ltd. 

• Installation completed for MPLS connectivity in GPRS 
network for secured metered data collection from   
Substations to Data center  

•  LAN connectivity for workstation for SAMAST has 
been completed. 

• Procured Domain name, SSL certificate, SMS gateway, 
Mail service etc. for hosting SLDC website  

• Firewall for Power-tel lease line has been procured & 
installed as per cyber security guidelines. 

 

100%  
 
 
. 
 
 

4 SOFTWARE MODULE 
DEVELOPMENT 

PwC, Kolkata PwC, Kolkata has completed the Software development 
activities on Scheduling, Open Access, CMS website & MDM 
module, E-Log-book module, Energy accounting and MIS 
module. Development of the software modules are 
completed and installed at production environment. 

100% Completed, Defect 
liabilities started from 
1st July 2023. 
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                                              Progress Reports on SAMAST Project as on November’ 23 

5 Mass Installation of ABT energy 
meter with AMR at 220kV, 
132kV level  

Genus 
Infrastructure Pvt 
Ltd. 

Completed in the AEGCL Grid Substations. 
 

99%  8 Nos of IEM to be 
installed at NTPS & 
NRPP 

6 Cyber security PwC & Genus 1. Installation of Firewall by M/s PwC for the IT part is 
completed. 

2. Installation of firewall by M/s Genus for the 
communication server at data center is completed. 

3. Installation & commissioning of Firewall with 
Unified Threat Protection (UTP), Advance Malware 
protection, Application control, Web & video 
filtering, Antispam service etc. for internet lease line 
(Power Tel) is completed on 02.09.2022 

100% Firewall and antivirus 
activated till date. 
 
VAPT done. 

7 Mass Installation of ABT energy 
meter along with BCS software 
and metering PC at T-D 
interface points (33kV feeders 
of AEGCL GSSs) under AERC 
Tariff fund. 

Secure Meter Ltd. Mass installation of ABT energy meters along with metering 
PC and BCS software at GSSs of AEGCL is Completed. 

100% Completed, Defect 
liabilities started from 
1st September’ 2023. 
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